
��

�

���������	��
���

�

��
�����
�����������������������������������

�
�����������������
���������� !��" # �

����������������������������������������
�

�$��%��&�'����(��(���
���������������������������������������

�
)��*��

��##������+��#������,-�������.��/�--���0-1�����2-��������-�3��
����������4���������5��
$�

�
�
�

��#1���6�
�

�

������40�	0��+�
#���7�����8� �� 7�����8�
��0���--���(
����
#���7%�"0���
�����8�

�� 7%�"0��������8�

��0���--����-�1����
�0�
0��� �� 7��1�������#1���	���+���0����8�
��0���--���+�1����9
��� �� 7��1�������#1���	���/�0����8�
��0���--���+�����9
��� �� 7��1�������#1���	���+�����������8�
��0���--���(-�0��+�
#��� �� 7��1�������#1���	����
�-����:��'��3����8�
�
;����6��
��<0��0#�	����
���1�������!���#1���= �

�
�
�
��� ���� ��	�
��� ���� ���
���� 
������

��� ����

��� 
�� 
�
�����

���� ������ �
��� 
�� ��	���
� �� ������
��
�
�����
����������
������
������
�
���������
������������
���
���
�����������������������
��
��������
��������
�����	�
�����
�������������
��
��
���������������������

������
������
����� ! �"#$%�%###��&'��
��������(
�����)
���������
�(���(����

�



�

�
�

4(�%(��
(+(*$/�(,��(��+�/��4��'�
�

��
������
�

��%��'%�>������+�/������
�

� !��" # �
�

� 201-���?0��������������.���'�������
�
�������
���*����������
��

��+���
��,-��
��
��.��������*�������
�����*�
��
����
�
	���

����
��/�*
��
����*����*������
���/�*
��
�����������

������
����

������
���
��*�
��

���*��
�������
���
�
��
���������(�
�
0���

��������*����*�


���
����������
��
��������1�������*�����������
�������
��(�
�
���������	���

����
�����������������������

������
����������1�����2��*�����3������
3�������&,%�!�4�������
�������(
�����)
���������
�(���(���*��-�������������,�
�
2�����! ,,(�
�
�
�

� � �2(4($��'�,(+��
'�������
�
� �������
�������������
��������*�����(�

�
�
�

� 2�$��
�*�
�+�

��+%7'8�
�,,����%�

� � %��4�+���(�'�(,�����+�'���
�

��@��� �

� �����
�������������

�������
�
����
������*��2��*�����

�����
���
��������
�
�

���2��*�����������

������
���
	���

������
�
����
�����

���, $����
���5�����4��������
�
6
��������
��,77!(�������

��������
�������
���/�
���
&8���

��(�
�

� �

! � *�+�'�+����%����*��'��
�

!�@�!A� �

� �������
��������������
�����������
����������
����
���
�����
�
�
����
��
������
������
��������

������
���/�*
��
�
��������7
��6�*������! ,,(�
�

� �

5 � 2�����(�'��
�

� �

� �������
���������



���(�
�

� �



�
�

� 2�$��
�*�
�+�

��+%7'8�
�,,����%�

� � ()�+)����B�'�+*���>��(���������
�

� �

�� �� �
���:����3�����	�9������0������?0�������������-���������
*������������
0����������1���������������

�

� �

� �������
����������
����������
���������	���

����
������

���

��
��������
�
�
���*��
��������
���/�*
��
����
�
��������
���
���

������
���9����
�����������

���/���


�����������
"
��2�����! ,,(�
�
�

� �

�� �� ����*������������%���������C��--�����C�1���
��
(3��3��.�B�'��0�������##��������

�

� �

� +:���������
�
���������

����$�3����$( !�;����
���
/���


�

��.(�
�
����������
���

�������*����<�������
�=��������
����
����
����

���*��
���9����
�����������

���/���


����
�


�����

���
��*����������"
��2�����! ,,(��������
���
9����
�����������

���/���


�������������
����

����
������
���

���*����
��
���/�*
��
��������
��������
����

���
2��*�����
�������
�������������
��������
�����
������
�
��>�
����������

�������
���9����
�����������

���/���


���
�
�
���/�*
��
����

��(�
�
+
.� 5���������3��
���?��
���+/��� @ >, ,.(�
�
�

� �

� *�+�'�+����%�+�2(+�'�,(+��(�'�%�+���(��
�

A � ��$+����24�����(�4�)���
�

� �

A� �� ����--�'�����D�
���-����2��E�7��
���FD���8���
�

!G�@��A� �����������B�
4���10��H�

4�#�
�0��H�
A� �� ��##�����-�����3���������2��E��7��
����D���8���
�

�G�@�A5� �--������H�

G � ��2+('2�+(*'��(��*���>��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

F � ��'�,����%�'*22(+��)���(��*���>��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �



�
�

� 2�$��
�*�
�+�

��+%7'8�
�,,����%�

� � ��/��4�/>��(��*���>��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�� � (����(��+�/��4��'��
�

� �

��� �� �
�-����:��������0-��:�'��3�����+��������������7��
�
���D���8���

�

A��@�F�� �--������H�

��� �� '���������2��	��#������������"������
0�����
��������������!�����%���#1���������7��
����D���8���

�

F��@���5� �--������H�

�� � ��>�(�/�+�*�+�'�+����%�
*'���''�
�(�'�%�+�%��(�
��*+$�����

�

� �

� �������
���������
���������
�
�
���*��
�����
��
�
���/��
��
����
�����
��*�������
(�
�

� �

�� � *�+�'�+����%�+�2(+�'�,(+�
��,(+����(���

�

� �

��� �� �I��������	����"������%��������:�%�����������7��
�
���D���8���

�

����@����� �--������H�

�! � �J�4*'�(��(,��/��2+�''���%�2*
4����
�

� �

� ����
������
������
��
�����
�������
�
���

�������
���
��������
���/���


���
��������������
������
�
���
������
�����

����
�
<���
��������
�������
�
����������

���,  �����
���5�����
4��������
���
��,7"!������������*��
���5�����
4��������
�+�������
���������

��.���
��,7@-��
���3�����
����3�*�
��*���8������������
�������
��������
������

���
����
�������
����

������
������

�������*��
��������
���
��������
��
�

����
�
���
������

������
�������&8���
�
��
3��
�,�������������,!��
��
���5�����4��������
����
�
,7"!=(�
�
�J��2�D�(�,�%�����4�'����(��72��98�
���� &8���
� >� /���
���

��� +3
��.� /���


��� ������� 
�� 
��� ������� �
��� ���
�
��

������

������
���
���������
��������������������������������


����������������
�*��
�
�������
��
�
������

��(��������������
��
���
����
�
��
��������������
���
������

����
������������
����
��
���/���


���9��
����������
(��

� �

� �
�



�
�

� 2�$��
�*�
�+�

��+%7'8�
�,,����%�

�5 � �J��2��D��(�,�%�����4����*��'��
�

����@���A� �

� �������
��������������
�����������
����������
����
���
�8���
�>�����
���

����
��
������
������
��������

������

���/�*
��
���������7
��6�*������! ,,(�
�

� �

�� � ()�+)����B�'�+*���>��(���������
�

� �

��� �� �
���:����3�����	�9������0������?0�������������-���������
�I�#"��D����	�������-�
0����������1������������ ���

�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�
�

� �

��� �� �����I�#"��D����	�������-�%���������C��--�����C�1���
��
(3��3��.�B�'��0�������##��������

�

� �

� +:���������
�
���������

����$�3����$( !�;����
���
/���


�

��.(�
�
A
��

���(�
�
�

� �

� �J��2��D��(�,�%�����4�+�2(+�'�,(+��(�'�%�+���(��
�

�A � ��$+����24�����(�4�)���
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�G � ��2+('2�+(*'��(��*���>��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�F � ��'�,����%�'*22(+��)���(��*���>��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�� � ��/��4�/>��(��*���>��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�� � (����(��+�/��4��'��
�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�� � ��>�(�/�+��J��2�D��(�,�%�����4�

*'���''��(�'�%�+�%��(�
��*+$�����

�

� �

� �������
���������
�����8���
>�����
���

���*��
�����
��
�

���/��
������
�����
��*�������
(�
�

� �



�
�

�� � �J��2��D��(�,�%�����4�+�2(+�'�,(+�
��,(+����(���

�

� �

� A
��

���(�
�

� �

�
'�+*���>�2+(��''�
�
����9����
�����������

���/���


�����
�

�����

�������0��������
��"��-����������
����

�
�������
�
��������
�
���������
��������
�����������
��������
���

�������
��

�
��
<�������
�=�*��	�3����������/����
�������8���
�������
������
�
���
����������
����������

���
�������/����
�(�
�
���������
�������</���'
�=�
��� 6�
����,@
��2�����! ,,� �7� ���" # 8�
�
/����
�������
��
���
��<����'
�=�������
�
��������
�
����������*�������
�����*�
���
��
���
��
��*�

�������
�

�����	���
������������
��
�� K�
����--��#��
� '��3����/����%�#��������'��3����6�
� ����G!A5�5����

�
�

�
�



��

�
������	
���
��������	�����	��������������������������	�
�����	�	�	����
	
	�	���
����������	
	����������� ����
� � � �

���������	
��	
��
����������
	���
�	����������
�����������
�
�
!�������	� ����������	����" � �#	�$	
����������������� ��	�%������&��%��	����%���������
� ��
��	
�
�	����� �����	��'��"�#	�$	
�������	���	������	"���
	�������	
	�����	
	��
	���	"��������(	���	�
�
�)���	������ � � ��� ������$����� ��� ��	�����
	������� ���	
	��� ��� �����
���$�	� ����		(���
��	������� ���
���	������������		���� ���
�
������������������������������� !����
�
*�	
	� #	�$	
�� ��
	� �� +	
������ ���	
	��� ��� ��"� $����	��� ��� ��	� �����
��"� ��� �	��
�$	�� ���
+�
��
�+��,������	�%������&��%��	����%�������-�������	�����+�
���������	�%������&��%�����������.�
��	���/�	�������������	� �����+	
������ ���	
	������ �������
����	�)����+�
��
�+������� ��	�%��	 ��
#	�$	
��������������	���	�	����	��	���������
	������	����	
	��������	����
�������	��		���������
�	
�����"�������	
��������	�����	��	�	��������	���	���
�)�	
	���	����	
	���$	���	���++�
	�� ���
�
0�����
	��������������������������"�$����	������"��
������
��"�)�	
	����
	���	������
������(	�"����
���	����
�

-�.�������	
	��������"����������"������
�
-$.�������	
	��������������������	�
	����	
1�$���)�	
	���	�)	��2$	�����
�����������+�����������"��1�

�	�$	
�����"��
������"1��
�+	�+�	�)����)����"�����
	�������	������������1������(	�"����$	�
���	��	�� $"� ��	� $����	��� ��� "��
� �����
��"� ��
	� ����� ��� )����� ���	��� ��	� ��3�
��"� ���
����$������������	�)�
�����	��	��$"���	��	������ �

�
*�	
	� �� +	
������ ���	
	��� ��� �	���
	�� �� #	�$	
� ��"� ���"� ���� ��(	� +�
�� ��� ��	� �	$��	� ����
�	�����������������	� ���
�
#$����������%���������&%'��������������(�2�4�	��	�
	�	
����+�
��
�+��5������	����+�	��%��	����
%������ �
�
)�%��������������������*���������!�������&%'�������������������� ���������+�,-�+!,���'����$���+�,�
���+',�!���*�����./��
�

-�.� ���	�$	
������	�+�$���1�)���(��)����	�
	�	
���������1�)�����
	�����$�"�����(������"��
�
+	
������ ���	
	���� �
	� ��� ������������ ����� ��� ��� ��(	�"� ��� +
	3����	� "��
� 3����	��� ��� ��	�
+�$�������	
	���6�����

-$.� !�	� ����	
� ��	�� ���� ����� )������ ��	� ��� ��	� 	�	�+�� ���	��
�	�� ��� �	������� ����	�� ���
+�
��
�+��5 �������	�%��	6�����7�!879���

-�.� !�	�����	
����	����"��
� ����������+���������
� ��	� ���������� ���	
	��������$��"�)����)�����
"����
	���������	�6��
�

-�.� !�	�����	
�
	���	�������	��	�	
�����������������	�������
�
	������
"��++���������
�

!�	�(	"�+������ ��� 
	�	�$	
� ���"�����
	���+
	3�������� ���	
	��� ���������	
�$	�����������	�������
�		�����2�
�

� � 0���������	���
	������"�����
	���+
	3�����������	
	��1�������	�����
	������������	
	��1����
����������������	
	���$	���	���++�
	������"��6������

�
�� � 0���������	�
	���	�
������
���	���
���������������	
�����������	������������	���	������

�����		(���������	��	���	��	$��	��
��	����������	���-�
.�$	��)��++��	�6������

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



��

�
������	
���
��������	�����	��������������������������	�
�����	�	�	����
	
	�	���
����������	
	����������� ����
� � � �

�
��� � 0������������ �		(� ��� ��+
�+	
�"� �����	��	����	������� ���)�����"�����
	���+
	3��������

���	
	�� ���
�

�
 � ���#	�$	
�������	�+�$�����
	�����)	������+	�(��
���(	�
	+
	�	��������������	��		����1�
��
	�	
��	��	��
����)	
�:�	��������$������	�����	
1�$"��������
"�
������
����	
)��	�-	 � �
+�������� �
� ���	������ �������		�.1� "��� ���� �	���
	� "��
� +
	3�������� ���	
	��� $��� ��(	�

	+
	�	�������� � � 8�)	
	
1� "��� ����� ���	����	�"� �	�
	� ��	� 
���� ���	� "��� ��
	�
������	��"��
� 
	+
	�	����������������)	
	��:�	������� -�����". � �0���������� 
	����� ���
��	��		������
������	�+�$��������	
"���
������	��	$��	��
��	������������	�����	
 �

�
�
�
�
�

Page 2



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�	

������������	
������
���
�������
�

������������
����������
�


��������������������
��������������������������
�

�����������������������������
��
�����������������������������
������������������������	�

	
� !" #$��# $ %&'�
	
�����	������	��� �!	�������	 �������	
���!"#$$��	��#%	�� &%	��&'���	������	 ��&'���	������	
���!"#$$��	�$#(��	����%����	 ���(#!&�	�& (&�	���	�&)���"&)�	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!	 ���(#!&�	�& (&�	���	+��)#!,�	
���!"#$$��	��!#�	*��!	 ���(#!&�	�& (&�	���	�&,&!&���#�!�	
���!"#$$��	�$#��	��� �!	 ���(#!&�	�& (&�	���	��#$%�&!-)	�&�.#"&)�	
	 	

	
�&( #��)*%+,--)#$��# $ %&'	

���!"#$$��	���#,	�)��!	 	

���!"#$$��	��&'��!#&	����!	 ��&�%&��	�#(&��$	�& �"���	/���'�	

���!"#$$��	��.#%	�%,��	 	

���!"#$$��	0���	��.#)	 	

���!"#$$��	1�%#��	/��%#!&�	 	

���!"#$$��	�!!	1�"2)�!	 ����#��	�.&�.#&3	4	�"���#!�	��  #��&&�	

���!"#$$��	�#$$	���!&�	 ��5	�'�&&	�& (&�	

���!"#$$��	���#!	�650� �!	 ����#�	��	���!"#$�	

���!"#$$��	*�(#�	�� &%	 	

���!"#$$��	�(%�$	�)�%	 	

	
�&( #$��# $ %&'	

	 	
	

�..,+ #$��# $ %&'	

*&.�!	��$$#!)	 �	 ���#&�	�7&"��#.&�	
� �!	��$.#	 �	 ����'����&	�#�&"����	�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$�	
�)�(&$	����&� �$&	 �	 ��"�#!,	 ���'����&	 �#�&"����	 ��#$%�&!�	 �"���$)	 4	

8� #$#&)�	
�)�(&$$�	8�&& �!	 �	 ��))#)��!�	��#&�	�7&"��#.&	5	�&,�$	�&�.#"&)�	��#&�	

�7&"��#.&-)�	
��&'�&!	+�$)&�	 �	 ����'����&	 �#�&"���	 ��  �!#�#&)�	 ��"�$#�#&)	 4	

��$���&�	
���#)	���$��	 �	 ����'����&	�#�&"���	�&)���"&)�	

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


	

+&$&!	���$��	 �	 ��"�#!,	 ���'����&	 �#�&"���	 �%�$�)	 +&�$��	 4	
9&$$(&#!,�	

�#�$$	�"/�3�!	 �	 ��&,&!&���#�!	��!�,&��	
���#)	9��(�	 �	 ��!�&�# 	 �&�.#"&	 +&�%�	 �&,&!&���#�!�	

�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$�	
����  &%	���%	 �	 ��"���#!�	 :�$#"�	 ���#"&��	 �"���#!�	 4	 �;��$#�#&)�	

��#&�	�7&"��#.&-)�	
*��&	�#!,�� 	 �	 ��"�#!,	 �&�.#"&	 +&�%	 ��&)���"&)�	 ��#$%�&!	

�"���$)	4	8� #$#&)�	
1�"2#&	�%�!��&	 �	 ��&�.#"&	 +&�%	 �����&,��	 �!!�.��#�!	 �!%	

��)��#!�(#$#���	�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$�	
��22#	��$�# �!	 �	 ��&�.#"&	 +&�%	 ��  �!#"��#�!)�	 ��#&�	

�7&"��#.&-)�	
���#)	+�$ &	 �	 ��&�.#"&	 +&�%	 �&)���"&)�	 �&.&$�' &!�	 4	

�&!&3�$�	
:��$	�&&)�!	 �	 �8#!�!"&	��!�,&��	�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$�	
��2&	��$$�	 �	 �8#!�!"&	 ��!�,&��	 ��  �!#�#&)�	 ��"�$#�#&)	 4	

��$���&�	
�!%�	�$,��	 �	 ��&�.#"&	+&�%	�))&�	��!�,& &!��	�&.&$�' &!�	

4	�&!&3�$�	
�$�!	8#!"�	 �	 ��&�.#"&	+&�%	���'����&	8#!�!"&�	�&)���"&)�	
�#"��&$	�&$$	 �	 ������&,#"	:$�!!#!,	��!�,&��	�����&,#"	:$�!!#!,�	

�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$�	
�&(����	���&!	 �	 ��&�.#"&	 +&�%�	 ��  #))#�!#!,	 �!%	 �����&,��	

�%�$�)	+&�$��	�!%	9&$$(&#!,�	
���#)	���!%&�)	 �	 �:�$#�#"�$	 �%.#)��	 ��	 ��&	 ��(���	 /���'�	 ��#&�	

�7&"��#.&-)�	
*�6# 	0�#%#	 �	 ��!�&�# 	:�$#"�	�%.#)���	��#&�	�7&"��#.&-)�	
��6�6	���3%����	 �	 �:�$#�#"�$	 �%.#)��	 ��	 ��!)&�.��#.&	 /���'�	 ��#&�	

�7&"��#.&-)�	
���6�$	+�;�&	 �	 ��"���#!�	 :�$#"�	 ��!�,&��	 �"���#!�	 4	 �;��$#�#&)�	

��#&�	�7&"��#.&-)�	
���6#%	�#��	 �	 �:�$#�#"�$	�%.#)��	��	��&	������	��#&�	�7&"��#.&-)�	
1��!	9#$$#� )	 �	 ��&�.#"&	 +&�%�	 �& �"���#"	 �&�.#"&)�	 ��#&�	

�7&"��#.&-)�	
�$�!	�!,�� 	 �	 ��& �"���#"	�&�.#"&)�	

	
	

��������
����/�����0�����
���
����
�
�

�����1��
�����������������	����������	
	
��&	�����	3&$"� &%	���)&	'�&)&!�	#!	��&	'�($#"	,�$$&��	�!%	 �%&	�!	
�'&!#!,	)���& &!�	�)	��$$�3)<	
	

�	 =&)�&�%��	 3&	 '�($#)�&%	 ���	 �;��$#��	 �))&)) &!�)	 ���	 ��&	 (�%,&�	
'��'�)�$)>		�)	�	�&)�$�	��	��&	�;��$#��	�))&)) &!�)	�!%	��&	�&&%(�"2	
3&?.&	 �&"&#.&%	 ��� 	 ��&	 '�($#"�	 ��� 	 �& (&�)�	 ��� 	 ���!"#$	
& '$��&&)	 �!%	 ��&	 �!#�!)	 3&	 ��.&	 $��2&%	 �,�#!	 ��	 )&.&��$	 #))�&)>	
�!%	 �)	 �	 �&)�$�	 ��	  &&�#!,)	 �.&�	 ��&	 $�)�	 �&3	 %��)	 (���	 3#��	 ���)&	

Page 4



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

@	

���&"�&%	�!%	)&!#��	���!"#$	���#"&�)	3&	��.&	 �.&%	��	�%%�&))	)� &	
��	��&	"�!"&�!)	��#)&%>	

�	 �!	+� &"��&	3&	��.&	�$$�"��&%	 ��!%#!,	 ��	 &!)��&	 ����	 ��&	 "��!,&)	
��2&	'$�"&	�.&�	�	$�!,&�	'&�#�%	3#��	��&	#!5���)&	)&�.#"&	!�3	"$�)#!,	#!	


�A>	��#)	3#$$	 &!)��&	 ����	 ��&	.�)�	 �B��#��	��	 $�))&)	3#$$	 "� &	 ��� 	
!�����$	���!�.&�	��	)����>		9&	��&	(&#!,	���"&%	��	"���	�	3#)�	3&	3&�&!?��	
(��	 ��#)	 '��'�)�$	 &!)��&)	 ����	 )� &	 ��	 ���	  �)�	 �#,�$�	 )2#$$&%	 �!%	
%&%#"��&%	3��2&�)	3#$$	"�!�#!�&	��	)&�.&	��&	"�  �!#��	���	)� &	�&��)	
��	"� &>	

�	 �!���&�	 "�!"&�!	 ����	 �	 $��	 ��	 '&�'$&	 ��.&	 &7'�&))&%	 ��	 �)	 #)	 �(���	
+��)#!,	�#!2	3�#"�	'��.#%&)	���)#!,	)�''���	�!%	�%.#"&	��	 &!��$$�	#$$	
'&�'$&>	 �	��.&	'�� #)&%	 ��	 $��2	�,�#!	��	 ��&	)&�.#"&	�!%	3&	��&	!�3	
'��'�)#!,	 ��	 ��!%	 ���!)#�#�!�$	 ����!,& &!�)	 ����	 &!)��&	 �)&�)	 ��&	
&��&"�#.&$�	)�''���&%	�����,�	��&	"��!,&>	

�	 ��&�&	��.&	�$)�	(&&!	)� &	"�!"&�!)	����!%	��&	1�!#��	=����	�&�.#"&�	
)�%$�	 )� &	��	 #�	 %�&	 ��	 %&$#(&���&	 )"��& �!,&�#!,>	 �	 "�!	�))��&	 ���	
����	 ��&	)&�.#"&	 #)	!��	(&#!,	"��>	��&	/�.&�! &!�	 #)	!�3	,#.#!,	 ��&	
��!%#!,	%#�&"�	 ��	)"���$)	�!%	3&	��&	�%�'�#!,	 ��&	)&�.#"&	 ��	�&)'�!%>	
�#,��	)"���$)	��.&	�$�&�%�	)#,!&%	�'	 ��	�	!&3	)"�& &	�!%	3&	��.&	
�$$�"��&%	C�

�


	��	,&�	��#!,)	�'	�!%	��!!#!,>	

�	 9#��	)�	 �!�	%&"#)#�!)	!&&%#!,	 ��	(&	 ��2&!	)�	;�#"2$�	 �	(&$#&.&	 ����	
3�&�&	3&	��.&	 ��&	 �# &	 ��	 �2&	%&"#)#�!)	3&	 �)�	 ��2&	 #�>	 �	2!�3	
����	  �!�	 �& (&�)	 ��&	 '�)�#!,	 ���	 �!	 #  &%#��&	 %&"#)#�!	 �!	 ��)�	
�!%	�#�&>	�	��.&	�$�&�%�	�!!��!"&%	�	�&.#&3	�!%	� 	��,#!,	���#"&�)	��	
���!	��#)	���!%	#!	�	 ���&�	��	3&&2)>	��	��#)	)��,&	�	�&&$	����	��&�&	��&	
)�.#!,)	��	(&	 �%&>	��&)&	)�.#!,)	3#$$	(&	�)&%	��	"$�)&	��&	)#,!#�#"�!�	
��!%#!,	,�'	��&	/�.&�! &!�	#)	���"#!,	�!	�)	#!	

�
��@	(��	#�	#)	�'	��	
���#"&�)	��	�%.#)&	�)	3���	�&'�&)&!�)	(&)�	.�$�&>	

�	 �!���&�	��&�	3�&�&	�& (&�)	��.&	��#)&%	"�!"&�!)	��&	'��'�)�$)	���	
��&	 �����?)	 ���#"&	 �!%	 �& (&�)?	 ��''���>	 ��#)	 &!�#�&	 #))�&	 ��)	
(&"� &	 �	 %#)���"�#�!	 3�&!	 3&	 )���$%	 (&	 "�!"&!����#!,	 �!	 .#��$	
)&�.#"&)>	�!	����	��&	'&�'$&	��	��&	(����,�	.��&%	�.&�3�&$ #!,$�	���	�	
�����	��	%�#.&	��&	���!)��� ��#�!	��	)&�.#"&)	�!%	��$%	��&	(��&��"��"�	
��	�""��!�>	��#)	!&&%	!��	(&	��	��&	&7"$�)#�!	��	��&	.#��$	��$&	'$��&%	(�	
�& (&�)>	�!%	(&"��)&	3&	��&	�$$	 #!	 ��#)	 ��,&��&�	 �	 '��'�)&	 ����	 ��&	
 �!&�	 )&�	 �)#%&	 ���	  �	 ���#"&	 (&	 �%%&%	 ��	 ����	 ,�#!,	 ��	 �& (&�)?	
�&�.#"&)	�!%	 ����	)�''���	 ��	 ��&	���!"#$?)	%& �"��"�	(&	 $��2&%	��	 #!	
��&	 ���!%�	 3#��	 �$$	 ���	 !&&%)	 "�!)#%&�&%	 ��,&��&��	 ���)#%&	 ��	 ��&	
"���&!�	(�%,&�	'��"&))	(��	!�	$��&�	���!	��&	&!%	��	1�!&	��#)	�&��>	

�	 �	2!�3	����	��&	(�%,&�	#)	���& �)�	#!	&.&���!&?)	 #!%)	��	��&	 � &!�	
(��	 ��&�&	 #)	�	 $��	��	���&�	3��2	,�#!,	�!	��	 ��&	���!"#$>	�� &	��	 #�	 #)	
 �%&	!&"&))���	(�	��,&	)�#��)	#!	/�.&�! &!�	'�$#"�	3�#"��	�$�!,	3#��	
��&	"��)�	��&	�	(#,	(��%&!	���	�$$	$�"�$	������#�#&)>	���	)� &	��&	'���	��	
���	�3!	'�#��#�#&)	�)	�	���!"#$>	

�	 �	 � 	&)'&"#�$$�	 '$&�)&%	 ��	 )&&	 ��&	�$�"23�$$	�&�"�	 �&,&!&���#�!	3#$$	
)��!	(&	��	��&	�&!%&�	)��,&>	��#)	3#$$	(�#!,	�	��,&	�'$#��	��	��&	��&�	�)	
3&$$	�)	����)�!%)	��	!&3	�� &)	�!%	��&	$�!,5�3�#�&%	�&,&!&���#�!	��	
���#)'	���&&�	���2&�>		

�	 9&?�&	�$)�	�$$�"��#!,	C@D
�


	 ��	(�#$%	 ��&	�����%�($&	�� &)	 #!	 ��&	
(����,�	 3�#"�	 #)	 &7"&$$&!�	 !&3)�	 &)'&"#�$$�	 #!	 ��&)&	 ���,�	 �# &)>		
���!2	���>	

Page 5



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

E	

	
��2��������	
	
��	 ��#)	 B�!"���&	 ��&	 �����	 #!��� &%	 ���)&	 '�&)&!�	 ����	 (&���&	 �&	 �!%	 �#)	
��(#!&�	'��"&&%&%	��	"�!)#%&���#�!	��	��&	)�()��!�#.&	(�)#!&))	)&�	���	#!	��&	
�,&!%��	 ��&�&	 3��$%	 (&	 �!	 �''����!#��	 ���	 ��&	 '�($#"	 ��	 '��	 ;�&)�#�!)	 ��	
�# )&$��	 ��&	�&'���	�����	 �!%	���&�	�& (&�)	 "� '�#)#!,	 ��&	��(#!&�	3��	
3&�&	 '�&)&!�>	 	 �""��%#!,$�	 ��&	 �����	�)3 4	 ��&	 ��$$�3#!,	  ��#�!	 ���	 ��&	
"�!)#%&���#�!	��	��&	��(#!&�	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
	
� $)-3 4�
�
����	��&	��(#!&�	�%B���!	���	�	)����	'&�#�%	��	)� &	�D	 #!��&)�	�!%	����	��&	
 &&�#!,	�&"�!.&!&	��&�&���&�>	
	
�( �!  &,%5�647)*#% 4�6&������8!�
�( �!  &,%5�# +)%3 % 4�6&����9�8!�
�
�
:* $&,)%�;��%$< #�� $$,)%		
	
�& (&�)	 ��	 ��&	 '�($#"	 )��,��	 �!%	 3&�&	 ,#.&!	 "$��#�#"��#�!	 ���	 �	 3�#��&!	
�&)'�!)&	��	(&	'��.#%&%�	#!	�&$��#�!	��	��&	��$$�3#!,	'�#!�)<	

•	 ��&	'�)#�#�!	��	��(#!	+��%	/��%&!)	3��	��%	(&&!	�!%	3&�&	(&#!,	
��$%	 ����	 #�	 ��&�	��%	'#"2&%	 ��&	 �&���(#)� &!�	�'�#�!	��	 ��&	�$�"23�$$	
�&�"�	�&,&!&���#�!	:��B&"�	��&�	3��$%	��.&	$�)�	��&#�	)&"��&	���!"#$	
�&!�!"#&)	 3#��#!	 ��&	 &)���&	 (��!%��#&)	 �!%	 3��$%	 ��.&	 (&&!	
���� ��#"�$$�	 ���!)�&��&%	3#�����	 �	(�$$��	 ��	�	 !&3	�&,#)�&�&%	��"#�$	
��!%$��%>	 �$��#�#"��#�!	 3�)	 �&;�&)�&%	 �)	 ��	 3�&��&��	 #�	 ��&�	 ��%	
"��)&!	 ��&	 �&���(#)� &!�	 ���&�	 (��	 ��&	���!"#$	 )�#$$	 #!�&!%&%	 �	 )��"2	
���!)�&��	 �&!�!�)	 3��$%	 (�	 $�3	 ��.&	 ��%	 ��	 (&	 (�$$��&%>	 ���������
���	
�����
����
�����	

•	 +�%	��&	�&�($& &!�	'��,��  &	(&&!	%&)#,!&%	(&���&	��&	�����	��%	
��2&!	�'	���#"&	�)	 #�	3�)	"�!)#%&�&%	 ��	"��	�"��))	 ��&	���!"#$?)	"��&	
.�$�&	��	'���&"�#!,	 ��&	 �)�	 .�$!&��($&	 �!%	 $�3&�	 '�#%	3� &!	 )����>	
�$�&�%��	(�%,&�	�&%�"�#�!)	3&�&	"�&��#!,	���%)�#'	���	'&!)#�!&�)	�!%	
��&�&	)���$%	(&	!�	)����	�&%�"�#�!)	#!	��#)	��&�>	

•	 �))���!"&	3�)	 �&;�&)�&%	 ����	 ��&�&	3��$%	(&	!�	"��)�	 B�(	 $�))&)	��	
�&%�!%�!"#&)	#!	��&	=����	�&�.#"&	�"���&!�$�	FD�FA	B�()	3&�&	��	�#)2��	
�)	 �	 ��,&	 !� (&�	 ��	 ���!,	 '&�'$&	 "��$%	 (&	 ���&"�&%>	 9��$%	 ��&	
��"#$#�#&)	��	��&	)&�.#"&	(&	�.�#$�($&	��	3��2#!,	'��&!�)G	

•	 +�3	 ;�#"2$�	 3��$%	 ��&	 ��(#!	 +��%	 /��%&!)�:�'$��	 ��);�&	
�&,&!&���#�!	'��"&))	(&	"�  &!"&%G	

	
��	��#)	'�#!�	�	'&�#�#�!	�&$��#!,	��	+��)#!,	�#!2	3�)	��!%&%	#!	�!%	��&	�����	
#!%#"��&%	����	��#)	3��$%	)��!%	�&�&��&%	��	��&	�&$&.�!�	���#"&�)	���	���&!�#�!>	
	
��&	 �����	 ��&!	 3&$"� &%	 ��	 ��&	  &&�#!,	 ��	 1��!	 ��%,��&�	 �&'���	 ���%	
�#&��&!�!�	��	��&	�����,�>		
	
	

Page 6



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

D	

��� �����	�����������������
	
��&�&	3&�&	!�	�'�$�,#&)	���	�()&!"&>	
	
	
	

��� ��������������������������
	
�)*%+,--)#��(,4��(! 4�%&"$��&%	'&�)�!�$	#!�&�&)�)	#!	��&	��$$�3#!,	�,&!%�	
#�& )	�!	��&	(�)#)	��	��&	�&�)�!)	)��3!<	

•	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	 A>�	 H	 I��3&�	 +� $&�)	 /�&&!	 /�#%	 �����&,�J	 ����	

F���
��>	+&	��%	(&&!	 $�((#&%	(�	���%&)	�!#�!)	 �&'�&)&!���#.&)	 �)	
��&	�&'���	"�!��#!&%	# '$#"��#�!)	���	)����#!,	#))�&)>	

•	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	 A>E	 H	 I���#)'	 ���&&�	 �&,&!&���#�!<	 �'%��&	 �!%	 !&7�	
)�&')J	 ����
K
��
��>	��&	 �&'���	"�!��#!&%	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	
��	 '��'&��#&)	 $�"��&%	 #!	 ��)�	 �!%#�	 4	 ��!)(���	9��%	 �!%	 �&	 3�)	 �	
9��%	���!"#$$��	���	����	9��%>	

•	 �,&!%�	��& 	�
>K	H	I��#$%�&!�	�"���$)	�!%	8� #$#&)	8&&)	4	����,&)J	
����
�@��
��>	 ��&	 �&'���	 "�!��#!&%	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	 ��	
)"���$	 &�$)	�!%	���&�	"���,&)	�!%	�#)	%��,��&�	���&!%&%	�	)"���$	#!	
��&	�����,�>	

	
�)*%+,--)#� �6%,6�=(6%�%&"$��&%	 �	 '&�)�!�$	 #!�&�&)�	 #!	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	 A>E	 H	
���#)'	 ���&&�	 �&,&!&���#�!<	 �'%��&	 �!%	 !&7�	 )�&')J	 ����
K
��
��>	 ��&	
%&"$����#�!	 ��	 #!�&�&)�	 3�)	  �%&	 �!	 ��&	 (�)#)	 ����	 ��&	 �&'���	 "�!��#!&%	
�&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 '��'&��#&)	 $�"��&%	 #!	 ��)�	 �!%#�	 �!%	 ��!)(���	
9��%	 �!%	 )�&	3�)	 �	9��%	���!"#$$��	 ���	 ����	9��%	�!%	3�)	 �	 & (&�	 ��	
:�'$��	+����	����%>	
	
	
�
	

��� ����������������������
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	�!%	#�	3�)<	5	
�
� $)-3 4	
	
����	��&	�!�&)��#"�&%	 #!��&)	��	��&	��%#!���	 &&�#!,	��	 ��&	��(#!&�	�&$%	�!	
�
��	1�!����	

��	(&	�''��.&%	�!%	)#,!&%	(�	��&	�����	�)	�	"���&"�	�&"��%	
��	��&	'��"&&%#!,)>	
	
	

��� ������������;������������
	
��&	�����	#!%#"��&%	�����	3�#$&	!�	'�#��	!��#�#"��#�!	��	�	%&'����#�!	��%	(&&!	
�&"&#.&%�	�&	3�)	 #!%&%	��	�$$�3	�3�	'&�)�!)	��	�%%�&))	��&	 &&�#!,	�!	��&	
 ���&�	��	�$�"23�$$	�&�"�	�&,&!&���#�!	�"�& &�	3�#"�	3�)	�!	#�& 	�!	��&	
�,&!%�	 ���	 ��&	  &&�#!,>	 	 �""��%#!,$��	 �&	�)3 4� ��&	 ��$$�3#!,	  ��#�!	 ���	
"�!)#%&���#�!	��	��&	��(#!&�	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�

Page 7



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

A	

� $)-3 4�
�
����	���!"#$	:��"&%��&	��$&	F>
	(&	)�)'&!%&%	�!%	��&	%&'����#�!	��� 	��&	
��(#!	+��%	�)���&	�&)#%&!�)	�!%	��&	:�'$��	��);�&	(&	�&"&#.&%>	
	
��	 ����  &%	 �(�	 =�)���	 ���#�	 ��	 ��(#!	 +��%	 /��%&!)	 �&!�!�)?	 �!%	
�&)#%&!�)?	�))�"#��#�!�	�%%�&))&%	��&	��(#!&�	 #!%#"��#!,	����	 �)�	�&)#%&!�)	
��	 ��&	 &)���&	 3&�&	 ��''�	 3#��	 ��&	 �&,&!&���#�!	 '��"&))	 %�&	 ��	 "���&!�	
�.&�"��3%#!,�	$�"2	��	� &!#�#&)	�!%	'���	$#.#!,	"�!%#�#�!)>	��	3�)	"�!)#%&�&%	
&))&!�#�$	 ����	 ��&	���!"#$	 '�&))	 ���3��%	3#��	 ��&	)"�& &	(&���&	�!�	 �����&�	
"��!,&)	#!	/�.&�! &!�	'�$#"�	�&)��#"�&%	'��,�&))>	
	
��	�#��B�$	 ��$&2#!�	 �	 & (&�	 ��	 :�'$��	��);�&�	 )���&%	 ����	 �&)#%&!�)	3&�&	
��''�	3#��	 ��&	���!"#$?)	'��'�)�$)	�!%	 ����	 ��&	"���&!�	�% #!#)����#�!	3&�&	
)&�#��)	 �(���	 ��2#!,	 �'	 '&�'$&?)	 "�!"&�!)>	 	 �&)#%&!�)	 ��	 ��(#!	 +��%	
/��%&!)	�&$�	 ����	 ��&	(�#$%#!,	3�)	!��	3����	'�&)&�.#!,	�!%	 #�	3�)	 # '����!�	
���	 �%%#�#�!�$	 "�  �!#��	 ��"#$#�#&)�	 '���#"�$��$�	 ���	 ��&	 )"���$�	 ����	 ��&	
�&,&!&���#�!	 )���$%	 ,�	 ��&�%>	 	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	 ��(#!&�	 )���$%	 (&	 (�$%	
&!��,�	!�3	��	'��"&&%	3#�����	��.#!,	��	�!%&���2&	�����&�	"�!)�$���#�!>	
	
�!	.#&3	��	%#)���(�!"&)	#!	��&	'�($#"	,�$$&���	��&	�����	�&;�&)�&%	����	'&�'$&	
(&	�&)'&"���$	#!	�%%�&))#!,	��&	��(#!&�	�!%	&�"�	���&�>	
	
8�$$�3#!,	�&"&#'�	��	��&	%&'����#�!�	���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	
���	 +��)#!,�	 "�  &!�&%	 ����	 ��&	 )"�& &	3�)	 ��	 ,�&��	 # '����!"&	 ��	 $�"�$	
'&�'$&	�!%	#�	3�)	&))&!�#�$	����	�$$	�&)#%&!�)	(&	)��#)�#&%	3#��	��&	'��'�)�$)>	
	
�6#,6&,)%�&)��#4 #�).��*$,% $$�
�
��&	�����	�$)�	 #!%#"��&%	 ����	�&	"�!)#%&�&%	 #�	�''��'�#��&	 ����	 ��&	��%&�	��	
��)#!&))	(&	.��#&%	#!	��%&�	����	��&	'�#!�)	��#)&%	(�	��&	%&'����#�!	(&	,#.&!	
"�!)#%&���#�!	%��#!,	��&	��(#!&�	%&$#(&���#�!	��	��&	#�& 	��	(�)#!&))	��	3�#"�	
��&	%&'����#�!	�&$��&%>	�""��%#!,$�	��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	��$$�3#!,	 ��#�!	���	
��&	"�!)#%&���#�!	��	��&	��(#!&�	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
	
� $)-3 4�
	
�>	 ����	��&	��%&�	��	(�)#!&))	�!	��&	�,&!%�	(&	.��#&%	��	&!�($&	�,&!%�	

��& 	A>@	H	I�$�"23�$$	�&�"�	�&,&!&���#�!	:��"��& &!�	�!%	�"�& &	
�&.&$�' &!�J	����	
K���
��	��	(&	"�!)#%&�&%	�)	!&7�	(�)#!&))>		


>	 ����	�!�	���)��!%#!,	 #))�&)	 ��#)&%	(�	 ��&	%&'����#�!	(&	 �&�&��&%	 ��	
��&	 ���'����&	 �#�&"���	 �&.&$�' &!�	 4	 �&!&3�$	 ���	 ���&!�#�!	 �!%	
�&)'�!)&	 #!	 3�#�#!,	 3#��#!	 
K	 %��)�	 #!	 �""��%�!"&	 3#��	 ��&	
��!)�#���#�!>	

�����<	���3#��)��!%#!,	 ��&	 .��#��#�!	 ��	 (�)#!&))�	 ���	 &�)&	 ��	 �&�&�&!"&	
��&	 #!��&)	��	 ��&	 &&�#!,	��&	)&�	���	(&$�3	#!	��&	��%&�	%&��#$&%	�!	��&	
�,&!%�>�	

	
�
	
	

Page 8



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

F	

��� �������
�;���������������������
	
	

���� �(6,#>$� 643,+ � ).� = ?� �$$* $� )#� :* $&,)%$� ,%� # -6&,)%� &)� �%# $&#,+& 4�
�*$,% $$�&)�" �+)%$,4 # 4��
	
��&	�����	 #!��� &%	 & (&�)	 ��	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	 ����	 ���!"#$$��	 �!!	 1�"2)�!�	
���#�	 ��	 ��&	 �.&�.#&3	 �!%	 �"���#!�	 ��  #��&&�	 ��%	 �6"- 4	 �	 )�&&�	 ��	
"�  &!�)	 ��#)#!,	 ��� 	 ��&	 %&$#(&���#�!)	 ��	 ��&	 �.&�.#&3	 �!%	 �"���#!�	
��  #��&&	�&$%	�!	K��	8&(�����	

���	#!	�&)'&"�	��	��&	�!�&)��#"�&%	(�)#!&))	
"�!��#!&%	 #!	 ��&	 �,&!%�	 ���	 "�!)#%&���#�!�	 �	 "�'�	 ��	 3�#"�	 3��$%	 (&	
#!�&�$&�.&%	3#��	��&	 #!��&)>	
	
���!"#$$��	 1�"2)�!�	 ���#�	 ��	 ��&	 �.&�.#&3	 �!%	 �"���#!�	 ��  #��&&�	
�%%�&))&%	 & (&�)	��	��&	��(#!&�<	
	

•	 8�� �$$�	 ���!2#!,	 ���!"#$$��	 �$#(��	 ����%�����	 ��(#!&�	 �& (&�	 ���	
�&)���"&)�	�!%	��	���#)	���$���	���'����&	�#�&"���	�&)���"&)�	 ���	 ��&#�	
#!'��	 ��	 ��&	 ��  #��&&	 �.&�	 ��&	 $�)�	 �&3	  �!��)	 ��	 '��.#%&	 �#!�!"#�$	
�%.#"&>	

•	 ��������	
����
	
�	 ��  ��#)#!,	 ��&	 %&$#(&���#�!)	 ��	 ��&	 ��  #��&&	 �&,��%#!,	 /&!&��$	
���&	8�!%	�!%	��'#��$	:��,��  &)	��%,&�)�	���$#!#!,	"�!"&�!)	��#)&%	
�!%	�%%#!,	����	 ��&�&	3��$%	(&	�	'��'&�	(�%,&�	�&'���	��� 	�	��%,&�	
�"���#!�	:�!&$	#!	�����&<	

Ø 	 ����	 �;��$#��	 � '�"�	 �))&)) &!�)�	 �$����,�	 $��&�	 3��$%	 ��.&	 �	
(&��#!,	�!	(�%,&�	#))�&)>	��&	3�)	,$�%	��	�&��	��	$#2&$�	"��!,&)	��	��&	
'��'�)�$)�	 �)	 $�3&�	 '�#%	 3� &!	 )����	 3&�&	 $#2&$�	 ��	 (&	 �%.&�)&$�	
���&"�&%>	

Ø 	 ����	 ��&	 "�  �!#"��#�!	 )����&,�	 ���	 �&)#%&!�)	 �!	 (�%,&����	 #))�&)	
)���$%	 !��	 (&	 $# #�&%	 ��	 ��)�	 �!%	 �#�&	 �!%	 !&&%&%	 ��	 ��2&	 �	  ��&	
"� '$&�&	�!%	��(�)�	��� >	

Ø 	 ����	��&�&	)���$%	(&	,�&��&�	��"�)	�!	&7� #!#!,	��&	$&�)&	���	��$(&���	
:$�"&	��	�"�#&.&	)�.#!,)>	

Ø 	 ����	 ��&	 # '�"�	 ��	 "��)	 �!	 ���!�	 $#!&	 )����	 3�)	 )�#$$	 '&�"&#.&%	 �)	 �!	
#))�&�	�$�!,	3#��	��&	/�.&�! &!�	"��!,&)	��	��&	(&!&�#�)	)�)�& >	

	
��&	�����	 ���!2&%	���!"#$$��	1�"2)�!	���	'�&)&!�#!,	 ��&	"�!��#(��#�!	��	 ��&	
�.&�.#&3	�!%	�"���#!�	��  #��&&L	�!%	��&!	�)3 4	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
	
� $)-3 4	
	
�>	 ����	��&	"�  &!�)��%.#"&	��	��&	�.&�.#&3	�!%	�"���#!�	��  #��&&	(&	

!��&%�	 �!%	 ����	 ��#)	 (&	 ,#.&!	 "�!)#%&���#�!	 %��#!,	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	
%&$#(&���#�!	 ��	 ��&	 #�& )	 ��	 (�)#!&))	 ��	 3�#"�	 ��&	 ;�&)�#�!��%.#"&	
�&$��&%>		

	

>	 ����	��&	��%&�	��	(�)#!&))	�!	��&	�,&!%�	(&	.��#&%	��	&!�($&	�,&!%�	

��& 	 �
>�	 H	 I/&!&��$	 8�!%	 �&.&!�&	 ��%,&�	 �!%	 �&%#� 	 �&� 	
8#!�!"#�$	 :$�!	 

���

�
5

�@�

�EJ	 ����	 
KA��
��L	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	
�
>
	 H	 I

����
5

�@��E	 ��'#��$	 :��,��  &J	 ����	 
KF��
��	 �!%	

Page 9



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

K	

�,&!%�	 ��& 	 �
>@	 H	 I��&�)���	 ��!�,& &!�	 �����&,�	 ����& &!��	
�#!# � 	�&.&!�&	:��.#)#�!	:�$#"�	����& &!�	�!%	�!!��$	�!.&)� &!�	
�����&,�	 

����
J	 ����	 
KK��
��	 ��	 (&	 "�!)#%&�&%	 "�!"���&!�$�	 �)	
!&7�	(�)#!&))>		

	
	

���� �%?� �%# $&#,+& 4� � +,$,)%$� @�6-- 4� ,%@� "?� &( � �3 #3, <� ;� �+#*&,%?�
�)!!,&&  ��
	
��&	�$&�2	 �%.#)&%	 ����	 !�	 '��.#)#�!�$	 %&"#)#�!)	 �%&	 (�	 ��&	��(#!&�	 ��	 #�)	
 &&�#!,	�&$%	�!	�
��	1�!����	

���	��%	(&&!	�&�&��&%	(�"2	��	��(#!&�	(�	��&	
�.&�.#&3	�!%	�"���#!�	��  #��&&	���	�����&�	"�!)#%&���#�!>		
	

A�� ��	��������������������
	
	

A��� �)< #�
6!- &$�	#  %�	#,4��&#6& 5?�/�����9�B���0��
	
�)*%+,--)#��(,4��(! 4�%&"$��&%	'&�)�!�$	#!�&�&)�)	#!	��&	��$$�3#!,	�,&!%�	
#�& )	�!	��&	(�)#)	��	��&	�&�)�!)	)��3!<	

•	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	 A>�	 H	 I��3&�	 +� $&�)	 /�&&!	 /�#%	 �����&,�J	 ����	

F���
��>	+&	��%	(&&!	 $�((#&%	(�	���%&)	�!#�!)	 �&'�&)&!���#.&)	 �)	
��&	�&'���	"�!��#!&%	# '$#"��#�!)	���	)����#!,	#))�&)>	

	
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	+��)#!,�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	��	 ��&	
������	#!	#!���%�"#!,	��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	
"�  &!�#!,	����	#�	3�)	&))&!�#�$	��	"$�)&$�	,�#%&	�!%	 �!�,&	�!	#!.&)� &!�	
��	��#)	 �,!#��%&>	
	
���!"#$$��	 �!!	 1�"2)�!�	 ���#�	 ��	 ��&	 �.&�.#&3	 �!%	 �"���#!�	 ��  #��&&�	
)'&�2#!,	3#��	��&	"�!)&!�	��	��&	�����	�!%	��(#!&�<	

•	 �7'�&))&%	"�!"&�!	��	��3	 ��&	'$�!!#!,	'��"&))	3��$%	(&	 �!�,&%�	
'���#"�$��$�	 ,#.&!	 ����	 '&� #))#�!	 ��%	 (&&!	 ,#.&!	 #!	 ��&	 '�)�	 ���	
(�#$%#!,	�!	,�&&!	)'�"&)>	

•	 ��  &!�&%	�!	 ��&	!&&%	 ��	&!)��&	 ����	�&,#)�&�&%	��"#�$	��!%$��%)	
3&�&	�$)�	 �%&	'��'&�$�	�3��&	��	 ��&	���!"#$?)	 ��� &3��2	!&&%)	 #!	
����	�&)'&"�>	

���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!	#!%#"��&%	����	)�&	3��$%	 &&�	���!"#$$��	1�"2)�!	���	
�����&�	%#)"�))#�!)	�!	��&	 ���&�)	��#)&%>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5		
	
� $)-3 4'�
	 	 	
����	��&	��3&�	+� $&�)	/�&&!	/�#%	�����&,�	#!	�''&!%#7	�	��	��&	�&'���	����	

F���
��	 (&	 �''��.&%	 �)	 �	 )����&,�	 ����	 3#$$	 �&$'	 ,�#%&	 �!%	  �!�,&	
#!.&)� &!�	#!	!&3	�!%	&7#)�#!,	�'&!	)'�"&)	#!	��&	(����,�>	
	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�

Page 10



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�	

�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
F���
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	E>�5E>E	��	��&	�&'���	����	
F���
��>	
	
	
	
	

A��� � 6$ ()-4��)-,+?�� 3, <�/�����C�B���0��
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	+��)#!,�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	��	 ��&	
������	 #!	 #!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	  �#!	 '�#!�)	 "�!��#!&%	
��&�&#!�	"�  &!�#!,	�)	��$$�3)<5	

•	 ��&	 �&'���	"�!��#!&%	�	 �&.#)&%	'�$#"�	 ��	&!)��&	 ����	���+	���)&��$%	
'�$#"�	 "� '$#&%	3#��	 $�3	�!%	 �&,�$��#�!�	 �&�$&"�&%	 ��&	 "�!�&!�)	 ��	 ��&	
$&�)&)	�!%	# '��.&%	��&	"$��#��	�!%	���!)'��&!"�	��	$�3>	

•	 ��&	 !&3	 '�$#"�	 '�� ��&%	 &��#"#&!"�	 �!%	 &��&"�#.&!&))	 #!	 )&�.#"&)	
%&$#.&��	�!%	��&	!&&%)	��	$&�)&��$%&�)	3&�&	�%%�&))&%>	

•	 ��&	 '�$#"�	 3��$%	 '��.#%&	 �	 '�)#�#.&	 ���"� &	 #!	 �#,��&!#!,	 �'	 ��&	
'�)#�#�!	�&,��%#!,	)�(5$&��#!,>	

•	 �	 �#!�$	 �&'���	 3�)	 �3�#�&%	 ����	 3��$%	 ��2&	 �""��!�	 ��	 ��&	 %����	
�&"�  &!%��#�!)	��	��&	�&&.&�)	�!%	������&�)	��%#�>	

	
�	��!)&�.��#.&	/���'	�& (&��	)'&�2#!,	3#��	��&	"�!)&!�	��	 ��&	�����	�!%	
��(#!&��	 &7'�&))&%	 ��&	 .#&3	 ����	 �	 !� (&�	 ��	 '��'�)�$)	 3&�&	 !��	 $#2&%	 (�	
$&�)&��$%&�)	 �!%	 )���$%	 (&	 %&�&��&%	 �!�#$	 ��&	 ���"� &	 ��	 ��&	 �&&.&�)	 �!%	
������&�)	 �&'���	 3�)	 2!�3!>	 �!	 �%%#�#�!�	 ��&	���#)� �)	 '&�#�%	 ��%	 �&%�"&%	
��&	"�!)�$���#�!	'&�#�%	3#��	$&�)&��$%&�)>	
	
�	 ��(���	 /���'	 �& (&��	 )'&�2#!,	 3#��	 ��&	 "�!)&!�	 ��	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	
��(#!&��	#!%#"��&%	����	#�	3�)	&7��& &$�	# '����!�	��	&!)��&	����	��&	 ��&�	��	
#$$&,�$	)�(5$&��#!,	3�)	%&�$�	3#��>		
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!	#!%#"��&%	����	��&	'�)#�#�!	�&,��%#!,	$&�)&��$%&�)	��%	
��	 (&	 "��!,&%	(�	 $�3	�!%	 )�&	'��'�)&%	� &!% &!�)	 ��	 ��&	 �&.#)&%	'�$#"�	
3�#"�	��&	#!"$�%&%	#!	��&	�&)�$��#�!)	(&$�3>	
	
��&	 �����	 �)3 4	 ��&	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �)	 )&�	 ���	 #!	 ��&	 �&'���	 ���2#!,	
�""��!�	 ��	 ��&	 � &!% &!�)	 '��'�)&%	 (�	 ���!"#$$��	 ��(#!�	 *��!�	 �!%	 #�	
3�)<5		
�
� $)-3 4'�
�
����	 ��&	 !&3	 �&�)&��$%	 '�$#"#&)	 $#)�&%	 �)	 �''&!%#"&)	 ��	 ��#)	 �&'���	 ����	

K
��
��	(&	�''��.&%�	)�(B&"�	 ��	��&	��$$�3#!,	�%%#�#�!	 ��	�&"�#�!	A>A	��	 ��&	
��B��	9��2)	:�$#"�<	
	

Page 11



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�
	

�,$+# &,)%6#?� D������� +68'� ��&	���!"#$	 3#$$�	 �!	 �	 %#)"�&�#�!���	 (�)#)�	 $# #�	
 �B��	3��2)	�&"���,&)	��	C�
�


	���	"&���#!	 $&�)&��$%&�)	3��	;��$#��>	 	��&	
��$$�3#!,	"�#�&�#�	3#$$	�''$�<	
	
#>	 ��&	'��'&���	 �)�	(&	��&	$&�)&��$%&�)?	�!$�	��	'�#!"#'�$	�� &	�!%	��&	

$&�)&��$%&�	 �)�	(&	$#.#!,	#!	��&	'��'&���	��$$	�# &>	
	
##>	 ��&	 $&�)&��$%&�	 �)�	(&	 ��&	��#,#!�$	���	'��"��)&�	�!%	��&	�&$&.�!�	

3��2	3�)	!��	)'&"#�#&%	�!	��&	��
D	!��#"&>	
	
###>	 ��&	$&�)&��$%&�	 �)�	!��	��.&	�!�	)&�.#"&	"���,&	���&��)>	
	
#.>	 ��&	'�$#"�	3#$$	�!$�	�''$�	��	#!%#.#%��$	�&"���,&)	���	C�
�


	��	�(�.&>	
	
.>	 9�&�&	 $&�)&��$%&�)	 3#)�	 ��&	 %#)"�&�#�!	 ��	 (&	 &7&�"#)&%	 ��&�	  �)�	

�,�&&	��	&!�&�	#!��	�	$&,�$	"���,&	�!	��&	'��'&���	)&"��#!,	��&	"�)�)	��	
��&	 �B��	3��2)>	��#)	 $&,�$	"���,&	3#$$	(&	���	�	'&�#�%	��	)&.&!	�&��)	
�!%	 3#$$	 '��.#%&	 ��&	 "�)�)	 '$�)	 #!�&�&)�	 ��	 (&"� &	 '���($&	 #�	 ��&	
'��'&���	#)	�))#,!&%	��	)�$%	3#��#!	��&	)&.&!	�&��)�	�&7"&'�	#!	��&	"�)&	
��	�!	�))#,! &!�	�!	 ��&	%&���	��	�	�&)#%&!�	'���!&��>	��	 ��&	&7'#��	��	
��&	 )&.&!	 �&��	 '&�#�%	 ��&	 $&,�$	 "���,&	 3#$$	 (&	 %#)"���,&%	 �!%	 !�	
'�� &!�	�&;�#�&%>	

	
.#>	 ��&	$&�)&��$%&�	#)	#!	�&"&#'�	��	)���&	'&!)#�!�	#!"� &	)�''���	��	���&�	

)���&	 (&!&�#�	 ��	 ��7	 "�&%#�	 ��	 B�(	 )&&2&�?)	 �$$�3�!"&	 ��	 #)	 �($&	 ��	
%& �!)����&	&7"&'�#�!�$	���%)�#'	�)	��$$�3)<5	

	

•	 �!�(#$#��	��	��&	$&�)&��$%&�	��	'��	��#)	 �B��	3��2)	"���,&	&.&!	
#�	��&	���!"#$	3&�&	��	&7�&!%	��&	'&�#�%	���	'�� &!�>	

	

•	 �!�(#$#��	��	��&	$&�)&��$%&�	��	'��	��#)	 �B��	3��2)	"���,&	%�&	��	
��&	 .�$�&	 ��	 ��#)	 (#$$	 ���	  �B��	 3��2)	 �!�	 ���&�	 �&$&.�!�	
"#�"� )��!"&>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>@	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K
��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	E>�5E>
	��	��&	�&'���		����	
K
��
��>	
	
	

	
	

A��� �-6+E<6--� � 6+(�� 5 % #6&,)%��#)+*# ! %&� 6%4��+( ! �� 3 -)8! %&�
/�����C�B���0��
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	+��)#!,�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	��	 ��&	
������	#!	#!���%�"#!,	��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	
"�  &!�#!,	�)	��$$�3)<	

Page 12



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

��	

	

•	 �$�"23�$$	�&�"�	�&,&!&���#�!	��%	(&&!	)��,��	�.&�	 �!�	�&��)	�)	�	
2&�	 �&,&!&���#�!	 '�#!�>	 	 �&���(#)� &!�	 ��	 ��&	 ��(#!	 +��%	 /��%&!)	
&)���&	3��$%	"�)�	C

 �	3�#"�	��&	���!"#$	%#%	!��	��.&	�!%	"��$%	!��	
'��.#%&>	 ��&	 '��"��& &!�	 '��"&))	 �!%	 '���!&�	 )&$&"�#�!	 3�)	 !�3	
"� '$&�&	 �!%	 ��&	 +� &	 �!%	 ��  �!#�#&)	 �,&!"�	 3��$%	 �$)�	 )��!	
 &&�	��	��2&	%&"#)#�!)	����	3��$%	)��!	 �2&	��&	)"�& &	�	�&�$#��>	

•	 �3#!,	 ��	 "��!,&)	 #!	 /�.&�! &!�	 '�$#"��	 #�	 3�)	 &))&!�#�$	 ��&	 �&'���	
3�)	�,�&&%	)�	��&	)"�& &	"��$%	'��,�&))>	

•	 ��&	 )"�& &	 3��$%	 %&$#.&�	 �A

	 !&3	 �� &)	 �!%	 �	 3��$&	 ��&�	 ��	
�&,&!&���#�!	#!"$�%#!,	�	!&3	'�# ���	)"���$�	!&3	 �);�&�	)��'	�!#�)	
�!%	�	)��&�	&!.#��! &!�>	

	
��	�>	��$.#�	���'����&	�#�&"���	�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$�	��	��&	�&;�&)�	��	��&	
������	�%%&%	����<	

•	 ��&	 �&'���	3�)	 #!	 �3�	'���)�	3#��	 ��&	 )&"�!%	 #!	 ��&	 &7& '���&"�#�!	
�3�	'���	��	��&	�,&!%�	%�&	��	"�  &�"#�$	)&!)#�#.#��>			

•	 8��	 ���&&	 �&��)	 #�	 ��%	 (&&!	 #!�&!%&%	 ����	 ��&	 '��B&"�	 3��$%	 %&$#.&�	
@�


	!&3	�� &)	(��	%�&	��	��&	�&"&))#�!	��#)	��%	��	(&	%�3!)"�$&%>	

•	 �''$#"��#�!	��%	(&&!	 �%&	��	��&	�&"�&����	��	����&	���	�	�&��#�#"��&	
��	 �  �!#��	 ���	 ��&	 '��B&"��	 3�#"�	 3�)	 !�3	 ��	 �	 "�#�#"�$	 )��,&�	 �!%	
/�.&�! &!�	"�  #� &!�	��%	(&&!	)&"��&%>	

	
�)	�>	8�&& �!�	�))#)��!�	��#&�	�7&"��#.&	��&,�$	�&�.#"&)��	��	 ��&	�&;�&)�	��	
��&	������	��($&%	�!	� &!%&%	.&�)#�!	��	��&	�&'���	�!%	#!��� &%	��&	��(#!&�	
����	��#)	3��$%	(&	 �%&	�.�#$�($&	!&7�	%��	�!	��&	���!"#$?)	3&()#�&>	
	
��&	�����	 &7'�&))&%	 ��&	 .#&3	 ����	 ��&	 '��B&"�	 3�)	 $�!,	 �.&�%�&	 �!%	 ��%	
�$3��)	 (&&!	 #!	 ��&	 ��� &	 ���	 %&.&$�' &!�	 ���	 ��&	 !#!&5�&��	 '&�#�%	 �&	 ��%	
(&&!	 �	���!"#$$��>	 	 ��&	 ���)#!,	 )#����#�!	 ��	 '&�'$&	3#��#!	 ��&	 �&,&!&���#�!	
��&�	 3�)	 "�#�#"�$	 �!%	 (&$�3	 �� �!	 )��!%��%)>	 +�3&.&��	 �& (&�)	 �!%	
���#"&�)	��%	3��2&%	���%	��	�#!%	��&	 �!&�	�!%	%&.&$�'	'���!&�)�#')>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	 ��&	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 #!	 ��&	 �&'���	 ��($&%	��	 ��&	 &&�#!,	
�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'	 	
	
	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 � &!%&%	 �&'���	 ��($&%	 (�	 ��&	 �))#)��!�	 ��#&�	 �7&"��#.&	 H	

�&,�$	 �&�.#"&)�	 3#��	 �%%#�#�!�$	 �''&!%#7	 D��	 (&	 )�()�#���&%	 ���	 ��&	
�&'���	 ����	 
K���
��	 '�&.#��)$�	 "#�"�$��&%	 3#��	 ��&	 �,&!%�	 �!%	 ��&	
�&.#)&%	�&'���	(&	'�($#)�&%	�!	��&	���!"#$?)	3&()#�&>	

	

>	 ����	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!	��	 ��&	:��"��& &!�	�.�$���#�!	:�!&$	��	 ��&	

%&.&$�'&�	"�!)���#� �	 &!�#�!&%	 #!	��&	 ��($&%	�&'���	�)	 ��&	'�&�&��&%	
(#%%&��	 (&	 �''��.&%L	 )�(B&"�	 ��	 ��&	+� &)	4	��  �!#�#&)	�,&!"�?)	
%&"#)#�!5 �2#!,	'��"&))	��	�,�&&	��	)�"�	%&.&$�'&�>			

	

Page 13



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�
	

@>	 ����	��&	�#�&"���	��	�&.&$�' &!�	�!%	�&!&3�$	�!%	��&	�))#)��!�	��#&�	
�7&"��#.&	 ��&,�$�	 (&	 ������#)&%	 #!	 "�!B�!"�#�!	 3#��	 ��&	 +� &)	 4	
��  �!#�#&)	 �,&!"�	 ��	 �''��.&	 �!%	 �#!�$#)&	 ��&	 "�!���"�	 �&� )	 #!	
�""��%�!"&	3#��	 ��&	(#%	�!%	 ��	"� '$&�&	 ��&	"�!���"�	�!"&	+� &)	4	
��  �!#�#&)	�,&!"�	�''��.�$)	��&	�(��#!&%>			

	
E>	 ����	��&	'�))&))#�!	)����&,�	�!%	%&"�!�	)����)	)&�	���	 #!	�''&!%#7	E	

��	��&		�&'���	���	:��)&)	
	�!%	@	��	��&	'��B&"�	(&	�,�&&%>			
	
D>	 ����	��&	�#�&"���	��	�&.&$�' &!�	�!%	�&!&3�$	(&	������#)&%	��	)�( #�	

�!	 ���$#!&	 '$�!!#!,	 �''$#"��#�!	 �!	 ��&	���!"#$?)	 (&��$��	 ��,&��&�	 3#��	
��&	 +� &)	 4	 ��  �!#�#&)	 �,&!"�	 ���	 ��&	 �$�"23�$$	 �&�"�	
�&,&!&���#�!	'��B&"�	���	�$$	'��)&)	)��3!	�!	��&	:$�!	�)	�''&!%#7	
	
��	 ��&	�&'���	 ��	&!�($&	 ��&	%&$#.&��	��	 ��&	�&,&!&���#�!��&%&.&$�' &!�	
'��'�)�$)	���	��&	�$�"23�$$	�&�"�	��&�>			

	
A>	 ����	'�3&�	(&	%&$&,��&%	��	��&	�#�&"���	��	�&.&$�' &!�	�!%	�&!&3�$	

��,&��&�	 3#��	 ��&	 �))#)��!�	 ��#&�	 �7&"��#.&	 ��&,�$�	 ��	 "� '$&�&	 ��&	
!&"&))���	 "� '�$)���	 '��"��)&	 )����&,#&)	 �!%	 %�"� &!���#�!	 �!%	
��&!	 ��	  �2&	 ��&	 �:�	 �� '�$)���	 :��"��)&	 ��%&�	 '��)��!�	 ��	
�&"�#�!	 �F	 ��	 ��&	 +��)#!,	 �"�	 ��KD	 #!	 �&)'&"�	 ��	 ��&	 $�!%)	 )��3!	
&%,&%	�&%	�!	 ��&	'$�!	��	�''&!%#7	
	 #!	�&)'&"�	��	 ���)&	 #!�&�&)�)	)&�	
���	 #!	 �''&!%#"&)	 D	 �!%	 D�	 ��	 ��&	 '��'�)&%	 %&.&$�' &!�>	 #!"$�%#!,	
&7#)�#!,	 #!�&�&)�)	 �!%	!&3	 �#,��)	 '��)��!�	 ��	�&"�#�!	 �@	 ��	 ��&	 ��"�$	
/�.&�! &!�	��#)"&$$�!&��)	:��.#)#�!)�	�"�	��FA			

	
F>	 ����	'�3&�	(&	%&$&,��&%	��	��&	�#�&"���	��	�&.&$�' &!�	�!%	�&!&3�$	
#!	 "�!)�$���#�!	 3#��	 ��&	 �))#)��!�	 ��#&�	 �7&"��#.&	 �&,�$	 ��	 ��2&	 �$$	
!&"&))���	'��"&%���$	)�&')	 #!	 �2#!,	��&	"� '�$)���	'��"��)&	��%&�	
#!"$�%#!,	<5	

	
#>	 ��2#!,	��	��&	"� '�$)���	'��"��)&	��%&�	�)	%&)"�#(&%	

#!	'���,��'�	
>D	��	 ��&	 �&'���	 #!"$�%#!,	 ��&	'�($#"��#�!	
�!%	 )&�.#"&	 ��	 !��#"&)	 �!%	 ��&�&���&�	 )&&2#!,	
"�!�#� ��#�!	 ��	 #�	 (�	 ��&	 �&"�&����	 ��	 ����&	 ����	 #�	
'&� #��&%�	(�	��&	���!"#$	'��)��!�	��	�&"�#�!	�E�	��	��&	
�";�#)#�#�!	��	��!%	�"���	 #!"$�%#!,	 ��&	'�&'����#�!	�!%	
'�&)&!���#�!	��	��&	���!"#$?)	"�)&	��	�!�	:�($#"	�!;�#��	
3�#"�	 ��	(&	!&"&))���>			

##>	 ��	�";�#�&	�$$	#!�&�&)�)	#!	$�!%	�!%	!&3	�#,��)	3#��#!	��&	
"� '�$)���	 '��"��)&	��%&�	 (��!%���	 &#��&�	 (�	 '�#.��&	
�,�&& &!�	��	"� '�$)��#$�>		

###>	 ��	 �''��.&	 �,�&& &!�)	 3#��	 $�!%	 �3!&�)	 ��	 ���&�)	
)&��#!,	���	��&	�&� )	���	3#��%��3�$	��	�(B&"�#�!)	��	��&	
"� '�$)���	 '��"��)&	 ��%&��	 #!"$�%#!,	 3�&�&	
�''��'�#��&	)&&2#!,	&7"$�)#�!	��	$�!%	��	!&3	�#,��)	��� 	
��&	 "� '�$)���	 '��"��)&	 ��%&�	 �!%	 ��	  �2#!,	
����!,& &!�)	 ���	 ��&	 �&5���)#!,	 ��	 �&$�"��#�!	 ��	
�""�'#&�)>			

#.>	 ��	'�($#)�	�!%	)&�.&	!��#"&)	��	"�!�#� ��#�!	��	��&	�:�	
�!%	��&�&���&�	��	&7&"��&	�!%	)&�.&	�!�	,&!&��$	.&)�#!,	

Page 14



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�@	

%&"$����#�!)	��	!��#"&)	��	��&��	�!%	!��#"&)	��	&!���		�!%	
��	 �";�#�&	 ���)&	 #!�&�&)�)	 ��	 )&"��&	 ��&	 %&.&$�' &!�	
'��'�)�$)>			

.>	 ��	�&�&�	�!%	"�!%�"�	%#)'��&)	�&$��#!,	��	"� '&!)��#�!	
��	��&	��!%)	��#(�!�$>			

.#>	 ��	 �,�&&	 ��	 ��&	 ���!)�&�	 ��	 ��&	 $�!%	 ��	 ��(#!	 +��%	
/��%&!)	)��3!	�)	:��)&)	
	�!%	@	&%,&%	�&%	�!	'$�!	
��	�''&!%#7	�	��	��&	%&.&$�'&�	'��)��!�	��	��&	"�!���"�	
�!"&	.�"�!�	'�))&))#�!	#)	�"�#&.&%>		

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>F	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K���
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	E>�5E>@	��	��&	�&'�������	
K���
��>		
	
	
	

A��� �(#,$8��&#  &�# 5 % #6&,)%'�*846& �6%4�% F&�$& 8$�/�����C�B���0��
	
�)*%+,--)#��(,4��(! 4�%&"$��&%	'&�)�!�$	#!�&�&)�)	#!	��&	��$$�3#!,	�,&!%�	
#�& )	�!	��&	(�)#)	��	��&	�&�)�!)	)��3!<	

•	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	 A>E	 H	 I���#)'	 ���&&�	 �&,&!&���#�!<	 �'%��&	 �!%	 !&7�	
)�&')J	 ����
K
��
��>	��&	 �&'���	"�!��#!&%	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	
��	 '��'&��#&)	 $�"��&%	 #!	 ��)�	 �!%#�	 4	 ��!)(���	9��%	 �!%	 �&	 3�)	 �	
9��%	���!"#$$��	���	����	9��%>	

	
�)*%+,--)#� �6%,6�=(6%�%&"$��&%	 �	 '&�)�!�$	 #!�&�&)�	 #!	 �,&!%�	 ��& 	 A>E	 H	
���#)'	 ���&&�	 �&,&!&���#�!<	 �'%��&	 �!%	 !&7�	 )�&')J	 ����
K
��
��>	 ��&	
%&"$����#�!	 ��	 #!�&�&)�	 3�)	  �%&	 �!	 ��&	 (�)#)	 ����	 ��&	 �&'���	 "�!��#!&%	
�&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 '��'&��#&)	 $�"��&%	 #!	 ��)�	 �!%#�	 �!%	 ��!)(���	
9��%	 �!%	 )�&	3�)	 �	9��%	���!"#$$��	 ���	 ����	9��%	�!%	3�)	 �	 & (&�	 ��	
:�'$��	+����	����%>	
	
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	+��)#!,�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	��	 ��&	
������	#!	#!���%�"#!,	��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	
"�  &!�#!,	�)	��$$�3)<5	

•	 ��&	'��'�)&%	�&,&!&���#�!	��	���#)'	���&&�	3��$%	"�&��&	 ��&	�� &)�	
B�()	�!%	�&"�&��#�!�$	��"#$#�#&)>	

•	 ��&�&	 3��$%	 (&	  ��&	 %#)"�&�#�!	 ���	 :�'$��	 +����	 ��	 )�''���	 $�"�$	
(�)#!&))&)	�!%	)��$$��$%&�)	�!%	#!"�&�)&	)�"#�$	���)#!,	'��.#)#�!>	

	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
	
�>	 ����	��&	"���&!�	'�)#�#�!	�!%	(�"2,���!%	��	��&	'��'�)�$)	(&	!��&%>	
	

Page 15



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�E	


>	 ����	��&	�''�#!� &!�	��	��!%�!	4	�&,#�!�$	�)	'�&�&��&%	(#%%&�	���	��&	
)"�& &	(&	�,�&&%>	

	
@>	 ����	��&	�&�.#"&	+&�%�	�))&�	��!�,& &!�	(&	������#)&%	��	!&,��#��&	
�&�%)	 ��	 �&� )	 ���	 ��&	 �&.&$�' &!�	 �,�&& &!�	 ���&	 �#!�$	 %&��#$)	 ��	
��&)&	�&� )	��	(&	�&'���&%	(�"2	��	��(#!&��>	

	
E>	 ����	��&	���'����&	�#�&"����	�&.&$�' &!�	�!%	�&!&3�$	(&	������#)&%	
��	"�!"$�%&	�& ���!%�	��	�!%&�)��!%#!,	3#��	���	:�'$��	+����	�!%	
�(�	 :�'$��	 +����	 �!%	 ��!%�!	 4	 �&,#�!�$	 �!	 ��&	 '�#!"#'�$	 �&� )	
���$#!&%	#!	��&	�''&!%#"&)	����"�&%	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K
��
��>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K
��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K
��
��>	
	
	
	

A��� �--)+6&,)%�).��)+6-��*&()#,&?�
)*$,%5�	#6%&�&)�	 % $,$�
)*$,%5�	#)*8�
.)#�% <�6..)#46"- �()*$,%5�6&��#)4-)3 ��6% �/�����C�B���0��
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	+��)#!,�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	��	 ��&	
������	 #!	 #!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	  �#!	 '�#!�)	 "�!��#!&%	
��&�&#!�	 "�  &!�#!,	 ����	 ��&	 )�$&	 ��	 :�'$��	 +����	 ��	 ��&	 )#�&	 ��	 �� .��	
���&&�	3��$%	,&!&���&	�	�&"&#'�	��	C@A@�


	#!��	��&	���%$�.&	��!&	)"�& &�	
3�#"�	 3��$%	 &!�($&	 ��&	 "� '$&�#�!	 ��	 �	 ����$	 ��	 @A	 !&3	 �!#�)	 ��	 �����%�($&	
���)#!,	#!	��&	�����,�>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'			
	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 '�� &!�	 ��	 C@A@�


	 ��	 /&!&)#)	 +��)#!,	 /���'	 �)	 ��"�$	

������#��	 /��!�	 ��	 )�''���	 ��&	 '��.#)#�!	 ��	 !#!&	 �!#�)	 ��	 �����%�($&	
���)#!,	 ���	 �&!�	 ��	 �	 )#�&	 �!	 ���%$�.&	 ��!&�	 ��	 (&	 �''��.&%�	 �!%	 �	
"�'#��$	&)�# ��&	(&	�%�'�&%	��	&!�($&	��&	�#!�!"#!,	��	��&	)"�& &	��	(&	
#!"��'����&%	3#��#!	��&	"�'#��$	'��,��  &>	

	

>	 ����	 ��&	�#�&"���	 ��	 �&.&$�' &!�	 4	�&!&3�$�	 #!	 "�!)�$���#�!	3#��	 ��&	

�))#)��!�	 ��#&�	 �7&"��#.&	 ��&,�$	 �&�.#"&)��	 (&	 ������#)&%	 ��	 ��.&	
%&$&,��&%	������#��	��	�''��.&	��&	�#!�$	%&��#$)	��	��&	,��!�	�,�&& &!�	��	
(&	)#,!&%	(�	��&	���!"#$	�!%	/&!&)#)	+��)#!,	/���'>	

	
@>	 ����	 ��&	�))#)��!�	 ��#&�	 �7&"��#.&	 ��&,�$	 �&�.#"&)�	 (&	 ������#)&%	 ��	

&!�&�	 #!��	�$$	 !&"&))���	%�"� &!�)	 ��	 # '$& &!�	 ��&	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	
��	��#)	�&'���	����	
K@��
��>	

	

Page 16



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�D	

� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K@��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�)	E>�5E>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K@��
��>	
	
	
	
	

9�� ������������������������
	
	

C�� ���������������������������������
	
	

C��� �#6%$.)#!,%5��4*-&��)+,6-��6# �6%4�+)!!,$$,)%,%5�6$�!6#E &�$(68,%5�
6%4�4 3 -)8! %&�/�����C�B���0��
	
�)	+&$&!	���$���	�"�#!,	���'����&	�#�&"���	�%�$�)?	+&�$��	4	9&$$(&#!,�	��	��&	
�&;�&)�	 ��	 ��&	������	 #!	 #!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	 2&�	 '�#!�)	
"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	�#,�$#,��#!,	#!	'���#"�$��<	

•	 ����	 ��&	 #!�&!�#�!	 ��	 ��&	 ���!)��� ��#�!	 ��	 )�"#�$	 "��&	 "�  #))#�!#!,	
3�)	��	#!"�&�)&	��&	!� (&�	��	)&�.#"&	�)&�)	�"�#!,	�)	"�  #))#�!&�)	
�!	��&#�	�3!	�""��!�		�����,�	��&	�)&	��	'&�)�!�$	(�%,&�)>	

	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5		
�
� $)-3 4'	
	
�>	 ����	��&	,&!&��$	'��,�&))	�!	���	# '$& &!���#�!	��	��&	���!)��� ��#�!	

��	�%�$�	)�"#�$	"��&	(&	!��&%>	
	

>	 ����	 ��&	'��'�)&%	�''���"�	 ��	 �&5)��'#!,	)�"#�$	 "��&	"�  #))#�!#!,	

(&	&!%��)&%>			
	
@>	 ����	 ��&	 )����&,#"	 �# 	 ��	 )�#��#!,	 )� &	 �&)���"&)	 ��� 	 $�!,	 �&� 	

)�''���	#!��	'�&.&!�#�!	)&�.#"&)	(&	�,�&&%>	
	
E>	 ����	 ��&	!&&%	��	�&.#&3	)� &	"�!���"�)	��	�$$�3	�# &	��	"����	���	 ��&	

%#��&�&!�	3��2	)��&� )	(&	!��&%>	
	
D>	 ����	��&	!&&%	��	"��!,&	��&	3��	"�  #))#�!#!,	#)	"���#&%	���	�!%	��&	

"���&!�	 �&��,�!#)��#�!	 ��	 ��  #))#�!#!,	 )����	 !�3	 �!%&�3��	 3#��#!	
�%�$�)?	+&�$��	4	9&$$	�&#!,	(&	!��&%>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KE��
��>	
	

Page 17



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�A	

�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KE��
��>	
	
	

C��� �)4 #%,$,%5�� 6#%,%5��,$6",-,&?��6?��88)#&*%,&, $�/�����C�B���0��
	
�)	+&$&!	���$���	�"�#!,	���'����&	�#�&"���	�%�$�)?	+&�$��	4	9&$$(&#!,�	��	��&	
�&;�&)�	 ��	 ��&	������	 #!	 #!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	 2&�	 '�#!�)	
"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	"�  &!�#!,	����<5	

•	 ��&	 �# 	 ��	 ��&	 �&'���	 3�)	 ��	 # '��.&	 ��&	 ;��$#��	 ��	 &7'&�#&!"&	 ��	
'&�'$&	 3#��	 �	 $&��!#!,	 %#)�(#$#��	 #!	 �	 3��	 ����	 3��$%	  �7# #)&	 ��&	
�''����!#�#&)	 �!%	 '��&!�#�$	 ��	 &.&���!&	 $#.#!,	 #!	 ��&	 �����,�	 3�#$)�	
�$)�	&!)��#!,	)&�.#"&)	���&�&%	�&�$	.�$�&	���	 �!&�>	

•	 ��&	 �%&�!#)��#�!	'��,��  &	3�)	��	 �.&	�3��	��� 	(�#$%#!,	(�)&%	
���%#�#�!�$	%��	"&!��&)	��	��&	'��.#)#�!	��	�	3#%&	��!,&	��	)&�.#"&)	����	
'&�'$&	 3#��	 �	 $&��!#!,	 %#)�(#$#��	 "��$%	 �""&))	 �)#!,	 ��&#�	 '&�)�!�$	
(�%,&�)>	

•	 ��	3�)	#!�&!%&%	��	#!.&)�	#!	���&&	"�  �!#��	��()	#!	��&	�����,��	3#��	
��&	�#�)�	#!	�&$$	��!&�	�!%	'��.#%&	�	!&3	)&�.#"&	���	���#) >	

	
���!"#$$��	1�"2)�!�	���#�	��	��&	�.&�.#&3	�!%	�"���#!�	��  #��&&�	)'&�2#!,	
3#��	��&	"�!)&!�	��	��&	�����	�!%	��(#!&��	)��,��	�!%	3�)	,#.&!	"$��#�#"��#�!	
�!	��&	(�%,&�	�.�#$�($&	���	��&	!&3	)&�.#"&	'��'�)�$)>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
	
�>	 ����	��&	'��'�)�$)	���	 �%&�!#)#!,	$&��!#!,	%#)�(#$#��	%��	�''����!#�#&)	
(&	 �,�&&%	 ��	 (&	 # '$& &!�&%	 #!	 �3�	 '��)&)�	 !��#!,	 ��&	 &��#"#&!"�	
���,&�)	 ����"�&%	 ��	 ��#)	 )����&,��	 �!%	 ��&	 #!#�#�$	 �&#!.&)� &!�	 #!��	
#!"�&�)#!,	& '$�� &!�	�''����!#�#&)	�!%	%&.&$�'#!,	)�"#�$	&!�&�'�#)&)	
#!	

��5�
L	�!%	

	

>	 ����	 ��&	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	 �# &��($&	 ���	 �&5
"�  #))#�!#!,	%��	 )&�.#"&)	 �)	 )&�	 ���	 #!	:��)&)	�	4	
	 �'���,��'�)	
A>F@	��	A>K
	#!	��&	�&'���	����	
KD��
���	�!%	��&	"�!)&;�&!�	!&&%	��	
&7�&!%	 ��&	 "���&!�	 ($�"2	 "�!���"�)	 ���	 $&��!#!,	 %#)�(#$#��	 %��	 )&�.#"&)	
(&	�,�&&%>		

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KD��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KD��
��>		
	
	

��� ��
����
�������������

Page 18



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�F	

	
��&	 �$&�2	 �%.#)&%	 ����	 ��&�&	 3�)	 !�	 (�)#!&))	 ��	 (&	 "�!)#%&�&%	 �!%&�	 ��#)	
)&"�#�!	��	��&	�,&!%�>	
	

���� ������
���
��������
	
	

����� 	 % #6-� �*%4� � 3 %* � �*45 &� 6%4� � 4,*!� � #!� �,%6%+,6-� �-6%�
����B����G�����B�����/�����CAB���0��
	
:$&�)&	!��&	����	��&	��%&�	��	(�)#!&))	3�)	.��#&%	(�	�&)�$��#�!	��	��&	�����	
�!%	��(#!&�	&��$#&�	 #!	 ��&	 '��"&&%#!,)	 ��	&!�($&	 ��#)	 #�& 	 ��	 (&	"�!)#%&�&%	
�$�!,	3#��	�,&!%�	 #�& )	�
>
	 I

����
	H	

�@��E	��'#��$	:��,��  &J	 �!%	
�
>@	 I��&�)���	 ��!�,& &!�	 �����&,�	 ����& &!��	 �#!# � 	 �&.&!�&	
:��.#)#�!	 :�$#"�	 ����& &!�	 �!%	 �!!��$	 �!.&)� &!�	 �����&,�	 

����
J	
��$$�3#!,	�,&!%�	#�& 	D>�	I���#�?)	*&�	�%.#"&	��	*&�	�))�&)	��	M�&)�#�!)	#!	
�&$��#�!	 ��	 �!�&)��#"�&%	 ��)#!&))	 ��	 (&	 "�!)#%&�&%J>	 +�3&.&��	 ���	 &�)&	 ��	
�&�&�&!"&	 ��&	 %&$#(&���#�!)	 ��	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	 ��(#!&��	 �!%	 ��&	 )�()&;�&!�	
%&"#)#�!)	��2&!�	��&	)&�	���	(&$�3	#!	��&	��%&�	%&��#$&%	#!	��&	�,&!%�>			
	
��	���#)	���$���	���'����&	�#�&"���	�&)���"&)�	��	 ��&	�&;�&)�	��	 ��&	������	
#!	 #!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	 2&�	 '�#!�)	 "�!��#!&%	 ��&�&#!�	
#!%#"��#!,	#!	'���#"�$��	����<	

•	 ��&	 '��B&"�&%	 ������!	 ���	 ��&	 ���!"#$?)	 /&!&��$	 8�!%	 ���	 

�
����	 �	
'�&.#��)$�5"�$"�$��&%	�.&�)'&!%	��	C�>
KE �	��%	!�3	(&&!	�&%�"&%	��	
CA���


>	

•	 ��&	 ���!)#�#�!	 /��!�	 ����	 ��&	 ���!"#$	 3��$%	 �&"&#.&	 #!	 

����
	 ��%	
(&&!	"�!�#� &%	�)	CE>�E@ �	3�#"�	3�)	C@FA�


	 ��&	���!	��#,#!�$$�	
�!!��!"&%>	

	
���!"#$$��	�$#(��	����%�����	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	�&)���"&)�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	
��	 ��&	 ������	 ;�&�#&%	 3���	  & (&�)	  ��	 (&	 %�#!,	 ��	 "�  �!#"��&	 ��&	
# '�"�	��	(�%,&�	"��)	�!	)&�.#"&)	�!%	#!%#"��#!,	����	)� &	)����	3&�&	�&����$	
��	"�!��"�#!,	�& (&�)	��	.�#"&	��&#�	�3!	"�!"&�!)>		+&	)��&))&%	����	��&	"��)	
��%	(&&!	# '�)&%	�!	��&	���!"#$	�!%	3&�&	�	��,&	($�3	��	��&	�����,��	3#��	
C@
 	)�.#!,)	�&;�#�&%	#!	��&	"���&!�	�&��>		�'#!#�!)	��	$�"�$	'&�'$&	�!%	��&	
�%.#"&	��	���#"&�)	��%	(&&!	��2&!	#!��	�""��!�	#!	��%&�	��	'��%�"&	�	(�$�!"&%	
'��'�)�$�	3#��	CDD 	#!	&��#"#&!"#&)	��.#!,	(&&!	#%&!�#�#&%�	�$����,�	 ��&	"��)	
 #,��	(&	# '�)&%>		��&	���#�!�$&	3�)	��	 �#!��#!	���!�	&!%	)����	�!%	�"�#&.&	
&��&"�#.&	  �!�,& &!�	 %&$��&�#!,	 �!%	 %&�$	 3#��	 �!�	 3�)�&	 �)	 #�	 3�)	
%#)"�.&�&%>		��!&	��	 ��&	(�%,&�	'��'�)�$)	3�)	%&)#,!&%	��	3&�2&!	)�''���	
���	.�$!&��($&	��	!&&%�	�&)#%&!�)�	!��	��	%#)& '�3&�	&$&"�&%	�& (&�)�	3��	
'��.#%&%	�	,�&��	)&�.#"&	#!	��&	 �#!>	
	
�!	 �6"-,%5	 � &!% &!�)	 ��	 ��&	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 "�!��#!&%	 #!	 ��&	 �&'����	
���!"#$$��	����%����	�)2&%	��&	���!"#$	��	!��&<	
	

)! +6# �
�

Page 19



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

�K	

•	 ����	�)	�	�&)�$�	��	 �))#.&	/�.&�! &!�	"��)	�	3#%&	��!,&	��	���!"#$	
)&�.#"&)	 �)�	 �2&	)�.#!,)�	#!"$�%#!,	���)&	����	'��.#%&	.#��$	)&�.#"&)	
)�"�	�)	+� &"��&>	

•	 ����	 ��3&�	 +� $&�)	 3�)	 ��&	 �!$�	 (����,�	 #!	 ��&	 "��!���	 3#��	 ��&&	
+� &"��&	�!%	����	��&	�����	3�)	"�  #��&%	��	 �#!��#!#!,	�	)&�.#"&	
����	3�)	��&&	��	&!%5�)&�)	���	�)	$�!,	�)	'�))#($&>	

•	 ��&	 "�!"&�!)	 &7'�&))&%	 ��	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	 �&�%	 �& (&�)	 (�	 �)&�)	
�!%	'��.#%&�)	��	��&	+� &"��&	)&�.#"&	�(���	'��'�)�$)	��	%��3	%�3!	
#!5���)&	'��.#)#�!	(�	

�@>	

•	 ����	�&�($& &!�	3�)	�!	 # '����!��	&��&"�#.&	�!%	'�'�$��	)&�.#"&	(��	
��&�&	3&�&	 �!�	 "� '$&7	 ��"���)	 #!	 ��&	 ���!)#�#�!	 ��	 �	 �����&	 )�)�& 	
3�&�&	 ��&	 #!5���)&	 +� &"��&	 )&�.#"&	 '��.#%&%	 �	 ) �$$&��	 )'&"#�$#)�	
�&�($& &!�	)&�.#"&>�

�
	���!"#$$��	 ����%����	 ��&!	 '��'�)&%	 � &!% &!�)	 3�#"�	 ��&	 )��3!	 �)	
�&)�$��#�!)	�@5�D	(&$�3>	
�

)*$,%5��,%E�
�

•	 �!	�$$�"��#�!	��	CA
�


	��	��!%	�'	��	���&&	'�)�)	���	�'	��	�!&	�&��>	
	
���!"#$$��	 ����%����	 ��&!	 '��'�)&%	 �!	 � &!% &!�	 3�#"�	 #)	 )��3!	 �)	
�&)�$��#�!	�A	(&$�3>	
	
�43 %&*# ��-6?��#)3,$,)%�
�

•	 ����	 %��#!,	 �	 '&�#�%	 ��	 )&.&�&	 �#!�!"#�$	 "�!)���#!�	 #�	 3�)	 .#��$$�	
# '����!�	 ����	 ��&	���!"#$	"�!�#!�&%	��	'��.#%&	���	���!,	'&�'$&	3#��	
�""&))	��	�#,�	;��$#��	'$��	��"#$#�#&)>�

•	 ��&	 �%.&!���&	 '$��	 ��"#$#�#&)	 ��	 ����$&��	 :��2	 �!%	 9�#�&���)&	 ��!&	
���&�&%	�	��!,&	��	# '����!�	'$��	��"#$#�#&)	����	)���$%	(&	'�&)&�.&%	��	
�$$	"�)�)	(�	��#)	���!"#$>�

•	 ����	3#��	 $# #�&%	�'&!	)'�"&	�.�#$�($&	��	 #�	 ��&	'��.#)#�!	��	)���"���&%	
�%.&!���&	'$��	'��.#)#�!	(&"� &	&.&!	 ��&	# '����!�>�

•	 ����	 &!,�,#!,	 $�"�$	 "�  �!#�#&)	 #!	 ��&	 '��.#)#�!	 ��	 �%.&!���&	 '$��	
��"#$#�#&)	 3�)	 !��	 �!$�	 %&)#��($&	 (��	 &))&!�#�$	 #!	 &!)��#!,	 ����	 ��&	
)&�.#"&)	 ����	 3&�&	 ���&�&%	 �&'�&)&!�&%	 ���)&	 )&�.#"&)	 ����	 3&�&	
%&)#�&%	�!%	�&;�#�&%	(�	��&	$�"�$	"�  �!#��>�

	
���!"#$$��	 ����%����	 ��&!	 '��'�)&%	 � &!% &!�)	 3�#"�	 ��&	 )��3!	 �)	
�&)�$��#�!)	�F5

	(&$�3>	
	
2*%,)#��)*&(�� #3,+ 	
	

•	 ����	 %�&	 ��	 "��!,&)	 #!	 /�.&�! &!�	 '�$#"��	 ��!%#!,	 ���	 ���&�	 )"���$	
'��.#)#�!	!�3	3&!�	%#�&"�$�	��	)"���$)>	

•	 ����	 ��&	 ���!"#$	 ��%	 3��2&%	 ���%	 ��	 &!)��&	 ����	 &#,��	 ��	 ��&	 �&!	
)"���$)	 3��	 '�&.#��)$�	 '��.#%&%	 ��&	 )&�.#"&	 #!	 '���!&�)�#'	 3#��	 ��&	
���!"#$	"�!�#!�&%	��	%�	)�>	

Page 20



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

��	

•	 ����	)"���$)	!&&%&%	)�''���	��	&!)��&	����	��&	���!)#�#�!	��� 	���!"#$5
$&%	 ��	 �"���$5$&%	 '��.#)#�!	 ��%	  #!# �$	 # '�"�	 �!	 '��&!�)	 �!%	
"�#$%�&!>	

	
���!"#$$��	 ����%����	 ��&!	 '��'�)&%	 �!	 � &!% &!�	 3�#"�	 #)	 )��3!	 �)	
�&)�$��#�!	
�	(&$�3>	
	
� !)+#6&,+�� #3,+ $	
	

•	 ����	 ��&	 '&�'$&	 ��	 ��3&�	 +� $&�)	 ��%	 .��&%	 �.&�3�&$ #!,$�	 ���	 �	
������$	)�)�& >	

•	 ����	 #!	 &.&��	 ���&�	 (����,�	 3#��	 )�"�	 �	 )�)�& 	 ����	 �����	 ��%	 �	
)���!,	 ���#"&	 ��	 %�#.&	 "��!,&�	 #!	  �!�	 "�)&)	  ��&	 &7'&!)#.&	 ���!	
���)&	'��'�)&%	���	��3&�	+� $&�)>	

•	 ����	 ��&	 )����	 ��	 ��&	 ������$��	 ��%	 "�#!"#%&%	 3#��	 �!'�&"&%&!�&%	
/�.&�! &!�	"��)>	

•	 ����	  & (&�)	 ��%	 ��#)&%	 "�!"&�!)	 �(���	 ��&	 $&.&$	 ��	 )�''���	 ��&�	
3&�&	%�&	��	�&"&#.&	�!%&�	"���&!�	)�.#!,)	'��'�)�$)	��)	)&�	���	#!	'��	
��� �	���
�	��	C@
@�


>	

•	 ����	��&	������$��	�!%	���!"#$$��)	��%	�	%���	��	3��2	��,&��&�	���	��&	
"�  �!#��>	

	
���!"#$$��	 ����%����	 ��&!	 '��'�)&%	 � &!% &!�)	 3�#"�	 ��&	 )��3!	 �)	
�&)�$��#�!)	

5
A	(&$�3>	
	
���!"#$$��	��#%	�� &%�	�&'���	������	&7'�&))&%	��&	.#&3	����	#�	3�)	"���&"�	
���	��&	�����	��	 &!�#�!	����	�#)	�% #!#)����#�!	��%	�!$�	��%	����	 �!��)	���	
��	�	�
5 �!��	'&�#�%	��	'�&'��&	�	(�%,&�>	+#)	�&� 	��%	3��2&%	.&��	���%	�!%	
��&�&	 ��%	 (&&!	 !�	 '$��#!,	 '�$#�#")	 3#��	 '&�'$&?)	 $#�&)��$&)>	 	 ��&	�����	 ��%	
�$)�	(&&!	"���&"�	 #!	 �&5&7� #!#!,	�$$	 )�.#!,)	'��'�)�$)	�!%	�&	 ���!2&%	 ��&	
��(#!&�	 �& (&�	 ���	 �&)���"&)	 ���	 �#)	 ���%	 3��2>	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	 �&� 	 ��%	
$#)�&!&%	��	�$$	)��2&��$%&�)	�!%	��&	���%&)	�!#�!)�	3�#"�	%& �!)����&%	��3	
)&�#��)$�	��&�	��%	��2&!	��&	'��"&))>	
	
���!"#$$��	��!#�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	�&,&!&���#�!�	"�  &!�&%	 �����	
%&)'#�&	 ��&	 !&"&))���	 "��)�	 �$$	 �''����!#�#&)	 3&�&	 (&#!,	 )��,��	 ��	 )�.&	
)&�.#"&	 '��.#)#�!>	 ��&	 ������	 ���#"&�)	 �!%	 ��(#!&�	  & (&�)	 ��%	 (&&!	
3��2#!,	!#,��	�!%	%��	���	�&)#%&!�)	�!%	)�&	���!2&%	��& 	�""��%#!,$�>	
	
���!"#$$��	�$#��	��� �!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	��#$%�&!?)	�&�.#"&)�	 #!%#"��&%	
����	 �& (&�)	 ��%	 ��2&!	 '&�'$&?)	 "�!"&�!)	 )&�#��)$�	 �!%	 ��&�&	 3�)	 !�	
&.#%&!"&	 ��	 )�''���	 ��&	  ���	 ����	 )����	 �&$�	 ���&��&!&%	 (�	 ��	 ����#%	 ��	
�& (&�)>	 	 ��&�&	 ��%	 (&&!	  �"�	  #)$&�%#!,	 #!��� ��#�!	 ��� 	 )� &	
���!"#$$��)	3��	��%	)�#%	��&	1�!#��	=����	�&�.#"&	3��$%	(&	)"��''&%	H	��#)	
3�)	!��	)�	�!%	'&�'$&	��%	��&	�''����!#��	��	)'&�2	��	��(#!&�	 & (&�)	�!	
��&	#))�&>	
	
���!"#$$��	 ��(#!�	 *��!�	 ��(#!&�	 �& (&�	 ���	 +��)#!,�	 ���!2&%	 ���!"#$$��	
����%����	 �!%	 ���#"&�)	 ���	 (�%,&�	 '�&'����#�!	 3��2	 �!%	 )��&))&%	 ����	 �	

Page 21



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	



	

"�!)&!)��$	 (�%,&�	 3�)	 # '����!�>	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	 ��%	 $#)�&!&%	 ��	 '&�'$&	 ��	
 �2&	)��&	����	��&	!&&%)	�!%	�)'#���#�!)	��	$�"�$	�&)#%&!�)	3&�&	�!%&�)���%>	
	
�	 ��(���	 /���'	 �& (&��	 )'&�2#!,	 3#��	 ��&	 "�!)&!�	 ��	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	
��(#!&��	 )��,��	 �!%	 3�)	 ,#.&!	 "$��#�#"��#�!��))���!"&	 #!	 �&$��#�!	 ��	 ��&	
��$$�3#!,	'�#!�)<	

�	 ��&	(�%,&�	��%	(&&!	���"&%	�'�!	��&	���!"#$	(��	�&,��%	 �)�	(&	��%	
��	'��'&�	"�!)���"�#.&	%#�$�,�&>	

�	 ��&	)���& &!�)	)�''���#!,	��&	� &!% &!�)	'��'�)&%	(�	��&	��(#!&�	
�& (&�	 ���	�&)���"&)	 )���$%	 ��.&	 (&&!	 '��.#%&%	 ��	 ��&	�.&�.#&3	
�!%	�"���#!�	��  #��&&	�!	K��	8&(�����	

��	�!%	3��$%	��.&	(&&!	
(&��&�	��($&%	��	��&	)����	��	��&	��(#!&�	 &&�#!,>	

�	 :��'�)�$)	 �&,��%#!,	 ��&	 +��)#!,	 �#!2	 �!%	 1�!#��	 =����	 �&�.#"&)	
3��$%	(&	,#.&!	�����&�	"�!)#%&���#�!>	

�	 9#��	 �&,��%	 ��	 ��&	�& (&�)?	��''���	�&�.#"&	 �!%	�����?)	���#"&�	 #�	
3�)	 # '����!�	 ����	 ���!"#$$��)	 "��$%	 �&'�&)&!�	 '&�'$&	 '��'&�$�	 (��	
��#)	 �)�	(&	��$$�	"�!)#%&�&%	#!	��&	��"&	��	��&	&7��!�	��	"��)	!&&%&%>	

�	 ��&	 ���&�	 ��	 �	 C@ 	 �&)&�.&	 ��!%	3��$%	 �$)�	 (&	 "�!)#%&�&%	 �!%	 �	
�&)'�!)&	'�&'��&%>	

	
��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	 ��	 ��&	 ������	 ��	 ���$���	 ���'����&	 �#�&"���	 �&)���"&)�	
#!%#"��&%	 ����	 �&	 ��%	 3�#��&!	 ��	 &�"�	 :�$#�#"�$	 /���'	 �&�%&�	 ,#.#!,	 �%.#"&	
�(���	��&	'��'�)&	��	�&)&�.&	��!%)	�!%	�&	"�  &!�&%	�����&�	�!	��&	&7�&!�	
�!%	�)&	��	�&)&�.&)	�.�#$�($&	��	��&	���!"#$>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	 ��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	 #!	��&	�&'���)	�
>��	�
>
	
�!%	 �
>@	 �!	 ��&	 �,&!%�	 ���2#!,	 �""��!�	 ��	 ��&	 � &!% &!�)	 '��'�)&%	 (�	
���!"#$$��	�$#(��	����%�����	�!%	#�	3�)<5		
�
� $)-3 4'�
�
�>	 ����	 ��&	 "�  &!�)	 �!%	 �%.#"&	 ��	 ��&	 �.&�.#&3	 �!%	 �"���#!�	

��  #��&&	  &&�#!,	 ��#)#!,	 ��� 	 #�)	  &&�#!,	 �&$%	 �!	 K	 8&(�����	


��	(&	!��&%>	

	

>	 ����	��&	���"� &	��	��&	.��#��)	"�!)�$���#�!)	"���#&%	���	#!	�&$��#�!	

��	��#)	(�%,&�	�)	)&�	���	#!	�''&!%#7	+	��	��&	�&'���	�!%	"#�"�$��&%	
)&'����&$�	�)	�&'���	���	
�F��
��	(&	!��&%>	

	
@>	 ����	��&	,��!�	��!%#!,	�.�#$�($&	���	

����
	�!%	��&	#!%#"��#�!)	�!%	

���&"�)�)	 ���	 �����&	�&��)	(&	!��&%	�)	%&��#$&%	 #!	�&"�#�!	K	��	 ��&	
�&'���	����	
KA��
��>	

	
E>	 ����	 ��&	 (�)&	 (�%,&�)	 ���	 

����
	 (&	 �''��.&%	 ���	 &�"�	

�#�&"�����&	�)	)&�	���	��	�''&!%#7	�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KA��
��>	
	
D>	 ����	��&	,��3��	"�!�#!,&!"�	�!%	)�.#!,)	���	

����
	(&	�,�&&%	�)	

)&�	���	 #!	�&"�#�!)	�
�	��	�!%	�@�	)�(B&"�	 ��	 ��&	� &!% &!�)	)&�	
���	 #!	 �&)�$��#�!)	 �
5
A	 (&$�3�	 �!%	 �''&!%#"&)	 �	 �!%	 �	 ��	 ��&	
�&'���	 ����	
KA��
��	�!%	 ��&	 # '$#"��#�!)	 ���	 $��&�	 �#!�!"#�$	 �&��)	
(&	!��&%>	

Page 22



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


�	

	
A>	 ����	��&	�&%#� 	�&� 	8#!�!"#�$	:$�!	)&�	���	��	�''&!%#7	�	��	��&	

�&'���	 ����	 
KA��
��	 (&	 !��&%�	 ��,&��&�	 3#��	 ��&	 )�.#!,)	 ���,&�	
��#)#!,	 #!	 �&$��#�!	 ��	 �����&	 �&��)	 �!%	 ��&	 �"�#�!)	 (&#!,	 ��2&!	 ��	
�%%�&))	#�>	

	
F>	 ����	 ��&	 �%.#"&	 �!	 )����&,#"	 (�%,&�	 �#)2)	 (&	 !��&%	 �)	 )&�	 ���	 #!	

)&"�#�!	 �D	 �!%	 �''&!%#7	 �	 ��	 ��&	 �&'���	 ����	 
KA��
���	 #!	
'���#"�$��	��&	)#,!#�#"�!�	#!"�&�)&	#!	�#)2	����	��&	���!"#$	#)	&7'�)&%	
��	�)	�	�&)�$�	��	��&	�#!�!"#�$	)&��$& &!��	�!%	��&	'��'�)&%	�&)'�!)&	
��	��&	���!"#$	��	 �!�,#!,	��#)	�#)2>	

	
K>	 ����	 ��&	 �%.#"&	 ��	 ��&	 ���'����&	 �#�&"���	 �&)���"&)	 (&	 !��&%	 #!	

�&$��#�!	 ��	 ��&	 ��(�)�!&))	 ��	 ��&	 (�%,&�	 '��"&))	 �)	 )&�	 ���	 #!	
)&"�#�!	�F	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KA��
��>	

	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 �&.#&3	��	 �&)&�.&)	(&	!��&%	�)	)&�	���	 #!	)&"�#�!	�A	�!%	

�����&�	%&��#$&%	#!	�''&!%#"&)	8	�!%	/	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KA��
��>	
	
�
>	 ����	���#"&�)?	�%.#"&	(&	!��&%	�!	 ��&	)����&,�	 ���	,&!&��$	 �&)&�.&)	

�!%	#�	(&	!��&%	����	��#)	3#$$	(&	�����&�	"�!)#%&�&%	(�	��&	��(#!&�	#!	
8&(�����>	

	
��>	 ����	�	/&!&��$	8�!%	�&.&!�&	��%,&�	��	C@�
>�A
 	�!%	�	���!"#$	

��7	 ���!%	��	��	CKKD>D
	 ���	

����
	(&	�,�&&%	�!%	 ��&	'��'�)�$	
(&	�&�&��&%	��	��%,&�	���!"#$	���	"�!)#%&���#�!>	

	
�
>	 ����	��&	�(�.&	�&)�$��#�!)	(&	)�(B&"�	��	�!�	� &!% &!�)	�&;�#�&%	

��$$�3#!,	 ��&	 �%�'�#�!	 ��	 ��&	  ��#�!	 '��'�)&%	 (�	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	
�& (&�	���	�&)���"&)	#!	��&	�&� )	)&�	���	(&$�3<	

	

)! +6# 	
	
�@>	 ����	��&	���!)#�#�!	��� 	+� &"��&	��	�&�($& &!�	(&	 �!�,&%	�.&�	

�	$�!,&�	'&�#�%	)�	����	"�'�"#��	#)	�&%�"&%	%�&	��	�	!�����$	���!�.&�	
����&�	���!	�&%�!%�!"�>	

	
�E>	 ����	��&	�# 	(&	��	%��3	%�3!	��&	)&�.#"&	��$$�	(�	���"�	

�A>	��#)	

3#$$	"�)�	�''��7# ��&$�	C� 	�!%	3#$$	(&	��!%&%	(�<	
	

•	 �	 )�.#!,	��	 CDD
�


	 ��� 	 �&%�"&%	 �&%�!%�!"�	 "�)�)	 �)	 �	
�&)�$�	 ��	 %&$#.&�#!,	 )�.#!,)	 �����,�	 !�����$	 3�)��,&	 �CK 	
"�!�#!,&!"�	)&�	�)#%&	���	�&%�!%�!"�	'�� &!�)�	

•	 C@AE�


	 ��� 	 �!	 �%%#�#�!�$	 ���!)#�#�!�$	 ,��!�	 ��� 	 ��&	
,�.&�! &!�	

•	 CKA�


	 ��� 	 "�!�#!,&!"#&)	 �&$&�)&%	 (�	 �	 $�3&�	 ���!	
&7'&"�&%	�.&�)'&!%	#!	

�
���	

	
�D>	 ����	��&	���!)#�#�!	(&	�&.#&3&%	�&,�$��$�	��	&!)��&	��&	)��!%��%	��	

'��.#)#�!	�& �#!)	�#,�	�!%	����	)����	��&	)�''���&%	 �����,����	 ��&	
"��!,&>	

Page 23



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	



	

	

)*$,%5��,%E	
	
�A>	 ����	CA
�


	(&	�$$�"��&%	��	��!%	�'	��	���&&	'�)�)	���	�!&	�&��	��	

��&	+��)#!,	 �#!2	 )&�.#"&	 ��	 &!)��&	 �	 ) ����	 ���!)#�#�!	 ���	 �)&�)>	
��#)	 3#$$	 (&	 ��!%&%	 ��� 	 "�!�#!,&!"#&)	 �&$&�)&%	 (�	 �	 $�3&�	 ���!	
&7'&"�&%	�.&�)'&!%	#!	

�
���>	

	
�43 %&*# ��-6?��#)3,$,)%	
	
�F>	 ����	 ��&	 �����&	 (&	 '���&"�&%	 �!%	 )�)��#!�(#$#��	 (&	 &!)��&%	 ��	 ��&	

�%.&!���&	'$��,���!%)	#!	����$&��	:��2	�!%	��	9�#�&���)&	��!&>	
	
�K>	 ����	 ��&	 $�"�$	 "�  �!#��	 (&	 &!,�,&%	 #!	 ��&	 �!�,& &!�	 ��	 ��&	

��"#$#�#&)	 ��	 (&��&�	 �&�$&"�	 ��&	 !&&%)	 ��	 ���)&	 ���!,	 '&�'$&	 ����	
"�!�#!�&	��	�)&	��& >	

	
��>	 ����	 ��&	 �����&	��	 ��&)&	�%.&!���&	'$��,���!%)	(&	'���&"�&%	 ��� 	

��&	)�.�,&)	��	��&	���$#�#�!	/�.&�! &!�?)	"��(�"2)>	
	


>	 ����	�!	�%%#�#�!�$	CD
�


	(&	�$$�"��&%	 ��	&!)��&	 ����	)�'&�.#)&%	

'$��	 "�!�#!�&)	 �!�#$	 �	 @�%	 �&"���	 ��,�!#)��#�!	 "�!	 (&	 &!,�,&%	 ��	
 �!�,&	 ��&	 ��"#$#�#&)>	 ��#)	 3#$$	 (&	 ��!%&%	 ��� 	 "�!�#!,&!"#&)	
�&$&�)&%	(�	�	$�3&�	���!	&7'&"�&%	�.&�)'&!%	#!	

�
���>	

	
2*%,)#��)*&(�� #3,+ 	
	

�>	 ����	 C�D�


	 (&	 �$$�"��&%	 ��	 ����$	 ��	 C�

�


�	 ��	 &�"�	 )"���$	

)#,!&%	 �'	 ��	 ��&	 )"�& &	 �)	 )&&%	 ��!%#!,	 ��	 &)��($#)�	 ��&	 !&3	
)&�.#"&>	��#)	3#$$	(&	��!%&%	��� 	"�!�#!,&!"#&)	�&$&�)&%	(�	�	$�3&�	
���!	&7'&"�&%	�.&�)'&!%	#!	

�
���>	

	
					� !)+#6&,+�� #3,+ $	
	


>	 ����	 )�.#!,)	 ��� 	 ��&	  & (&�	 )�''���	 �&� 	 ��)	 )&�	 ���	 #!	 '��5

��� �	���
�	(&	%&�&��&%	�!�#$	1�!&	@
	
�

>	
	

@>	 ����	 ��&	 (�%,&�)	 ���	 ��&	 '��'�)&%	�����?)	 ���#"&	 �!%	 (�%,&�)	 ��	

 & (&�?)	)�''���	(&	"� (#!&%	#!��	�	)#!,$&	'��>	
	

E>	 ����	 ��!%#!,	 ��	 CK
�


	 (&	 �$$�"��&%	 ��	 ��#)	 '��	 ��	 �$$�3	

# '$& &!���#�!	 ��	 ��&	 ��$$	 )�.#!,	 ��	 (&	 %&�&��&%	 ��	 ��&	 &!%	 ��	 ��&	
�#�)�	 ;����&�	 ��	 

��>	 ��#)	 3#$$	 (&	 ��!%&%	 ��� 	 "�!�#!,&!"#&)	
�&$&�)&%	(�	�	$�3&�	���!	&7'&"�&%	�.&�)'&!%	#!	

�
���>	

	

D>	 ����	 ��&	  �!&�	 "���&!�$�	 �$$�"��&%	 ��	  & (&�	 )�''���	 �!%	 ��&	

�����?)	���#"&	(&	"� (#!&%	#!	�!&	'��>	
	

A>	 ����	 �	 "��))5'����	 3��2#!,	 ,���'	 (&	 �))& ($&%	 ��	 %��3	 �'	

'��'�)�$)	 ����	 &!)��&	 ����	 (���	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	 �& (&�)	 ��&	

Page 24



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


@	

�%&;���&$�	 )�''���&%	 #!	 ��&#�	 ��$&)	 (��	 ��&	 )�.#!,)	 #%&!�#�#&%	 #!	
���
	��&	�"�#&.&%	��� 	��#)	(#,,&�	'��>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KA��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KA��
��>		
	
				 	
	

����� ����B���G�����B����68,&6-��#)5#6!! �/�����C9B���0��
	
8��	"�  &!����	)&&	'�&.#��)	�,&!%�	��& 	�
>�>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'	
	
�>	 ����	 �	 '��'�)&%	  �#!)��&� 	 "�'#��$	 '��,��  &	 (&	 �,�&&%	 �)	

����"�&%	��	�''&!%#7	�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KF��
��	�!%	#�	(&	!��&%	
����	��#)	#)	��$$�	��!%&%	��� 	�.�#$�($&	)���"&)>	

	

>	 ����	 ��&	  �#!)��&� 	 �!%	 $�"�$$�	 ,&!&���&%	 �&)���"&)	 "���&!�$�	

�.�#$�($&	���	!&3	)"�& &)	(&	!��&%>	
	
@>	 ����	��&	$�"�$$�	��!%&%	'��B&"�)	(&	�,�&&%	�)	)&�	���	#!	�''&!%#7	
	

��	��&	�&'���	����	
KF��
��>	
	
E>	 ����	��&	%����	��'#��$	:��,��  &	(&	�&�&��&%	��	��&	8�$$	���!"#$	���	

�''��.�$>	
	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KF��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KF��
��>	
	
	

����� �# 6$*#?��6%65 ! %&��&#6& 5?��&6& ! %&���,%,!*!�� 3 %* ��#)3,$,)%�
�)-,+?��&6& ! %&�6%4��%%*6-��%3 $&! %&��&#6& 5?�����B���/�����CCB���0��
	
8��	"�  &!����	)&&	�,&!%�	��& 	�
>�	�(�.&>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�

Page 25



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


E	

�
�>	 ����	8�$$	���!"#$	(&	�&"�  &!%&%	��	�%�'�<	

•	 ��&	 ��&�)���	 ��!�,& &!�	 �����&,�	 ����& &!�	 )&�	 ���	 #!	
)&"�#�!)	F5��	��	��#)	�&'���	����	
KK��
��>	

•	 ��&	 �!!��$	 �!.&)� &!�	 �����&,�	 )&�	 ���	 #!	 )&"�#�!	 �
	 ��	 ��#)	
�&'���	����	
KK��
��>	

•	 ��&	 �#!# � 	 �&.&!�&	 :��.#)#�!	 :�$#"�	 ����& &!�	 )&�	 ���	 #!	
)&"�#�!	�@	��	��#)	�&'���	����	
KK��
���	3�#"�	���#"&�)	#!.�$.&%	
#!	��&�)���	 �!�,& &!�	 �)�	��&!	��$$�3>	

	

>	 ����	 ������#��	 (&	 %&$&,��&%	 ��	 ��&	 ���'����&	 �#�&"���	 �&)���"&)�	

���&�	"�!)�$���#�!	3#��	 ��&	�&�%	�& (&�	 ���	�&)���"&)�	 ��	.���	 ��&	
�#,��&)	 #!	 ��#)	 �&'���	 ����	 
KK��
��	 ��	 �&�$&"�	 %&"#)#�!)	  �%&	 #!	
�&$��#�!	 ��	 ��&	 ��'#��$	 :��,��  &	 '�#��	 ��	 )�( #))#�!	 ��	 ��%,&�	
���!"#$>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KK��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�	E>�5E>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
KK��
��>	
	

�6#,6&,)%�&)��#4 #�).��*$,% $$�
�
��&	�����	�$)�	 #!%#"��&%	 ����	�&	"�!)#%&�&%	 #�	�''��'�#��&	 ����	 ��&	��%&�	��	
��)#!&))	(&	.��#&%	�)	#�	3�)	�''��'�#��&	���	'��'�)&%	�&&)	�!%	"���,&)	��	(&	
,#.&!	"�!)#%&���#�!	��	��&	'�#!�	#!	��&	 &&�#!,	3�&!	(�%,&����	 ���&�)	3&�&	
�!%&�	%#)"�))#�!>	�""��%#!,$�	 ��&	�����	�)3 4	 ��&	��$$�3#!,	 ��#�!	���	 ��&	
"�!)#%&���#�!	��	��&	��(#!&�	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
	
� $)-3 4�
	
����	 ��&	��%&�	��	(�)#!&))	�!	 ��&	�,&!%�	(&	.��#&%	 ��	&!�($&	�,&!%�	 ��& 	
�
>F	 H	 I:��'�)&%	 ���	 8&&)	 4	 ����,&)	 

����
J	 ����	 
�
��
��	 ��	 (&	
"�!)#%&�&%	�)	!&7�	(�)#!&))>		
	
	
	

����� 
)*$,%5�� 3 %* ��++)*%&��*45 &�� 8)#&�G�����B���/�����C�B���0��
	
���!"#$$��	��(#!�	*��!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	+��)#!,�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	��	 ��&	
������	#!	#!���%�"#!,	��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	
"�  &!�#!,	 ����	 %#)"�))#�!)	 ��%	 ��2&!	 '$�"&	 3#��	 ��3&�	 +� $&�)	 +� &)	
3#��	 �!	 #!#�#�$	 )�,,&)�&%	 &��#"#&!"�	 )�.#!,)	 ���,&�	 ��	 DN	 ��	 ��&	 

�
���	
 �!�,& &!�	�&&>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�

Page 26



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


D	

	
�>	 ����	��&	%����	

����
	+��)#!,	�&.&!�&	�""��!�	�)�# ��&)	�)	)&�	���	
#!	�''&!%#7	�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K���
��	(&	�''��.&%>	

	

>	 ����	 ��&	%����	��!�,& &!�	8&&	'���($&	 ��	��3&�	+� $&�)	+� &)	��	
C@
�
@�	 #$$#�!	 �)	 )&�	 ���	 #!	 ��($&	 �	 #!	 '���,��'�	 F>F	 ��	 ��&	 �&'���	
����	
K���
��	(&	�''��.&%>	

	
@>	 �����	 )�(B&"�	 ��	 
>	 �(�.&�	 #�	 (&	 !��&%	 ����	 �!%&�	 ��&	 ��!�,& &!�	
�,�&& &!�	(&�3&&!	��&	���!"#$	�!%	��3&�	+� $&�)	+� &)�	�++	3#$$	
 �!�,&	 %&$&,��&%	 #!"� &	 (�%,&�)	 ��	 CK�>@�E	 #$$#�!	 �!%	 %&$&,��&%	
&7'&!%#���&	 (�%,&�)	 ��	 C
A>AF@	  #$$#�!	 �!	 (&��$�	 ��	 ��&	 ���!"#$	 #!	


����
>	

	
E>	 �����	)���$%	�	�'&"#�$	�&�&� #!��#�!	(&	�&"&#.&%	3�#"�	#!"�&�)&)	��&	
&!�#�$& &!�	��	)�''���&%	"�'#��$	&7'&!%#���&�		��&	���'����&	�#�&"���	��	
�&.&$�' &!�	4	�&!&3�$	(&	,#.&!	%&$&,��&%	������#��	��	!&,��#��&	�!%	
�,�&&�	 ��$$�3#!,	 "�!)�$���#�!	 3#��	 ��&	 �����	 �!%	 �&�%	 �& (&�	 ���	
+��)#!,�	 �!	 #!"�&�)&	 #!	 ��&	��!�,& &!�	 8&&	 ��	 ��!%	 ��&	 �%%#�#�!�$	
"�)�	��	 �!�,#!,	��&	"�'#��$	'��,��  &>		

	
D>	 ����	��&	 &%#� 5�&� 	+��	(�%,&�	'��B&"�#�!)	�

��5�D�	�)	���$#!&%	#!	
�''&!%#7	
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K���
��	(&	!��&%>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K���
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
K���
��>	
	
	
	

����� � 4,+6& 4��+())-$�	#6%&�����B���/�������B���0��
	
�)	�>	����&� �$&�	�!�&�# 	���'����&	�#�&"����	��#$%�&!�	�"���$)	4	8� #$#&)�	��	
��&	�&;�&)�	��	��&	������	#!	#!���%�"#!,	��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	
"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	�#,�$#,��#!,	#!	'���#"�$��<	

•	 ��&	�&%#"��&%	�"���$)	/��!�	��%	�&'$�"&%	�E	���&�	'�&.#��)	��� )	��	
,��!�>	

•	 ��&	$�"�$	������#��	��%	"�!)�$�&%	$�!,	�!%	���%	3#��	)"���$)	(��	��&�&	
"��$%	)�#$$	(&	#))�&)	�(���	'���#"�$��	)&�.#"&)	)"���$)	 ��	3#)�	��	(��	
#!>	

	
���!"#$$��	 �$#��	 ��� �!�	 ��(#!&�	 �& (&�	 ���	 ��#$%�&!?)	 �&�.#"&)�	
"�  &!�&%	 ����	 ,��!�	  �!&�	 3��$%	 !�3	 (&	 ,�#!,	 %#�&"�	 ��	 )"���$)�	 3��	
3��$%	 !�3	  �!�,&	 ��&#�	 �3!	 �#!�!"&)	 �!%	 &!)��&	 ����	  �!&�	 3�)	 )'&!�	
3#)&$�	�!%	#!	"� '$#�!"&	3#��	&%�"��#�!�$	'�#��#�#&)>	
	

Page 27



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


A	

���!"#$$��	 ��!#�	 *��!�	 ��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	 +��)#!,�	 )��&))&%	 ��&	 !&&%	 ��	
&!)��&	 ����	�$$	 �&$&.�!�	'�'#$)	)���$%	��.&	�""&))	 ��	 ��&&	)"���$	 &�$)>	�)	
����&� �$&	#!%#"��&%	����	��&�&	��%	(&&!	�!	&7�&!)#.&	"� '�#,!	#!	)"���$)	��	
&!)��&	 ����	 '��&!�)	 2!&3	 �(���	 &!�#�$& &!�	 ��	 )"���$	 &�$)	 �!%	3&�&	 #!	 �	
'�)#�#�!	��	�''$�>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
�

�>	 ����	 ��&	'��.#)#�!�$	�"���$)	��%,&�	��	 ��&	��$$�3#!,	 $&.&$	 ���	

����
	
�'���,��'�	A>E	H	��($&	�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
���	(&	�,�&&%<		

��	 �!�#"#'��&%	�&%#"��&%	�"���$)	/��!�	��	D�������!H�	

(�	 ���&"�)�	 	 ����$	 =��!,	 :&�'$&	 �&��!#!,	 �,&!"�	 �$$�"��#�!	 ��	
D���9��!H	

"�	 ����$	��	D�����A�!	(&	�,�&&%>	

	


>	 ����	 ��&	 ���'����&	 �#�&"���	 ���	 ��#$%�&!�	 �"���$)	 �!%	 8� #$#&)	 (&	
������#)&%	 ��	)�()�#���&	 ��&	�"���$	 �#,��&	 ���	=��!,	:&�'$&?)	�&��!#!,	
�,&!"�	 �=:���	 �$$�"��#�!)	 �!"&	 #�	 #)	 2!�3!	 �!%	 ��	 )"�$&	 (�"2	 ��&	
�&%#"��&%	�"���$)	/��!�	���/�	��	(&	�$$�"��&%	�)	�''��'�#��&	)���$%	
��&	 #!#�#�$	 '�'#$	 !� (&�	 %���	 ��� 	 ��&	 1�!����	 

��	 '�'#$	 "&!)�)	
#!%#"��&	 ����	 ��&	 '�'#$	 !� (&�	 &)�# ��&	 #)	 ���	 �#,�	 �'���,��'�	 F>@	 ��	
��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
���>	

	

@>	 ����	��&	%#)��#(��#�!	��	��&	����$	��!%#!,	(&�3&&!	�&��#!&%	�!%	%&.�$.&%	
��!%#!,	)&�	���	#!	�''&!%#7	@	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
��	(&	�''��.&%�	
!��#!,	��&	�&%�"�#�!)	#!	�&��#!&%	��!%#!,	)&�	���	��	'���,��'�	K>E	���	��	
�,�	 ��	 ��&	 �&'���	 ����	 
�
��
��	 �!%	 �,�&&	 ��&	 )�.#!,)	 '��'�)�$)	
�&;�#�&%	��	(�$�!"&	��&	(�%,&�	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�	K>D	��	K>�@	��	��&	
�&'���	����	
�
��
��>	

	

� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	

	

��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�	�!%	@>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
��>	

	

�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�

�

��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
��>	

	

	
	

���A� �88#)36-�).��$$ &��&#6& 5?�/�������B���0��

Page 28



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


F	

	
���!"#$$��	�$#(��	����%�����	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	�&)���"&)�	��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	
��	��&	������	 #!	#!���%�"#!,	��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	
��&�&#!�	 "�  &!�#!,	 ����	 ��&	 �))&�	 �����&,�	 3��$%	 �&$'	 #!	 #%&!�#��#!,	
'��'&��#&)	�!%	3��2	"�!)���"�#.&$�	��	(�#!,	��& 	(�"2	#!��	'�($#"	�)&>	
	
��&	�����	)���&%	����	�#)	�)'#���#�!)	3#��	�&,��%	��	��&	�))&�	�����&,�	3&�&	
3&$$	 2!�3!	 �!%	 �&	 ��,&%	 ����	 ���#"&�)	 ���!	 ��&	 #))�&	 ���!%	 3#��#!	 �	
�&�)�!�($&	�# &)"�$&>	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 �))&�	 �����&,�	 ����"�&%	 �)	 �''&!%#7	 �	 ��	 ��&	 �&'���	 ����	

����
��	(&	�''��.&%>	

	

>	 ����	��&	2&�	#))�&)	�#,�$#,��&%	#!	��#)	�&'���	(&	!��&%>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
����
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
����
��>	
	
	
	

���9� �#)8)$ 4������  $�;��(6#5 $�����B���/�������B���0��
	
���!"#$$��	 ��#%	 �� &%�	 �&'���	 ������	 ��	 ��&	 �&;�&)�	 ��	 ��&	 ������	 #!	
#!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	 2&�	 '�#!�)	 "�!��#!&%	 ��&�&#!�	
"�  &!�#!,	�)	��$$�3)<5	

•	 ��&	�&'���	3�)	�!	&7� '$&	��	��3	��&	���!"#$	3�)	3��2#!,	#!	��&	��"&	
��	"��)	# '�)&%	(�	��&	/�.&�! &!��	#!	����L	
�	 :��2#!,	"���,&)	3&�&	(&#!,	���6&!	���	��&	��#�%	�&��	#!	)�""&))#�!	
��	�.�#%	���%)�#'	��	�&)#%&!�)>	

�	 ���&&�	 ���%#!,	 "���,&)	 3&�&	 (&#!,	 ���6&!	 ���	 ��&	 ��#�%	 �&��	 #!	
)�""&))#�!>	

�	 ��&�&	3��$%	(&	!�	 #!"�&�)&	�(�.&	 #!�$��#�!	���&	 ���	�!.#��! &!��$	
:���&"�#�!	"���,&)>	

	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 )'&"#�#"	 �&&	 $&.&$)	 ��	 (&	 "���,&%	 ���	 �&&)	 �!%	 "���,&)	
# '�"�&%	 �'�!	 (�	 )�.#!,)	 '��'�)�$)	 �,�&&%	 ��	 ��(#!&�	 �!	 �
��	
1�!����	 �:��2#!,�	 :&)�	 ��!���$�	 �&#)��&	 �&�.#"&)	 �!%	 ��  &�"#�$	

Page 29



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


K	

9�)�&�	�)	���$#!&%	#!	�''&!%#"&)	�	��	E	��	 ��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
���	
(&	!��&%>	

	

>	 ����	 ��&	'��'�)&%	���	�#�&"�����&	 �&&)	�!%	"���,&)	 ���	

����
	 ���	
��&	 ��$$�3#!,	 )&�.#"&)<	 ���)	 4	 �.&!�)�	 ���2&�)�	 �!%	 �!.#��! &!��$	
:���&"�#�!	(&	�,�&&%	�)	)�  ��#)&%	(&$�3>	

	
@>	 ���&&�	���%#!,<	����	��&�&	(&	!�	#!"�&�)&)	��	"���&!�	�&&)	�!%	"���,&)	
���	

����
L	#!���%�"�#�!	��	"���,&	���	'#�"�	%&)#,!��#�!>	

	
E>	 �!.#��! &!��$	 :���&"�#�!<	 ����	 ��&�&	 (&	 #!�$��#�!���	 #!"�&�)&)	 ��	 �$$	
"���&!�	 �!.#��! &!��$	 :���&"�#�!	 �&&)	 �!%	 "���,&)	 �!��	 #!"$�%#!,	
���)�L	����	��&	���.&$$&�?)	)#�&	'#�"�	�&!��$	(&	#!"�&�)&%	�(�.&	#!�$��#�!>	

	
D>	 ���)	4	�.&!�)<	����	��&�&	(&	!�	#!"�&�)&)	��	"���&!�	�&&)	�!%	"���,&)	
���	

����
>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	)&�	���	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�
��
��>	
	
	
	

���C� �(,-4# %���+())-$�6%4��6!,-, $��  $�;��(6#5 $�����B���/�������B���0��
	
�)*%+,--)#��(,4��(! 4�%&"$��&%	'&�)�!�$	#!�&�&)�)	#!	��&	��$$�3#!,	�,&!%�	
#�& )	�!	��&	(�)#)	��	��&	�&�)�!)	)��3!<	

•	 �,&!%�	��& 	�
>K	H	I��#$%�&!�	�"���$)	�!%	8� #$#&)	8&&)	4	����,&)J	
����
�@��
��>	 ��&	 �&'���	 "�!��#!&%	 �&"�  &!%��#�!)	 �&$��#!,	 ��	
)"���$	 &�$)	�!%	���&�	"���,&)	�!%	�#)	%��,��&�	���&!%&%	�	)"���$	#!	
��&	�����,�>	

	
	
���!"#$$��	 �$#��	 ��� �!�	 ��(#!&�	 �& (&�	 ���	 ��#$%�&!?)	 �&�.#"&)�	 ��	 ��&	
�&;�&)�	 ��	 ��&	������	 #!	 #!���%�"#!,	 ��&	 �&'����	 )�  ��#)&%	 ��&	 2&�	 '�#!�)	
"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!�	�#,�$#,��#!,	#!	'���#"�$��<	

•	 �#$	��	 $# #�&%	 #!"�&�)&)	)��3&%	����	�$$	"�  &!�)	��%	(&&!	��2&!	�!	
(���%>	

•	 ��&	+�$#%��	:$��	�"�& &)	"���,&	��	��3&�	+� $&�)	3��2#!,	'��&!�)	
��	C�
	'&�	%��	'&�	"���,&	3�)	�	.&��	$�3	"�)�	#!	"� '��#)�!	��	���&�	
��� )	��	"�#$%5"��&	'��.#)#�!>	

	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'	
	

Page 30



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	


�	

����	��#$%�&!�	�"���$)	4	8� #$#&)	�&&)	�!%	"���,&)	���	

����
	(&	�''��.&%	
�)	��$$�3)<	

	
���	 ����	 ��&�&	(&	!�	 #!"�&�)&	 #!	 ��&	'�#"&	��	'�#%	�"���$	�&�$)	�)	

%&��#$&%	#!	:���,��'�	A	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��L	

�(�	 ����	 ��&�&	 (&	 �	 )# '$#�#&%	 �&&	 )�)�& 	 ���	 ���	 ���)&�#&)	 �)	
%&��#$&%	#!	:���,��'�	F	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��L		

�"�	 ����	 ��&�&	(&	!�	 #!"�&�)&	 #!	 �&&)	 ���	+�$#%��	:$��	�"�& &)	�)	
%&��#$&%	#!	:���,��'�	K	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��L	

�%�	 ����	��&�&	(&	�!	#!"�&�)&	#!	�&&)	���	��&	�����%��	���!#!,	��)#"	
�&!��&	�)	%&��#$&%	#!	:���,��'�	�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��L												

�&�	 ����	��&	"���&!�	"���,&)	���	�!5+��)&	8�)�&�	���&	(&	 �#!��#!&%	
�)	%&��#$&%	#!	:���,��'�	�
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��>	

�

� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	

��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	@>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��>	

	

�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4	

	

��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�@��
��>	

	
	

����� �-?!8,+� 
)$&� �)#)*5($� G� � 3, <� ).� 	)3 #%6%+ � �##6%5 ! %&$� /����
���B���0��
	
��	*&.�!	��$$#!)�	��#&�	�7&"��#.&�	��	��&	�&;�&)�	��	��&	������	#!	'�&)&!�#!,	
��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!	�!%	�&)'�!%&%	��	�	
;�&��	 ��� 	 ���!"#$$��	 �!!	 1�"2)�!�	 ���#�	 ��	 ��&	 �.&�.#&3	 �!%	 �"���#!�	
��  #��&&�	"�!�#� #!,	����	��&	�''�#!� &!�	��	�7&"��#.&	�& (&�)	��	��&	!&3	
1�#!�	��  #��&&	3�)	�&;�#�&%	��	(&	 �%&	(�	��&	��(#!&�>	
	
��&	�����	 )���&%	 ����	 �&	3��$%	 '��	 ���3��%	 !� #!��#�!)	 ���	 �3�	 �7&"��#.&	
�& (&�)	 �!%	 )�()�#���&)	 ��	 �	 $��&�	 %��&>	 +&	 ��&!	 �)3 4	 ��&	
�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 %#)&)��($#)� &!�	 ��	 ��&	 &7#)�#!,	 1�#!�	 ��  #��&&	 ��	 ��&	 �#.&	
+�)�	�����,�)	���	 ��&	

�
	�$� '#"	�!%	:���$� '#"	/� &)�	�!%	��&	
&)��($#)� &!�	 ��	 �	 !&3	 1�#!�	 ��  #��&&	 ��	 )#7	 +�)�	 �����,�)�	 ��	
#!"��'����&	 ��&	 ��!%�!	 �����,�	 ��	 ���2#!,	 �!%	 ��,&!�� 	 (&	
�''��.&%	3#��	&��&"�	��� 	�	�'�#$	

��>	

	

Page 31



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

@
	


>	 ����	 ��&	 ��#&�	 �7&"��#.&	 (&	 ������#)&%	 ��	 � &!%	 ��&	 �!�&�	 ������#��	
�,�&& &!��	�& ���!%� 	��	�!%&�)��!%#!,	�!%	 ��&	:��"&%��&	��$&)	
�!%	,#.&	&��&"�	��	�!�	 ���&�	!&"&))���	��	�"�#&.&	��&#�	�(B&"�#.&)>	

	
@>	 ����	��&	�&� )	��	�&�&�&!"&	�)	�,�&&%	'�&.#��)$�	(&	"�!�#� &%�	)�(B&"�	
��	��&	�,�&& &!�	�!%	#!"��'����#�!	��	��!%�!	�����,�	��	���2#!,	�!%	
��,&!�� 	 �)	 )#7��	 +�)�	 �����,�	 �!%	 ��&	 %&$&,��#�!	 ��	 &7&"��#.&	
��!"�#�!)	 �)	 �,�&&%	 '�&.#��)$�	 ��	 (&	 %#)"���,&%	 (�	 ��&	 !&3	 1�#!�	
��  #��&&	3#��	&��&"�	��� 	�	�'�#$	

��>	

	
E>	 ����	�3�	�7&"��#.&	�& (&�)�	�!%	�3�	)�()�#���&	�7&"��#.&	�& (&�)�	
(&	 �''�#!�&%	 ��	 (&	 ��&	 ���!"#$?)	 �&'�&)&!���#.&)	 �!	 ��&	 !&3	 1�#!�	
��  #��&&<	!� #!��#�!)	��	(&	'��	���3��%	#!	%�&	"���)&	(�	��&	�����>	

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�E��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�	E>�	��	��&	�&'���>	
	
	
	

������ �(,-4# %>$�6%4��4*-&$>�� #3,+ $�� )#56%,$6&,)%�/�������B���0��
	
��	*&.�!	��$$#!)�	��#&�	�7&"��#.&�	��	��&	�&;�&)�	��	��&	������	#!	#!���%�"#!,	
��&	�&'����	)�  ��#)&%	��&	2&�	'�#!�)	"�!��#!&%	��&�&#!	�!%	"�  &!�&%	����	
�%�'�#!,	 ��&	  &�)��&)	 '��'�)&%	 3��$%	 �$$�3	 �# 	 ��	  &&�	 3#��	 �$$	
)��2&��$%&�)	��	%#)"�))	��&	'��'�)&%	�&��,�!#)��#�!>	
	
���!"#$$��	�$#��	��� �!�	��(#!&�	�& (&�	 ���	��#$%�&!?)	�&�.#"&)�	 #!%#"��&%	
����	�&	3��$%	(&	��''�	��	"�!)#%&�	�$$	�'�#�!)	(��	)��&))&%	��&	!&&%	���	 ��&	
'��.#)#�!	 ��	 )�#��($&	  &"��!#) )	 ��	 �$$�3	 �$$	 )��2&��$%&�)	 ��	 "�!��#(��&	 ��	
"�!)�$���#�!>	
	
��&	�����	)���&%	����	��&	��#&�	�7&"��#.&	3��$%	�$)�	(&	&7'$��#!,	�$$	�'�#�!)	
3#��	���'����&	��!�,& &!�	�&� >	
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	��&	�&"�  &!%��#�!)	�)	)&�	���	#!	��&	�&'���	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'�
	
�>	 ����	 ��&	 #  &%#��&	 "�  &!"& &!�	 ��	 )��2&��$%&�	 &!,�,& &!�	 3#��	
)"���$)�	�&�$���	�&$&.�!�	��#�%	)&"���	�!%	"�  �!#��	��,�!#)��#�!)	�!%	
���&�	2&�	)��2&��$%&�)	(&	�''��.&%	 ��	&)��($#)�	3�&��&�	 ��&�&	3��$%	
(&	)�''���	���	 ��&	�&��,�!#)��#�!	��	 ��&	"���&!�	��#$%�&!�	�"���$)	�!%	
8� #$#&)	 �!%	 �%�$�)�	 +&�$��	 �!%	9&$$(&#!,	 �#�&"�����&)	 #!��	 �	 )#!,$&	
�!#�#&%	8� #$#&)�	��#$%�&!	�!%	�%�$�)	�&�.#"&>	

	

Page 32



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

@�	


>	 ����	�	�����&�	�&'���	��� 	��&	��#&�	�7&"��#.&	(&	)�( #��&%	��	��&	!&7�	
�''��'�#��&	 ��(#!&�	  &&�#!,	 ��$$�3#!,	 ��&	 "�!)�$���#�!	 3#��	 2&�	
)��2&��$%&�)>		

	
� 6$)%$�.)#�� +,$,)%$	
	
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	@>�5@>E	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�D��
��>	
	
�-& #%6&,3 ��8&,)%$��)%$,4 # 4�
�
��&)&	��&	%&��#$&%	#!	'���,��'�)	E>�5E>
	��	��&	�&'���	����	
�D��
��>	
	
	

���� ������
��������������������������������������������	�����
	
�#$	#�& )>	
	

���� ��������������������������������������
	
��&	 �$&�2	 �%.#)&%	 ����	 ��&�&	 3�)	 !�	 (�)#!&))	 ��	 (&	 "�!)#%&�&%	 �!%&�	 ��#)	
)&"�#�!	��	��&	�,&!%�>	
	

���� �I������������
��������������������
	
��&	�����	�)3 4	�!%	#�	3�)<5	
�
� $)-3 4'��
	
����	 '��)��!�	 ��	 �&,�$��#�!	 
�����(�	 ��	 ��&	 ��"�$	 ������#�#&)	 ��7&"��#.&	
����!,& &!�)�	��""&))	��	�!��� ��#�!�	��!,$�!%�	�&,�$��#�!)	



�	��&	'�&))	
�!%	'�($#"	(&	&7"$�%&%	��� 	��&	�& �#!%&�	��	��&	 &&�#!,<	
	
���	 �)	#�	3�)	$#2&$��	#!	.#&3	��	��&	!����&	��	��&	(�)#!&))	��	(&	���!)�"�&%	#!	

�&"�#�!	�3�	��	��&	�,&!%��	����	#�	 & (&�)	��	��&	'�($#"	3&�&	'�&)&!�	
%��#!,	 "�!)#%&���#�!	 ��	 ��#)	 (�)#!&))	 ��&�&	 3��$%	 (&	 %#)"$�)��&	 ��	
&7& '�	#!��� ��#�!>	

	

•	 �7& '�	 #!��� ��#�!	 #)	%&�#!&%	 #!	)&"�#�!	�

�	�!%�	(�	 �&�&�&!"&�	
�"�&%�$&	�
�	��	��&	��"�$	/�.&�! &!�	�"�	��F
	�I��&	��F
	�"�J�>		
��	(&	&7& '��	 #!��� ��#�!	 �)�	 ��$$	3#��#!	�!&	��	 ��&	"��&,��#&)	
$#)�&%	 #!	'���,��'�)	�	 ��	F	��	�"�&%�$&	�
��	 �)�	!��	 ��$$	3#��#!	
�!&	 ��	 ��&	 &7"$�%&%	 "��&,��#&)	 #!	 '���,��'�)	 K	 �!%	 �	 �!%	 ��&	
'�($#"	 #!�&�&)�	 #!	  �#!��#!#!,	 ��&	 &7& '�#�!	  �)�	 ���3&#,�	 ��&	
'�($#"	#!�&�&)�	#!	%#)"$�)#!,	��&	#!��� ��#�!>	

	
�	 �,&!%�	 #�& 	 �E>	 I�7& '��	 ��!�#%&!�#�$	 �#!��&)J	 ���	 ��&	

 &&�#!,	 ��	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	 �&$%	 �!	 �
��	 1�!����	 

���	
"�!��#!&%	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	 �#!�!"#�$	 ��	 (�)#!&))	
����#�)	 ��	 �!�	 '���#"�$��	 '&�)�!	 �#!"$�%#!,	 ��&	 ������#��	
��$%#!,	 ����	 #!��� ��#�!�>	 �!	 '���#"�$��	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	
��	��&	�#!�!"#�$	����#�)	��	��&	���!"#$>	

Page 33



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

@
	

�	 �,&!%�	 #�& 	 �A>�	 I�$�"23�$$	 �&�"�	 �&,&!&���#�!	
:��"��& &!�	 �!%	 �"�& &	 �&.&$�' &!�	 5	 �%%&!%� 	
�&'���J	 "�!��#!&%	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	 �#!�!"#�$	 ��	
(�)#!&))	 ����#�)	 ��	 �!�	 '���#"�$��	 '&�)�!	 �#!"$�%#!,	 ��&	
������#��	��$%#!,	����	 #!��� ��#�!�>	 �!	'���#"�$��	 #!��� ��#�!	
�&$��#!,	��	��&	�#!�!"#�$	����#�)	��	��&	���!"#$>	

�	 �,&!%�	 #�& 	 �K>�	 I��%&�!#)#!,	 �&��!#!,	 �#)�(#$#��	 ���	
�''����!#�#&)	 H	 �7& '��	 ��!�#%&!�#�$	 �''&!%#7	 ��	
�!�&)��#"�&%	 �&'���J	 "�!��#!&%	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	
�#!�!"#�$	 ��	 (�)#!&))	 ����#�)	 ��	 �!�	 '���#"�$��	 '&�)�!	
�#!"$�%#!,	 ��&	 ������#��	 ��$%#!,	 ����	 #!��� ��#�!�>	 �!	
'���#"�$��	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	 �#!�!"#�$	 ����#�)	 ��	
&7#)�#!,	)&�.#"&	'��.#%&�)>	
	

�(�	 �)	�$����,�	 ��&�&	 #)	�	'�($#"	 #!�&�&)�	 ��.���#!,	'�($#"	�""&))	 ��	 $�"�$	
������#��	 &&�#!,)�	 #!	 ��#)	 "�)&	 ��&	��(#!&�	 "�!"$�%&%	 ����	 ,#.&!	 ��&	
#!��� ��#�!	"�!��#!&%	#!<	

	
�	 �,&!%�	 #�& 	 �,&!%�	 #�& 	 �E>	 I�7& '��	 ��!�#%&!�#�$	

�#!��&)J	 ���	 ��&	  &&�#!,	 ��	 ��&	 ��(#!&�	 �&$%	 �!	 �
��	
1�!����	

���	�&$��#!,	��	��&	�#!�!"#�$	��	(�)#!&))	����#�)	��	
�!�	 '���#"�$��	 '&�)�!	 �#!"$�%#!,	 ��&	 ������#��	 ��$%#!,	 ����	
#!��� ��#�!�>	 �!	 '���#"�$��	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	
�#!�!"#�$	����#�)	��	��&	���!"#$>	

�	 �A>�	 I�$�"23�$$	 �&�"�	 �&,&!&���#�!	 :��"��& &!�	 �!%	
�"�& &	�&.&$�' &!�	 5	�%%&!%� 	�&'���J	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	
�#!�!"#�$	 ��	 (�)#!&))	 ����#�)	 ��	 �!�	 '���#"�$��	 '&�)�!	
�#!"$�%#!,	 ��&	 ������#��	 ��$%#!,	 ����	 #!��� ��#�!�>	 �!	
'���#"�$��	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	 �#!�!"#�$	����#�)	��	 ��&	
���!"#$>	

�	 �,&!%�	 #�& 	 �K>�	 I��%&�!#)#!,	 �&��!#!,	 �#)�(#$#��	 ���	
�''����!#�#&)	 H	 �7& '��	 ��!�#%&!�#�$	 �''&!%#7	 ��	
�!�&)��#"�&%	 �&'���J	 �&$��#!,	 ��	 ��&	 �#!�!"#�$	 ��	 (�)#!&))	
����#�)	 ��	 �!�	 '���#"�$��	 '&�)�!	 �#!"$�%#!,	 ��&	 ������#��	
��$%#!,	 ����	 #!��� ��#�!�>	 �!	 '���#"�$��	 #!��� ��#�!	 �&$��#!,	
��	��&	�#!�!"#�$	����#�)	��	&7#)�#!,	)&�.#"&	'��.#%&�)>	

	
����	��&	'�($#"	#!�&�&)�	#!	 �#!��#!#!,	��&	&7& '�#�!	�!	��&	#!��� ��#�!	
���3&#,�&%	��&	'�($#"	#!�&�&)�	#!	%#)"$�)#!,	#�>		

	
	

������������I��������������	��
	

���� �I�����B�����������������������
	
�#!��&)	��	��&	 &&�#!,	��	��&	��(#!&�	�&$%	�!	�
��	1�!����	

��	�,�&&%>	
	
	

���� �������
�;���������������������
	
	

Page 34



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

@@	

����� �(6,#>$� 643,+ � ).� = ?� �$$* $� )#� :* $&,)%$� ,%� # -6&,)%� &)� �F !8&� B�
�)%.,4 %&,6-��*$,% $$�&)�" �+)%$,4 # 4���
	
�#$	#�& )>	
	
	

����� �%?� �F !8&� B� �)%.,4 %&,6-� � +,$,)%$� @�6-- 4� ,%@� "?� &( � �3 #3, <� ;�
�+#*&,%?��)!!,&&  ��
	
�#$	#�& )>	
	
	

�A�� ��	��������������������
	
	

�A��� �-6+E<6--� � 6+(�� 5 % #6&,)%��#)+*# ! %&� 6%4��+( ! �� 3 -)8! %&�
/������AB���0�G��)��)--)<��
	
��!�&!�)	��	��&	�%%&!%� 	�&'���	!��&%>	
	
�&)�$��#�!	  �%&	 #!	 �&$��#�!	 ��	 ��&	 �!�&)��#"�&%	 �&'���	 I�$�"23�$$	 �&�"�	
�&,&!&���#�!	 :��"��& &!�	 �!%	 �"�& &	 �&.&$�' &!�J	 ����	 
K���
���	 (��	
$#!2&%	 ��	 #!��� ��#�!	 #!	 ��&	 �7& '��	 ��!�#%&!�#�$	 �%%&!%� 	 �&'���	 3�)	
&!%��)&%L	�	(#%%&�	3�)	�''�#!�&%	�)	:�&�&��&%	:���!&�L	������#��	3�)	,#.&!	
���	�	'$�!!#!,	�''$#"��#�!	���	���$#!&	"�!)&!�	���	��&	'��B&"�	��	(&	 �%&>	
	

�9�� ������������������������
	
�#$	#�& )>	
	
	

�C�� ���������������������������������
	
	

�C��� �)4 #%,$,%5� � 6#%,%5� �,$6",-,&?� �6?� �88)#&*%,&, $� G� �F !8&�
�)%.,4 %&,6-��88 %4,F�&)��%# $&#,+& 4�� 8)#&�/������AB���0��
	
��!�&!�)	��	��&	�''&!%#7	!��&%>		
	

���� ��
����
�������������
	
�#$	#�& )>	
	

���� ������
���
��������
	
�#$	#�& )>	
	

���� ������
����I����B����������������������������������������
��	�����
	
�#$	#�& )>	

Page 35



��������	
��

�

��	 �������	���	��������������	
	

@E	

	
���� �I�����B���������������������������������������

	
�#$	#�& )>	
	

	
	

��&	 &&�#!,	&!%&%	��	F>DD	'> >		
	
	

���#��	�����	������	��� �!	
��(#!&��

	

Page 36



� �

�

���������������	

��

��������

�
�


�����
	�
�
���

�
�����
�

�������������	��
�
��������
�����
�
�

�

�����������
�
�����	������

������������

�

����������
���������

��������	������	�����

�
���
�	���	
�������������
����
�������������
������
��� �
���!����"�#����������

�

������������������������������$��%��

�
������ �����������

�

�

!�������"���
�

�����"������&
���

����#	��$�%��	��&����
��

��������$��
�����'� ��

'�����
���%������$�
�

�

�

()� *����
+��*���'+�� �,�

�(�� )
��� ��*���� ������ ���
� �
�� ���*����� �+� ����� ��� ������� ������� ���� ��,�
���� ���
���������$��%����-����)
�.���!�/���#����/*�����$�*����!�"��(�

�
�(�� 0�� �������� ��� ���#� �������#� *��*������ ��� ��.����
� ���� ���� ���*� �1	2��������

������� ���� ���%��#� ���
� -���� )
�.��� ���/*� ���� �
�� $�*���� !�"��(� � 0��
+�������*��*�������**�� �������������� �������� 3"�#�����������+��1	2��������
������� ���� ��������� $��%45� ��#��
��� ���
� �.*��.�����#� �
�� ��.�������� �+� �1	2�
������������������� ��
���+��
��+�������������+��� ���*.����*��*�������**�� ���
�����������������	(�

�
�(6� )
��� ��*���� �
����� ��������#� �
�� #������� *���
�*���� ��� ���.�� �+� �/�
�.���

�**�� ��� *�� ��/���5� ���%�� ��� �.*��.���� �
�� �

�.�� �
��/#
� ���*����� �+�
�����7����
��
��"�'���� ���*��#��
��
�/���#������������
����/�
�����*��������
�.*��.�����#��
��*���������.*�� �������8������
��*��%(�
�

-)� 
.�*'*��'��./+*�.
�

�������������%������
���������
��+�������#91�
�
�(�� �/�,�
������
��
�������������*���#��*
�:(25��#�����������#��������
�����*������

;���
�����+�;� ���*.��������"����������
���/�����������
��
�������������
��+�
-8�
/�� �� <'�#��=� � ��� ��#������� ���.�� ���� 
���������� �+� �
�� ���*����� ���

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 37



� �

�

�����
�����
��
��*��*���������
��/���:�����������
����
��������
���/���
���
-8�
/�� �� *������ ��� ��
���� �
��
��� ��� *��
���� ���
� �
�� ���*����� �+� �������
����������������������������"��������
��*��*�����"�#��������$�� �����(�

�
�(�� 0���
��� �����
���������#������
�����*���������#��������
�����*������;���
����

�+� ;� ���*.���� ���� "������� ��� 
���/�������� ���
� �
�� ���������� �
��+�
-8�
/�� �� <'�#������ �
��=� ��������� �����������
������� ���
/.��������� ���*/��
����� �++�
�� �
�� ��
������ ���
������ ��� *���#��*
� �(�� � ���� �/�
������ �
��
���������� �
��+� -8�
/�� �� <'�#��� ��� �
��=� ��� �8�
/��� ���� ��
�������
��
/.���������.*��.�����
�����
�����(�

�
0)� �. '��'�1���
.�*'*���

6(�� )
�������#�.����� +��� +/����#� �
����.���������+�����������������������������
�

�� ��#� �� ��
� ���� �+� �
�� �.�/��� �� �� ��� +��.� �
�� ����� ��
��*�(� )
��
��.���������+��1	2��������������� �� �� ���
��
��>:��%��+��8*�����/��� ����++�
��
��.*��������.���+��.��
����*�����$��#��..�(��

�
6(�� ;� ���*.���� �+� �
�� *��*������ +��� �
�� � ������ �

�.�� ����� 
��
�� ��� ����


�..��
��� ��� ����(� 0�� ��� �**��*������ ��� �� ���� �
���� ��� �
�� ��#
�� �+� �
��
�� ���*.��������*��
/��.������#�������������*��
��
���
�

�
� ����%���*��
��
���
���
�����.�(�)
������ ���������#�.�����
� ��������.������+�������#��
���
�� ���������+��
���
����������
����+������#/���������?/���.����(��

�
6(6� )
�����������#�.����������.�����
����
���������
�������*�����������������
��

�
?/�������� �+� ����� +��.� �
�� ��/�
��� ��� �
�� "�'�� +��.� .������� �/

� ���
�.*��.�����#�*��%��.*�� �.����(��(�

�
6(2� )
�� �.���.����� ��� �
�� *������#� *�������� ��� �
�� �8����� �+� 
�/���#� ��� ���

�� ���*��� ������ ��� *���� ��
�/��� ��� ��� ��� ���#��� 
���������� +�������� ���

�����/
�� 
�/���#� ��� �
�� ����
1-���� 
������ �+� ��������� $��%� #� ��� �
��
�.��#��#� ��
��� *���(� � )
���� ���� ����� ���/��� ���/��� �
�� 
������������� �+�

�../�����+�
�������� ����
���������/���/����#�����������
�����������+�
��������
���
����
��*��%��
�/������*��.���������/����� �
��#�*��%�/��#�(�

�
6(@� $�� ��/�� ��*����� ����
�*����� �#�����#� �� 
�.*��
���� �� *��%� ���� 
�/���#�

�

�.�(� � )
��� ���� ������ ��� ��� ��
���������� ���
� �
�� ��*�������� �+�
���*�����������+������� ����#���++��������*�
����+��
���

�.�(���
��������
������
�+� *��*����������� 
� ����� �������*�����
�5� �
��"�'������� ��� ������#���� �
��

�/���#� ���.���� ���� �� ���*��#� � �
���� *��*������ ��� *������#� �/�.�������
���#�����#� ��
��+����
���������#���������?/����+���
����
�������:�����#������
����
������/��������*��%��.*�� �.���5�������/����
��*��%�*���������
�*������+�
�.*��.�������������
����/�
��(�

�
6(:� �� ����
����/�
���
������������+�
����������
����.���������+��1	2���������������

��������.����� �
�� ���������� +��.������

/*������� �
������
%��������� +��.��#�
*�����+��
������
�/���#��� ���*.����
���3���*���
�*��4�����#�����+��������+���
���'���/���$��%�/��������/���+� �
��!�/���#�"� ��/���

�/����/�,�
�� ��� �
��
���*�����
����������� ��/������*����������#������+���(�

�
6(A� )
����������������������/������%������/�����
���/������������
����
��+�#/�������

�+� �
��*��%��������*����
/���� �
��

��#���+�/����+� �
�����������"���������+���

Page 38



� �

$��%��*����*�
�� �������#��� ���*��� +���
�/���#����� ��*��
�.����

��#��#�
���.�������?/� �������*�
������#���*�� ����((�

�
6(�� ������������5� �
���� ���� *��������� �.���.����� ��� ��� .���� ��� �
�� 
�#
�����

*��*������ ��
�/���#� *�������������#� �
�� ���#�
� �+� ������� ������� �
��� ��� ���
*��*����� ����� �8���� �������� �
�� $��%� ���� �
�� '�.�
�/��� �/�(� )
��� �����
.���.���� ���%�� ���� 
����� �
��� ��
������� .��� ������ +��.� ����/����� 
���/���
*��
�������+������/#
������

�/���+����
�����������
����
��*��%��
���(��

�
2)�  !�.�� �*3.��%�*��'�
�
2(�� )
��.���� ��������*���������9�
�

<�=� �������*��
�������
��
�����*����7�
���� ���*��
�������
����*����#��+������*�����+��
������7�
���� ������*�*�����+����
��
/���������*������������#�����
�����������"����������

�������*�����+������+��
�������+��.������

/*��������
��������.����
���

�/���#��������� ���*(�

��

2(�� ���� *��
�����#� ���
� �
�� ���*����� ��/��� .���� �
�� ��/�
��� ��/��� ����� ���
������+�� ����/�
��� ��� ������������������
����������/���
����.�������� +��.��
��
+��.����� ���*.��������7��
��������+���*������������/������
�����/���
������/���
��� �8������#� �
�� *��%� ��� �
�� 
����� ����7� ��� ����� ����
��� ����� �+� �����������

�/���#� +��� �
�� ����/#
5� *����������� �@�� /����� �+� �
�

� /*� ��� @�B� �+�
�

�..��������
�/�������++�������(�

�
2(6� ;��*����#��+������*�����+��
���������/������/
���
���/.�����+�����
�.����
���

.�#
�� ��� �� ���*��7� ���/
�� �
�� *��������� 
�*����� ��
��*�� ��� 
� ��� �
��
��.�������� 
����� �������� ��
/����� ��� �
�� ��/�
��7� ��� ����� ��� ���/
�� �
��
*��������� ��
����� ��:� *������#� 
������/����� ��� �
�

� �
�� ���� �� ���*.����
��/��� ��%����#� �� ��������� �
���+�����
���������*���������*����� +��� �.*�� ��#�
���������$��%(�

�
2(2� ;��**��#��
��
/������*����+������*����#��+�����������
���������������+����������

$��%� ���� *�� ����#� �
�� *��������� ��� �8����� �
�� *��%� ��� �
�� 
����� ����7� ����
�����������*����#��+� �
�� �����+��.������

/*�������
�/���#���/���*�����������
��
������ �
����/�
��4�� 
�*����� ��
��*�7� �����/.�����+� 
�.����� ���*��5��/��
��/���.���������#��
���**���/���������8��������������$��%�����
��
���������5���
���#�
������/�
���������
����.������(�

�
4)� 5 �67��+�
�
�
@(�� )
�� *�� ��/�� *��*������ +��� �� *�������
�*� ��� ��#�������� ��������� $��%� ����

��.����
� �1	2� ������� ������� ����� 
�.*��
���� ���� ���� �/�� ��� �� ��*���� ���
�����������;�
�.��������(�

�
@(�� )
��� ��*���� �#����� *��
�����#� ���
� �
�� ��.�������� �+� �1	2� ������� ������7�

�/�
������� �
�� ���%��#� /*� �+� �� ��
���� ���#�� +����������� ��/��� +��� +/�/���
��������
������������7��#��������*���
�*�������
�����*������+��������?/�����+���
�� ���*.��������
��*�������
�*5��/���
����
��+�������
������������*������/������
�/�,�
�� �����+/��
�����*���� ����������(� 0������
�*������
����������*������+�������
��/��� ��� ��#�������� ��� �

�����
�� ���
� �
�� ������ ����#�.���� ������#��

Page 39



� �

�
���� ��� 
��� ��� ��.���������� �
��� ����������� ����+���� ��� �
�� ��/�
��� ����
*�� ����(��

�
@(6� )
��%�����?/���.�����+����
���

�.��
�.*�����91�
�

�=� ��
������ .�����*������#� +��� �
�� ��������� $��%� ����5� ����#��#� ��#��
��� %���
�����������*�������������������������
����
�������#������������,�
�� �(�
�

�=� -8���������+����������$��%�����
���������.�����
��'�.�
�/����/����������#9�
�

•� ;�.���������+��1	2���������������

•� ���**��#�/*��+�����������������,�
��������
��'�.�
�/����/��
�


=� ��������
���������*/���
��*����*�
�(�
�

�=� 0.*�� �.��������*��%������*�����+�
�������(�
�

�=� $�� ������ �+� �� ���#� �������� ��../����� �

���� ������� <C'����/��� ������D=�
��,�
��������
��*��%(�
�

+=� ���� 

��#��#� ���.�� ��� *���� �+� �
�� '����/��� ������5� ��� ��*��
�� �
���� ���
���������"���(�
�

#=� ����.�8������/����������������� ���*.����*�� ����#9�
�

•� �� ���#����+�@�B�<.���./.�6@B=�������������++��������
�/���#��/�,�
��
��� �
�� � ����������� �+� #����� ���� ���� ��*��������� +��� ��
�.�� #���������
�
��/#
������ ��/��(�

•� ��.���./.��+�6�B� +�.����
�/���#��
��������� ���/���5� �
��/#
�����#��
�
�

����
�.*���������
��
����/�
��4��*������#�*���
�����
�/���#(�

�

=� ����������� �+� ���:� 
������/������ ��� +����
�� �.*�� �.����� ��� �
�� *��%� ����

�*�����+�
�������5����������������
�#
����5�
����
�������/
������*��.����(�
�
@(2� )
����*�������������
�*�������*��#��..���+�
���/�����������
� �
��
�../�����

��������%�
����������*�����+��� ���*��#� �
�������������
�������#��+�����������
��/��(�

�
@(@� �� +/��
��� ��*���� ���� 
���������� ��� �������� ��� �� �.���� ���	� �������#� ���

�.*��.�����#� �
�� *��*����� ��� ��.����
� �1	2��������������5� ������+���#� 
�*�����
����/�
�������
���������
��� �
������/��������
� ��������*�����+� �
�����*�����
��
��*�� +��� �
�� ������ ��� ��� �� ���*��(� � )
���� ���� /�#��
�� ��� �
��� ��.�� ���
�

�� �� �
�� ��.�������5� ����
����� �
�� ����� �������� 
���.� ��� �/�� ����*���#�
���	� �
�� ���
%� 
��� ��
�.�� �
�� ���#��� �+� ��#������� �?/������� ���� ��
���
����������
�����
�.���
���/�,�
���+�����/*�� ����������1��
������
� ��/��+��.�
�
���#��/*(�

�
@(:� ;�.���������+��1	2��������������������

�� ������������
�������(�
�
@(A� )
��/#
��
���*���������
/�������*����
/���������
�$�*����!�"������%�*��
�����

�
�� *��������� ���/��� �+� �
�� �� ���*.���� ���� ��#���������� �

�.�5� ���
� ���

Page 40



� �

�/������*������#�+��.����%�#/����
����������/���*���������
���/..��5�������#�
�/�� �
�� %��� *���
�*���� +��� �
�� .�����#� ���� ��
������ �+� ���� 
�/���#� ���

����
��������
��
��*��,�
��<�**����8��=E�

�
@(�� )
���
����
�������
%��
��*���������+�������
�/���#�����
��*��*��������������9�

���������"�����
�����
��

��#��#����.������
/����������
����5������
����/�
�
�������� +���*������+��1	2�����������������,�
���� ����������������������� ���-����
)
�.���F�����
�*(�

�
@(	� �� �������+���A�/������++���������������������� �����.�������
�.���
� �������

�������� *�� ����� ��� ��*��
�� �
���� ����� ��� �� ���/��� �+� �
�� ������ �

�.��
�� �� ��#��������������(�

�
8)� %��%�' !�
�
:(�� )
���*��*�������
�/�����
����*�
%�#����+���/�
������������������������������

���-����)
�.���!�/���#����/*(��0�����������������+�
���������
���� ���*.�����+�
�@��
�.����+��
�

� /*� ��� @�B������ ��� �++�������(� � 0�� ��� ����
�*����� �
��� �
��
�� ���*.���� ����� #�������� �� ��
����� ��:� *��.���� <�/�,�
�� ��� *������#�

������=��
�������� ���/��� �������#��+�
�������.�����+��/

�#��������#�����
�����
����
���.*�� �.����������#�����������+����������$��%(�

�
:(�� )
��*��*�����*��������� �� ��������
��$�*����!��
���
��/���.��������/��������

����
���� ���*.�����+����������"��������-����)
�.���!���
����/��������
����
��������������������5��� ���*��#��
�����������
��������,�
����������������
����
������
�*(�

�
:(6� )
���
���������*�
%�#���
�.*����9�
�

�=� ����������������/�
�E������+���-)!���� ���*.����+��.�����*�����+��1	2�
�������������(�

�=� ������������������
�E��
��*��������������
��*��%����*�����+���
��+�#/���#�
�
��*��%5���*��
��#��
���������������<
=������7������� *�� ����#� �
��
*��%����
��� ���������
��'�.�
�/����/�������(�

<
�=�� ���������"��������� 1� �����
/�������� ������������$��%�/���� +��� 

��#��#�
���.���
�

�����������*�� ���������
��-)!���� ���*.����

�
:(2� )
�� �

�.�� ��� 
�.*��8� ���� ��?/����� �� �/.���� �+� �
������ ��� ��� ��%���

��?/���������������/�������� ���������� ���(�
�
:(2(�� )
�� ������� ������� 3��/�
4� ����� ��� �
�� .���� �����#
�+������� ���.���5� ���� ���

.�8�.���� �
�� �� ��� �+� �� ���*.���5� -���� )
�.��5� �
�� *��*����� /���.����
������ ��/��� ��
��*������ �
�� ��,�
���� ����(� � )
�� ����� ����� �� �� ��� ���
�**��8�.������ 
��+� �
��� �

/*���� ��� �
�� +��.��� �1	2� �� ���*.���� <����
��.����
��=(�

�
:(2(�� )
�����������"���� ����� ��� 
/�������� *���� �+���������� $��%(� � 0�� ��� *�� ����� �
��

�����+����
���*�����

��#��#����.�(��0���������������
����
������������ ���*���
���
�/���#����$�*�����!�"��(��!��� ��5���+�����
���
���*��
�������/.����
�+� ���/��� ����� ����� �����/����(� � G������� �� $������#� 
������� ����� ����� ��� ���
�������� 
� ����#� ���� �� ���*.���� ��� 
�/���#(� � ��
�����5� ����/�����

���/������������������������/������%������ �
�� ������+��*����*�
��*��%� �����

Page 41



� �

���� ���� ��*�� ������ ��� ���� �/�� ��� :(2(6� ������ ���� ���� ���*������ ��� �
���

�������������
��/���?/����������
������ ���*��
����������(� �)
�� �
���� ���/��
�������� ��� �
�� ����� �+���������� $��%� ����#� �
�� �/�,�
�� �+� �� 
� ������ 
���� ���
'����������/#
� �+� ���.���� �
��� ��/��� ����� ��� ��� ����� ��� ��+���� ����� ���
�� ���*.���(� ��/

�
� ������������ ������/
������*�����+� �
���������/������+�

� ������� +��.����� 
���� ��� �
�� �������� '������ ��/�
��� ��� �
�� �	��4�(��
���.���� ����++�
��
��� ����
�� ��� �
�� �����������+�����'����������/#
������/

�
.������(�

�
:(2(6� )
�� ������� ������� 3����
4� ����� ��*�������� �
�� ��
��� 
��+� �+� �
�� ����� �
���

�/���������������
��+��.����1	2��� ���*.���(� �)
��*��*�����
���� ���+��� �
���
�����������*�����+��
����
��+�#/��������+����������$��%������+���
�������+���������
��� �**��*������� �/�� �+� �
�� !�/���#� "� ��/�� �

�/��� ��� �
���������� G/���
�������.�������������*�����+��
��*��%����*/���
��*����*�
�(��!��� ��5��
������

����������� ��� �� �/.���� �+� +�
����� �/������� ��� :(2(�� ����#� ����� ���
�����+�
������� ��� �
�� ����� ��� 3��*��
��4� ����� +��� �
��� ����� +��.� �
�� 3$��%4� ���
���������"���(� �)
��������+� ����� �������� ��%���� ������ �
���/�,�
���+�$������#�
�����������+����
������
�/���#��

�.��*��
�����#����
�����������������%�����+�
�
����������� ������������+�*��%�����(���

�
:(@� $���������;� ���*.�����

�.��
�
:(@(�� F++�
�������
� �
��"�'��
� ���8*������ �
���*������+��� ��%��#�+������� �
��+�����

*
����� �+� �
�� ��*��
�.���� 
�/���#� +��� ������� ������(� � -������� *
����� 
� ��
������������ ����������++��������
�.��� <��A� �������������� �����.����������
������� �����(� �)
�� ������ ��.�����#� ������������������������������"����
� ��
����� �
�� �/�,�
�� �+� �� 
�*�
���� ������.���� �� �� ��#� �
����/�
��4��$������#�
�++�
���������
��*��*����� +����@������
�.�����*�������� �
��.�8�./.���%����
�
����� �� ���*.���� ��%���� ��� #���� �**�� ��� ��� �
�� 
����8�� �+� �
�� ������

��
�����������
�������/��*���
����+����
�����
�������.*�
��/*����
�.(�

�
:(@(�� �����������/���++��������
�/���#�*���
�����%������

�� ��6@B��+�����
�.���

��� ������ ��� �++�������(� �F+� �
���� A�B�����#� ����� ���� 6�B� �����.������� <���
�
�����������
�*=(����������#� ����
������������.�����
��
������������
�/���#�
����� ��� �
�� ����/#
� �
�� ������ 
��� ��/#
�� ��� �8*����� �
�� *������������� �+�
�

�� ��#�@�B��+��

�..������������++���������
��� ���*��
��
����(��0���
��

����8�� �+� �
�� ������ /����� 
������������� 
���� �
�� ������ ������ ���/�������� �
��
��������������
�����/�������#9�

�
)������++��������������;��� �����+��.��@�������5�6@B��++�������9�

�

�
�

��	����+	���� *	�����������
+	����

������ ������"����
+	����

�������	�
���
���
�����
������	�
�
������ ��A� ��� ����

���������������
�++��������
�.���
<6@B=� 6A� �:� @6�

��� !� (22� 9:� -2(�

Page 42



� �

$��
����#����
������
+��.����#�����	2�
<��
�/���#����
�����
������=�

40;� � (48;�

�
�

)������++��������������;��� �����+��.��@�������5�@�B��++�������9�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
:(@(6� !��� ��5� ���������� ���*.����.���
� �� ���������� ����� ��� �
��
����8���+�

�
���� ���.���4������*���
��*�������� ��� ���.���+���
����!�/���#�����������


��#�������
����
/������+����/��(��)
���.���.����#������/**�������

�.���
�������������� ���������
���������+�*��*�����������#�����������
����������/*����
��B� �+� .��%��� �� ���� ���� ���
� �������� 
� ��#� ��� .���� �
��� ���� ����4��
��
/����� �+� ���/��(� � �*� /����� �
���� *��*������ ���� "�'� 
�.��� ��/��� 
� ��
���������������#���������� ���(�

�
:(@(2� �� ��� �
�� ���� #����� ��#�.�� 
������������� �+� �
��� .�#
�� ��� ���� �������

�/������ �
�� ���� �����#�.����� �(�(� ���
�/�� #����� �/**���� 
��� �����
/������%��(� � )
��*��*����� ��� ��� ���%��� �� ���*.���� �+� ��� �
�� ������ �+� �@��

�.������
�@�B��++�������(��0�������
�#�������
���+����
���

�.�������� ������
������ ����� ����� ��� ��� ���� ��� � ��� �� ���#��� �� ��5� 
��� ��� �
���� ����� ���

��������������������
���� ���.���4��*��*�������B��+�.��%�������(��)
��.�8�
�+�/���������
�*�����
�.*�����9����8�0�����/�����7�:�8�������7���8�6����7�@8�2�
���7�������8�@�����/����(�

��
�
:(:� )
��� �

�.�� ��%��� ���
� �
�� �������� �� ���*.���� ��� ��*��
�� �
�� 
�.���

��
������ ��� *���� �+� �
��������� ������� �

�.�� 
�/��� ���/��� ��� �
�� ���� ���� �+�
�������� �2�� ���� �:6� ���� �++�������� 
�.��� ��
�/���#� �
���� ��+������ ��� ���
*���#��*
�@(	�

�
:)� ��!.��1�'.��*���(<8�
�
A(�� )�� �

�� �� �
�� *��*����� ��� ��#�������� ��������� $��%� ��� ��� �� ���#��� �
���

$������#�#�����
������/����������
���������+�>6(6.�.���/���.���������� �������(�
�
A(�� )
��5� 
�.������ ���
� ���� ��
��*�� <��� �/������� �������=� ���#� +��
��� ��� �
��

�

�.�5��
�/���+�
����������
�.*��
���� ��*��%���#���������(�

�
�

��	����+	���� *	�����������
+	����

������ ������"����
+	����

�������	�
���
���
�����
������	��
�
����� ��A� ��� ����

���������������
�++��������
�.���<@�B=�

�
@��

�
�6�

�
A@�

��� !� (49� (<2� -80�

$��
����#����
������
+��.����#�����	2�
<��
�/���#����
�����
������=�

89;� � (=<;�

Page 43



� �

�
A(6� 0�� �������
�*������
��� �
�����#���+�#/����+�>6(6.���/������.����/*��+�*������#�

#�����
������/������������� +��.� �
��� �������� ������*������#��**�� ��� <!�/���#�
�� ���*.���=� ��� ����� ��� *����������� >�(26.� �
�

� �
�/��� ������ � ��� �
��

�.��#���������� �
���� ���*��� +��� �
������G���� ���H/������ �.*��.����� �
��

��������
�����������
���(�)
��*
����#�����+/����#��+��
��*��%��.*�� �.����
���%������
���+������*�������/*����
������ �����+����/.�����+��

�.��(�

�
=)� %��>.���
.!*3.�,�
�
�(�� -����)
�.�������� ��%�� �
�� ����� ��� ��#�������#� �
�� +��.��� �����#�.��������
�

�
����/�
��������
��+��+��
��"�'�(��
�
�(�� -����)
�.����������������.���#���
���++��������
�/���#����������� ��������

�
���8�����������������������������*/�

�����
��+���
�����+��
����/�
�������(�
�
�(6� $�*����!�"����������������.���#�� �
���++��������
�/���#� ���������� �����

����
�����������"��������5����������*/�

�����
��+���
�����+��
����/�
�������(��
�
�(2� )
��"�'�������,�������*��
/�����*�������+����
��
�����/
������+��
���

�.������

�
�� ���� ���� �+� �
��.��%��� 
�/���#(� � )
��"�'������ 
/�������� ���
/����#� �
���
��������
�)��+����!�.��������
����������/�����������#��
����
���
�.*���������
����
���� ���*����+��

�*���������.��
�������#����(�

�
�(@� 0+� �
�� "�'�� 
������ �#���� ��� �� ,����� *������� ���
� ���� +���� ��� *��
/���

����*������������#�.�����+����
�������*�
�� �������(�
�
�(:� )
����/�
��������*��
/����
�����%���������#�����
��

��#��#�����/�����
����������

+�
������+����
��*��%�/�������#��
��+/����#�#���������+��.��
��*��,�
��+�8���/�����
�����:��#���.���(�

�
�(A� -���� )
�.��� ����� *��� �
�� ��/�
��� �� ��*����� ��� �8

��#�� ��� 
� ��� �
��

>:��5���� ��.�������� 
����� �
��� �/.� ��� 
������������� �+� �
�� �#���.���� ���
�����+����
��+���
�����������������
�������(�0+��
�������
��������������+���������
�
����/�
��� ��
����� ���� ��� *��
���� �
��� �
��� �/.������ ��� ��*������� ���-����
)
�.��(��

�
�(�� 0�� ��� �#����� �
��� �
�� *��,�
�� ����� ����� ���  ������ �+� �
�� �������� ��
��*�� ���� ��

�/++�
��������:�
������/�������������/��������/���:�+����
��*��%��.*�� �.�����

������#��������(�

�
�(	� -����)
�.�������$�*����!�"��������,�������+/����
��*���/
������+�����/������

*������#��**��
������+����
��� �������

�.��/*����������#���+��.����#���.����
���
��
����/�
���+����
������ �����+��
���

�.�(�

�
�(��� -����)
�.����������./������/���� +/��������������*������#��**��
������ +��� �
��

����
����������(�
�
�(��� $�*���� !�"��� ����� ��*�������� +/��� �� ��������� *������#� �**��
������ +��� �
��

��/�
����������(�
�

Page 44



� �

�(��� �������/�������� ��/��.��������������#��������������
��*������5�����
��������
��
�.�� ���/.*������ ����� ��� 
��
/������ ��� �� +/���� �*��� ���%� ������ +��� ���
�
�����(� �/

� �����/���  ��/�� #��������� ��� �
�� .����� ����� ��� *������� ��� �
��
"�'������
����/�
���/*�����
��*���+��������+�
��������������*������#��**�� ��(��

�
�(�6� )
����/�
���������<���������"���=������ ����/�,�
�� ���
� ������� ���+� �/���+�

�
�� '������ "����/���� ����� �
�����5� '�)!� 
� ������� ���� ��� /��� �
��
*��*�������� ���� *���� �
����+�+��� ���� */�*���� ��
��� �
���+��� �*��� �*�
�� ����


��#��#� ���.�(� )
�� ����+��� �+� �
��� 
� ����������  ����� ��� �
�� '������
����/#
� �+� ���.�������  ���/�� �+�)
�� '������ "����/���� ����� <)����+��� �+�
$��*����� ��
=� F����� �		�(� )��.�� ����� ����� ��� ��� �#����� ���
� ���.���� ���
���������
�������+��.��
��
� �����(�����
��������������������1*�� �����
���*���
�*�
������
��+��.���
�/���#����������
��������+��
��*��%���,�
��������
��
����5�
��� ��� �8*�
���� �
��� ����� �����+�� �
�� 
� �����5� �/�,�
�� ��� '�� ���.���4��
�#���.���(�)
���.�������������?/���������/�����*�����������*����(�

�
9� �*�*�7�
�

*����  ������$� ���
���
����

	(�� �/�.������� �+� �/������ *������#� �**��
������ ���� ���������
�**��
������������*�
���+��
������
����������(�

'�����*���#������

	(�� G��.����#���.�������������
��*������(� )��#������

������

	(6� "�
��*���+� *��.������� �
����/�
��� +��.�-����)
�.��� ���

��������������+���+���
�����������������
������
����������(�

)��#������

������

	(2� "����/����� ���#�����*������#�*��.������(� �$��.����/�����
�(�6�

'�����/..����������

	(@� "����/������+����/������
�'�����.�������
� ������ I/��������

	(:� $/���
� 
���/�������� �������� ��� �
�� �� ���*.���� �+� �*���
�*�
��������������"����

�/�/.�������

�
(<� ����.��'��1��?.��?*.1�1*� ��* !��11*�.��
�
��(�� )
��� ��*���� �/������� *��*������ +��� �
�� ���� ���*.���� �+� ������� ������� ����

��������� $��%� +�������#� �
�� �������� ��*���� ��� �������� ��� ;�
�.���� ����5� �
��
.�,������.������+��
�

������/����������*���#��*
�@(�

�
��(�� )
�����������/.�����+�*�������������#��+�
����+����
���� ���/���������#�+��.��
��

*��*����������
�����*�����
�

������/������������(��
�
��(6� ;��*������+�'����0���������<"�
�..����������(�=�
�

Page 45



� �

��(6(��)
����*����*��*������
�����*������+�����������/����������*���#��*
�:(������:(6�
��������
��-����)
�.������/*(�)
����������*������������������������������
���
�
�� 
���������+� �
�� �@��
�/���#�/����� 
������*��#������(� ���� �
��� ���#�� �
��
 ��/��������+� �
������������������� �������5����� ��� ��� �.*������� �
��� ����
��� ��
 ��/������� ���� ��������� ��� ������ �
��� �
�� +����
����  ��������� �+� �
�� � ������
�

�.�� 
��� ��� +/���� ��������(� )
����  ��/������� ����� ��� ��*������� ��� �
��
*������#�*��.�������� ��������+����
��������

�
��(6(��)
�� 
�/���#� �� ���*.���� ����� ����� ��� ���*����� �+� ��� -���� )
�.��� ���/*�

����������������/��� ��/������.������
������#
��/*��
�� ��/���+��
��*������#�

��������#����������
���� ���*.���� ��/���+����
��
���++��������
�.�������
�
�� 
�.��� ��� ��� ����5� �#������ �
�� �� ���*.���� 
����� ���� ��
����� ��:�
����#������(�)
�����������
��
/�����������+/�����*������%������5��������
�/#
����
�������*�����������?/����+���
��� ��/������
������#�5�����**��8�.����������.����
�
�/������/������%��(�

�
��(6(6�)
�� ��
��*�� +��� !"�� ����� ����� ��� +/���� /������ *�� ����� �
��� ��� ��� /�������� +���

��#���������� */�*����(=(� 0�� �
�/��� ��� ������ �
�� +����� >:��%� 
�*����� ��
��*��
��/���
� ��������������������+/�����.����������1	2��������������(��

�
��(2� �**��*�������� �+� '���� +��.� �
�� !�/���#� "� ��/�� �

�/��� ��� �
�� ��������

G/���
�
��(2(��0�����*��*������
���*�����+��
��
�������������+��1	2����������������
�/������/�����

+��� ����/�������*��%�/��� <*���#��*
�6(A=(�)
���.��� ��?/��������**��*��������
/������ �
�� �

�.�� 
��� �����+�� �
�� ��?/���.����� �+� ��
����� �6� !�/���#� �
��
�	�@�����
�

�
�����
�������
�����.�������
����
��!�/���#�"� ��/���

�/���
�����
��������������������+�������������**��*������(��

���
��(2(��0+��
����������*�������������
������������������������**��*�������+��.��
��!"��

����
����������G/��(��
���
�/���
� ����#��+�
����+����
�����.*��
�������+������
�
�
�� !"�� ���� �
�� �������� G/��� ��� �� 
����?/��
�� �+� �
�� �.*�
�� �+� �
��
!�/���#��/�����������.(�!��� ��5�����**��*�������� ��%���*��
�����
����+����
 ��/�5��+��
������
����+�������������.����5��
����
���.*�
�������/����(�)
����������
+��� �
�� 
����+����  ��/������#������������� ��.����� ���� �/������� ��� *���#��*
�
:(2(6(5� ���
�/#
� ��� ��� ���������� �
��� �
���  ��/�� ��� ����*��������� 
��+��.��� ���
���/����
����
����������G/��������������
����������1#���#�+����
�����������������
+/��������

��#��(�

�
��(@� ��
�������:�G/����#�
�
��(@(����.������
�/���������
����
�����������$��%���#����������*��*������������������

+�������� �+� �/++�
����� ��
����� ��:� ����/�
��� ���� ��
/���5� ���� ���.��%��� +���
�
�� *��,�
�� <*���#��*
� A=5� ��� ��������� ��� ���� 
�*����� ��
��*��� ��������(� 0�� ���
���������� �
��� ��� 
����� ������� +����������� ���%� ���� ��
/����� ��� �
�� *��%�
���� ���*.���� ��� 
�#
����� ����/��� <*���#��*
� 6(	=� /����� ���� +/����#�
�#���.������������*��
�(�

�
��(:� $��
/��.����������
���������
�
��(:(��)
�� �

�.�� ����� ��� /������%��� ��� ���� ��*������ ���.����(� )
�� "�'�� �����

,������� ��� ���*�������� +��� �
�� *��
/��.���� �+� �
�� 
�/���#� ���.���� �+� �
��

Page 46



� �

�

�.�5��
���� �
���/�
����������� *��
/��� �
�����%�� ��� �
��*��%(����� ��1#���#�

������+����� +/�/���
���/��������./������.��� +��.����
����8�����#� ����/�
��5�
���./��� ���� �8*������ ��
/�������� �� ���/��� �+� ��#�������������
� �
�� '������
����/#
� �+� ���.���� ��� ���*�
�� �+� �
�� 
� ������ �
��� ���� ��
������� +��.� �
��
'������"����/���������<*���#��*
��(�2=(��

�
(()� ����.��'��1��?.� ''*'� ����?*.1�.@.�+�*3.��!.7 !��
�
��(�(� )
����*����*��*����� ��������*������ ���+�
�������� �
�����������������������������

$��%��

�.�5��
�

�����8*�
����������� ����@������
�.��(�
�
��(�(� )
����/�
���.���
� ��*��������*/��/���
���

�.�5�
� ��#���#���������������1

����#�*����������
��������+��
��'�
����� ���.�����
������(��)
����/�
���
���
*���������������
��#��
�

����
�����������%�������*��.�����
����
���5��
���.�
�
��� �� ����.������ ����� ����#� �+� )����� !�.����5� *�� ����� �
�� �
����� ��� ����
��
������� *��
������� ��� ����/��(� � )
��� *����� ��
�/���� �
�� �������� ��� ��
/��
�8*�����/��� ��� ��� #� �� +����
���� ��������
�� ��� ��� ������ ����� �����#�.����� ���
�#���.��������
�������
���*�����(� �)
��*�����.�������8��
����� ������������
��5����+����
������+����+9�<�=��
���
�����������*�����+�)�����!�.����7����<�=�����
�������*������� ��������� ���)�����!�.����(� � 0���8��
����#� �
��*����5� ��#����
./������
�������
����../�����$���(� �)
����/�
���./��������
� ����#�������
�
�� �/����
�� */����
��� ��� �
�� ��
������� �+� ������ ��� /��� �+� ����1����#�
$������<�
��J�/����
�J=������
����
��*��*������
��������
�������������
���(���

�
��(6(� 0�� �
�� ��../����� $���5� /����� �
�� �
�.�� C�� ������ $��
�� )�� '� �D5� �
��

$�������
�*�
���������+�������/.�����+�*�����������
�

���
�/����
��+�������#�E�

��������
������
������	��
���

���	��
���	�����	��
��
�����������	��

��
����	�
�� ���� �����

� 	���
�� ��� ���	�
�� ���� 
���
� ����
�� �
�
���
�� ��
��
��������������
������
�����	�
���

��������
�� ���	���
�		� �
�� ��

� ��
����� ��
���	� ������ ����
�� �����
���������������	�
�		�	�����
��
��	�����
�����������
��

�
0�� ����*��� ��� 
��
�/��� �
����� �/

���+/�� *��,�
������� �

�� �� �
������.������
�
��� �
�� ��/�
��� ��� �.*������� ��� ��
����� �� �+� �
�� '�
��� �� ���.���� �
��
����������#�#������
��*��,�
�(�)
��*��,�
����/������������
�������������
��
��
����/�����#/����
����+������������ �(��

�
��(2(� )
�����*������+� ������������#���������
�*�/��������
��-/��*����*��
/��.����

��#��������(� � !��� ��5� �
����� �
����/�
��� 
��� *��*����� ���� �/����� �������#� ���
�

�� ��#� �� *��*��� 
�..��
����  ��/�� ��� ���*�
�� �+� �
�� ���*����5� ��� ��� �����
�.*������� ��� � ���� �� *��������� 

�����#�(� � 0+� �� ���*����� ��� .���� ��� ���
/���� ��/�5��
����++����
�����������
��
�..��
���� ��/�������
���
�/��������
/���� ��/��.���������.�����������#�+��������� ���
����/�
����*�������
�����%�
�+�

�����#���������
����� ���*�������
��#��/�����
����/

���#�+���������������
�
�

��++�����-�����(�0�������������������
��
���*������
����/�
����������?/������
 ��/������������
��������/������
���������+��
�� ��/��������?/���.����������/��
��� �
�� )�

��
��� �**����8� ��� �
�� ���
/���� �:��6� )
�� �������� ;��*�����
���������������
�.*����
�����
��
����..���������../��
�������������������
-��.��������������+�'���������/�����#�����$/���
��/�
�������(��

Page 47



� �

�
��(@(� )
����/�
��� ��� �����
�� �� +/����+����� ���*��#� �
��*��%� �
��/#
���
�������:�

�#���.����(���
������
����
�������:��#���.�������������#����������
���/�,�
��
�+�-/��*����*��
/��.������
���
��+/����
� ���������
�� ��������
��+/����
�����
����������*�������
�
�����
����5�*��+���������������/**�������
����/�
���
����������������/����
������
�.*��������
�*/���
�*��
/��.����������*�
���+��
����

�����
��(� �)
���8*�����/������
��
��
�����
����5�*��+���������������/**������
./��� ��� �/�,�
�� ��� *��*��� 
�.*�������� ��� �

�����
�� ���
� �
�� ���� ����
��#���������������/�
���+����
����*��
��/���(�

�
��(:(� )
�� ���*����� �+� *���� �+� ����� +��.��#� ��������� $��%� ����� ��� �/�,�
�� ��� �
��

*�� ������� �+� ��
����� ��6<��=� �+� �
�� '�
��� �� ���.���� �
�� �	A�5� �
�

�
*�� ������
����/�
������*����#��+��*����*�
����������
�/��+������� �������#�����
�����������������������
���������#�������,�
������.��������
�����*����(��)
��
��*����*��*������
����/

�
���/����������%��*��
�(���������*����������
� �����
���+��������
�������������������������.�����
����?/���.������+���
�������6(�

�
��(A(� ��� �
�� ����� ����������������� ��� 
���� +��� 
�/���#� */�*����5� ��
����� 6�� �+� �
��

!�/���#��
���	�@���?/������
����
����/�
������
���
� ���*�
�+�
�
�������+��.�
�
����
��������+�����������
�����*����5�����
����
�����*�����+�������
��������+��
��
#������� 
�/���#� 
�������� ���/��� ��� �
�� ��
������� �+� �����(� � $/��/���� ���

������� -6(�5� #� ��� ��� �
�� ��
������� �+� ������ ��� �
�� �������� !�/���#�
��������� ���@5� �
�� ��/�
��� .��� ���*���� �+� �
�� ����� *�� ����� ��� ��� +��� �����

������������(�

�
��(�(� ��������
������62�!�/���#��
�� �	�@��� ��
��� 
�/���#��/�
������.��� ���� �/��

����
�����/
��*/���
� ����������� �����������*����*�
������ ������
?/��������
�
�.(� )
��� *����� .��� *��.��� �
�� ��/�
��� ��� /��� ������� ������� ��/�
� ���
��*�� ����+����
��������+�*��%��*�
�(�0+��
���*��������������
� ����
��+���������
�

�.�� �
��� �
�� ��/�
��� .��5� */��/���� ��� ��
����� ���� �+� �
�� '�
���
�� ���.�����
���	A�5��**��*�����5� +�������*/�*����+����
�

� �
����/�
��� ���
�/�
������5����� ������
�

������#�� ��� �
����/�
��� �
��� ������ ���#�����?/�����
+��� �
��*/�*����+����
�

� ��� ���
���(� � 0�� �
���
���� �
������������������/�
������
�
��� ���*���������
����+���
�/���#�*/�*�������������/���������1*�� ����+��� �
��
������+�*��%��*�
����������**��*�������+����
������*/�*���(�

�
(-)� ��.����.��? �!.�'����'*
.� �*��'�
�
��(�� )
��� �

�.�� ����� 
������/��� ��� 3F��� )����� !�.����4� ��,�
�� ��� �
��/#
�


������/���#�������/
��#����?/�������7��
�../�����
�
�����7�����������#�
����#�

�../������������
�*(�

�
��(�� )
�� �������#� �+� ���� 
�/���#� ���� *����
/������ �
�� *�� ������ �+� �++��������


�/���#� ����� ������� ��� .�����#� �
�� ������ �+� +�.������ ��� ��.*�����7�
� ��
������7� ��� /��/������� �

�..�������(� � )
�� �

�.�� ����� ������� ����
�����.*�� �����
������+�����/
�/����
��/#
��.*�� �.�����������������$��%(�

�
��(6� 0�� ���.�� �+� .�����#� 
�
������ ��,�
�� ��5� �
�� �.*�� ��� *��%� ����� *�������

��
������� �**���/������� +��� ������
����5� ���� �
�� 
���/�������� *��
���� ���
�� ���*� �
�� *��*������ ����� ��#�#�� ���������� ����� �.*�� ��#� +�
�������� +��� �
��
��
���
�../����(�

�

Page 48



� �

��(2� F��
�../����� �������
�*� �
���

�.��*�� ����� �
���**���/����� ���.���� ���#�
�������#� �8*�
�������� �+� �
�� 
�../����� ��� ���%� ���
� #��/*�5� ���� ������ �
��
!�"��5� ��� ���
� ��#�#��#� ���
� �
�� 
�../����� ��� ����� ��� *�� ����#� ����
�**���/�������+���*����
�*�����(��

�
��(@� )
�� ��#���������� �+� ��������� $��%� ���� ������� ������� 
��� ����� �/�,�
�� ��� ��


���/��������*��
���������#���
%��������(��)
����/�
��5�$�*����!�"�������
-����)
�.��������
��������� �� ������'�������"�#���������4��;� ���*.����
G��.����%� +��� �
�� ����5� */����
��� ��� ����(� )
��� ��
�/���� ������� �� */���
�

���/�������� ���� +��.��� �
�� +��.����%� +��� �
�� �8�����#� 
�/���#�
�� ���*.���������
�������<�(#(����������
��+��������������"���=(��)
���
���
��+��.����
��*��*�������#�����������+��
��$��%������������������(�

�
(0)� �*'6�� � 7.�.���
�
�6(�� )
�� .���� ������ �+� ���%� ���� ���/��� ���/���#� 
���/�������� ��� �
�� *��*�����

<*������#9� 
�#
���� 
���/��9� ���� �*��� �*�
�� ���*����=(� � 0�� ���.�� �+� �
��
/���.���� �� ����+� ��
��*���

�� ����� �
��� ����/�,�
�� ��� �
���� ���.���4��*�����
+���+����
��#������++��������
�/���#(��

�
(2)� '+'� *� 5!.� ��*���1��� �7�..�.��.�3*����.���
�
�2(���� ;��*�����������"�'�$�������
�*��������������
������ ���*.�����������+���
�#
�

����������/������������5������25������������
������#������������#������*�
�5�
������� +�
�������� ���� ��
��
��#� �
�� �**�����
�� ���� /��� �+� �
�� *��%� ��� ���
�����
�� ������/�������+��������.�����(��
�

�2(��� 0.*�� �.����� ��� �
�� *��%� �
�� �

�.�� +�
��������� ����� ���� ��
�������
����� ������5��
������
�../�����+�
������������+��������*��

��������
�/��#����

����
���� 
�../����� ���
� �.*�� ��� ���%��#� ���� 
�
���#� ��/���� �
��/#
� �
��
*��%(��

�
(4)� ��*�.� �
�
*'��
.���.
+��*���*�%!*� �*��'�
�
�@(�� ;� ���*��#��
���������/�����������
�����*���������������������.� ��#�����
���3
���

�*��4�+����������
������
� ��/�(����+������.���������
��+��.������
%������������
�������������
���/�,�
���+��?/�����#������8����� ������/*�� ����
� ��/���
���
�.*�
���� /*��� ��,�����#� ���������� ���� *��%� /����(� � �/���?/������ ���
��.�������� �
����
� �����������.*��������#�������#��/*�� ���.� �� �
�
����
�/�������
������
�����������(�

�
�:(�� .11*�.��,�'� �.�.���
�
� ������*�
�+�
���������
�����*���(�
�
�
�
�
�
��������������������������������������������������������

�

!�������A5��B
��#	��%�����C�#�����	��&������������	�����&������������

Page 49



� �

� �
���������	��
���
����
���	�����
��
�
�����

������
������
��
��
������
�����������

�
�����������������
�
����
�
�
�	���
��

�

�$�� ��/������������*��������
��������������������������$��%�
�

�

��
�&�������"$�

�

�������������������������
 ��
�!�����"����#�����

$%&'�(��"���)��

��
$�*����!�������������

�
������
�

�

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



6.6m

Thomas Road

H
o
u

s
e

Industrial Estate

8

Towin
g P

ath

5.4m

1
6

5

6

Lim
ehouse C

utTHOMAS R
O

7

4

TCB

U
P
P
E
R

5

10

1

1
3

Bartlett Park

5.6m

COTALL S
TREET

Anglesey

6.7m

2
2

Ps

15

2
3

69 71

7

39 4135

29

14

LB

of Christ

A
b
b
o
tts

 W
h
a
rf

2
0

St Sa

B
A

R
T

L
E

T
T

 C
L

O
S

E

use

S
T
A

IN
S

B
Y

 R
O

A
D

8
8

The Celestial Church

Bartlett Park

1
8

24

65

1 to 60

LINDFIELD STREET

CO
TALL

STREET

49

2
5

2
3

2
7
 t
o

 3
1

5
2

8
0

9
3

1 
to

 7
2

Ram
p

8
7

73 to
 119

9
3

23 to 29

Hallmark

Court

6

URSULA G
OULD W

AY CC

W
ard

 B
dy

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery
Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 100019288, 2011.  Scale: 1:1,250 @ A4

Appendix 2 & 3
Produced by GIS Development & Renewal

I
0 10 20 30 405

Metres

Council 
land to

 b
e

dis
posed to

 E
TG

Housin
g S

ite
 to

 b
e

tra
nsfe

rre
d to

 p
ark

 u
se

Changing Rooms

Council land to be disposed
of to Poplar HARCA

Reta
in

ed H
ig

hway

Hig
hway fo

r p
edestri

an &
 em

erg
ency V

eh o
nly

East Thames
site owned

Area for proposed development

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



� �

���������������	
��

�
��������
�


�����

�
	�
���
������

�������������	��
�

��������������
�

�

�����������
�
�����		�����

������������

�
�����������������������������������������
�������������
�
������������	

����
���

 ���
������!������"�������#��$���� �����
���������#��$�����

�

��������

�
���������������$���������%��&���
�
����������������

%�����������'�(����������'�)����

�
�
������������
�

*
��
�����

�����	�������	�� ����
��

��+�����%����������$��

!�����
������������
�

�,��#����-�
���������������������������

�
�
�,� !"����#�
�

*
����������������������������!���
�.���($��������%��&����
��!��������������-�
�!��
��������������������-��������������$��������/��������%��&�����
�-������������������!���
�����$������������-���������������������������
��
������&������������������'
�����
�����������������������������
��������
�����������������������������-������-�������

�

�,� 
$�%!%&�!��$'"%�$
�
�
� ���������������������������-���01�
�

�,�� *
����������!�������������������1������������$������������/��������%��&�
��������������������������2�3������-�����4,��*
�������������3�������$��������
�
����
������!��1����,��

�
�,�� *
����������������-������2��,����4�����������
��-���
�
�,5� 6������������$��'��&�����!�������������������$������������������
�
�,7� 6!!����������������������������$�����!��������������'�����-��������!!���

����-���������������$���
�������������������������������������
�
�,8� 9���������������$�����������������������������������.����������������������

�
����-
���!���-���-��3���������
�
�,:� 9�-���������!����
����$��#�����������������������������������!��
����

�����-�������

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 57



� �

�
�,;� �����-��������������'�����3������!�����������������$��������/��������%��&�

�����������������
�
�,<� *
���'�1����%��������+��������$����������-�����������
�
�,	� "���������!������-�����.���!���'��&���$�������/��������%��&��!������������

����������!���'��&���$�������&�������������������
����������%,�
�
�,��� *
��������������������������$��������/��������%��&�������������!����
�������

���5�������'�����
�
�,��� *
����������-��������-��������������������
���������������&�����������������

��������'
�����
�����������������������������
����������������������
���������������-������-�������

�
()� �$�!&�!�*&���+$�
$�%!%&�!�
�
5,�� *
�����-�������!��$��������/��������%��&�
����������$��������$�����

��������!����������������-�������!����
������-�������!��
�����$�����
���
�������$��������������������'��
����������������!�����������$���,���

�
5,�� �����������<��������������������$����
����!!�������
���������-�!��'������

�������!����$��������/��������%��&������
����������������������
�����������
�
,)� ���$����%-$�&��%&�!�
�
7,�� �������������-���!����$�����������&��������������'��
����
�������������-���

������-��������=��������������������!�����$�������������������������$�����!���
�
������������!���'
��
��
�������������-������$�����,�����������������������
���-���
������������!���/��������%��&�'��
����
��
���-������%���������$���
����
�� �>,��>���
��������
���$�����������.��������������
���������!�
�����������-��������������$����!�'�����������,��*
��������������������.���
�������$��������/��������%��&�'��������������������.�����,��

�
7,�� *
�������-������������������������������<����������'����!�����

��������������'���������
�����������������!������������
�����������
���-�������!!�������������������������������'��
��
����������������������
���-
������-�������������'
������������-������������'��
��
����������!�
�$����������$�������������,���

�
.)� /��01�&"�
�
�
8,�� %�����������7��
����'�����������������.����$��������/��������%��&�������������

����
������������-�������,-,�?����
�������������%����)�������		<,��
 �'�$������������8��
�����-������
���-��'��'��
��$��������
�����
��
��$���3�)��&������� �-
�/����-���������-����>��������������(����&��-�
�����,��*���������������$������������&�������������������������������
�$��
��&���������'��
�����������������������������������-���������������

Page 58



� �

���-�������!����������������$��������������������-������������$��-�����-���
������������!���������������$����,��

�
8,��� �����������<��������������������������
����������!���.����$��������/��������

%��&�����
�����������������,�����������������
����$��������/��������%��&�����
���
����������������!���������������������������-��
�����������-���'�������
����
�����&������
�����������������=��
���������������$���������
�����&�����
���������������$������������!����
��!��������&�����!��
�����&��!�����
��
�������1!�����������������������
����
��������������������'��
��
���������!�
���������������,���������������$��������&��!!�������������-�!��'��������������
���
��������
����������!����-��������������������$��������/��������%��&������3�
���
�����=����$������
�����&�����-������������������$��'��&������
���-
����
�
����������'��
�����������'��'��&�����!�����!������'��&�����!��$����=�
����-��!��'�����
��������-������!����$������������=������������
����$����!�
�������������'�����-��������!!�������-����������
��������������������-��
��
�$����=����������
����������$������������������$����=�������������������������
��������
��������������
��������������������!��
���������$��#���������-�
6�����������������-�����-��
����
�����������1�!!�����������������������-�����-�
�
���������!����������������,�*
���������������!��������������������&��������
��@���������
��(3�����$���������������
����������!�������������������-�!������
�����������
��%��&,��

�
8,5� "��������
����'�����5������'��
���.����$��������/��������%��&���!�'
��
�����

'��������������������
����'�������������,��*
��������������������
��������
����'�
�

$2�	�� 
���� ���������

��������	
������	���� � �

��$���3�)��&������ �:���;�A�<�B���� ;8������$���5������

 �-
�/����-����������?��&� �7�A��8�B���� 8�������$����������

������-��>��������� 5���5��B����A������-� 7�������$���5������

�������(�������������� �<�A��	���-� 7�������$����������

34�������������2�	�������� � �

����
������������ � �

%��������+������� �	�A����B���� :�������$����������

>���'��&�� ;�9�$� 	������

(������	�����2�	�������� � �

������5�3(��2�	������� � �

�
8,7� #������
�������!��
����������-�������!��$�����������������
�$����&���

������'��
����������������$������
����������-�����,��)
���������������
��������!��$�����
�$�����������������
�����������������������������!���
�
������������$��'��&������!��$�����'
��
����������������������������,��
)
������
��������-�����������������������������
����$�������!�$�
����������
��������������������������1���������&�1��'���!��
����!������������!����
��
�$������!������&�!����
������������
�����������������������������
����
����������������
��������-�������������'����������������!�������,�

����
6)� /&
#�&*��$�&���
�

Page 59



� �

:,�� ����������������$�����$����������!��
�������������������������$�����
���-���������/��������%��&���������'�������������������
�$���������&��-�
������'��
��
���������������������
�����-�������������������������,��*
��
���������C�����������������-���������������������!��'���$���������������
��$��������&����������������������������
����'�������,���

�
:,�� *�������������
��������������������!����'�����
�$�������!������!!��������
��

��$����!���������������������!!����$����������
������!���������-�����.���
�$��������-������'
��
��
����������
����������$������$��������$����
��
�������$�����������!���������-�����-��
�����������������������
��������
���������,��"��'�������������$�����
����$����!����������@������!���/��������
%��&��������
����������!�����-��-������������-���
��$��,��>����3�������
����-��-��
�����������!��'���������,�����'����������
�������������'�����
������$���$�������������$�����!�����������������������'�����
���!�������
���������������,��*
���������������
�����$�����������������$��'��&�����'�����
������
����'���!��
���������������������$�����2'
��
�
�$���
�������
��������4�'�����������&�����������������������������-����������������������
���$����-����!�����-�!��������������$����,��

�
:,5� 
��������������������&��-����-�����!���
��������
���$��������&������

-��������������������*�'��� �������
����
����$����-�����������!���������
����&���������!��!!����$��������!������-����������������������-������,��
9�$���
�������
����������!�/��������%��&��$���������
�������������������
'
��
�
���������������������������!���
��������
�������������!�������$��'���
��������-��������
���������������������-����,��

�
:,7� "����������������!�	;������������'�����������������
������������!�

������������$�����2�
����������!����������������&������������'�����������
�������������������������������4���
���'���������
������������$���,��*
���
������������������������-�������������������!��$�����������������������
��
�������-�������������
�����$����,��"�������-����������
���������������!!������
����$�������!!������������������
���������������������
�����������-����������
��!������������������������������������$��������������
�����$����������,��*
��
������������������������$������������-�����������-�������'������$�������
'��
��3����������!�����������$���������&��������������!�����$��'���������
��-����������!�����,��"������
���!�����������������
�������������������$����
�������������������������������.�����������������������
����-
���!���-���-�
�3��������,�

�
:,8� *
�����'�����-������������-��!�/��������%��&������
������������-����������

�����&��������������!���������������������-�������������.����������
�����-�
����������������������������������������$��,��>����3�������* (6��
����������������!!�'���������������������!�����������!����
��������$�����!������
!����'��-�������������!�����1���������
�$����������
���'������'�����
�������
!����
��!�����,��"������
���!�����������������
���6!!��������������������������
��$�����!��������������'�����-��������!!�������-���������������$���
�������
�����������������������������,�

�
:,:� 6!!������
�$������!�����������������
����������-����������'
������
��

�������������!�����������!����������������������$���������������������!�����
��

Page 60



� �

���������$���
���!���������������$�����-���������
�����-��������������D�
�8��������������
�����$���������D������
���!����
�$���
��-��������������
������,��"������
���!�����������������
����'
������
��������!��
�����������
�$��������
���������������$������-���������������������������-�$���������
���-���
�$��-��
��%��������+��������$���,��>���
���������������������������1
���$�����
�����������.���!���'��&���$�������/��������%��&�'��
�!������������
�����������$����������������
����������%,��*
���'������������
����������!�
�$��������/��������%��&�������������������
����
���������������������2'
��
�
�����������
��������������������3�������������$����4���������'��������������
������!�������,��"��'�����������������
����
�������������������������$��
'��&��������!����������!���
���'��&����'��
�����������������,��"�����
�
���!�����������������
����
����������!�������������������1�����������
�$������������/��������%��&���������������������������2�3������-�����4=��
���
����������3�������$��������
�����
������!��1����,��"�����������������������
���
�������������$��'��&�����!�������������������$�����������������������
���
�
��������-������!����$���������������
��-���

�
:,;� "��������
��6���������$��#����'������������������-���������������������
���

'��
��
��+����?�����%��&����6�6+������
�����!�������$������-�����������
���-������-������
������������������������������
���������������������������
���������!����
�������,��

�
:,<� ��������������
�������-�-�$�������
������-�������!�������������$�����

�!�����
����$��#�����������,��"�������������������������
���������������������
������������$��������/��������%��&�!�������5���'����������������������
��
���������'�����������-
��������������������������,�

�
:,	� �������������$�����$�������������$������������������!����������-����������

�������������E����������������������������,���������3���������������&��
'
��
��!!���-�����������������������-�������������������
��-
�����
����������������������������������������&��'���������������=�!����3��������
'�����-�����������'�������
�������#�������%��&��
����������!����'
��
�
�������'������������$��,��

�
:,��� ������	������������*
�������������
�������������-��$������������������

����������������
����9�&�C��������-
���������/��������%��&,�����������������
�����������������������������!���
��������������@����������������������$����,��
)
������
��������
���������!!����������
����'����������
������������
�������
���������������!������������$�����������$�����������
������������������!�
�$������-�������'��&��-�����
������&��,�

�
:,��� ����	������������*
����--�����������������&���
�������'�����-��'
����

��-���������������&��-�!�����������$������������!��������������������@����,��
�

"����������������������������������������&��!����������-��������-�
��������������'
�����
�����������������������������
����������������������
���������������-������-���������

�
7)� �&��$��!�&*��+$��+%$*�*%����%���&**%�$��
�

Page 61



� �

;,�� ������������
������������������$���!����������������$��������������������!����
!�������������������������$���������
���������������������!�������
��
��������($�������%��&�����-��,�

�
;,�� *
��($��������%��&�����-��������@�����������
��$������������������-����!�

E���&�!����������,��
�
;,5� %���-���
�:,:������������������-��
��%��������+��������$����������1

���$����-��
����.���!���'��&��$����'��
�!�����������������������$��������
��%������,��*
������������������!������!�����
������������������$���!����
������������$����,�

�
;,7� %���-���
�:,	�������!����
�'���!���
���E��&��!�����������������
��$������

���$����-���������������!����������������$�����$�����
�
;,8� *
������������������!��
�������������������-���
�:,:�����:,	��
������������

�
����
������������-�������!���������������������,���
��
�
8)� �&��"��$����$�&���&*��+$��!!%!������+%$*�$9$�"�%-$�
� :�$1���!$�-%�$!;�
�
<,�� �������
�����������
��������2>�������������?���������������4�2(�-����4�

?�-��������������������������
��!����������3������������������������
��
(3�����$��
�$�����������������
����
�������������������������&��-���'���,�
*
��(3�����$��
����
����'��������������������,��*
��������������������������
��&����������@�����!����������������
��(3�����$�������&��!!�����������$��'��
��
�������������&����������������������
����������,�6!!������
�$���������������
��
��������
����������!��
���������!������������������!��
��(3�����$�,��*
��
�������,�
����
����'��������������$�����!��������'��-�����$�����������&��������
���/��������%��&�������������
����������������������������������������������
������
����,��"���
���!�����������&����������������
��������������������
����.�����-�
���������,�

�
<,�� "�������
���������������
��$�������$�����������#�������5��!��
��������

+�$�������������			�'
��
������������&��-�����������!��
������������
������
������������,�������������$��'��
���!����
�����������&�����������
��$��-��
��
!���������������!����������
������������������������������������������
��
�����������������!��
���������,�,����������������&,�� �'�$��������������������
�������!�����-������������
������������&�����������������������������!�������
��������������
��������������$������������������'������
��,��

�
<,5� *
����������������
�����������������������
����
�����������
�$���������&���

�������������������.�������������
�����$����������C�����$������
�$�������
����,�

��� ��
<)� &�$��&�$��+���$�!��&�!%
$���%&�!�
�
	,�� ($�����������&���'
��
���!����������������������$������������������!���

����������������������-��
�����������������.��������!������������������

Page 62



� �

��
�������������������������=��
����������
�������3����������������!�
����-��-��
�����$������������������
���������������
������������������!����
���������������������,��*
��������!��
����������%��������+����������$����
��-��������=�
�'�$����!��
����������!��$�������������������������������������
�
��<����������������������������������������������������������������
������������
������'���������������������������
����$����!�������,�

�
34)� !"!��%��/�$����%&��*&����1�$$�$��$�-%�&��$���
�
��,� %����������!��$�����������&��������@������������$����������'
��
��������

�
�����������-��������-�!�����
���$���������1��������,��*
���������$������!�
�������C�����������������������������������@�����������
��������
���

��
33)� �%!0�����1$�$���%���%���%&�!�

�
��,�� *
����������������
�������������$�����
�����������&����!�������������

-�������������
�
3=)� ��%�$���
�
%!&�
$���$
"��%&��%���%���%&�!�
�
��,�� )
�������.����$�����������
�$���
���������������-������������1���������
�$�����

�
������������������!�����������������'��
��
��%������������������������
�����$�������
��#�!������$������+�����'
��
�
���%������������
���
����-��������$��������������������

�
��,�� "!���������������������$����������#��!����'��-��$������
�����������������

������������&����������������
������������!����'���������* (6������
����
�����,��

��
3()� $**%�%$��#�!���$�$����
�

�5,�� "�������������������������
���������������������������.����$�����������&��
!�������5���'����=���������������!����������-����������!������������������
���$�����$�����������������������������$����������
���$������'�������
���&��������������

�
�

�

�
FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�

�

������1�2��	��	�����>�3<7=�!�����	�344
�:������	���;�
��������?/��@
���	��������A�������	�� ������������	����� ����������

� �
9��� !�

�

�

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



�

���������������	
��
�

��������
�


�����
�

	�
����

������

�������������	��
�

��������
�����
�

�
�

�����������
�

������������

������������
�

�
�������
������
�

���
�	���	
�������������
�

����������������
�������
������
�

��������
�

�
������ ������������ �!����
���"���#����������
�

����������������
�

����
�

�
�
������������
�

��$���%������"�
&���

���� 	��!�"��	��#����
��

'���(�)���*�&����+���!��������!�,,���������&&����$�

$�����
���"������!�
�

����
�������������
����������
��+�
%�
���$���
����������
����&,�)����#���
���,��,��+�
-&,���������
�&������������������

�����������������.�

�
�
%&� $'����(�
�
�.�� (
��� ��,���� ��� ����#� ����#
�� ���)���� ��� ������� ��&����� ��� 
�������� �
��

,��,�������� �
��� �
�� �������#� �)�� ����
��� ����
�������� ��� �
�������� !

�����
���� /�&������ ���� �������� *����
� ����0�������#� �
����� ��� ����#������� �����
���� ��)� �������� ����
�������� )��
� ��&�� ��� �
�� ������#�
� ���� ��
1� ����
���
���
������,�����#�����
��
�����.�

�
�.�� ��$����������
����2�
�
�.�.�� 0
��
����
�������
�����������
�����������#��������

�������#�������������

�
�� &����&� ��� ���#� ���&� ���)��#
� �
�� �����,����� �
��� ��$� ��

� &�3���
������
�����#�&�$�����#�����
���
�������&+�

�
�.�.�� 0
��
��� ������
1� ���&� ���1�
������� ��
������ ���
�� �������� ������

���
�������
���,��,�����������/������$��������,,������
��,��,����+�
�
�.�.4� (
�����1����
�#
�,�����&��#�����
��������
�������)������������
������1�����

1�$�,���������������1�
������.�
�
)&� 
*�+$+��$��*,'+�*
�
�
� �������������
�&&��������2�
�

�.�� �#���� �
��� �
�� �������#� �)�� ����
��� ����
�������� ��� �
�������� !

����� ����
/�&������ ���� �������� *����
� ����0�������#� �
����� ��� ����#������� ����� ����
��)�������������
������+�

�
�.�� �#���� ��� ,��
���� )��
� �
�� ��
����&���� ��� ��� ���
������ 5���
����

�&��#�&����#��
���������#�,�����������,������5���
������
��������!

�����6�
/�&�������������,������5���
�������������*����
�6�0�������#+�

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 65



�

�
�.4� 5���#���� ��� �
�� �
���� ���
������ �
�� ���,���������$� ��� 
������������ )��
� �
��

���������� �
���� ���
������ 7%�#��8� ���� �
�� 
������� 5���
����� ��� �
������ ��
!

����� ���� /�&������ ���� �������� *����
� ���� 0�������#� ��� ������� �
��� �
��
&��#��#�����
���)��5���
�����,�����)������������������
����
����
����
����������
���

������������

����������
��������������
����
�����)�������#�����
����
���

�&&����$� ���� #����� �9���� �&,
����� ���� ���� &���#��� ��� �� 
�:����������
)�$.�

�
�.;� "�9����� �� ,��#����� ��,���� ��� �������� ��� �
�� �&,��&��������� ��� �
�� ��)�

�����#�&��������<�����$�����.�
�
-&� �*�$��$�.����/*�
*�+$+��$�
�
4.�� /��&� �
�� ,���,�
����� ��� ��&������ )
�� ���� �
���� ����
��� �����
���� )
�

� ���

�
�� 
���� ��� �

����� ��� ���� ��&������ )��
� �

���� �#�� 

�������� �
���� 

��#���
)������������ �������������&����
������
��������&����������
��)
�

����������
��9����� 
�������� ��� �����
��� ���)���� ����
�������� )
��� ���1��#� ��� �
��
���������

��������$���#�,��,������������������
����&��$.�

�
4.�� (
������
������#���#��
���#
���,���������&�3������#�������
��������������
��

��&����&���������������,����������$��#����&������������������&,����������������
�����
���������������.�(
����
���������,��
����)��
��
���&��#�&����������
��
�)�� &�3��� ����
��� ����
�������� ����� �
�� �������� 5���
������� )����� &�1�� ��
��#����
���� 
������������ ��� �
�� �����#�� ���#���� �
��� �
�� ����
��� ��� 
�������$�
��&��#�����

�����������
������������$����.�

�
4.4� 0
�����
������#�����������������
�������
���������������������������
���&�������

���3�
�� ���$� ��� �
�� ����
�� �� �)�� �#����� ����#���������� ,��
��������
������
�������
��
���������������)����#�������
�������)���������#�

��#������
�����
�� ������ ��
�����#� ����������� 

�������� �������� ��&������ ���� ��������
�������������� ,��������� ��

� ��� �

������ 
����
� ,��������� ���� ��
���

�&&�������.�

�
4.;� (
��,��,�����)����&�����
����������$���9����&������������#�������5���
�������

�
������ �� !����
��� ���� �� 5���
���� ��� ������ !�
���� !����
��.� (
�� ��)�
���
������5���
����)�����������#���������
�����
���������.�

�
4.=� (
�� ��������$� ��9����&���� ��� ����#����� �� &�&���� ��� �
�� ���
������ ��� �
��

%���� ��&���� ���� �
������ �� !����
��� )���� 
�������� ��� ��� &��.� (
��
�,,����&�����������
������
������&�&��������������� �����
����
�7��������#���
��������$���9����&���8������
����
��,������������
��������������
��,������������
�
��%������&���������
������ ��!����
��������
���%������&������ ������ �
��
��$�� �����
������.�

�
4.>� (
�� ������
1� ���&� ���1�
������� ���� ,�������� ��
������ ���
�� �
�� �����

��������&�����#���
�#�������
��,����������
������
��� ����������
�#
��#
����
��&������
�����1������)���������$���,,�����������
�������1������#�&���#���
�����
��,��,�����#���#����)���.�

�

Page 66



�

4.?� /�����
1� ���&� 1�$� ���1�
������� ���� ,��������� ��
�����#� �
�� @*!� ����
!

������ )��� ,�������� ������ �
�� ,��,����.� -�� ,����
������ �
�� ������� ��
������
���&� @*!� (�)��� *�&����� 
�#
��#
���� �
�� ����� ��� �����)� ����
������ �
�����
,����
������
������������
����
��A��
������,����
���#���������������
����)
�����
&���&����#�&���#�&������������
������
�����&���������#
�.B�

�
4.C� !

����� ���� #��������� 
��� �����#� 
�&&����� ��#�����#� ���1�� ����

&���������#� ,�������� ���������
�,�.� !���#������#� )��� 
�#
��#
���� ��� �� 1�$�
������ �$� ���� ���,�������� ���� �
�� �
���� ��� �
�� ������ � ���� �
������ ��
!���#������#��������)
����������
�����#��������������,������������
��,��,������

�����&����
���
������������#�&�����������
��������,���������#����,������&�
����&���#��#�

��#�.����
��#
�������
������
����)����������������
����#
�����
����������������������,������#������#�&����.�

�
4.	� �� ��&���� ��� ������� ��
�����#� ������� ����
����� 
���� ����� 
�&&������ ��� �
��

,��,����.� (
�� ���,������ ���&� ������ 
�#
��#
���� �
�� 

�����#�� ��� ���������#�
�
�� �&��#�&������ ��� �
�� �)�� ����
�������� ����#����� ��#����
���� 

��#���
,��#��&&��� )��
��� 
������� ,����� :� ���� ���&,���� (�������&��#� ������ !�
����
����� ���� �&,��&�����#� �
�� /�&��$� 0�������#� &����� :� �
���� ���� ��#����
����


��#��,��#��&&�������
�����)����#
������)�����������������

�&&�������
����#����� �
�� ,��������� ��������
�� ��� �� ��#����
���� �����)� ��� �
�� �������
&���#�&���� ����
�����.� -�� ����� )��
� �
�� ����
�� �� *������#� �
��#��
,��
��������������������

�,���
����
�&&��������������&��#�&�����
���)��
����
����������
����)�������
������������)��
��
������
���������������
����������
����������������$���)�&���#�&���������#�&����������&,��&�����.�

�
0&� ���*����+1*��"�+��$�
�
;.�� �������������,������)��������������
��2�

•� 5�����
��#�����&���������
���������9��+�

•� %��1� ���� �,,����������� ��� �&��#�&���� 
���
��� ������ � ��
���� 
����
�����
���)��
�
�&&����$�
����
�,��������+�

•� "����)��
��
�������&���#�&���������#�&������������1�����
������
���#�&���������
���,�������������D3���� �&���#�&�������&.�

�
;.�� �����
�����,������
������)������
������������������������
�&&�����2�
�
;.�.�� (
�� 
������� ������&� �����#�&����� 
������#� �
�� ���,������ 5���
����

,��������� ��� �
���� �����
��� ����� ��� ��� ��������� ���� ��� )����� ���
���,,��,���������������1���
����,,�������$����
���������������������������
�,�
�����#�&����.�

�
;.�.�� (
���� ��� ��
�������$� ����������#� �
�� ������� ���� �&,�
�� ��� 

��#��� ���


����
� �����
��� �
��� ���� 
�������$� ������ ���
������� ���� ���3�
�� ��� �������
��#��������.�������������$���
��������������
���������������������&��#�&������
���)��������� ��!�
���������!����
�������
����
�����
���������������������
�
������
�������
������#�.�

�
;.�.4� ���������#� ��� 
���� ��,������ ����
�������� )��
� �)�� ���,������ 5���
������

)
���� ���1��#� ���� 3�����)��1��#� ��� �
�� &���#�&����� ������� ����)� �
�� ������
������
����
���������#���������#��
�������������,�����

��#�.�*�)������
��

Page 67



�

����������#�� )����� ��� �� ��
1� ��� 
����� �

����������$� ���� �������
�,.� ��
&���� ����
��� ��������� �
��� ,��,��� &�����#� ��#��
��� ��� 3����� ���&�� ���
��9�����������������&,������������&��������������#�������������������.�(
���
&�$����&��������
�����������,���������������������������������#
.�

�
2&� 3��45��'�
�
�
=.�� (
�� �
������� �
�� ���;� ��9������ ��
��� ���
�������� 7%��8� ��� ����#� ��#��
���

���
������ ���� 

������ �� ��
���� 
���� ����� ���� �����
�.� ����� %���� ��
�����#�
(�)��� *�&������ ���� �,� �� ��)� �
������ �� !����
��� ����
������� 7
������
�
�������� !

����� 6� /�&�����8� ���� �� ��,������ ������ � !����
��� ����
�������
7
��������������*����
�6�0�������#8.�-����&��%����
��������
�����������1����
�� )����� ���#�� ��� ���,�������������� ��

� ��� 
�����#� ���� ���#
����
����
�����
���������������������
����
���.�

�
=.�� *�)������ �� ��)� %��� E� ��#
�� ���&� �
�� ������ E� &��� �
���� ��)� ��#���

���,������������������
������ ��!����
���)��
�����,������#������ ������

������ ��
��
���� 
���� ���)���� �)�� ���������� ����
��� ����
�������� ���� 
�&������ �
��
,����� ��� 5���
���� ��� �
������ �� !����
��� 75�!8� ���� 5���
���� ��� ������ !�
����
!����
���75�!!8�������������
������5���
����,���.�-�������9�����$�������
���
%���
���������)�������.�-�������)�����&������
���
�������$����&��$������F����
%��� 
���� �&��#�&����� �
�� �)�� ����
�������� ��� ���� )�$� ��� ����
��� ����
��
���� ���� �
�����$� 
���������#� ��.� (
�� ������ 
��� �

��������� ��� ��
����
&���
��������,���������
����������&�1������������#�������
�����.�

�
=.4� %���)
�

�
����������$�&�����
��

��#����
�������&��#�����
�����!����$��

�����������#
��'��
�&��0�����������������
�����0�1��������!��
1�������
(�����"��
������������������*������#�������#��0����!������������"����#����
G��1�
��������
1�����/�����������
�����$����%�����.�

�
=.;� (
��&�3����$���� �
����
���������$������#���������#�������������� ����������

���
� ��� �
���� ��,������ �����
��� ,����� ��� �&��#�&�����.� (
�� -5��� ��,����
D(
��1�/�&��$��(
��1���&&����$ ��)
�

����1�����������������������
����%����
��,������ �
��� �
�� ����� &�3����$� 
��� ���
��� &���������� ��� �&,������ ��� �
����
,�������� 
�#
� ���������.� '������ �
�� %��� ��������� ��� �
��,�������� ,���#��,
��
���$�����������������#
��)�����������������)��
��
�����
�&����

����������
����������
��,��
���.��

�
=.=� �������#����)�
�&��#��
���#
����&��
������$�����
����
����������D������H�������

��� �&�����������

�%���������������������
�����������
������������������&����
������
���
��
�&����
��.�

�
=.>� @�� ������������ ����� ���

��� �� ,����� )
���� �
���� ��� ���
��#� �
��� 
��� ���

�&,�������,�����������������
�� ���������&���������#�,��1�,�����&��
����� ���
��
�����$� ��� ��&���� �,��� ��� 

��#�� ���� ������,&���.� ���������

��
�&����
��� ����� 

��#��� ��
���������#� �����)� ���� ��������&���.� -�� ���
�&,������� ����&���������#� ���� ������&������,������ �
���#
�&�1��#���
�������
��
���$� ���
��� �
��� 
����#� �
�&� �&,����� 
�������$�� �
��� (�)��� *�&�����
��&���������
����,�����
���������������������������,������
���������#�

��#��
����� ��� ����&������

������������.�(
�������� �
��������9�������� �����1�)
���

���������#�)
��
������#���
����)��
��
���&�3�������
������

��#���������$��#�

Page 68



�

������ � ���� �
������ �� !����
��� ��� ���� ����
�������� ��2� A0���� �
��� 
���� ���
�&,�
�� ��� �
�� ����� ����� 9�����$� �����#� )�� 
���� �

������ ���� 
����������
�&,����&���IB��

�
=.?� (
���)��������
����������&���
���(�)���*�&�����
���
������������

���,��,�����

���� ��� )���� ��� ,���������$� ���������#� �����
�� �&,����&������ ��� ��� ����� ���$�
&�

� ��� ����� )��
� �� ������ ����� ��
���� $����.� 0�� 
���� ����� �� ��#����
����
����
����� ��� �
�� ��&���� ��� ����
��� ����
�������� ���� �� ����
����� ��� �
��
���,����������#�&����(��&�7C�������C�����,���������$��=8.�

�
=.C� (
����
��������������
�&���������&��)
����
�����������&,���������������
��

����
��� �,�����#� ���� ����$��� �
�� &���#�&���� ��� �
�� ��#���������.� (
���
������,&���� )����� ����� �� ,�)������ ��#���� ���� ��&��������� ����
�����&�������� ��� ����$��� &���#�&���� ��� �
�� &���� ������� ������� ��� �
��
����
��.�

�
=.	� �����������$�� �
�� ����
��� 
��� ��
����$� ������ �
��� �
�� ����������#� ���� �
��

5���
���� ��� �
�� ���#��� �
�������� !

����� ���� /�&������ 5���
������� 
��� ����
��������� ��� �� �����#� �����+� ���� ��,�����
�� ��� ���� ���$,�
��� ��� �
�� ���������
��
����&���� ���������� ���� 5���
����� ��� �
������ �� !����
��.� �� ��)� ���
������
5���
����������,�����#����
������� ������
������ ��!����
��������,�
����������
&���� �����
����� ���� ����#� �,,��
������� ���&� ������#� 5���
������ ��������#� ��� ��
&�

������#��������.�

�
6&� 3�
(��.��*"����
�

'"
��*�$+��*�.*3�'��(�)7%%���3+�*���**�+�5�
�

>.�� (
������
���
�����������������$��#�,���
�,�����
�������#�����#������,,���

����
&�1��#� �����
���� ��
������� ��� �
�� 
������ ��� 
����#� ��� �������$� ����
�� ����
�,�����#.� -�� ��� �����&����� ��� �

����� �� ������ ��������� ���� 
���H��� 
�������
��#����������)
�

���
������
�������,�����������
�&�������������������������
��� ,����
����� ,����
��� �
�� &���� ����������� �$� �

�����#� �����#�� �
���#
� �
��
����$����#� ��� &���#�&���� ���� 
�����#� 
������� 
����� ���
��� �
��� �����
���
)
�������,�������.�

�
>.�� (
��� ,��,����� ��� �&��#�&���� �
�� �)�� ����
�������� �,,����� �
��� ,���
�,��� ���

�
��&�����������,����
������������
�������������������)��
��������&�����������
�
�� 
�&&��&���� ��� �
��� ����
��� �,,���

� ��� &�1��#� &���#�&���� �����#�.�
5�������
����H����� �
��,��,���������
�������� ���)�������,�����������#����
����


��#������
�����,����������#�&����(��&�7��(8.�(
���
�������
������)����

�����������1��,��
������
����������,�������������(������������)������������
�
���,������������#��#���
1���$�����
���,��,���������������������.�

�

Page 69



�

>.4� -�� ���� ��#�#�&���� )��
� ���1�
������� ���
�� �
�� /������$� �������� &�����#��
�
�$� 
���� ������$� ��������� �
�� ,��������� ��������� ��� �&��#�&�����.� ��
��&&��$� ��� �
���� ��������� )���� ���� ���� ��� �
��� �������� ��,���� )
�

� )���
����� ��� ���� ���1�
������.� *�)������ ���1�
������� )���� ����� &������� ��� �
��
,��������� ���1�� �
��� )����� ����� ��� ��� &���#��.� J�������� ���1��� ���� ��$�
&���#����#��
����������������������
��"��1�����#�&����-&,��
���������
��������
�
�����,���.�
�

>.;� (
����,���������
����
�&&����������
�������������������&����$��
������
��
����)�����&���5���
�����:������&���5���
������������ �������
������ ��!����
���
���� ��� !�
���� !����
��� ���� �� ���&��� 5���
���� ��� �
������ �� !����
��� ���� ���
���
�����.�(
�����#��������)�)����
����
��&����������

���

��#��)����
������
,�������� ��� �,,�������$� ��� &�1�� �&,����&����� ��� �
�� )�$� �����
��� ����
���������� �
��� #���� ��$���� 3���� &�1��#� �����#�� ���&� ��� ��������� ����
���
����#���������.�(
�$���,,�������
�����)��
����
����)�������������#�����)����
)��
� �
�� �,,����&���� ��� �
�� ���
������ 5���
���� ��� ����� ��� ,��������� ����
�����)��#� �
���� �,,����&����� �
���� )����� ��� �������� ��� ��������#� �������
���1�
����������������
�������������
�,����
������,,���

������
����#����#�
�����
��.�

��
3*�*.+�$� ��
� �+$4$� �.� ����5����+�5� �/+�
�*�8$� ��
�
�
'��$8�$*�1+�*$�

�

>.=� (
���� ���� �� ��&���� ��� ,��������� ��������� ���� �������#��� �
��� )����� ���)�
���&�����#��#���#��
����
���
������ ������������ �5���
������������
����&��
��
,���,�
�������� ������������������&���������� �
������
��������)
����������� ����
,�������.�

�
>.>� /��&� �
�� ,����� ��� ���)� ��� �
���� ����#� �
�� �����
��� �
���� ���� ,���������

������������&�����&��#�&���������
�������)
�

���
����2�
�

>.>.�� (
���&,�����
������
��K,��
�:�
�,��#K����������
����
������
����$��)
�����
��
����
��� �����������������&�

������,�������������)
�����
��,������������
��
���� 
���� �����
��� ���� �
�� &���� ����$� ,��$�� ���� ,���� ��� �����)�����#� ��

�������&���������
��������
��)�$����&�,��������������������,,�����&�

����
)
�

�������$���1���,��
������
��
�&&����$+�
�

>.>.�� (
�� ������,&���� ��� ,���������������� )
���� �
�� ����
��� ��� ��������#�
����,�����
�� ���� �&,�)����#� ������������ ���� ��
��� 
�&&����$�
��#����������� ��� ��
���� )
��� ��� ������� ���� 
�)� ����� ��� �,���� ���#�����
,����
������.�(
������
���
���&����&�3����������� ��� �
��������,&�������
,��������������� ��� ������ �����
���� ���� �
���� ��� ����
��� ��� #�� ��� ������,��#�
�
���������&����������)��
�
����
�
�����#���.�

�
>.>.4� !&���
�������������������

�������)��
�
�&,�������������&�������=���������

$���#�,��,���&����#�������&��
��
�����$���&�&����2�
�

•� (
�$�)����������#�����������&�������&���������
���������$���&�����
,��,����������
��+�

�

Page 70



�

•� (
���� )���� ��� 
��������$� ��� 
���� �
����� �
�� ������������ 
����� ��#�� ���
������������ )
�

� ���� &��$� $���#� ,��,��� 
��� ��� �� 
�������#� ����
���������
���$���,�����
�.�

�
>.>.;� ���,���#� �� D�
��1� ��&��$ � �,,���

�� )��1��#� )��
� �
�� ��&��$� ��� �� )
����

���
����
���)��
����������������������$��#�2�
�

•� 0��1��#� ��� ���� ����
������� )���� 
��,� ,��&���� ��&��$� ���������� ����

��������,�����������������#���,������������&�.�5�����,��#�
��������$�
��� �����
�� �������$� 
��,�� ��� ������ ������ ���� 
��,�� ��� �������� �������
���
�&��+�
�

•� (����������� ���)���� �����
��� 
��� ��� ,������ ��� 
��
����� ���� 3���� ����
�����
�� ������� ���� ����� ���� �
���� ��&������ E� ��� �
�$� ���� ��,�
���� ���
��
�&����&������)��
���)�,��,�������,��
�����+�
�

•� (
�� ,��,����� �&��#�&������ )���� �
���� �
�� ��
��� ���&� ���1��#� ���
������������ �$� �#��� ��� ���1��#� ��� �
�� )
���� ��&��$.� �
������� ������$�
������ ��� ,���� ��� �� ��&��$� ���� ����
������$� 3�����#� �,� ���� ��&�������
�
���#
��
��
������������
������ ��!����
�������
��������
������������
��� 
������#� ��� ������
���� ��,�������� ��� ��
��� ������� &���� ������$� ���
��
����
������$��,������#���
���������
������)���������������

������+�

�

•� (
����%���)
��
����#����������������������
������������$�����������
��
������$������
�������
����&��$������)
��������)��������
�����������������
��������
����������������������
��&�����&,����������
�&��.�!�������
������ ��� ��� �������� D(
��1� /�&��$K� �,,���

�� ���� ���&,��� ,��������$�
��� ������ )��
� &������ 
����
� �����
������� )��� ��������� �����$� ��� ���
������������ ���
��� �
��� ��� ��� ������ )
�� ��� ����� �� ,������ ��� ��
#����,�����������
���&�$�#������
�������������
����,,����,�������+�
�

•� -�� ���������� 
������ ���#�&���� &�$� 
��,� ��� �&,����� ����������$� ���
���#������$� 
�������� ���� 
������� �����
��� E� ,��������� ��� 
������� �����
���

��� ��� ,
����� ��� ��� ���� ��,�����#� ��� �
�� ������ ��� �
�� �����������
�����
�����������
�������
������������
�������
��,�������������)��
���
�
����&������
������.�

�

Page 71



�

>.>.=� -�
������������#������������)��12�
�

•� !�������%���
������,�������
�����
�������
�����#������������)��1����
�������$���,�����������
�&����� ������������
���,��������������)�$����
��������#� �

����� &����� ���� ���&,��� �$� ��
����#� �� ,��������� �
���

����
���������,��&��$��

���+�
�

•� (
��� ,��,����� ������� ��� (�)��� *�&���� � �������#� �����#� ��
���� ���
������,��#� ��������� ���� ��� �

����� ��� ,���� ��� ���� 
�&&����$�
������,&�����
��������.� -���������
����#������1��#������
�����
���������
�������&,���
����������������������,��,�����������)
��
����
��������
�����#�����,��,���)
��)����������������&��
����������
������
�������+�
�

•� (
���� )���� ����� ��� ����
��� �,,����������� ���� ���������� �#�� #���,�� ���
)��1���#��
�����$����)
������
�������$�,��
��
��.�

�

Page 72



�

>.>.>� ����#��#���#��
�������������7���
�����������

����8��������#�����7��
���8�
�����
��� )���� ����� ��� �&,����&����� ��� #������� 
����
� ���� )�������#.�
J��������$�� �
���� �����
��� 
��� �,������� ��,������$� ���� )��
� ����������
,���,�
������ ���� ,���������.� (
���� �&,����&����� ��� �
�� 
����
� ����
)�������#� ��� �
�� #������� ,�,�������� )���� ��� ����� ����
�� �
�� ����� ����� ����
�,�����������#����������
��������������������������������
��������2�
�

•� %��� ���� J��&��$� ����� (������ 7J�(�8� ���� ���
� 
�&&���������� ���

�����$� �������,������� �����
��� E� ���$� ������ ���� �
�� ��&�� #���,� ���
,��,��� E� ���� �
�� ����� )
���� �
��� 
��� ����� ������ ��

������� ��� ���
,������������ )��1� )
�

� 
��� �� &���� ���������� �
��� ���#�����
�,,���

.�(
��

��#�������
��@*!���
�������&�3�����)�����������
��
����
������������#����,����
�
����
�������
���,,�������$����)��1�&�

�
&���� 
�����$� )��
� *����
� ��� 
�&&��������#�� )
���� �
�� ����
��� )����

���� �� K
�������K� ����� ��� ,�������
�,� )��
� �
�� �&��#��#� LJ�

�����������������#�����
���������#�#�������������
�,�)��
��
��J�(+�
�

•� ����#��#� ������ � ���� 

������K�� �����
��� ��#��
��� &����� ��� �
��
����
�������������� ����,���#���)������������#�
��������)�����.�(
�������
���� 3���� ���1��#� ��� ������������ )
��� �
�$� ��
�&�� ����������� ��� ���
���������
���������#�
�)���������
����
����,��$������������
��
����
�
���� )���� ����#� ��� �
�� )����� ,�,��������� )��
� �
�� ��&� ��� ����&����$�
����
��#��
����&������������������������������#����������
��.�-��������
����
��#� �
�� ��&���� ��� ��� 
������ K
�#
� 
���� ���� ��)� ����&��
�����
��K�� �
��� ,���������$� �
�� #�������� �����#�� 
��� ��� &���.� (
��
����
��� 
��� �,���� �
�������� ��� ,������ �� )��1� ��� ������������
)��
������
�������$��

�����#��
������������
�&�����������)
����
�$�
)�������$������
�&�����������
�$�
���&����
�����������
���,���.�(
���
)�������9�������#���������
������,���������������
������&�����)�$�
���&��������������������
��������)��1��#�)��
� ������������������&������
��� #������� ,��������������� ��� �����
���� ���� ��� )
�

� )���� ��� &����
��������$�����#��#������� �����

������ �������
�����#��
��+�
�

•� ������&,�������
����
�������%����,�������$�����
����)
�

�)�������,����
��� �
�� -5��� ����$�� ���� 
��� �� 
�&������ ����
������.� -�� ���� ������ �
!����
���� ��� 
��
��������� ��� �
�� �&,�����
�� ��� �������#� ,��,��� ���
,����
�,���� ����$� ��� 
�&&����$� ����� ��� �
����� 
���H����� ���� ��&,�$� ���
,���������
�,���������
���+�
�

•� (
���� )���� ��� ��� ����
����� ��� ���������� �����
��� ���� 

������� ����
$���#� ,��,��� �������� �

���� ��

� ��� ����$� G����� ,���������� ������
�

����� 
�����$� ���� $���
� ,��������� ��� �� ����
�� ������� ��� �
���
�&��#�&�����+�
�

•� ������� 3������ �,� )��1��#� �
����� ������� ��� ������� �&,��$&����
�,,����������������1����������&,��$&��������
����������

�#���,�.�/���
���&,�����
����)��1��#�)��
��;�����	�$����������
�������
�&��&����
�)��������
�����������$���#�,��,���)��
��������#�������������.�(
������
��,�
����$� �&,������� )
��� 
���������#� �
��� �
�� �

������ *����
� ����

Page 73



�

�
�� ����
��� ���� �
������� �
�� &�3��� �&,��$���� ��� ��
��� ,��,��� ��� �
��
�����#
.�

�
>.?� (
���� ���� �,,����������� ���� ����
���
���� ���� 
������������� ��� �
�� ����
�� ��

)��1� ��� ��� �

������ �
���#
� �
�� ���&�������� ��� ������,,��#� ���� ��,��
�����
)��1��������&��&,����&��������
�&&��������#������#�&����2�

�
>.?.�� (
������������&�����������������D��
1�����
� ���,,�������
�������
���
������

���������� &���� ����
�����$� ��� �� �������� ����
�������� ��� �������� �
����� �
��
����
������&��
��
�����.�(
������
�����������#$��,���
$�����,�����&��
���

�&&��������#�� ������

� ���� ������,&����� �����
��� *"� ���� )��1���
��
������,&����� -(� ���� �����&������� ��&������������ ���� ���������
&���#�&���+�
�

>.?.�� (
����)����������#������&�������������&���#��#��
��
�&&��������#����
�#
�

���� &����� �#��
$� 
���� ,�
1�#��.� �� 3����� ��,���&���� )���� 
���� �������
������#������
�&&��������#����&��
��@*!+�
�

>.?.4� (
�������������,���������������������
��������)
�

����
�����
������������
��������� )��
� )
���� �
���� )����� ��� ,��������� �������� ��� �����
�� �������$�
���&���$�����#����������)��
�����������
������.�(
������������
��������#���
��
�
���������������
������������������$������#������#����&����
�������
���

����
� ,��&������� ��&��$� ��,,����� �

���� ���� ��
�������� ���� ��� )
�

� ��� ���
��,������ 
��� �������� ���&� �
�� &���� 
������
� �,,���

� �
��� �������� ���&�

����#���
�&����������
������+�

�

>.?.;� '�#������������$��&��������
�����)��1��#�
�������

�������$��������#����&�
��

���
��������
����#�#����,��
��
���.#.�

������ �����&������� ��������$�
���������#��������#������������������ ����&�

������ ���������#������#+�
�

>.?.=� �� �������� ����
������� ����� &�1��� ��� ������� ��� �� %�� )����� ��� #�� ��)�� �
��
������ ��� ����#������ ���&�� ���� �� ��
����$� ��
��� )��1��#� ���&� 
�&&����$�
�����.�

�
>.C� ���������$��
��������,������������������������#�������$��&,�����#�)��1��#�)��
�

,�������2�
�
>.C.�� J��������� ��,�
����$� 
����
�� )����� ����� ��� ������� ��� ������� ��� �� ��������

����
�������� ��
����� ���
��#
� �
�$� ��� ��&���&��� ����� )��
� 

������� ����
���������,������$���
����������������
������������,����
������,�������#����,����
���)�����
���)�+�

�
>.C.�� ��� �������� ����
������� )����� ������� ��� ������� 
�&&���
������ ���� &����

����
����� ���� ��� 3����� �,,����&����� ���� �
�� <����� !�����#�
� @�����
������&����)��������
����������$������#�
������$��
��������#������#���
������#�
��,,���

��������������
����#�������$�D
���������#����K+�
�

>.C.4� �� ,����&����$� ����$���� ��� �
�� *����
� 0
���� J�,��� ����
����� �
��� �
��
��������� ��� �
�� ����
�� �� )��1��#� ���������
�,� )��
� �
�� 
����
� �����
���
,����
�����$� ��� �
�� ����� ��� ,����
� 
����
� ���� 
����
� ,����������� )����� ���

Page 74



�

��
��
��� �$� &����#� ��� ��� �&��#�&����� ����
������� ���� �������� 

�������
������&�����.�

�

>.	� -�����&����������
���������#�2�
�
>.	.�� -�����������&������
�)��
��������#�� ����
����������M4��1�
�������

������

3�������&�������
�����#��
��

��������
���,����������
��������
���������,,���.�
-���
�����#������&���
��������,���������$�&�

�#������������#��������&����
�
���#
� �
�� ��
����#�������� ��� 
�)� �����
��� ���� ����������� ��
�����#� ���
������ ��

� ��� 
�&&��������#�� ,������������ )��1� ���� ��� ,����������������
�����&������)+�
�

>.	.�� -������
���#
��
����)��������������
��������
������
����
���
���&��������
����
��������
���
$������#��
��������������
���#
.�(
����)����
������5���
����
)�����������1���)��
�
�,����
��#���
����#����������
���������$�,��,������
)��
�����������1�
����������������
���������������������������&������##�����
�
��� �� ��#����
���� ����
��� �&����� 
����� ��� ������ ��
�� �
�� ������
����� ���

�&,������ ���
��#
� ��&�� ��� �
���� �����#�� &�$� ������ ���&� 
�������
������
������7�.#.�!�����#$��J���
$�����J�����&��
�8+�

�

>.	.4� �!/������*0��
�&&�����������#����
������������������
��.����,��������
��

�&&��������#� ���
������ )��1� ��� ���������� ���� )�� ��� ���� ���������$�

��������,����������
���
�����
���������������&�&���������
����&����&��$�
��� ,������� ���� ���#��� ��&�� �,���� 
������#� ���&� 

���
���� ����� ������
�����
��+�
�

>.	.;� �� ��&���� ��� �
�� ��#����������� ,������� 
�&&��������� �����
��� ��� ���
�
�*0�� ���� �!/.� ���#���#� ���#���� ���� ������#� ���#��� 
�&&��������#�

�����
��� )���� #���� �
�� ����
��� �
�� �,,�������$� ��� �������� ������� ������ ����
&���$.�

�
>.��� (
����)�3���)�����������#���������)���� ��9������
����

���������
����&�������

�������������#�,�������)
��
�����1�������������,���������$��
������
��������
���#�� ��� �����
��� �
��� �
�� ��)�$� �&��#�&����� ����
������� )���� ��
�&,���.�
(
���)������&����
�������$�&������
������#�)��
����$��������&���#�&��������
�������
�,���,�����
�����
�����#�������#����5���
���������.�0
�����
���,������

������� ��� ���#��� �
��� ��� ����� ���� ���� ���
������ 5���
����.� (
�� ��)� ����
�������
)����� �

����� ���� �� ���#�� ,��,�������� �,,����&����$� =>F�� ��� �
�� ����
�� ��
���#��� ���� ��� �
���� �� &�

� �&������ �&����� )����� ��� �,���� ��� ����
��$�
&���#��� ������ ��� �
�� ����� ��� �

������� ���� �
���#
� ��������� �����
��� �.#.�
�
���

��������#����

�������������������&�������,�������&.�

�

>.��� (
�� ��)� ����
������� )���� ��� ���,�������� ���� ���� &���� ����������� �����������
������ ��� 
������� ��#����� �
��� ��
������ �		� 

������� ���3�
�� ��� �� 

����
,����
����� ,����� ���>>� 

������� ��� ������ 4�	� 

������� ���1��� ������� =�=���
����������� ������� ��,,������ ��� 
�&&����$� ������ �����
��� ���� C	�� ���
����������������������#�
���.�

�
>.��� (
���� &�$� ��� �� �������� ���)���� �
�� ����� ��� &���� 9��
1�$� ��� �

����� �
��

�����#�� ���� �
�� ����� ��� )��� 
������ ���� &����� ��� ��� �
�� ��������� ��� �
��
,��,����� ������&����������
���������$����#����������� �
�����#������������.����

Page 75



�

)���� ��� �
�� ������� ����
��$� ����
����� ,����
����� ���������� ������ ��� ��� ,���� ���
����#��#�1�$�,�����������&��
��
����
�
�&&����$������

������������.�LJ���
*������

���� ���� #��������� )���� ����� ������ ���������� �
��� )��
��� �
�� ��)�
�����#�&������
����)��������������
����,����������#�����
��������#�
��������
�,�
����
��
�#
���������.�������)��1��#����)�����
������
��������
���

�����
���

��,��� ��� ��
���� �&,����&����� ���� 
�#
� ���������� ��� �

����� ��� (�)���
*�&����.� %�1�)����� ��� ,������ ��� 

��#�� ���� ��������
�� 
����
� ,�������� )����
����� ���������
�� ���� 
�������
�� �
��� �
�� ����
��� ��� �������#� �����
�����
������#�
���������������
������������$����
����
�&������.��
�

>.�4� '���,������$� ��������)���� ��&�����,����
���#�����&���������������

�����������
�������#��
�������$�����)�������#�����������������1.�(
��,��,������������#��
��
�����
��� 
������ ��#��
��� ������ �� ���#��� &���#�&���� ��#�&�� &���� ���� ����

�)� ���� ���1� ��
����� )���� ��� ���������� ���� ,�������� �,,��,������ &���#����#�
�
�����.� /���
��� �����&������ ��� �
�� ���1�� ���� 
��������� )��
��� �
�� "��1�
����#�&����-&,��
���������
���������
����,���.�

��
�*9��$�*"$�

�
>.�;� /����)��#� ����$ �� &�����#�� ��� �
�� ��$��� ���� �������� �,,����� �
��

��
�&&���������� 
��������� )��
��� �
��� ��,����� �
�� �
���� ���
������ )����
������
�� �
�� ��������� ����
���� ��� 
�&&��
�� �
�� ��
����&���� ����
���� ���� �
��
��)� ���
������ 5���
���� ,���.� ��� �������� ��
����&���� ��&������� ��##����� �
���
�
����)����
������5���
����
�����������,�����$���#��������.�

�

>.�=� -�� ��� ����� ,��,����� �
��� �
���� ��� ��� ������,� ,������ )��
� �
�� 
������� �
���#�
5���
����� 7��� ����
��� 
��� ����� �,,������� ��� �
�� ��)� ������������ ,���8�
��&�����#��������
���������
���,,����&��������
����)�5���
���������������������
&���
.� 5����#� �
��� ��&�� �
�� ��)� ����
����� )���� ��� ���)�� �,� ���� ��������$�

������������)��
� �
��(������������)���� ��1��,��
�.�(
����)�5���
����)�����
�
�����1��������,�������������,���������$��$�'
�������������
����

�����#�,����
$���� �����#�� ��� ���������� ���� �
�� ����� ������
����� 
�&,������ ���� �����#��
�

�����������������4.�

�
>.�>� ������ ����
��� ?� 7(
�� ��$��� ���� �
�� ���
�����8�� ,���� ?.�=� 7��������

"��,������������8� ��� �
�� ����
�� �� �������������� �
�� �����&�������� ��� �
��
��&���������
�,�����,����������
�����$�����������&����� ������ �
����$�� ��
���
������.�(
����,����������
�������&���������&���&�������&���������)
���
�
����$������&����������)�����������
�����$��
�����������#�'���
��������������
���������$�,��
��
�����)
���������������$��
����$��.�

�

>.�?� �

�����#�$�� ��� �
�� ��
�&&���������� ���� �#������ �
�� ��$��� )���� �����&����
)
��
���
��)��
������
������������������&���������
��)
��������
����������
�)�� �������� ��&����� :� ���� ���� �
������� ���� ���� ���� ������� E� ��� ������� ��
�,�
���
���
�������������)�����,�����
����������
�,�������

�����.�

�

>.�C� -���
����$��������&������
����
�����
��������$����������������&�&������
���
��&����)������������#����������
��%������&���������
������ ��!����
������
�����)��
���������$���9����&����.�(
�����&����
�����
�������,�����������������
���������������������
������
�� ��)��1.�
�

Page 76



�

>.�	� '��� ��� �
�� #������� �
�&��� ������#� �����#� �
�� ��#�#�&���� ,������ )��� ��

��
���� ���� �
�� �
�,�� �
�� ��)� ����
������� )����� ��1�.� -�� ������ ��� �������
�
���� 
��
����� ���� ,��,���$� ���������� �
�� ��)� ���
������ 5���
���� )����
�&���1�����������
����)��
�������������
���������������1�
����������������,�
�
�������,������������
�����������
����)�����
������.�

�

:&� ����*��$��.��/*��/+*.�.+����+����..+�*��
�
?.�� (
�� ����#���������� )����� ����� �
�� ���#��� ���� ���� ���,������ 5���
���� ,����

���� ��������� ��,,���� ���� �,���� �,� �
�� ,���������$� ��� ������������#� ����
����#������#� ��
1:����
�� �����
��� ��� �
�� �)�� �������#� 5���
�������� ����
�����)��#� �
�� �������$� ��� 
������� �����:����� �
��������.� (
��� ��� ��,�
���� ���
�������� �� &���&�&� ��� M4������� �� $���� ��� �����#�� )��
� �
�� ,��������� ����
��#����
����$�#������������#��������#����&�����������������).�(
�������������$����
��������#��)��������������4�������
��
������������&�(��&�/����
����J����
������������������#��#�,�����
���$����)
�

��
���,��,�����
�����
��,��������.��

�
?.�� (
���� )�������&���� 
�������$� ��� �&,��&��������� 
����� ��,�
����$� ��� ���������

����
������#���������������
����)����������1��$�������������������������������
������������������
��#
�&�����,�
���
�,��,������)�������������������������
��� ������.� (
�� 
����� ��� ����#���������� )������������� ��� &��� ���&� ����
���
�������������
�����#��
���.�

�
?.4� (
�� ����#���������� 
��� �
�� ,��������� ��� ��
�������� #������� ������ ���� &���$�

�����#�� ���� ����
���
���� ��� ������� $����� ���&� ��

� ������ ��� �
�� ���� ���
�����
���,��
���&�����
�&&��������#�������
�������)��1��#.��

�
;&� ����'��*��� �*"���� �.� �/*� �$$+$����� �/+*.� *9*�'�+1*�
� ��*5���$*�1+�*$��
�
C.�� !�
����� �C� ��� �
�� �
������� �
�� ���;� ��9������ �
�� ����
��� ��� �,,����� ��

5���
���� ��� �
������ �� !����
���� A5�!B�� ���� �
�� ,��,����� ��� ���� ���
������
���
������ ���� 

������ �� ��
���� �����
� �� ���
����.� � !�
����� >� ��� �
�� %�
���
���
����$�!�
����!����
����
���	?����9�������
������
�������,,�������5���
����
����������!�
����!����
���7A5�!!B8� ���� �
��,��,�������� �
������
���������
���
���
������ ��
��� �
��� �
���� ���� )
�

� �
�� 5�!� ��� ���,�������� ������ �
��
�
������ ���
�.����������
������C�7=8�����
���
������ ���
�����;��
������
���
&�$� #���� ���� 5�!� ���,������������� ��� ��������� ��� 

������ �� ���
������ ����
��
���������
������
�����.�

�
C.�� (
�� ��������$� #�����
�� ��� �
�� 5�!!� ������� �
��� �
�� 
�������� ��� �
�� 5�!!�

,���� ����#����� �
�� 5�!� ,���� )���� ������� �
��� �
�� ��
���� 
���� ������ ��� �
��
��
��� 
�&&����$� ���� #����� �9���� �&,
����� ���� ���� &���#��� ��� �� 
�:
���������� )�$� �
���#
� 3����� ������#�
� ������������&���� ���� 3�����,������#.��
-�� #���� ��� ��� ,������� �
��� ��
��� ���
�������� �
���� ������� �
��� �
�� 5�!!� ���
����
��$� �

��������� ��� �
�� �
���� ���
������ ��� �
�� ��
��� ���
����$� ����

�&,�������������&�������������$�)��
��
��5�!.��*�)�������
��#�����
�������
���� &�1�� ��$� ��
�&&��������� ��� )
��
��� ��� ���� �
�� 5�!!� ���� �
�� 5�!�
,���� �
����� ��� 
���� �$� ��,������ ,��,��.� � (
�������� �
�� ,����� 
��� ���

�&������)��
���
�����������#�����.��-������
����������
�&&�������
����
����
&��������������#�3������
������)
�

�)�������������
��������$��
��&�����������

Page 77



�

��������
����,����������&������������������)����������������
��#����1������
���
�
���
�������
������&������������
��� �
��
��,���������,������������� ��
������
)��
��
��,������������
��5�!!������
��5�!��������
��9����$����������.��'���
)�$��������#��
���
�������������������
����
����
�������������
��������������
��


������������

�������
���������&��
������� ��
����
�����)�������#����
�����
)
����� ��
��� ,����� 
����� ��� &��#��� ��� ������� ����������$� ���� ����� ,��
��
��
)��1��#.�

�
C.4� (
������
���������$�
���������,������#����
������ �������������*����
�����

0�������#� �
���� ���
����� �� !���#������#� J����� )
�

� &����� ��#�����$� ���
���
���� 1�$� ,���������� ��� ����#������#� &������� �
���#
���� �
�� �����#
� ���
��������
����
����,������������������#�&��������
����
�������3�����)��1��#.��-�����
��##�������
��� ��� �
��,���� �������#�
�&�������
��� �
����
���������&���#����
)����� ����� ���� ��� �
��� !���#������#� J����� ��� ������� �
��� �
�� ��
���� 
����
������ ��� ���
� 

������ �� ���� ������� )��
��� �
�� ��
��� 
�&&�������� ���� #�����
�9�����&,
����.�

�
<&� ��*����*��/���*�$����$+
*���+��$�
�
	.�� 5������������� ��� �,����� ��� �����
��� ��� ���
�&���� �
����� ���� �
�� �9���������

��������� ���� ���� ��,�
���� ��� �� ������� ��� �
�� ��
�&&���������� 
���������
)��
����
�����,���.�

�
	.�� ��� �
��� ��,���� ����� ���� ,��,���� �
�� 
�������� ��� )��
���)��� ��� ,���
���� ���

�����
���� ��� �9��������� -&,�
�� ������&���� 7�9-�8� 
��� ���� ����� ��9�����.�
��$������9�����

��#���&�����$��
����)����
������5���
����)����
�������
�9-��
����������������9�����.�

�
	.4� '�������� ��� ��� ����
�,����� �
��� �
�� �&��#�&����� ����
������� )���� ,������� ��

�������� ����#������� &���� 
������
� ���� ���&����� �����
�� ��� ���� ���������� ����
�����
�����������(�)���*�&����.�

�
%7&� $'$��+��3�*����+���.�����5�**�*��*�1+����*���
�
��.�� �� �������� ����
������� )����� ��9����� ��)��� ������
��� ���� ��� �
�� &��#��#� ���

��&�� ���
������ ���� �
���#
� �
�� �

����&���� ��� ����
���
���� ���� �
��
���&�������������,��
�����.�

�
���.�� (
��� )���� ����� ��� �� ��
������ ��� �
�� 
������ ����,����� #��������� �$� �
��

����
������.�
�
%%&� �+$4�����5*�*���+�"�+���+��$�

�
��.�� /������������
����������������,�����������
�&������,���2�

(
���� 
��� ����� �����
���$� ��� ��
������#� ��� �
�� ������������ ,���� ���
5���
��������
������ ��!����
���7���,������5���
������
�������!

�����
6� /�&�����8.� (
�� 
�&������ ,���� �
����� �����
�� �� )����� �����.� (
��


�����#��)������� ����,,����������,�����
������
������5���
����)
��

��� #���� �
�� 
�������
�� ��� ���� ,��������� ��
�����#� �
�� �

����.� (
��
��)�3���)�����������#���������)������9������
����

���������
����&����
����������������#�,�������)
��
�����1�������������,���������$��
�����

Page 78



�

�
�����������#����������
����
����
����)�$��&��#�&���������
�������
)������
�&,���.�(
���)������&����
�������$�&������
������#���&�����
)��
� ���$� ������� &���#�&���� ���� �������
�,� ��,�����
��� ��
�����#�
��,�����
�� ��� ������#� ��� ����
���� �����.�0
���� �
�� �,��� ��� 
������� ���
���#��� �
��� ��� ����� ���� ���� ���
������ 5���
����.� (
�� ��)� ����
�������
)����� �

����� ���� �� ���#�� ,��,�������� �,,����&����$� ==F�� ��� �
��
����
�� �����#��.�*�)����������
������&�

��&�������&�����)��������
�,�����������
��$�&���#�������������
�����������

������������
���#
�
��������� �����
��� �.#.� �
�� �

����� ���#��� �

������ ��� ����� ����
&�������,�������&.�

�
��.�� -�� �
�� �
���� ���&� �����,����� ��� �� ������
����� �������� ��� �������������� ���

������������������
���������$2�
(
�������������1��$����
�,,�������
����������)�������,��������
���������
��� ��� �
�� ����&���� �����
�� �������#��� ��� �� 
�&������ ����
������.�
�����������$��(�)���*�&���� �������������,�����
�����&���#��#����#��
��#������������ 

��#�� ,��#��&&��� )���� &���#���� ��$� ��
����� ���
�����
�����������.�

�
��.4� "��1� �
��� ��� �
�� ���#��� ���&� �
�� 
�������� ��������
��� ���� ��

� �
��� �
��

��,�
�����&,����&�����������������

�&��#2�
(
�� �������
�,� ��� �
�� ��)� ����
������� ���� �
�� )�$� �
�� )
����
����
�������&���#������
�����
���
��������&����&����&���
��������
��������
����������)���������
������� ��1��#� �
���������,�
���������
�
����
������������
������#�������������
���������#������,,���

�)
�

�
��&�� ��� ��
��
�� �
�� 9�����$� ��� ����� ���� �
�� )
���� 
�&&����$� ��� ����
�#����)
������
����#��
��,��������������
������� ���#����������
�������
�
����������������)
��������
�&.�

�
��.;� "��1�����
��,�������
�,����)����%�������

����2�

!

����� &�$� ����� �
��� �
�� %�� ��� ��)�#�����#� �
�� �&,�����
�� ���
���
�����.�(
��� ���� ��
��� ���1�� ���� &���#����� �$� �
�� �������&���� ���
�
�� �
���� ���
������ )
�� )���� ��� ����� �����#� ���� &��������#� �
��
,��
���������������#� �
����
������� ���������
�,� �
�������������)����
�
��%�������

���������������������
��������.�

�
��.=� -�� ��� �� ,��
�&���� 

��#�� ���
��� �
��� ,���� ��� �� ����
��� )���� ������
�����#�

������#$2�
(
�� ,��,����� ��� �
��� ��,���� ��� �� 
������������ ��� �� ������ ������$�
��������
��� ��� ����
���
�� ��&���� ��� ���,������ ����#�&����(��&�
&�&�������������
���

��#���
����������������������������
��������.�

�
%)&� ��+�*���
�
+$��
*���*
'��+���+�"�+���+��$�
�
��.�� (
���� ���� ��� 
��&�� ���� ��������� ����
����� �&,��
������� ������#� ���&� �
���

��,���.�
��
%-&� *..+�+*��(�$���*�*����
�
�4.�� ��&&�����
��
�����#�����
���
����
�������������������)��
��� �
�����$����

�
����,������������
����&&���������
���
����/����
����'���
�����
����.�

Page 79



�

�
%0&� �""*�
+�*$�
�

@����
�
�

�
�
������5�=��	��	�����>�%<:)�$�����	�%77
��������	�����
��������?3��@
�� 	��"�����A� �����	��#������������	�����#���������&�

� �
���������
��,��������A��
1#������,�,���B� @�&����������,
������&�������
�������

������������)
�����,���������,�
����.�
�

��	�� B�
�
�

Page 80



Page 1 of 21 

 

���������������	
��

�
��	����

�
����

9th March 

2011 

��
������
���	��

 

Unrestricted  
�

�����������

CAB 101/101 

������������

������
����������������������

 

���
�	
��	
�����������  

Michael Keating, Service Head One 

Tower Hamlets  

Alan Finch, Service Head Corporate 

Finance 

 

��������

Strategic Performance and Corporate 

Budget Monitoring to 31st  December 

2010. 

 

�
�������������� 

All 

 

�����	�� �!�
	��"����

��

All 

#��
��
���!������ �

�

All 

 

$%� #&����'�

 

1.1 This is the third combined service and financial performance report for 2010-

11, covering October – December (Quarter 3). This report includes an update 

on the authority’s progress against the Strategic Indicator set, the “You 

Decide!” participatory budgeting programme and its financial position.   

 

1.2. The report was considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its 

meeting on 8th March.  

 

1.3.�� General Fund 

At this stage of the financial year there is a forecast General Fund overspend 

of £463,000 for the reasons summarised in paragraph 5.1 and detailed in 

Appendix 2. This compares with the overspend of £1,084,000 as at Quarter 2. 

This suggests that management action taken in the year to date has been 

partially successful in addressing overspends.  Limited time remains in the 

year for management action to be taken to ensure that expenditure at year 

end remains within budget and it is crucial that plans are in place for so doing. 

The report sets out the actions that Corporate Directors are taking to contain 

expenditure within budget. 

Agenda Item 10.2

Page 81



Page 2 of 21 

1.4. HRA 

The reported overspend has reduced from £510,000 at Quarter 2 to £73,000 

at Quarter 3.  

 

1.5 Capital position 

Directorates have spent 46% of their capital budgets for the year (£93,289,000 

against budgets of £204,008,000). Projected expenditure for the year is 

£154,270,000 representing an underspend of £49,738,000. The programme 

remains affordable within available resources.  

 

1.6 Strategic Indicators  

53% of the indicators which are reportable in this period are on target, and 

62% have improved performance since this time last year.  A risk analysis of 

the indicators likelihood to achieve year end target is included (7.11). 

 

1.7 ‘You Decide!’ 

 12 projects within the “You Decide” participatory budgeting programme are 

now complete, 69 are on track according to agreed milestones and 24 are 

delayed but are anticipated to complete on time. 4 projects here have been 

identified as at risk of not meeting overall project targets in 2011/12.  Mitigating 

action is detailed in section 8. 

 

1.8 More detailed performance and financial information is contained in the report 

appendices, as follows: 

• Appendix 1 - lists budget/target adjustments  

• Appendix 2 - provides the budget outturn forecast and explanations of 

major variances for Directorates for the General Fund 

• Appendix 3 - provides the budget outturn forecast and explanations of 

major variances for the HRA 

• Appendix 4 - shows progress against planned efficiency savings 

• Appendix 5 – provides details of projected transformation savings 

• Appendix 6 – provides details of changes to the capital budget since 

Quarter 2 

• Appendix 7 – provides details of spend to date and projected variances on 

the capital programme 

• Appendix 8 - provides an overview of performance for all of the Council’s 

Strategic Indicators (the Tower Hamlets Index) which represent the key 

priorities for the Council. 

• Appendix 9 - contains an overview of the current progress of initiatives 

funded by the Council’s participatory budgeting programme by LAP area 

 

Page 82



Page 3 of 21 

 

(%� �)�*#*��#��)+&*�)� 

 

�
��	�������������	�������,�

 

2.1. Note the Council’s financial position as outlined in paragraphs 5 and 6 and 

appendices 1-7 of this report;  

 

2.2 Review and note the Quarter 3 2010/11 performance including areas where 

further work is needed to ensure we deliver improved outcomes; 

 

2.3. Note the actions being taken to address the reported overspends��and�

�

2.4. Approve specific ‘You Decide!’ actions (section 8). �

�

-%� �)�#��#�.����/)��)�*#*��#�

�

 Quarterly updates on the position of the capital programme and revenue 

expenditure against budgets are provided to Cabinet for information. 

�

0%� �1�)����*2)��!�*��#�

�

Not applicable. 

Page 83



Page 4 of 21 

3%� �)2)�&)�

 

5.1 The following table summarises the current expected outturn position for the 

General Fund.�

 

SUMMARY Original 

Budget 

£’000 

Latest 

Budget 

£’000 

Forecast 

Outturn 

£’000 

Variance

           

£’000 

 

Adults Health and 

Wellbeing 

90,217 102,195 102,413 218 

Chief Executive 13,369 17,017 17,017 0 

Children, Schools and 

Families 

93,896 94,892 94,892 0 

Communities, Localities 

and Culture 

74,910 79,393 79,393 0 

 

Development and 

Renewal 

12,425 21,197 21,442 245 

Resources 18,363 14,156 14,156 0 

Corporate Costs/Capital 

Financing 

17,748 15,118 15,118 0 

 

����1� -(456(7� -0-5687� -0050-$� 08-�

 

5.2 Broad explanations of the anticipated significant adverse variances are as 

follows: 

 

5.3 ������5�/�
��"�
	���������	
                                                            9($75444 

�

The forecast overspend represents a reduction of £167,000 on the £385,000 

reported in Quarter 2. This largely reflects additional funding received from the 

NHS. 

 

The revised forecast net overspend occurs almost entirely within the 

Commissioning and Strategy Service (£203,000). Within this division the main 

variances are as follows: 

 

•  A42 Older People Commissioning (+£176,000)  

 

This is as a result of an increased number of clients being assessed as 

being eligible for a service as a result of demographic pressures. There 

has been an increase in the number of home care clients.  As the authority 

does not charge for community based services, but charging for residential 

placements is mandatory under national regulations, the net cost of many 

Page 84



Page 5 of 21 

care packages provided to support people at home is higher than the cost 

of residential care. The introduction of a reablement service has began to 

help reduce the need for long term support, however the service is only 

provided for new clients. 

 

 The increased income is a result of the utilisation of funding from the 

Department of Health and Department for Communities and Local 

Government to fund increased demand for social care services which is 

detailed further below. 

 

• A43 Learning Disabilities Commissioning (-£246,000)  

 

The increased expenditure (+£421,000) is due to an increase in the 

number of clients for the service. This is a result of transition clients from 

Children Schools and Families.  

 

The additional income (-£667,000) is mainly related to two very expensive 

continuing health care packages funded by Tower Hamlets Primary Care 

Trust. 

 

• A44 Mental Health Commissioning (-£216,000)  

 

The increase in income is due to more care packages being recoverable 

from Health Service partners reflecting a change in the mix of type of care 

packages being provided. 

 

• A45 Physical Disabilities Commissioning (+£787,000) 

 

The forecast overspend is as a result of an increased number of clients 

being assessed as being eligible for a service.  As the authority does not 

charge for community based services, but charging for residential 

placements is mandatory under national regulations, the net cost of many 

care packages provided to support people at home is higher than the cost 

of residential care.  The introduction of a reablement has began to help 

reduce the need for long term support, however the service is only offered 

to new clients. 

 

The authority has a number of clients which require assessment by Tower 

Hamlets Primary Care Trust for continuing care funding. These are being 

pursued and if successful will result in the care packages of the clients 

being recoverable (back dated to the date of submission). 

 

Page 85



Page 6 of 21 

��������:�������	�

�

Corrective action is taking place over all of the Directorate’s commissioning 

budgets and in the care management teams. These include: 

 

• A secondary audit is being carried out over all client groups on the 

effect of reablement, showing the impact on home care and the 

community equipment service. 

 

This secondary audit follows the first which was carried out six 

months ago which subsequently saw an increase in the number of 

clients receiving reablement. 

 

• The increasing number of referrals to reablement continue to be 

monitored by the Service Head Older People on a weekly basis. 

 

• Levels of delegation for all client group panels are being reviewed 

with the Physical Disabilities panel now meeting weekly.  This will be 

a further control for demand management. 

 

• The clients requiring assessment for continuing care funding have 

been escalated in the Primary Care Trust in order that a decision is 

made by the end of the financial year. 

 

• A project has been initiated by the directorate looking at our 

application of Fair Access to Care Services (FACS) to ensure we 

are consistent in our approach. 

 

• The Directorate’s Management Team are reviewing all of their 

budgets to seek savings to offset this overspend.  

 

��;��
���	
��/�
��"�#��:����.�	��	
�����#���
���
���*	��
�
���	�

 

Funding for reablement has been made available to the Primary Care Trust in 

2010/11 (£372k) and negotiations with the Primary Care Trust are underway 

regarding the possible transfer of some of this to the Borough in relation to 

reablement services provided on hospital discharge. In particular, funding is 

being sought to support the community equipment service which has seen a 

rise in the volume of equipment requests as a result of reablement (£200k). 

 

The Department of Communities and Local Government and Department of 

Health announced in December 2010 a funding allocation of £931k to the 

Primary Care Trust for ‘Winter Pressures’. This funding is due to be 

Page 86



Page 7 of 21 

transferred to the authority by the 31st March 2011 (pending legal agreement) 

and will be used to fund the Directorate’s over spent. The Department of 

Health guidance and that of the London Strategic Health Authority confirms 

the funding is to be used to meet the rising costs of existing social care 

provision and the funding should not be used for new or additional services. 

This funding has already been taken into account in the forecast overspend of 

£218,000. 

 

5.4 �"�����	5�#�"�����
	��.
����������������������������������������������� � � �*1 

 

At Quarter 2 there was a forecast overspend of £382,000. Savings had been 

identified to cover this overspend. 

 

The most significant variances are as follows: 

 

• Youth and Community Learning (+£87,000) – This anticipated overspend 

is due to mainly a projected over-spend in Communications (G69). The 

budget pressures previously reported in Parental Engagement & Support 

(G19) and in the Youth Offending Service (G60) continue; whilst the Junior 

Youth Service (G40) is on track to deliver an under-spend. 

 

• Children’s Social Care (-£396,000) – This underspend is largely 

attributable to the Family Support & Protection Service (H57) where staff 

vacancies and strict management of the Section 17 budget have produced 

projected savings of £370k.  There are some others variations in other 

budgets to generate the balance. 

 

• Children Services Resources (+£500,000) –The components of this net 

estimated overspend are service-wide savings targets being held within 

this division (+£337,000) and school redundancy costs (+£514,000), which 

cannot, by regulation, be charged to Dedicated Schools Grant. These are 

partly offset by unbudgeted income from the Gorsefield Professional 

Development Centre (-£251,000), the transfer of costs in respect of pre 

2005 premature retirements (-£147,000) and minor net variances  

     (+£47,000)�

 

• Other Services (-£191,000) – There are net underspends in the Learning 

and Achievement and Director’s Services divisions. 

 

Page 87



Page 8 of 21 

5.5 ��:������	��
	����	�;
�������������������������������������������������������� ��9(035444 

 

The Forecast overspend has reduced by £97,000 from the forecast overspend 

at Quarter 2 of £342,000.  

 

The overall forecast overspend is largely due an anticipated overspend of 

£279,000 on Homelessness services. There are fewer households in 

temporary accommodation than originally budgeted for and this has had a 

significant adverse impact on net rental income receivable. Nevertheless the 

forecast overspend has reduced by £63,000 since Quarter 2. 

 

5.6 /��� � � � � � � � � � 9<-5444 

�

The forecast overspend has reduced from £510,000 at Quarter 2. The 

overspend is the net effect of a shortfall of income from estate parking and 

leaseholder service charges (+£849,000), a forecast overspend on 

Supervision and Management (+£173,000), partly offset by reduced 

expenditure on Special Services, Rent Rates and Taxes (-£310,000), rental 

income in excess of budget (-£304,000), reduced provision for Bad Debts       

(-£315,000) and minor net variances (-£20,000). 

 

5.7 ���=�
��
� 

Risks have been highlighted under appropriate vote heads in Appendices 2 

and 3. 

 

5.8 #
:�	
����)������	� ��
�
��� 

The monitoring of savings targets will become increasingly important as we 

progress. Members have specifically asked for the Quarter 3 report to Cabinet 

to include details of progress in delivering the in-year savings agreed by the 

Cabinet in July.  

�

Details of progress against targets are shown in Appendices 4 and 5. 

 

 

 

Page 88



Page 9 of 21 

5.9 *	��������������	�!������
	����
�
��� 

�

����������� 

*	�����#���
�� ����������

�	�(446,$4�

>�

(4$4,$$�

�
�
������

-$%$(%$4������

>�

(4$4,$$�

����������

���-$%$(%$4�

>�

��������	�

�����
:���

�

Business Rates 99.29 73.50 84.97 ↑ 

Central Income 86.33 88.00 90.00 ↑�

Council Tax 94.40 71.28 71.38 ↑ 

Housing Rents 100.10 100.01 99.32 → 

PCNs 62.37 62.00 63.09 ↑ 

Service Charges 109.80   75.00 82.08 ↑ 

 

 

8%� ��!*��1�

�

6.1 The capital budget at Quarter 2 as approved by Cabinet on 1st December 2010 

totalled £198,311,000. This has now increased to £204,008,000 due in the 

main part to the adoption of capital estimates for Building Schools for the 

Future ICT infrastructure schemes. The changes to the budget since the 

Quarter 2 monitoring report are detailed in Appendix 6. 

6.2 Total spend to the end of Quarter 3 represented 46% of budget as follows:  

�		�
��?��
�� #��	���� >�?��
��

�
��
��-$,���,$4 -$,���,$4 #��	�

9@444 9@444

��*�#��)���!��A����)

Communities, Localities and Culture 14,045 5,497 39.1%

Children, Schools and Families 32,136 15,163 47.2%

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 735 214 29.1%

Development and Renewal 14,802 5,072 34.3%

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 47,247 24,769 52.4%

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 79,855 38,586 48.3%

��*�#��)�������1 $7757(4 765-4$ 0<%->

1���1�!�*��*�*)#�!��A����)��1!!�

Communities, Localities and Culture 1,544 141 9.1%

Children, Schools and Families 2,631 1,958 74.4%

Resources 4,769 1,405 29.5%

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 432 64 14.8%

Development and Renewal 4,712 420 8.9%

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 1,100 0 0.0%

1!!�����1 $35$77 -5677 (8%->

A���������1 (405447 6-5(76 03%<>

  

Page 89



Page 10 of 21 

6.3 Total projected expenditure for the year, as advised by Directorates managing 

capital schemes, totals £154,270,000 compared with the budget of 

£204,008,000, a forecast underspend of £49,738,000. Directorates confirm 

that their projections are realistic estimates of final actual spend for the year. 

Any unspent amounts at the year end can be carried forward into future 

financial years. Officers will advise at the end of the year of any uncommitted 

amounts that are not required as these can be reallocated to other schemes. 

An analysis of quarterly projections compared to outturn will be submitted to 

Members after the year end. Projected expenditure compared to budget is as 

follows: 

�		�
��?��
�� !��B�����	 .����
��

�
��
��-$,���,$4 (4$4,$$ 2
��
	��

9@444 9@444 9@444

��*�#��)���!��A����)

Communities, Localities and Culture 14,045 12,307 -1,738

Children, Schools and Families 32,136 26,403 -5,733

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 735 605 -130

Development and Renewal 14,802 7,556 -7,246

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 47,247 42,731 -4,516

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 79,855 56,049 -23,806

��*�#��)�������1 $7757(4 $03583$ ,0-5$86

1���1�!�*��*�*)#�!��A����)��1!!�

Communities, Localities and Culture 1,544 1,294 -250

Children, Schools and Families 2,631 2,007 -624

Resources 4,769 3,418 -1,351

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 432 250 -182

Development and Renewal 4,712 1,100 -3,612

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 1,100 550 -550

1!!�����1 $35$77 758$6 ,85386

A���������1 (405447 $305(<4 ,065<-7

 

6.4 The capital programme for this year has been set on the basis of available 

capital resources and amended as further resource announcements have 

been made by Government and other funders, and for Cabinet decisions. The 

capital programme remains affordable within the resources available. 

6.5 Further details of the programme are provided in Appendix 7. 

 

Page 90



Page 11 of 21 

<%� #����)A*��*��*�����#��

 

7.1 This is the third quarterly monitoring report for the Tower Hamlets Index, 

covering the period September-December 2010/11�  The Tower Hamlets Index 

is made up of 84 Strategic Indicators. These consist of: 

- All LAA indicators 

- Key measures of corporate health (usually ex-BVPIs) 

- The council’s strategic priorities 

- Some measures of customer satisfaction (usually Annual 

Residents Survey) 

 

7.2 Performance against our Strategic indicators for Quarter 3 2010/11 is set out 

in Appendix 8.  The performance update includes 2010/11 targets, Q3 2009/10 

actuals, outturn commentary and direction of travel charts for each indicator.  

Direction of travel compares performance against this time last year. 

 

7.3 The number of Strategic Performance indicators available for reporting 

fluctuates between periods. Different indicators have different reporting 

frequencies. Of the 84 indicators in the Strategic Indicator set, 57 can be 

reported this quarter, broken down as follows: 

- In year data for 42 indicators; and  

- Educational attainment and other Children’s indicator data for 

15 indicators, 11 of which is the annual outturn for 2009/10, and 

a further 4 provisional 

 

7.4 In-year targets have been set for the majority of Strategic Indicators. There are 

several indicators where it is not appropriate to set in year targets. For 

example, in year targets against housing delivery are not very helpful, 

particularly in terms of predicting year end performance. Narrative 

commentary explaining progress towards these targets will be increasingly 

important.  

 

7.5 Excluding provisional educational attainment indicators, there are 35 indicators 

where an in year target has been set and therefore a variation can be 

calculated.  Of those, 21 have achieved target (GREEN), and 14 have not 

achieved target (RED).  The table below sets out performance against target 

for Strategic Indicators for all reporting periods in 2009/10, and for 2010/11 to 

date and demonstrates that we are doing considerably better at this point of 

the year than at the same point in 2009/10. 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



Page 12 of 21 

�������	
�!������ A�))�� �)��

(446�$4�

Apr-May  11 (52.38%) 10 (47.61%) 

Q1  11 (50%) 11 (50%) 

Q2 14 (34.14%) 27 (65.85%) 

Q3 14 (42.42%) 19 (57.57%) 

Year End 39 (58.2%) 2 (41.8%) 

(4$4�$$�

Q1 17 (58.6%) 12 (41.4%) 

Q2  20 (69%) 9 (31%) 

Q3  21 (60%) 14 (40%) 

 

7.6 Of the 33 applicable indicators, 21 of the performance indicators (60%) are on 

track to achieve their end of year target (GREEN). Areas where performance 

is well above the estimated level for the end of December target are as 

follows: �

- S224 - Percentage residents satisfied with outcome to anti-

social behaviour reports 

- S225 – Average time to re-let properties 

- S226 – Tower Hamlets Homes service charge collected 

(excluding major works)  

- NI152a&NI153a – Working age people on out of work benefits 

& in worst performing neighbourhoods 

- NI150 – Adults receiving secondary mental health services in 

employment 

- NI195a & b – Improved street and environmental cleanliness – 

litter & detritus  

- NI47 – People killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 

- NI33i & ii – Arson incidents – primary & secondary 

- NI40 – Number of drug users recorded as being in effective 

treatment 

 

7.7 A total of 22 (66.6%) indicators have improved performance from this time last 

year. 

 

7.8� �		�
��
��
�	��	��C���"����"�����	D���
�
 

The final outturns for educational attainment & other Children’s measures for 

2009/10 is available for 11 indicators, and provisional data is provided for a 

further 4 indicators.  Two indicators which were RED last year have met or 

exceeded their annual target: 

- (NI72) Achievement of at least 78 points across the Early Years 

Foundation state with at least 6 in each of the scales in 

Page 92



Page 13 of 21 

Personal, Social & Emotional Development & Communication, 

Language & Literacy; and 

- (NI76) Reduction in the number of schools where fewer than 

55% of pupils achieve level 4 or above in both English & Maths 

at KS2 

 

7.9 Where final outturn data is available, there are two indicators were 

performance is off target and performance has deteriorated from this time last 

year:  

- NI93 – Progression by 2 levels in English between KS1 and 

KS2 

- NI94 – Progression by 2 levels in Maths between KS1 and KS2 

 

7.10 Provisional educational attainment data is available for a further 4 indicators 

and has been included for information.  Although off target, two of these 

provisional indicators have improved their performance since this time last 

year.  It should be noted however that provisional attainment data is subject to 

change, following re-grading and appeals. A comprehensive review of those 

results and further commentary will be provided following outturn validation.   

 

7.11 A risk analysis has been undertaken and indicators have been identified as 

being at risk of failing to achieve their target by the year end. The risk analysis 

uses a series of risk based criteria to identify which indicators would benefit 

from further scrutiny at Performance Review Group. 

 Based on risk – impact 

- Performance against target 

- Quartile performance (comparison to most recent data available 

from London Council’s benchmarking Q2) 

- Variance over 10% (comparing actual to target) 

 Based on risk – likelihood 

- Improving (previous reporting period or same period previous 

year) 

- Confidence in recovery (assessment based on comments) 

 

7.12 #��
��
��$4-5�$40�E��"�������	�

������"�������
���,�1!4<����
��:��,����

1��
�����"���� ���
����"
��
���
	���"	�����	���� ���"
:��
����
�����  

As in 2009/10, these indicators have been highlighted as being at risk of 

achieving their year end target. They are both off target, and have not 

improved since the last reporting period (September). The targets for ethnic 

minority staff and those who have a disability have deteriorated since the last 

reporting period; however there is an improvement on this time last year.   

Comments from the service indicate that the Vacancy Assurance project and 

the Staff Equality Audit should improve the position; however the audit is not 

scheduled until next financial year. In addition the implications on staffing 

Page 93



Page 14 of 21 

arising from the CSR budget cuts will affect staffing levels across all grades, 

and it would be difficult to predict whether these cuts would affect the 

proportion of LP07 or above staff in these categories. 

 

7.13 #��
��
��((-�E���������������
����	����"����	
����������	�������
��� �

"����	
��
�������
������	� � 

Forecast outturn against the 3 year target should see us deliver at least 1246 

social rented family housing units for the period 2008 - 2011; this is 2.55% 

higher than the 3 year target of 1215 for the same period.  However, the 

2010/11 outturn may be lower than 2010/11 target (as opposed to the three 

year target).Housing delivery targets are subject to constant review and it is 

likely that year end data review and verification may result in a higher outturn. 

 

7.14 #��
��
��((<�E���	������������
��
������	�

�������	���������;���

/
������/������ 

This measure is off target and has deteriorated in performance since this time 

last year and since the last reporting period.  However there is only a minor 

variance between target and actual and comments suggest there are plans in 

place to enable a recovery by the end of the year. 

 

7.15 �
���	
�$08�E��������;��"���
�	�	
����
����������	�������� ��	��

This measure is off target and has deteriorated since this time last year.  Most 

recent official benchmarking shows our current performance on this measure 

as being bottom quartile (year end 2008/09).  However the service reports that 

the percentage of clients meeting the criteria will increase towards the end of 

the reporting period, and is therefore confident in meeting its year end target.  

 

7.16 #��
��
��$4$
�E�2
��
���	�������B������������	���������
����F�,��

At this stage in the financial year there is a forecast General Fund overspend 

of £463,000 and HRA overspend of £73,000. Since Quarter 2 these forecasts 

have reduced from £1,084,000 and £510,000 respectively and suggest that 

management action taken in the year to date has been partially successful in 

addressing overspends. However, limited time remains in the year for 

management action to be taken to ensure that expenditure at year end remains 

within budget and it is crucial that plans are in place for so doing. Actions being 

taken by corporate directors to contain expenditure within budget are detailed 

in paragraph 5 above. 

 

7.17 �
���	
�$63
C��E������:����������
	���	:���	��	�
�����
	��	����E�


�
������C��� ,�����	
�

Both measures are off target by over 10%, and have deteriorated in 

performance since the last reporting period. The Council is in the lower half of 

performance in relation to the latest available benchmark (Q2).  Out of 31 

applicable LA, benchmarking has been provided by 27, and LBTH is ranked 

Page 94



Page 15 of 21 

13th and 22nd respectively.  However, areas of weakness arising from this 2nd 

tranche survey have been identified and action is being undertaken to address 

for the third (final) tranche which will be undertaken in March. 

 

7.18 �
���	
�$-3�E��
����������:�	
�	�����
�������	�������:��;�
	��
�

� ����������
���D�����:���5����
�:����C��	����
���	 

 This measure is off target by over 10%, and has deteriorated in performance 

since this time last year.  However, compared to the latest benchmarking 

provided by London Councils (Q2), of the 31 London Boroughs, the Council is 

performing well, ranking 5th (out of 22 boroughs who provided data).  Last 

year’s data collection and performance trend for this measure was weighted 

towards year end, and therefore there is confidence that this measure will 

achieve its year end target. 

 

7%� G'�&��)�*�)HD�!���*�*!����'�?&�A)�*�A�!��A����)�

 

8.1 ‘You Decide!’ is Tower Hamlets’ innovative participatory budgeting project. 

The programme has asked residents to make decisions over £4.876 million of 

council funding over the last two years. Council departments are working with 

the LAP Steering Groups to shape exactly how those services will be 

delivered in their local area. The Steering Groups play a central role in 

monitoring those services over the year.  

 

8.2 Appendix 9 details the delivery of projects purchased through the ‘You 

Decide!’ process. This includes 2010/11 projects as well as ongoing two-year 

projects from 2009/10. Services have provided comments on individual 

projects where appropriate. The RAG status indicates the progression of 

projects according to agreed milestones: Green/Complete; Gold/On Target; 

Amber/Delayed; and Red/At Risk/Overdue. The percentage of budget spent is 

also indicated.  

 

Overview of progress with projects 

8.3 There were 102 projects purchased in 2010/11 out of a total budget of £2.5 

million (including £300,000 from the Communities for Health budget). Out of 

the 84 projects purchased in 2009/10 there are 7 projects that are ongoing in 

2010/11 due to a two-year spending commitment. As such £365,625 was 

carried over from the 2009/10 budget. 

 

8.4 This monitoring report includes both projects purchased in 2010/11 and 

remaining projects from 2009/10 meaning a total of 109 projects and a total 

budget of £2,865,625.  Please see summary information on the projects by 

LAP and expenditure below. 

Page 95



Page 16 of 21 

 

LAP Total no. of 

projects 

Total budget Total 

spend 

% spent 

1 18 £468,125 

(£415, 000 plus £53,125 

carryover from 09/10) 

£230,951 49.3% 

2 12 £328,125 

(£275,000 plus £53, 125 

carryover from 09/10) 

£140,064 42.7% 

3 9 £328,125 

(£275,000 plus £53, 125 

carryover from 09/10) 

£142,695 43.4% 

4 13 £328,125 

(£275,000 plus £53, 125 

carryover from 09/10) 

£170,159 51.9% 

5 12 £325,000 

(£275,000 plus £50,000 

carryover from 09/10) 

£195,066 60% 

6 12 £275,000 £122,072 44.3% 

7 12 £328,125 

(£275,000 plus £53, 125 

carryover from 09/10) 

£169,177 51.6% 

8 12 £325,000 

(£275,000 plus £50,000 

carryover from 09/10) 

£118,583 36.5% 

Youth 9 £160,000 £33,346 20.8% 

�����	� 
��� 
���������� 

�����
��� ���
��

 

 

8.5 At present, 12 projects are complete, 69 are on track according to agreed 

milestones and 24 are delayed but are anticipated to complete on time. There 

are 4 projects currently at risk of not meeting overall project targets. The table 

below outlines the performance per LAP and includes a separate line for an 

update on performance of projects bough through the Youth Participatory 

Budgeting event.  

 

Page 96



Page 17 of 21 

8.6 Overview of performance by LAP 

 

LAP Total no. of 

projects 

Complete 

GREEN 

On Target 

GOLD 

Delayed 

AMBER 

Overdue 

RED 

1 18 3 11 4 0 

2 12 0 8 4 0 

3 9 1 7 2 0 

4 13 2 7 3 1 

5 12 2 8 1 0 

6 12 1 7 3 1 

7 12 1 10 1 0 

8 12 1 7 2 2 

Youth 9 1 4 4 0 

������� 
��� 
�� ��� ��� ��

 

8.7 At risk projects 

The Pamper Days project for Older People was bought in three LAP areas.  

The project has had significant delays due to staffing issues at the delivery 

organisation.  This funding will be taken back by Adult Health and Wellbeing 

Directorate to find an alternative use.  

 

8.8 The Healthy Eating Project (LAP 8) is joint-funded between the PCT/LBTH 

through the Communities for Health grant, was intended to provide a 

programme of activities that supported young people to make healthy eating 

choices. Due to challenges in engaging schools in LAP8 and setbacks due to 

inappropriate/inadequate proposals from a number of organisations the LAP8 

work has been severely delayed and no spend will be made against the 

£35,000 in LAP 8 in 2010/11.  The PCT who is responsible for the delivery of 

this project,  has a robust proposal for delivering a potentially innovative 

programme of work around increasing healthy eating options that will dovetail 

with ongoing work within LAP 8 as part of the Healthy Borough programme 

and work that is school or youth setting led. The proposal seeks to link local 

activities and add value to these. It is anticipated that all spend/delivery will 

happen in 2011/12 and, in the context of the Council’s overall outturn position, 

consideration will be given as to whether the funding will be carried over.  

 

8.9 Overview of finance by LAP �

The table below indicates the current spend against total budget per LAP. 

46.1% of the budget has so far been spent. It is anticipated that most of the 

remaining spend will occur in Quarter Four particularly in the case of capital 

projects.  There is an estimated carry-over of £450,940 required into 2011/12 

to which consideration will be given in the context of the Council’s overall 

outturn position.  This includes projects that were expected to run into 2011/12 

Page 97



Page 18 of 21 

totalling £294,074, but also a request to carry over funds from projects that 

have for various reasons experienced delays or issues in getting started and 

delivering the prescribed activity (est. £156,866). 

 

8.10 A number of projects are tied to the academic year and started in September. 

As such carry-over will be considered to roll funds totalling £122,001 into 

Quarter One of 2011/12.  

 

8.11 The 8 projects jointly funded by the PCT/LBTH through the Communities for 

Health grant are due for completion in March 2012. As such carry-over of 

£172,073 into 2011/12 to be spent through the financial year on breakfast 

clubs, peer education alcohol awareness projects, additional drug outreach 

worker support and additional healthy eating programmes will be considered. 

 

8.12 A further 22 projects require carry over estimated at £156,866.  All services 

have developed alternate options for delivery that will support completion by 

end of Q2 of 2011/12.   

  

6%� ����)��#��.��/)��/*).�.*����*�1��..*�)��

�

9.1 This report sets out the performance of the authority against priority 

performance indicators for the third quarter of the year together with budget 

monitoring against the General Fund revenue budget, the HRA revenue 

budget and the capital budget. This enables performance in both areas to be 

considered alongside one another and facilitates actions being taken on the 

basis of a balanced overall view. Actions taken to address overspends in 

previous quarters have been partly successful and a reduced overspend is 

now reported. 

 

9.2 The report projects a net General Fund overspend of £0.463m and a net 

overspend on the HRA of £0.073m. If this were to be carried through to the 

end of the financial year it would result in decreases in general reserves and 

housing reserves respectively. 

 

9.3 This is the third quarter report and, accordingly, the projected outturn is based 

on a significant portion of the financial year. The scope for controlling potential 

overspends is becoming more limited. However, where overspends are being 

predicted Corporate Directors, in accordance with Financial Regulations, must 

keep the position under close, continuous review and, where necessary, 

identify compensatory savings. Paragraph 5 and associated appendices detail 

the actions currently being taken. Additionally the Council Management Team 

has instigated a monthly monitoring process through which it will oversee 

expenditure against budget. The Corporate Director – Resources will also 

Page 98



Page 19 of 21 

monitor closely those directorates that have so far projected adverse material 

end of year variances. 

 

9.4 Contingencies set aside at the start of the financial year to fund budget risks 

are likely to be used in the current financial year and into 2011/12 to assist in 

delivering the savings required to balance the budget in the wake of 

Government grant cuts. Sums have been set aside in respect of redundancy, 

and there will also be costs arising from project delivery and to manage 

reductions in specific grants relating to education children’s services. Any 

arrangements required to carry amounts forward will be reported at the end of 

the financial year. 

 

9.5 The report also details expenditure against the capital programme. Spend to 

date of £93.289m represents only 46% of the programme. The forecast 

outturn is £154.270m, 76% of budget due to re-profiling of BSF projects and 

slippage across the capital programme. Any unspent capital resources at year 

end will be carried forward to meet committed spend on agreed projects in 

future years.  

�

$4%� ����&��)����)!�����.��/)��##*#������/*).�)I)�&�*2)��1)A�1�

#)�2*�)#��

 

10.1 The report provides performance information, including by reference to key 

performance indicators and the budget. 

 

10.2 It is consistent with good administration for the Council to consider monitoring 

information in relation to plans and budgets that it has adopted. 

 

10.3 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires the Council as a best 

value authority to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 

the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  Monitoring of performance 

information is an important way in which that obligation can be fulfilled. 

 

10.4 The Council is required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs.  The 

Council’s chief finance officer has established financial procedures to ensure 

the Council’s proper financial administration.  These include procedures for 

budgetary control.  It is consistent with these arrangements for Members to 

receive information about the revenue and capital budgets as set out in the 

report. 

 

 

 

Page 99



Page 20 of 21 

 

$$%� ��)����)��/��1)�#����#*�)���*��#�

�

� The Council’s Strategic Plan and Strategic Indicators are focused upon 

meeting the needs of the diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets and 

supporting delivery of One Tower Hamlets. In particular, Strategic priorities 

include the reduction of inequalities and the fostering of strong community 

cohesion and are measured by a variety of strategic indicators.�

�

$(%� #&#��*��?1)����*���.�����A�))�)��)�2*����)�� 

�

 An element of the monitoring report deals with environmental milestones 

within the Safe and Supportive agenda. 

 

 

$-% �*#J�����A)�)���*�!1*���*��# 

�

 In line with the Council’s risk management strategy, the information contained 

within the Strategic Indicator Monitoring will assist the Cabinet, Corporate 

Directors and relevant service managers in delivering the ambitious targets set 

out in the Strategic Plan. Regular monitoring reports will enable Members and 

Corporate Directors to keep progress under regular review. 

 

 There is a risk to the integrity of the authority’s finances if an imbalance occurs 

between resources and needs. This is mitigated by regular monitoring and, 

where appropriate, corrective action. This report provides a corporate 

overview to supplement more frequent monitoring that takes place at detailed 

level. 

 

 The explanations provided by the Directorates for the budget variances also 

contain analyses of risk factors. 

 

$0% ��*�)������*#���)���)�&��*���*�!1*���*��#�

�

The Strategic Indicator set contain a number of crime and disorder items 

under the Safe & Supportive theme, however there are no specific crime and 

disorder reduction implications. 

 

 

$3% )..*�*)��'�#���)�)����

�

 The Efficiency Statement is covered by Appendix 4 of this report, and 

additionally, appendix 5 provides details of projected transformation savings. 

�

Page 100



Page 21 of 21 

�

$8%� �!!)��*�)#�

�

• Appendix 1 - lists budget/target adjustments  

• Appendix 2 - provides the budget outturn forecast and explanations of major 

variances for Directorates for the General Fund 

• Appendix 3 - provides the budget outturn forecast and explanations of major 

variances for the HRA 

• Appendix 4 - shows progress against planned efficiency savings 

• Appendix 5 – provides details of projected transformation savings 

• Appendix 6 – provides details of changes to the capital budget since Quarter 2 

• Appendix 7 – provides details of spend to date and projected variances on the 

capital programme 

• Appendix 8 - provides an overview of performance for all of the Council’s 

Strategic Indicators (the Tower Hamlets Index) which represent the key 

priorities for the Council. 

• Appendix 9 - contains an overview of the current progress of initiatives funded 

by the Council’s participatory budgeting programme by LAP area 

 

 

 

 

�

�������������������������������������������������������

�

1��
��A�:��	��	�����5�$6<(�#�����	�$44������
��	�����

1�������K?
�=
���	��!
����L�������	��"������
�
���	�����"����������

� �

���K�
�=
���	���
����L�;����������	�

;����	
��"����������

��

 

 

 

 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

R
2

P
 S

a
v

in
g

s
A

g
e

n
c

y
 i
n

 Y
e

a
r 

S
a

v
in

g
 D

o
u

b
le

 

C
o

u
n

t 

R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

B
e

a
c

o
n

s
 

R
e

s
e

rv
e

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l

A
B

G
 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

W
N

F
 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(B
a

s
e

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

&
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t)

L
if

e
lo

n
g

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
T

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o

f 

F
a

c
il
it

ie
s

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

S
e

rv
ic

e
 B

u
d

g
e

ts

A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

0
,2

1
7

,7
0

0
1

0
1

,3
4

3
,2

0
0

(8
,5

8
6

)
2

5
0

,0
0

0
2

4
1

,4
1

4
0

6
0

6
,8

0
0

6
0

6
,8

0
0

1
0

2
,1

9
1

,4
1

4

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o

o
ls

 &
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
9

3
,8

9
5

,6
0

0
9

1
,1

6
2

,8
6

0
(7

3
,8

0
3

)
(7

3
,8

0
3

)
0

1
2

2
,0

0
0

3
,6

8
1

,9
3

0
3

,8
0

3
,9

3
0

9
4

,8
9

2
,9

8
7

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L

o
c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

7
4

,9
1

0
,7

3
4

7
7

,6
2

5
,8

1
8

(1
5

,9
2

3
)

(1
5

,9
2

3
)

0
1

,6
8

3
,5

6
7

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,7

8
3

,5
6

7
7

9
,3

9
3

,4
6

2

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
1

2
,4

2
4

,7
8

0
1

5
,3

2
0

,3
8

0
(1

8
,4

3
7

)
(1

8
,4

3
7

)
0

1
,4

9
6

,1
8

9
1

,4
9

6
,1

8
9

4
,3

9
9

,0
0

0
2

1
,1

9
7

,1
3

2

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

1
3

,3
6

8
,8

2
0

1
4

,8
3

8
,3

7
6

(4
,5

0
0

)
2

3
0

,3
9

1
2

2
5

,8
9

1
0

2
,1

4
6

,3
9

5
(1

9
3

,7
5

0
)

1
,9

5
2

,6
4

5
1

7
,0

1
6

,9
1

2

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
8

,3
6

1
,5

0
0

1
8

,2
4

1
,7

6
0

1
2

1
,2

4
9

1
2

1
,2

4
9

0
1

9
3

,7
5

0
1

9
3

,7
5

0
(4

,3
9

9
,0

0
0

)
1

4
,1

5
7

,7
5

9

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

/C
a

p
it
a

l
1

7
,7

4
8

,2
0

0
1

5
,1

1
8

,2
0

0
0

0
0

1
5

,1
1

8
,2

0
0

S
u

b
to

ta
l

3
2

0
,9

2
7

,3
3

4
3

3
3

,6
5

0
,5

9
4

0
2

5
0

,0
0

0
2

3
0

,3
9

1
4

8
0

,3
9

1
0

1
2

2
,0

0
0

9
,6

1
4

,8
8

1
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

9
,8

3
6

,8
8

1
0

3
4

3
,9

6
7

,8
6

6

R
e

v
is

e
d

 C
u

rr
e

n
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
s

 a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
O

ri
g

in
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
s

 a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

0
2

%
 t
o

 5
%

 

A
m

b
e

r

>
5

%
 R

e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

5
5

,2
0

8
1

1
6

,8
8

0
1

1
9

,6
7

9
1

2
0

,0
7

0
3

,1
9

0
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
4

,9
9

1
)

(1
4

,6
8

5
)

(1
7

,7
0

7
)

(1
7

,6
5

7
)

(2
,9

7
2

)
2

0
(0

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
9

0
,2

1
7

1
0

2
,1

9
5

1
0

1
,9

7
2

1
0

2
,4

1
3

2
1

8
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

1
,3

7
9

2
6

,6
8

6
2

5
,5

4
8

2
6

,6
8

6
0

0
4

In
c
o

m
e

(8
,0

1
0

)
(9

,6
6

9
)

(1
0

,6
7

8
)

(9
,6

6
9

)
0

0
(9

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

3
,3

6
9

1
7

,0
1

7
1

4
,8

7
0

1
7

,0
1

7
0

0
(5

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

1
0

,8
5

2
3

1
6

,4
7

6
3

1
6

,3
9

2
3

1
6

,2
4

3
(2

3
3

)
(0

)
(0

)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
1

0
,8

5
2

)
(3

1
6

,4
7

6
)

(3
1

6
,3

9
2

)
(3

1
6

,2
4

3
)

2
3

3
(0

)
(0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
(0

)
(0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

6
7

,5
9

3
1

6
2

,0
9

6
1

7
3

,1
8

8
1

8
0

,0
7

6
1

7
,9

8
0

1
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

(7
3

,6
9

7
)

(6
7

,2
0

4
)

(8
1

,7
6

9
)

(8
5

,1
8

4
)

(1
7

,9
8

0
)

2
7

4

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
3

,8
9

6
9

4
,8

9
2

9
1

,4
1

9
9

4
,8

9
2

0
0

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
6

,0
9

7
1

2
7

,3
7

5
1

2
6

,2
2

2
1

2
7

,4
4

8
7

4
0

1
In

c
o

m
e

(4
1

,1
8

7
)

(4
7

,9
8

1
)

(4
8

,6
2

2
)

(4
8

,0
5

5
)

(7
4

)
0

(1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
4

,9
1

0
7

9
,3

9
3

7
7

,6
0

0
7

9
,3

9
3

(0
)

(0
)

(0
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

7
,0

2
4

8
9

,3
5

2
8

3
,0

3
5

8
3

,2
5

5
(6

,0
9

7
)

(7
)

0
In

c
o

m
e

(1
4

,5
9

9
)

(6
8

,1
5

5
)

(6
2

,9
3

2
)

(6
1

,8
1

3
)

6
,3

4
2

(9
)

(2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2

,4
2

5
2

1
,1

9
7

2
0

,1
0

3
2

1
,4

4
2

2
4

5
1

(2
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

8
9

,6
7

2
2

6
7

,0
3

1
2

6
7

,0
3

1
2

6
7

,0
3

1
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
7

1
,3

0
9

)
(2

5
2

,8
7

5
)

(2
5

2
,8

7
5

)
(2

5
2

,8
7

5
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
8

,3
6

3
1

4
,1

5
6

1
4

,1
5

6
1

4
,1

5
6

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

9
,2

4
8

2
1

,4
5

4
2

1
,4

5
4

2
1

,4
5

4
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,5

0
0

)
(6

,3
3

6
)

(6
,3

3
6

)
(6

,3
3

6
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

,7
4

8
1

5
,1

1
8

1
5

,1
1

8
1

5
,1

1
8

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,1
0

7
,0

7
3

1
,1

2
7

,3
5

0
1

,1
3

2
,5

4
9

1
,1

4
2

,2
6

3
1

4
,9

1
4

1
1

In
c
o

m
e

(7
8

6
,1

4
5

)
(7

8
3

,3
8

2
)

(7
9

7
,3

1
1

)
(7

9
7

,8
3

2
)

(1
4

,4
5

1
)

2
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
2

0
,9

2
8

3
4

3
,9

6
8

3
3

5
,2

3
8

3
4

4
,4

3
1

4
6

3
0

1
T

O
T

A
L

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

C
S

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 (
D

S
G

)

C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

'S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

1
 o

f 
2

8

Page 105



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

0
2

%
 t
o

 5
%

 

A
m

b
e

r

>
5

%
 R

e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

7
2

1
6

5
1

7
2

1
7

2
7

4

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

2
1

6
5

1
7

2
1

7
2

7
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

2
8

2
1

2
6

1
2

6
4

4
5

4

In
c
o

m
e

(8
2

)
(8

2
)

(1
2

6
)

(1
2

6
)

(4
4

)
5

4
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,1
1

9
1

,5
3

8
1

,5
0

3
1

,5
0

3
(3

5
)

(2
)

In
c
o

m
e

(4
2

3
)

(4
2

3
)

(4
2

3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

1
9

1
,1

1
5

1
,0

8
0

1
,0

8
0

(3
5

)
(3

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

5
9

1
,2

2
4

1
,2

2
4

2
,0

0
0

7
7

6
6

3
6

3

In
c
o

m
e

(5
1

3
)

(8
7

8
)

(8
7

8
)

(1
,6

5
0

)
(7

7
2

)
8

8
8

8
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
3

4
6

3
4

6
3

4
6

3
5

0
4

1
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

4
,9

3
9

2
5

,1
8

7
2

6
,1

4
6

2
5

,5
9

3
4

0
6

(2
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,6

9
4

)
(3

,9
4

1
)

(4
,4

2
9

)
(4

,1
7

1
)

(2
3

0
)

6
(6

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

1
,2

4
5

2
1

,2
4

6
2

1
,7

1
7

2
1

,4
2

2
1

7
6

1
(1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

4
,3

7
7

2
3

,7
8

9
2

3
,9

9
9

2
4

,2
1

0
4

2
1

2
1

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,2

9
0

)
(3

,8
5

5
)

(5
,0

8
4

)
(4

,5
2

2
)

(6
6

7
)

1
7

(1
1

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

0
,0

8
7

1
9

,9
3

4
1

8
,9

1
5

1
9

,6
8

8
(2

4
6

)
(1

)
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

0
,0

0
6

9
,9

6
1

1
0

,0
0

8
1

0
,0

5
3

9
2

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,6

1
7

)
(1

,5
1

3
)

(1
,8

7
5

)
(1

,8
2

1
)

(3
0

8
)

2
0

(3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,3

8
9

8
,4

4
8

8
,1

3
3

8
,2

3
2

(2
1

6
)

(3
)

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

,6
9

2
7

,5
9

4
8

,5
8

6
8

,4
2

0
8

2
6

1
1

(2
)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,2

8
3

)
(1

,2
8

3
)

(1
,4

8
8

)
(1

,3
9

0
)

(1
0

7
)

8
(7

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
6

,4
0

9
6

,3
1

1
7

,0
9

8
7

,0
3

0
7

1
9

1
1

(1
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

6
0

2
6

0
2

3
6

1
9

9
(6

1
)

(2
3

)
(1

6
)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
5

1
)

(1
5

1
)

(1
5

1
)

(1
5

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

9
1

0
9

8
5

4
8

(6
1

)
(5

6
)

(4
4

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

5
,7

5
2

1
5

,5
5

1
1

5
,7

9
6

1
5

,9
0

2
3

5
1

2
1

In
c
o

m
e

(1
5

,6
5

0
)

(2
6

5
)

(5
1

0
)

(6
1

6
)

(3
5

1
)

1
3

2
2

1
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

0
2

1
5

,2
8

6
1

5
,2

8
6

1
5

,2
8

6

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

A
5

3
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 M

&
A

A
4

4
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

A
0

4
 P

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

A
4

1
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
li
s

a
ti

o
n

A
4

2
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

A
4

3
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

A
0

5
 C

a
re

rs
 G

ra
n

t

A
4

5
 P

h
y
s

ic
a

l 
D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

A
5

0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

A
4

6
 H

IV
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

2
 o

f 
2

8

Page 106



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

2
1

4
9

5
5

9
2

5
9

6
1

0
1

2
0

1

In
c
o

m
e

(8
8

)
(1

6
0

)
(1

8
0

)
(9

2
)

1
0

5
1

3
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

2
1

4
0

7
4

3
2

4
1

6
9

2
(4

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

8
8

3
8

8
3

8
8

3
2

0
(6

8
)

(1
8

)
(1

8
)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8

8
3

8
8

3
8

8
3

2
0

(6
8

)
(1

8
)

(1
8

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

7
7

4
8

2
3

8
9

1

In
c
o

m
e

(1
)

(1
)

(4
2

)
(4

2
)

(4
1

)
4

,1
0

0
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

4
3

4
4

3
4

3
5

4
4

0
(3

)
(1

)
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

9
5

7
5

5
7

5
5

6
1

0
(1

4
5

)
(1

9
)

(1
9

)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
9

5
7

5
5

7
5

5
6

1
0

(1
4

5
)

(1
9

)
(1

9
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

9
9

7
2

4
9

1
9

1
,1

5
1

4
2

7
5

9
2

5

In
c
o

m
e

(2
4

6
)

(4
4

5
)

(6
0

6
)

(3
6

0
)

1
4

6
3

6
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

9
9

4
7

8
4

7
4

5
4

5
6

7
1

4
1

5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

7
9

4
5

9
4

5
9

4
5

3
(6

)
(1

)
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
1

0
)

(1
1

1
)

(1
1

0
)

(1
1

0
)

1
(1

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
3

6
9

3
4

8
3

4
9

3
4

3
(5

)
(1

)
(2

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

8
,0

8
4

8
8

,6
1

6
9

1
,3

8
6

9
1

,7
9

0
3

,1
7

4
4

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
7

,3
9

1
)

(1
2

,8
3

7
)

(1
5

,7
2

1
)

(1
5

,8
0

8
)

(2
,9

7
1

)
2

3
1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
0

,6
9

3
7

5
,7

7
9

7
5

,6
6

5
7

5
,9

8
2

2
0

3
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

6
8

1
6

8
1

6
8

1
6

8

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6

8
1

6
8

1
6

8
1

6
8

A
0

8
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

2
0

4
0

3
4

2
0

4
0

3
(4

)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
2

0
4

0
3

4
2

0
4

0
3

(4
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,0
9

7
2

,1
1

9
2

,1
9

0
2

,1
4

2
2

3
1

(2
)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
1

2
)

(1
1

2
)

(1
1

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,0

9
7

2
,0

0
7

2
,0

7
8

2
,0

3
0

2
3

1
(2

)

A
5

5
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
6

1
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 S
u

p
p

 &
 P

ro
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
5

8
 T

e
c

h
n

ic
a

l 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s

A
3

8
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d

A
0

9
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 A
s

s
e

s
s

 &
 C

a
re

 M
n

g
m

t

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 &
 S

tr
a

te
g

y

A
5

6
 S

o
c

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I
.T

.

A
5

9
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

 A
6

2
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 P
o

li
c

y

3
 o

f 
2

8

Page 107



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

0
9

1
5

5
1

5
2

1
3

9
(1

6
)

(1
0

)
(9

)

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

)
(6

5
)

(5
6

)
(6

)
1

2
(1

4
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

9
1

0
5

8
7

8
3

(2
2

)
(2

1
)

(5
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,1
7

5
1

,1
4

9
1

,0
9

6
1

,1
2

5
(2

4
)

(2
)

3

In
c
o

m
e

(5
2

)
(1

6
7

)
(1

7
6

)
(1

7
6

)
(9

)
5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

2
3

9
8

2
9

2
0

9
4

9
(3

3
)

(3
)

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

3
5

4
1

7
4

3
1

4
6

2
4

5
1

1
7

In
c
o

m
e

(1
2

7
)

(3
6

)
(3

9
)

(3
9

)
(3

)
8

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0

8
3

8
1

3
9

2
4

2
3

4
2

1
1

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,3
4

7
1

,2
8

9
1

,3
4

5
1

,3
6

9
8

0
6

2

In
c
o

m
e

(8
9

)
(9

9
)

(9
9

)
1

1
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,3
4

7
1

,2
8

9
1

,2
5

6
1

,2
7

0
(1

9
)

(1
)

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

0
2

9
8

9
4

9
3

(5
)

(5
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

2
9

8
9

4
9

3
(5

)
(5

)
(1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6

7
2

6
5

6
5

6
0

5
9

9
(5

7
)

(9
)

7

In
c
o

m
e

(1
)

(1
)

(2
)

(2
)

(1
)

1
0

0
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
6

7
1

6
5

5
5

5
8

5
9

7
(5

8
)

(9
)

7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,6
6

8
1

,6
3

0
1

,6
1

8
1

,6
3

8
8

0
1

In
c
o

m
e

(3
7

)
(3

7
)

(3
8

)
(4

3
)

(6
)

1
6

1
3

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

3
1

1
,5

9
3

1
,5

8
0

1
,5

9
5

2
0

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

,0
9

7
6

,6
9

8
6

,7
9

6
6

,5
8

8
(1

1
0

)
(2

)
(3

)

In
c
o

m
e

(9
7

)
(9

7
)

(9
7

)
(2

0
)

7
7

(7
9

)
(7

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,0

0
0

6
,6

0
1

6
,6

9
9

6
,5

6
8

(3
3

)
(0

)
(2

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

4
,8

7
0

1
4

,7
8

2
1

4
,8

7
0

1
4

,7
2

6
(5

6
)

(0
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
1

4
)

(5
0

0
)

(6
1

8
)

(5
4

7
)

(4
7

)
9

(1
1

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

4
,5

5
6

1
4

,2
8

2
1

4
,2

5
2

1
4

,1
7

9
(1

0
3

)
(1

)
(1

)

A
0

2
 D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 &
 H

e
a

lt
h

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
M

&
A

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

7
5

1
7

5
1

7
5

1
7

5

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

5
1

7
5

1
7

5
1

7
5

A
1

3
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 M

&
A

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

0
8

3
8

1
8

1
(2

)
(2

)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
5

)
(3

5
)

(3
5

)
(3

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

4
8

4
6

4
6

(2
)

(4
)

A
1

8
 H

o
s

p
it

a
l 
S

o
c

ia
l 
W

o
rk

 T
e

a
m

s

A
1

2
 P

.D
. 
A

s
s

e
s

s
 &

 C
a

re
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

A
1

7
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 D
ru

g
s

A
1

1
 P

h
y
s

ic
a

l 
D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 S
u

b
 D

iv
 M

&
A

 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 H
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s

A
3

3
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s

A
3

4
 H

o
m

e
 C

a
re

A
3

1
 P

h
y
s

ic
a

l 
D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 E
s

ta
b

li
s

h
m

e
n

ts

A
3

0
 A

d
u

lt
 R

e
s

u
rc

e
s

 S
u

b
 D

iv
 M

&
A

4
 o

f 
2

8

Page 108



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

A
1

4
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
 A

s
s

e
s

s
 &

 C
a

re
 M

n
g

m
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

8
9

1
,1

0
4

1
,0

3
8

9
6

6
(1

3
8

)
(1

3
)

(7
)

In
c
o

m
e

(7
9

)
(2

5
6

)
(2

5
6

)
(1

9
2

)
6

4
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
7

1
0

8
4

8
7

8
2

7
7

4
(7

4
)

(9
)

(1
)

 A
1

5
 O

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

h
e

ra
p

y
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,8
4

8
1

,8
8

2
1

,8
6

8
1

,8
6

8
(1

4
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
4

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
(1

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

4
8

1
,8

4
8

1
,8

2
3

1
,8

2
3

(2
5

)
(1

)

A
1

6
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

1
9

1
,0

7
9

1
,0

7
9

1
,1

7
9

1
0

0
9

9

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

0
)

(1
6

0
)

(1
6

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1

9
9

1
9

9
1

9
1

,0
1

9
1

0
0

1
1

1
1

A
1

9
 A

d
u

lt
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

9
1

3
0

6
2

6
6

2
8

3
(2

3
)

(8
)

6

In
c
o

m
e

(4
2

)
(4

2
)

(5
1

)
(2

4
)

1
8

(4
3

)
(5

3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4

9
2

6
4

2
1

5
2

5
9

(5
)

(2
)

2
0

A
2

3
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
u

b
 D

iv
is

io
n

 M
&

A
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

3
8

3
9

0
9

0
7

8

In
c
o

m
e

(8
1

)
(8

1
)

(8
8

)
(9

0
)

(9
)

1
1

2
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

2
2

(2
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

A
2

4
 A

re
a

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
e

a
m

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,8
6

5
2

,7
9

8
2

,8
5

0
2

,9
0

8
1

1
0

4
2

In
c
o

m
e

(4
3

3
)

(4
9

2
)

(4
9

6
)

(4
9

8
)

(6
)

1
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

3
2

2
,3

0
6

2
,3

5
4

2
,4

1
0

1
0

4
5

2

A
2

5
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

9
6

4
8

0
4

7
8

4
7

8
(2

)
(0

)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
4

)
(3

4
)

(2
3

)
(2

3
)

1
1

(3
2

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

6
2

4
4

6
4

5
5

4
5

5
9

2

A
3

2
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

5
7

4
5

7
4

5
7

4
1

9
(3

8
)

(8
)

(8
)

In
c
o

m
e

(5
)

(5
)

(5
)

(5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
5

2
4

5
2

4
5

2
4

1
4

(3
8

)
(8

)
(8

)

A
3

7
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 D

u
ty

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e

rv
ic

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

5
4

3
3

4
3

8
0

4
3

1
9

7
2

9
1

3

In
c
o

m
e

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

5
4

3
1

4
3

6
0

4
1

1
9

7
3

1
1

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

,7
8

7
8

,7
8

1
8

,7
6

2
8

,8
7

8
9

7
1

1

In
c
o

m
e

(7
0

9
)

(1
,1

5
9

)
(1

,1
7

9
)

(1
,0

9
2

)
6

7
(6

)
(7

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
8

,0
7

8
7

,6
2

2
7

,5
8

3
7

,7
8

6
1

6
4

2
3

A
6

6
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

8
7

5
8

7
5

8
7

5
8

7

In
c
o

m
e

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
8

7
4

3
7

4
3

7
4

3
7

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 &

 H
e

a
lt

h

5
 o

f 
2

8

Page 109



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

 A
6

8
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

6
1

8
8

2
0

2
1

1
1

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6

1
8

8
2

0
2

1
1

1
5

0

A
7

1
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,1
9

5
7

9
5

7
6

5
7

6
8

(2
7

)
(3

)
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
9

)
(3

9
)

(3
9

)
(6

0
)

(2
1

)
5

4
5

4
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,1
5

6
7

5
6

7
2

6
7

0
8

(4
8

)
(6

)
(2

)

A
7

2
 P

a
y
ro

ll
 O

n
c

o
s

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

9

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
9

A
9

0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
/C

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

,2
7

2
3

,3
0

1
3

,3
0

1
3

,3
0

1

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,2

7
2

3
,3

0
1

3
,3

0
1

3
,3

0
1

A
9

1
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

1
7

,8
5

0
1

1
6

,8
8

0
1

1
9

,6
7

9
1

2
0

,0
7

0
3

,1
9

0
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
8

,4
5

3
)

(1
4

,6
8

5
)

(1
7

,7
0

7
)

(1
7

,6
5

7
)

(2
,9

7
2

)
2

0
(0

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
8

9
,3

9
7

1
0

2
,1

9
5

1
0

1
,9

7
2

1
0

2
,4

1
3

2
1

8
0

0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

7
,3

5
8

In
c
o

m
e

(3
6

,5
3

8
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
2

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

5
5

,2
0

8

In
c
o

m
e

(6
4

,9
9

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0

,2
1

7

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

H
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
to

 D
 a

n
d

 R

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 

W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

6
 o

f 
2

8

Page 110



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1
0

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 &

 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,2

2
8

3
,0

7
3

3
,0

7
4

3
,0

7
3

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
4
5
)

(3
,2

0
0
)

(3
,2

0
0
)

(3
,2

0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
1
7
)

(1
2
7
)

(1
2
6
)

(1
2
7
)

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,2

2
8

3
,0

7
3

3
,0

7
4

3
,0

7
3

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
4
5
)

(3
,2

0
0
)

(3
,2

0
0
)

(3
,2

0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
1
7
)

(1
2
7
)

(1
2
6
)

(1
2
7
)

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
1
9

8
4
5

8
4
5

8
4
5

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
1
9

8
4
5

8
4
5

8
4
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,9

0
6

4
,9

0
9

3
,3

4
5

4
,9

0
9

4
7

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

(5
0
)

(5
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,8

5
6

4
,8

5
9

3
,2

9
5

4
,8

5
9

4
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

7
1

1
,4

6
8

1
,0

7
1

(2
7
)

In
c
o
m

e
(9

7
9
)

(1
0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

7
1

4
8
9

1
,0

7
1

1
1
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

3
1

1
,8

3
1

1
,8

3
1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
3
1
)

(1
,8

3
1
)

(1
,8

3
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
3

3
3

3
3

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

3
3

3
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,5

2
5

8
,6

8
9

7
,5

2
2

8
,6

8
9

1
6

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(1
,8

8
1
)

(2
,8

6
0
)

(1
,8

8
1
)

(3
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,4

7
5

6
,8

0
8

4
,6

6
2

6
,8

0
8

4
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

6
2

4
,0

6
5

4
,0

6
5

4
,0

6
5

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
5
4
)

(3
,6

5
4
)

(3
,6

5
4
)

(3
,6

5
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
8

4
1
1

4
1
1

4
1
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
0
0

6
2
9

6
2
9

6
2
9

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
0
0

6
2
9

6
2
9

6
2
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0

5
5

5
5

5
5

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0

5
5

5
5

5
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,4

9
2

4
,7

4
9

4
,7

4
9

4
,7

4
9

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
5
4
)

(3
,6

5
4
)

(3
,6

5
4
)

(3
,6

5
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3
8

1
,0

9
5

1
,0

9
5

1
,0

9
5

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

G
A

L
 &

 E
L

E
C

T
O

R
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
6
0
  

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 E
le

c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
5
8
  

E
le

c
to

ra
l 

R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 &
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP

C
5
2
  

L
e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
2
2
  

L
A

P
 M

e
n

u
s

C
2
1
  

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

in
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

ill
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
T

.

C
2
0
  

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
1
8
  

T
h

ir
d

 S
e
c
to

r 
T

e
a
m

 
V

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
' e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

C
1
4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

C
1
6
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ri
n
t 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t.

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y,

 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 c

o
s
ts

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

in
d
u
s
tr

y 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

7
 o

f 
2
8

Page 111



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 &

 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

5
0

1
,9

2
6

1
,9

2
6

1
,9

2
6

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
8

1
,7

8
4

1
,7

8
4

1
,7

8
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

5
0

1
,9

2
6

1
,9

2
6

1
,9

2
6

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
8

1
,7

8
4

1
,7

8
4

1
,7

8
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

4
5

1
,0

5
9

1
,0

9
6

1
,0

5
9

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

9
3
)

(3
8
9
)

(4
1
7
)

(3
8
9
)

(7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
5
2

6
7
0

6
7
9

6
7
0

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

8
9

2
,6

5
8

2
,6

5
0

2
,6

5
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

6
3
)

(2
6
3
)

(2
6
3
)

(2
6
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

2
6

2
,3

9
5

2
,3

8
7

2
,3

9
5

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
3
0

8
3
0

8
3
0

8
3
0

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3
0

8
3
0

8
3
0

8
3
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,5

6
4

4
,5

4
7

4
,5

7
6

4
,5

4
7

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(6

5
6
)

(6
5
2
)

(6
8
0
)

(6
5
2
)

(4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,9

0
8

3
,8

9
5

3
,8

9
6

3
,8

9
5

(0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,6

2
0

3
,7

0
2

3
,7

0
1

3
,7

0
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
3
)

(1
4
0
)

(1
4
2
)

(1
4
0
)

(1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,4

5
7

3
,5

6
2

3
,5

5
9

3
,5

6
2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
,3

7
9

2
6
,6

8
6

2
5
,5

4
8

2
6
,6

8
6

4

In
c
o
m

e
(8

,0
1
0
)

(9
,6

6
9
)

(1
0
,6

7
8
)

(9
,6

6
9
)

(9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,3

6
9

1
7
,0

1
7

1
4
,8

7
0

1
7
,0

1
7

1
4

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

C
8
0
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
 &

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
R

S
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

C
7
8
  

D
e
m

o
 R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 &
 M

g
t 

C
6
2
  

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
5
6
  

R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
ir

th
s
, 

D
e
a
th

s
 

C
5
4
  

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 &

 E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 &

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
' e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

8
 o

f 
2
8

Page 112



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

0

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,7

9
5

6
,8

5
5

6
,8

5
5

6
,8

5
5

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
2
)

(3
,0

5
2
)

(3
,0

5
2
)

(3
,0

5
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,2

9
3

3
,8

0
3

3
,8

0
3

3
,8

0
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
4
2
,1

3
9

1
4
3
,9

0
4

1
4
3
,9

0
3

1
4
3
,9

0
4

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
,0

2
5
)

(1
9
,4

1
3
)

(1
9
,4

1
2
)

(1
9
,4

1
3
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
4
,1

1
4

1
2
4
,4

9
1

1
2
4
,4

9
1

1
2
4
,4

9
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
1
,5

6
5

1
2
4
,1

6
4

1
2
3
,5

4
5

1
2
3
,5

7
1

(5
9
3
)

(0
)

0
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 n
il 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 o

n
 D

S
G

 o
v
e
ra

ll

In
c
o
m

e
(3

0
,1

9
4
)

(3
2
,9

0
0
)

(3
2
,9

0
0
)

(3
2
,9

0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1
,3

7
1

9
1
,2

6
4

9
0
,6

4
5

9
0
,6

7
1

(5
9
3
)

(1
)

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
,3

4
2

1
2
,0

6
9

1
2
,0

6
9

1
2
,0

6
9

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,9
8
4
)

(1
,6

5
6
)

(1
,6

5
5
)

(1
,6

5
6
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
,3

5
8

1
0
,4

1
3

1
0
,4

1
4

1
0
,4

1
3

(0
)

G
1
7
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 F

o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 S
e
rv

 

D
S

G
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,2

0
4

4
,3

5
0

4
,4

1
6

4
,3

9
4

4
4

1
(0

)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
8
4
)

(1
,0

9
2
)

(1
,0

6
9
)

(1
,1

5
6
)

(6
4
)

6
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,0

2
0

3
,2

5
8

3
,3

4
7

3
,2

3
8

(2
0
)

(1
)

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
3

2
6
3

2
4
6

2
6
3

7

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6
3

2
6
3

2
4
6

2
6
3

7

G
2
9
  
P

u
p

il
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
U

n
it

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,7

9
7

4
,8

8
8

5
,1

1
2

5
,1

0
9

2
2
1

5
(0

)

In
c
o
m

e
(9

1
3
)

(1
,0

0
4
)

(9
4
0
)

(9
4
3
)

6
1

(6
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,8

8
4

3
,8

8
4

4
,1

7
2

4
,1

6
6

2
8
2

7
(0

)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
5

4
5
8

7
0
0

7
0
0

2
4
2

5
3

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9
5

4
5
8

7
0
0

7
0
0

2
4
2

5
3

H
1
1
  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

S
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,2

4
9

7
,1

6
8

7
,1

6
8

7
,1

6
8

In
c
o
m

e
(5

,8
5
4
)

(4
,2

8
3
)

(4
,2

8
3
)

(4
,2

8
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

9
5

2
,8

8
5

2
,8

8
5

2
,8

8
5

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

G
2
8
  
E

d
u

c
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ts
h

p
 

D
S

G

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 

S
L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 n

o
ti
c
a
b
ly

 s
o
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 (

a
n
d
 c

u
rt

a
ile

d
 a

t 
s
h
o
rt

 

n
o
ti
c
e
) 

h
a
s
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 b

y
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

£
7
0
k
 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 p

re
d
ic

ti
o
n
s
, 
b
ri
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 £

1
6
3
k
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 i
n
 0

9
/1

0
. 
S

ta
ff
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 i
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
8
5
k
 i
n
 c

c
 

8
1
6
0
3
.

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
-P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 

H
1
0
  
L

e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v
m

't
 M

 &
 A

 

D
S

G

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
u
p
ils

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

9
 o

f 
2
8

Page 113



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

H
1
6
  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
 N

e
e
d

s
 D

S
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,1

9
1

8
,1

9
1

8
,1

5
7

8
,0

0
6

(1
8
5
)

(2
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,4
2
7
)

(2
,4

2
7
)

(2
,4

2
7
)

(2
,1

8
6
)

2
4
1

(1
0
)

(1
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,7

6
4

5
,7

6
4

5
,7

3
0

5
,8

2
0

5
6

1
2

H
1
8
  
E

d
u

c
 P

s
y

c
h

o
lo

g
y

 S
e
rv

 D
S

G
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
8

1
2
8

1
2
8

1
2
8

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
8

1
2
8

1
2
8

1
2
8

H
2
7
  
1
4
-1

9
 Y

e
a
rs

 D
S

G
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
9
0

5
9
0

6
0
7

5
9
0

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

7
8
)

(7
7
)

(7
7
)

(7
7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
2

5
1
3

5
3
0

5
1
3

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
1

5
5
6

5
9
4

5
9
4

3
8

7

In
c
o
m

e
(6

6
)

(6
6
)

(7
1
)

(7
1
)

(5
)

8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
3
5

4
9
0

5
2
3

5
2
3

3
3

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
,1

1
8

2
6
,5

9
2

2
7
,1

2
8

2
6
,9

5
2

3
6
0

1
(1

)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

0
,8

2
2
)

(8
,9

4
9
)

(8
,8

6
7
)

(8
,7

1
6
)

2
3
3

(3
)

(2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
,2

9
6

1
7
,6

4
3

1
8
,2

6
1

1
8
,2

3
6

5
9
3

3
(0

)

H
5
5
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

D
S

G
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
9

2
7
9

2
7
9

2
7
9

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7
9

2
7
9

2
7
9

2
7
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
3
4

3
3
4

3
3
4

3
3
4

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3
4

3
3
4

3
3
4

3
3
4

0
0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
O

C
IA

L
 

C
A

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 &

 

A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

H
7
8
  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 E
x
c
l 

D
S

G

H
6
2
  
A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 &

 W
e
lf

a
re

 

S
e
rv

ic
e

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 g
ra

n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
o
r 

fo
rm

e
r 

L
S

C
 s

ta
ff
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 1

.4
.1

0
. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
1
7
k
 i
s
 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 5

 L
S

C
 t
ra

n
s
fe

re
e
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
a
g
e
 o

f 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
to

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 G

2
8
.

1
0
 o

f 
2
8

Page 114



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

H
6
8
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 D

S
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

In
c
o
m

e
(2

4
9
,3

2
5
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
4
9
,3

2
5
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

H
7
9
  
C

S
F

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n

g
t 

D
S

G
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

4
2

1
,1

4
1

1
,1

4
1

1
,1

4
1

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

4
2

1
,1

4
1

1
,1

4
1

1
,1

4
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
6
7

8
6
7

8
6
7

8
6
7

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
6
7

8
6
7

8
6
7

8
6
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,0

0
9

2
,0

0
8

2
,0

0
8

2
,0

0
8

In
c
o
m

e
(2

4
9
,3

2
5
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

(2
5
0
,5

0
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
4
7
,3

1
6
)

(2
4
8
,4

9
8
)

(2
4
8
,4

9
8
)

(2
4
8
,4

9
8
)

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
5
0

5
5
0

5
5
0

5
5
0

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5
0

5
5
0

5
5
0

5
5
0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 B
U

D
G

E
T

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1
0
,8

5
2

3
1
6
,4

7
6

3
1
6
,3

9
2

3
1
6
,2

4
3

(2
3
3
)

(0
)

(0
)

(D
S

G
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

1
0
,8

5
2
)

(3
1
6
,4

7
6
)

(3
1
6
,3

9
2
)

(3
1
6
,2

4
3
)

2
3
3

(0
)

(0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
(0

)

T
O

T
A

L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 

F
U

T
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

£
4
9
0
k
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 /
 a

p
p
ly

 D
S

G
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 F
o
ru

m
. 
 £

3
7
7
k
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
.

H
8
3
  
C

S
F

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

S
G

1
1
 o

f 
2
8

Page 115



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

0
2

%
 t
o

 5
%

 

A
m

b
e

r

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

3
4

1
3

4
1

3
4

1
3

4
C

a
p

ita
l C

h
a

rg
e

s
 p

o
s
te

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3

4
1

3
4

1
3

4
1

3
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

,0
0

3
4

,0
0

3
4

,0
0

3
4

,0
0

3
C

a
p

ita
l C

h
a

rg
e

s
 p

o
s
te

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,0

0
3

4
,0

0
3

4
,0

0
3

4
,0

0
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

,3
3

8
5

,3
3

8
5

,3
3

8
5

,3
3

8
C

a
p

ita
l C

h
a

rg
e

s
 p

o
s
te

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,3

3
8

5
,3

3
8

5
,3

3
8

5
,3

3
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

8
1

4
8

1
4

8
1

4
8

1
C

a
p

ita
l C

h
a

rg
e

s
 p

o
s
te

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
8

1
4

8
1

4
8

1
4

8
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

3
6

5
0

6
4

6
4

4
6

4
(4

2
)

(8
)

In
c
o

m
e

(2
4

1
)

(2
4

1
)

(2
4

1
)

(2
4

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
9

5
2

6
5

2
2

3
2

2
3

(4
2

)
(1

6
)

G
1

1
  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
F

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,0
1

2
1

,0
2

8
1

,0
8

9
1

,0
9

4
6

6
6

0

  
In

c
o

m
e

(3
2

1
)

(3
3

7
)

(3
5

5
)

(3
5

5
)

(1
8

)
5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
9

1
6

9
1

7
3

4
7

3
9

4
8

7
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,0
1

5
3

,0
1

5
3

,0
7

1
3

,0
1

5
(2

)

In
c
o

m
e

(9
9

)
(9

9
)

(1
1

9
)

(9
9

)
(1

7
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,9

1
6

2
,9

1
6

2
,9

5
2

2
,9

1
6

(1
)

G
1

3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

4
,0

1
4

1
3

,3
3

7
1

3
,3

3
7

1
3

,3
3

7

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
3

,4
5

9
)

(1
2

,7
8

2
)

(1
2

,7
8

2
)

(1
2

,7
8

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
-P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 

G
F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 G
F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 G

F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 G
F

C
h

ild
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
G

ra
n

t 
w

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 f
o

r 
a

 2
n

d
 t
im

e
 b

y
 D

fE
. 
T

h
e

 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
o

f 
re

d
u

c
tio

n
 w

a
s
 £

4
2

4
,5

8
1

.

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

G
1

0
  
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 A
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
 &

 A
 

G
F

G
1

2
  
L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 D

a
y
 N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s

1
2

 o
f 
2

8

Page 116



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,6
1

6
4

,8
9

3
4

,8
9

3
4

,8
4

9
(4

4
)

(1
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,1

8
2

)
(4

,4
5

8
)

(4
,4

5
8

)
(4

,4
5

8
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
3

4
4

3
5

4
3

5
3

9
1

(4
4

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

,5
7

9
4

,7
3

9
4

,8
5

4
4

,8
7

3
1

3
4

3
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

5
)

(1
4

5
)

(1
4

5
)

(1
4

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

3
4

4
,5

9
4

4
,7

0
9

4
,7

2
8

1
3

4
3

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,7
6

2
1

,7
5

0
1

,7
0

0
1

,7
6

0
1

0
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

(8
6

4
)

(8
6

4
)

(8
7

3
)

(9
7

9
)

(1
1

5
)

1
3

1
2

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
9

8
8

8
6

8
2

7
7

8
1

(1
0

5
)

(1
2

)
(6

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

4
5

2
4

5
2

6
6

2
6

6
2

1
9

In
c
o

m
e

(3
0

)
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
(1

0
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
4

5
2

4
5

2
3

6
2

3
6

(9
)

(4
)

G
2

1
  
O

n
e

 O
'C

lo
c

k
 C

lu
b

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

7
7

2
7

7
2

7
7

2
7

7

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7

7
2

7
7

2
7

7
2

7
7

G
2

2
  
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

w
a

rd
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

7
8

3
7

8
3

7
8

3
7

8

  
In

c
o

m
e

(4
0

)
(3

9
)

(3
9

)
(3

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

8
3

3
9

3
3

9
3

3
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,0
5

2
3

,8
2

5
3

,8
4

7
3

,7
2

6
(9

9
)

(3
)

(3
)

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,0

7
5

)
(2

,5
7

7
)

(2
,8

9
8

)
(2

,5
7

7
)

(1
1

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
7

7
1

,2
4

8
9

4
9

1
,1

4
9

(9
9

)
(8

)
2

1

G
2

7
  
1

4
 t

o
 1

9
 Y

e
a

r 
G

F
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,1
3

4
3

,0
6

4
2

,8
9

1
3

,0
6

4
6

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,8

5
3

)
(6

0
1

)
(1

,6
1

0
)

(6
0

1
)

(6
3

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

8
1

2
,4

6
3

1
,2

8
1

2
,4

6
3

9
2

G
3

0
  
A

rt
s

 &
 M

u
s

ic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,4
0

5
1

,3
4

9
7

9
5

9
7

1
(3

7
8

)
(2

8
)

2
2

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,4

0
5

)
(1

,3
4

9
)

(7
9

5
)

(9
7

1
)

3
7

8
(2

8
)

2
2

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
3

3
  
E

-L
e

a
rn

in
g

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6

7
0

1
,1

8
6

1
,1

8
6

1
,1

5
3

(3
3

)
(3

)
(3

)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
5

1
)

(7
9

0
)

(7
9

0
)

(7
6

4
)

2
6

(3
)

(3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
1

9
3

9
6

3
9

6
3

8
9

(7
)

(2
)

(2
)

E
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
F

in
d

 Y
o

u
r 

T
a

le
n

t 
G

ra
n

t.
  
B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

d
ju

s
te

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

B
u

d
g

e
t 
s
h

o
w

s
 f
u

ll 
a

llo
c
a

tio
n

 o
f 
S

F
 1

.1
 G

ra
n

t 
re

 C
ity

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
. 
P

a
rt

 

o
f 
th

th
is

 g
ra

n
t 
re

la
te

s
 t
o

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

. 
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
in

to
 

lin
e

.

In
c
lu

d
e

s
 £

4
0

k
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 S
F

 E
M

A
G

 c
a

rr
y
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t
o

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
1

.

In
c
o

m
e

 p
ro

je
c
tio

n
s
 a

re
 lo

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 b
u

d
g

e
t.
 C

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

tly
, 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 o

n
 le

a
rn

in
g

 &
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
lie

s
 

&
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

G
1

8
  
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c

h
o

lo
g

y
 S

e
rv

 

G
F

G
2

0
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 &

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

G
2

6
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

G
1

4
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ri

m
a

ry

G
1

6
  
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 G
F

1
3

 o
f 
2

8

Page 117



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

G
3

4
  
E

x
c

e
ll
e

n
c

e
 I
n

 C
it

ie
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

3
4

6
8

8
6

8
8

4
0

3
(2

8
5

)
(4

1
)

(4
1

)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
3

4
)

(5
6

8
)

(5
6

8
)

(2
8

3
)

2
8

5
(5

0
)

(5
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0

0
1

2
0

1
2

0
1

2
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

0
,4

0
1

6
,9

7
5

6
,9

7
5

6
,9

7
5

In
c
o

m
e

(1
0

,4
0

1
)

(6
,9

7
5

)
(6

,9
7

5
)

(6
,9

7
5

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6

1
3

7
7

8
7

7
8

7
7

8

In
c
o

m
e

(7
7

)
(5

9
4

)
(5

9
4

)
(5

9
4

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
3

6
1

8
4

1
8

4
1

8
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

2
8

5
8

2
6

0
4

6
0

4
2

2
4

In
c
o

m
e

(4
1

0
)

(4
6

5
)

(4
6

5
)

(4
6

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
1

8
1

1
7

1
3

9
1

3
9

2
2

1
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

9
,8

7
1

4
8

,6
1

5
4

8
,0

9
3

4
7

,9
8

7
(6

2
8

)
(1

)
(0

)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
5

,0
5

7
)

(3
2

,8
8

4
)

(3
3

,7
3

7
)

(3
2

,3
5

8
)

5
2

6
(2

)
(4

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4

,8
1

4
1

5
,7

3
1

1
4

,3
5

6
1

5
,6

2
9

(1
0

2
)

(1
)

9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

6
4

2
8

5
2

8
5

2
8

5

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6

4
2

8
5

2
8

5
2

8
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,4
5

9
2

,3
3

6
2

,0
9

3
2

,1
2

8
(2

0
8

)
(9

)
2

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,6

4
5

)
(8

9
3

)
(1

,2
5

2
)

(6
3

9
)

2
5

4
(2

8
)

(4
9

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
1

4
1

,4
4

3
8

4
1

1
,4

8
9

4
6

3
7

7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

,3
6

8
1

0
,5

1
6

1
0

,5
9

4
1

0
,5

9
4

7
8

1

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,3

0
9

)
(1

,3
3

7
)

(3
,0

9
1

)
(1

,4
1

6
)

(7
9

)
6

(5
4

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,0

5
9

9
,1

7
9

7
,5

0
3

9
,1

7
8

(1
)

(0
)

2
2

G
4

0
  
J

u
n

io
r 

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,3
3

7
1

,3
3

7
1

,2
6

8
1

,2
6

8
(6

9
)

(5
)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
1

5
)

(2
1

5
)

(2
0

8
)

(2
0

8
)

7
(3

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

2
2

1
,1

2
2

1
,0

6
0

1
,0

6
0

(6
2

)
(6

)

G
4

1
  
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 L

iv
e

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

9
4

4
5

8
4

6
2

4
6

2
4

1

In
c
o

m
e

(4
5

)
(3

0
9

)
(3

0
9

)
(3

0
9

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4

9
1

4
9

1
5

3
1

5
3

4
3

G
3

5
  
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 T
ra

in
in

g

H
1

7
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e

G
7

8
  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s

io
n

s
 &

 E
x

c
ls

 G
F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 

A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

R
e

d
u

c
tio

n
 in

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
fo

r 
s
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

IC
T

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 D

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 p
lu

s
 S

c
h

o
o

l A
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 A

p
p

e
a

ls

Y
P

L
A

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 C
o

lle
g

e
s
 c

e
a

s
e

 a
t 
e

n
d

 o
f 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

0
.

G
3

7
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

M
&

A

G
1

9
  
P

a
re

n
ta

l 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

G
3

9
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

n
n

e
x

io
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
4

 o
f 
2

8

Page 118



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

5
6

1
,0

6
6

1
,0

6
6

1
,2

3
0

1
6

4
1

5
1

5

In
c
o

m
e

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
(2

4
4

)
(1

6
4

)
2

0
5

2
0

5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
7

6
9

8
6

9
8

6
9

8
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

4
6

1
9

0
1

9
0

1
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

(5
6

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9

0
1

9
0

1
9

0
1

9
0

G
4

4
  
E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,0
7

8
3

,0
9

2
3

,2
9

0
3

,4
4

2
3

5
0

1
1

5

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
,5

4
3

)
(2

,3
3

5
)

(2
,6

8
5

)
(2

,6
8

5
)

(3
5

0
)

1
5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
3

5
7

5
7

6
0

5
7

5
7

2
5

G
4

5
  
P

la
y

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6

7
6

7
5

1
6

8
9

6
8

9
(6

2
)

(8
)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(3
7

6
)

(4
5

1
)

(3
8

9
)

(3
8

9
)

6
2

(1
4

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0

0
3

0
0

3
0

0
3

0
0

G
6

0
  
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,0
6

3
2

,6
0

1
2

,7
1

7
2

,7
1

7
1

1
6

4

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,1

1
4

)
(1

,4
0

7
)

(1
,4

8
0

)
(1

,4
8

0
)

(7
3

)
5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4

9
1

,1
9

4
1

,2
3

7
1

,2
3

7
4

3
4

G
6

9
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

0
8

4
5

9
6

6
6

7
0

4
2

4
5

5
3

6

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
6

0
)

(3
0

8
)

(4
4

9
)

(4
9

6
)

(1
8

8
)

6
1

1
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4

8
1

5
1

2
1

7
2

0
8

5
7

3
8

(4
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

1
,1

4
9

2
3

,0
9

1
2

3
,3

2
0

2
3

,7
0

9
6

1
8

3
2

In
c
o

m
e

(8
,6

4
3

)
(7

,3
3

5
)

(9
,9

4
3

)
(7

,8
6

6
)

(5
3

1
)

7
(2

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2

,5
0

6
1

5
,7

5
6

1
3

,3
7

7
1

5
,8

4
3

8
7

1
1

8

G
4

9
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

o
c

ia
l 
C

a
re

 M
&

A
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

6
5

5
4

1
5

4
1

5
4

1

In
c
o

m
e

(3
1

9
)

(3
1

9
)

(3
1

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6

5
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,3
5

8
2

,3
6

6
2

,4
7

4
2

,4
8

2
1

1
6

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

8
)

(1
0

7
)

(1
0

7
)

(1
0

7
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

1
0

2
,2

5
9

2
,3

6
7

2
,3

7
5

1
1

6
5

0

G
5

1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s

 M
&

A
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

7
9

7
7

9
8

0
3

8
2

7
4

8
6

3

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
7

9
7

7
9

8
0

3
8

2
7

4
8

6
3

N
o

t 
in

 p
re

s
c
ri
b

e
d

 f
o

rm
a

t 
- 

"A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

0
" 

fig
u

re
s
 s

e
n

t.
G

4
2

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
s

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

G
4

3
  
O

u
t-

o
f-

H
o

u
rs

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 S

tu
d

y

G
5

0
  
C

h
il
d

 P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 &

 R
e

v
ie

w
in

g

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 Y
O

U
T

H
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

L
E

A
R

N
IN

G

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
tiv

ity
.

1
5

 o
f 
2

8

Page 119



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

G
5

2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,6
7

9
1

,6
7

9
1

,7
4

9
1

,7
6

0
8

1
5

1

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

7
9

1
,6

7
9

1
,7

4
9

1
,7

6
0

8
1

5
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,0
7

8
3

,0
3

2
3

,0
2

8
2

,9
5

0
(8

2
)

(3
)

(3
)

In
c
o

m
e

(6
6

)
(6

6
)

(7
4

)
(4

3
)

2
3

(3
5

)
(4

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,0

1
2

2
,9

6
6

2
,9

5
4

2
,9

0
7

(5
9

)
(2

)
(2

)

G
5

4
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

7
,1

3
7

1
7

,1
9

2
1

6
,8

6
7

1
7

,0
4

8
(1

4
4

)
(1

)
1

  

In
c
o

m
e

(1
9

6
)

(2
1

1
)

(2
1

2
)

(2
1

1
)

(0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6

,9
4

1
1

6
,9

8
1

1
6

,6
5

5
1

6
,8

3
7

(1
4

4
)

(1
)

1

G
5

5
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k

e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

G
F

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,3
4

0
2

,3
4

0
2

,3
6

6
2

,3
7

5
3

5
1

0

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

4
0

2
,3

4
0

2
,3

5
6

2
,3

7
5

3
5

1
1

G
5

6
  
L

e
a

v
in

g
 C

a
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,6
4

1
2

,6
4

1
2

,6
4

1
2

,6
4

1

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
7

9
)

(1
7

9
)

(1
7

9
)

(1
7

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

6
2

2
,4

6
2

2
,4

6
2

2
,4

6
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

,7
5

3
5

,8
6

6
6

,2
9

8
6

,3
0

3
4

3
7

7
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,2

1
0

)
(1

,3
2

3
)

(1
,5

4
0

)
(1

,5
9

7
)

(2
7

4
)

2
1

4

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,5

4
3

4
,5

4
3

4
,7

5
8

4
,7

0
6

1
6

3
4

(1
)

G
5

8
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,6
0

9
3

,8
6

2
3

,7
1

2
3

,7
0

2
(1

6
0

)
(4

)
(0

)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,2

5
3

)
(1

,2
5

3
)

(1
,2

5
3

)
1

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,6

0
9

2
,6

0
9

2
,4

5
9

2
,4

4
9

(1
6

0
)

(6
)

(0
)

G
5

9
  
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 D

u
ty

 T
e

a
m

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

5
2

3
5

2
3

8
4

3
8

4
3

2
9

  
In

c
o

m
e

(4
4

)
(4

4
)

(4
3

)
(4

3
)

1
(2

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0

8
3

0
8

3
4

1
3

4
1

3
3

1
1

G
6

1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,8
0

3
1

,8
0

3
1

,8
0

3
1

,7
2

8
(7

5
)

(4
)

(4
)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
3

1
,8

0
3

1
,8

0
3

1
,7

2
8

(7
5

)
(4

)
(4

)

A
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l S

o
c
ia

l W
o

rk
e

rs
 -

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 is
s
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
 (

S
e

e
 S

V
 

P
ro

fo
rm

a
 m

o
re

 m
o

re
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
)

A
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
 (

a
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l 1

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
),

 a
n

d
 3

 P
&

V
 

re
s
id

e
n

tia
l p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

s
u

lti
n

g
 in

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 f
ro

m
 la

s
t 

m
o

n
th

. 
T

h
e

 in
-h

o
u

s
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

tia
l c

u
rr

e
n

tly
 h

a
s
 1

0
0

%
 o

c
c
u

p
a

n
c
y
. 
T

h
is

 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

 v
o

la
til

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 it
 o

n
ly

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

n
e

 o
r 

tw
o

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

u
tt
u

rn
 b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

G
5

3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s

 F
a

m
il
y
 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

G
5

7
  
F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

A
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l f

u
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h

e
r 

fo
r 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
 (

S
h

o
rt

 

B
re

a
k
s
),

 D
c
a

tc
h

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
iti

o
n

 &
 I
n

n
o

v
a

tio
n

s
 g

ra
n

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
s
h

o
w

in
g

 

in
 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 V

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
p

e
n

d
in

g
.

1
6

 o
f 
2

8

Page 120



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,7
4

5
1

,7
3

9
1

,7
3

9
1

,7
7

1
3

2
2

2

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

9
)

(5
0

8
)

(5
0

8
)

(5
9

3
)

(8
5

)
1

7
1

7

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

3
6

1
,2

3
1

1
,2

3
1

1
,1

7
8

(5
3

)
(4

)
(4

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

,4
9

2
6

,0
9

6
6

,0
9

6
5

,6
7

9
(4

1
7

)
(7

)
(7

)

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

0
)

(2
,0

9
3

)
(2

,0
9

3
)

(2
,0

4
6

)
4

7
(2

)
(2

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,9

9
2

4
,0

0
3

4
,0

0
3

3
,6

3
3

(3
7

0
)

(9
)

(9
)

G
7

5
  
IT

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6

9
6

6
8

8
6

7
8

6
7

8
(1

0
)

(1
)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(3
7

9
)

(3
7

8
)

(3
7

9
)

(3
7

9
)

(1
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1

7
3

1
0

2
9

9
2

9
9

(1
1

)
(4

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

7
,7

2
7

5
0

,9
7

6
5

1
,1

7
9

5
0

,8
6

9
(1

0
7

)
(0

)
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,2

3
1

)
(6

,4
8

1
)

(6
,7

1
7

)
(6

,7
7

0
)

(2
8

9
)

4
1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
4

,4
9

6
4

4
,4

9
5

4
4

,4
6

2
4

4
,0

9
9

(3
9

6
)

(1
)

(1
)

G
6

5
  
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

3
6

2
5

1
3

0
9

3
0

9
5

8
2

3

  
In

c
o

m
e

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

(1
0

1
)

(1
0

1
)

(5
1

)
1

0
2

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
8

6
2

0
1

2
0

8
2

0
8

7
3

G
7

1
  
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 P
o

li
c

y
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

8
3

4
8

0
4

7
5

4
4

5
(3

5
)

(7
)

(6
)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
0

)
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
(1

0
)

5
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
8

3
4

6
0

4
4

5
4

1
5

(4
5

)
(1

0
)

(7
)

G
7

4
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

7
0

9
3

8
8

9
3

8
9

3
(4

5
)

(5
)

  
In

c
o

m
e

(1
4

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
(6

)
4

3

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7

0
9

2
4

8
7

3
8

7
3

(5
1

)
(6

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,9
8

9
1

,6
6

9
1

,6
7

7
1

,6
4

7
(2

2
)

(1
)

(2
)

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

)
(8

4
)

(1
5

1
)

(1
5

1
)

(6
7

)
8

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

3
9

1
,5

8
5

1
,5

2
6

1
,4

9
6

(8
9

)
(6

)
(2

)

G
7

9
  
C

S
F

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 M
a

n
g

t 
G

F
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6

4
8

5
7

2
5

7
2

5
7

2

In
c
o

m
e

(2
7

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
2

1
5

7
2

5
7

2
5

7
2

G
6

7
  
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,5
0

6
3

,5
0

6
3

,4
3

0
3

,4
7

6
(3

0
)

(1
)

1

  
In

c
o

m
e

(2
6

)
(8

7
5

)
(9

2
1

)
(9

2
1

)
(4

6
)

5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

8
0

2
,6

3
1

2
,5

0
9

2
,5

5
5

(7
6

)
(3

)
2

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

G
6

2
  
A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 &
 W

e
lf

a
re

 S
e

rv
 G

F

H
5

7
  
F

a
m

il
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E

1
7

 o
f 
2

8

Page 121



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

3
5

5
8

8
5

8
8

5
8

8

In
c
o

m
e

(4
4

8
)

(5
8

8
)

(5
8

8
)

(5
8

8
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

1
0

7
7

2
8

0
2

8
0

2
3

0
4

In
c
o

m
e

(1
2

6
)

(1
3

7
)

(1
4

7
)

(1
4

7
)

(1
0

)
7

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8

4
6

3
5

6
5

5
6

5
5

2
0

3

G
7

2
  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

4
6

3
7

9
3

8
8

3
8

8
9

2

In
c
o

m
e

(3
6

)
(3

6
)

(3
6

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
4

6
3

7
9

3
5

2
3

5
2

(2
7

)
(7

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

2
9

5
1

8
5

1
8

5
1

8

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
2

9
5

1
8

5
1

8
5

1
8

G
8

1
  
B

u
il
d

in
g

 D
e

v
 &

 T
e

c
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,1
6

9
1

,0
3

8
1

,1
5

7
1

,1
5

2
1

1
4

1
1

(0
)

In
c
o

m
e

(4
6

9
)

(2
9

5
)

(3
3

6
)

(3
3

6
)

(4
1

)
1

4

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
0

0
7

4
3

8
2

1
8

1
6

7
3

1
0

(1
)

G
8

2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
  
F

in
a

n
c

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,5
6

4
(3

5
8

)
9

,5
1

2
9

,3
7

2
9

,7
3

0
(2

,7
1

8
)

(1
)

N
il 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
£

9
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
. 
 F

o
re

c
a

s
t 
s
h

o
w

s
 t
h

e
 g

ro
s
s
 p

o
s
iti

o
n

.

  

In
c
o

m
e

(1
9

4
)

(1
9

4
)

(9
,5

3
3

)
(9

,5
3

3
)

(9
,3

3
9

)
4

,8
1

4

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,3

7
0

(5
5

2
)

(2
1

)
(1

6
1

)
3

9
1

(7
1

)
6

6
7

G
8

3
  
C

S
F

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 G

F
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,5
6

7
1

,6
9

7
1

,8
8

0
2

,0
6

4
3

6
7

2
2

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

6
7

1
,6

9
7

1
,8

8
0

2
,0

6
4

3
6

7
2

2
1

0

G
8

4
  
T

e
a

c
h

e
r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
8

6
  
P

ro
fe

s
s

io
n

a
l 
D

e
v
 C

e
n

tr
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

0
5

7
6

0
7

0
1

7
0

1
(5

9
)

(8
)

2
5

0
k
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 G
o

rs
e

fie
ld

  
In

c
o

m
e

(4
2

4
)

(4
2

4
)

(6
1

6
)

(6
1

6
)

(1
9

2
)

4
5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8

1
3

3
6

8
5

8
5

(2
5

1
)

(7
5

)
In

c
lu

d
e

s
 2

0
5

k
 o

f 
In

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 G

o
rs

e
fie

ld
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
 b

u
d

g
e

t;
  

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ri
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 
S

L
A

s

£
5

8
0

k
 f
o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
ta

rg
e

t,
 w

h
e

re
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tly
 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 o
n

 o
th

e
r 

v
o

te
s
. 
 -

£
2

4
3

k
 o

v
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 £
4

4
k
 

o
/s

 f
o

r 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 T
e

a
m

 it
s
e

lf.

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
o

f 
c
o

s
ts

 n
o

t 
fu

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 D

S
G

 B
u

d
g

e
t 
in

 H
8

3
 (

p
re

 0
1

/0
4

/0
5

 

re
tir

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

) 
to

 G
8

3

G
6

8
  
M

a
jo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

G
7

0
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s

te
m

s

G
8

0
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
o

s
t 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
to

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 c
e

a
s
e

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
P

o
in

t 
g

ra
n

t

1
8

 o
f 
2

8

Page 122



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

G
8

7
  
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

4
,4

1
4

1
4

,7
8

3
1

5
,8

8
1

1
5

,6
8

7
9

0
4

6
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

,4
1

4
)

(1
4

,3
7

3
)

(1
5

,5
1

0
)

(1
5

,2
7

4
)

(9
0

1
)

6
(2

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
1

0
3

7
1

4
1

3
3

1
2

1
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

4
,6

9
3

2
4

,2
5

5
3

5
,4

2
9

3
5

,3
2

0
1

1
,0

6
5

4
6

(0
)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

,1
2

8
)

(1
6

,8
8

6
)

(2
7

,6
8

7
)

(2
7

,4
5

1
)

(1
0

,5
6

5
)

6
3

(1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,5

6
5

7
,3

6
9

7
,7

4
2

7
,8

6
9

5
0

0
7

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
9

5
  
C

C
N

 P
o

o
le

d
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

,2
5

9
7

,2
5

9
2

0
5

7
,2

5
9

3
,4

4
1

  
In

c
o

m
e

(7
,2

5
9

)
(7

,2
5

9
)

(2
0

5
)

(7
,2

5
9

)
3

,4
4

1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

,2
5

9
2

0
5

2
0

5
7

,2
5

9
7

,0
5

4
3

,4
4

1
3

,4
4

1

In
c
o

m
e

(7
,2

5
9

)
(2

0
5

)
(2

0
5

)
(7

,2
5

9
)

(7
,0

5
4

)
3

,4
4

1
3

,4
4

1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,3
2

9
3

,3
2

9
3

,3
2

9
3

,3
2

9

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,3

2
9

)
(3

,3
2

9
)

(3
,3

2
9

)
(3

,3
2

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

6
5

,9
7

3
1

6
2

,0
9

6
1

7
3

,1
8

8
1

8
0

,0
7

6
1

7
,9

8
0

1
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

(7
3

,6
9

7
)

(6
7

,2
0

4
)

(8
1

,7
6

9
)

(8
5

,1
8

4
)

(1
7

,9
8

0
)

2
7

4

9
2

,2
7

6
9

4
,8

9
2

9
1

,4
1

9
9

4
,8

9
2

0
0

4

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

8
7

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
8

7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8

3
3

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

6
7

,5
9

3
1

6
2

,0
9

6
1

7
3

,1
8

8
1

8
0

,0
7

6

In
c
o

m
e

(7
3

,6
9

7
)

(6
7

,2
0

4
)

(8
1

,7
6

9
)

(8
5

,1
8

4
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
3

,8
9

6
9

4
,8

9
2

9
1

,4
1

9
9

4
,8

9
2

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 N
O

N
-R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 H
O

L
D

IN
G

 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 H

O
L

D
IN

G
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 G

ro
s
s
 s

p
e

n
d

 &
 in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

fle
c
ts

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 a

c
tiv

ity
 le

v
e

ls
 in

 n
o

n
 

B
a

ts
* 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
; 
O

ri
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
0

8
-9

 O
u

tt
u

rn

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 

F
U

T
U

R
E

 T
O

 D
&

R

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 

F
U

N
D

G
9

2
  
N

o
n

-R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 H

o
ld

in
g

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts

L
IF

E
L

O
N

G
 L

E
A

R
N

IN
G

 T
O

 C
L

C

1
9

 o
f 
2

8

Page 123



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1
0

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
0
0

2
,5

9
4

  
  

  
  

2
5
2
3

2
,5

9
4

  
  

  
 

0
0

3

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,5
0
0
)

(2
,5

9
4
)

(2
,5

2
3
)

(2
,5

9
4
)

(0
)

0
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
1
2

1
,0

2
7

8
9
2

1
,0

2
7

0
1
5

In
c
o
m

e
(7

1
2
)

(1
,0

2
7
)

(8
9
2
)

(1
,0

2
7
)

0
1
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0
,6

9
0

3
0
,7

9
7

3
0
,7

9
7

3
0
,7

9
7

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,3
7
7
)

(4
,5

0
6
)

(4
,5

0
7
)

(4
,5

0
6
)

0
(0

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6
,3

1
3

2
6
,2

9
1

2
6
,2

9
0

2
6
,2

9
1

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
,0

6
4

1
3
,1

7
5

1
3
,1

7
1

1
3
,1

7
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,0
7
4
)

(3
,1

0
5
)

(3
,1

0
1
)

(3
,1

5
5
)

(5
0
)

2
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
,9

9
0

1
0
,0

7
0

1
0
,0

7
0

1
0
,0

2
0

(5
0
)

(0
)

(0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

5
3

1
,8

3
3

1
,8

3
3

1
,8

3
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
5
3
)

(1
,8

3
3
)

(1
,8

3
3
)

(1
,8

3
3
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,8

6
2

7
,0

1
8

6
,8

1
8

7
,0

1
8

0
3

In
c
o
m

e
(9

3
1
)

(8
9
4
)

(8
9
4
)

(8
9
4
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,9

3
1

6
,1

2
4

5
,9

2
4

6
,1

2
4

0
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

3
2

1
,0

3
2

1
,0

3
2

1
,0

3
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,0
3
2
)

(1
,0

3
2
)

(1
,0

3
2
)

(1
,0

3
2
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,7

4
8

4
,7

4
8

4
,7

4
8

4
,7

4
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,7
4
8
)

(4
,7

4
8
)

(4
,7

4
8
)

(4
,7

4
8
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
3
4

4
3
4

4
3
4

4
3
4

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

3
4
)

(4
3
4
)

(4
3
4
)

(4
3
4
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
,3

9
5

6
0
,0

6
4

5
9
,7

2
5

6
0
,0

6
4

0
1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
,1

6
1
)

(1
7
,5

7
9
)

(1
7
,4

4
1
)

(1
7
,6

2
9
)

(5
0
)

0
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
2
,2

3
4

4
2
,4

8
5

4
2
,2

8
4

4
2
,4

3
5

(5
0
)

(0
)

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
3

1
2
3

1
2
3

1
2
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
3
)

(1
2
3
)

(1
2
3
)

(1
2
3
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
a
lm

 T
o

ta
l

E
2
0
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

E
3
2
 D

S
O

 V
e
h

ic
le

 W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

E
3
1
 P

a
s
s
e
n

g
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

E
4
3
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e
s

E
3
0
 F

le
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

R
is

k
: 

£
2
0
0
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 L

A
P

 m
e
n
u
s
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

 p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
e
la

ys
 i
n
 

L
A

P
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 s
p
e
n
d
 o

f 
5
0
%

 b
e
in

g
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 c

a
rr

y 
fo

rw
a
rd

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
.

E
1
4
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

s

E
1
1
 W

a
s
te

 &
 C

le
a
n

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
1
2
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 

R
is

k
: 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

in
d
e
x
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
te

p
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 a
m

e
lio

ra
te

 a
n
y 

m
a
jo

r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
ll 

c
o
s
t 

a
re

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 b
u
d
g
e
t.

E
1
0
 P

u
b

li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 M
&

A
 

R
e
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
0
1
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

2
0
 o

f 
2
8

Page 124



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

9
8

2
,6

2
9

2
,6

2
8

2
,6

2
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(8

7
4
)

(1
,0

5
6
)

(1
,0

5
6
)

(1
,0

5
6
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

2
4

1
,5

7
3

1
,5

7
2

1
,5

7
3

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,7

3
8

7
,4

2
2

7
,4

2
2

7
,4

2
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
9
9
)

(1
,8

6
6
)

(1
,8

6
5
)

(1
,8

6
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,5

3
9

5
,5

5
6

5
,5

5
7

5
,5

5
6

0
(0

)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,4

8
1

5
,7

6
7

5
,7

6
7

5
,7

6
7

0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

)
(3

)
(3

)
(3

)
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

7
8

5
,7

6
4

5
,7

6
4

5
,7

6
4

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,8

7
3

9
,8

7
3

9
,8

7
3

9
,8

7
3

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

,8
7
3
)

(9
,8

7
3
)

(9
,8

7
3
)

(9
,8

7
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
9

8
5
5

8
5
6

8
5
5

0
(0

)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

4
0
)

(4
4
0
)

(4
4
0
)

(4
4
0
)

0
(0

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6
9

4
1
5

4
1
6

4
1
5

0
0

(0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

3
1

2
,1

3
1

2
,1

3
1

2
,1

3
1

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,1
3
1
)

(2
,1

3
1
)

(2
,1

3
1
)

(2
,1

3
1
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
,7

5
3

2
8
,8

0
0

2
8
,8

0
0

2
8
,8

0
0

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,6

4
3
)

(1
5
,4

9
2
)

(1
5
,4

9
1
)

(1
5
,4

9
2
)

0
0

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,1

1
0

1
3
,3

0
8

1
3
,3

0
9

1
3
,3

0
8

0
0

(0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
6
9

1
6
9

1
6
9

1
6
9

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,7

4
8

9
,0

2
9

9
,0

9
2

8
,9

7
1

(5
8
)

(1
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,4
9
9
)

(1
,2

2
2
)

(1
,2

2
2
)

(1
,2

4
5
)

(2
3
)

2
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,2

4
9

7
,8

0
7

7
,8

7
0

7
,7

2
6

(8
1
)

(1
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,8

5
2

5
,4

3
9

5
,3

3
4

5
,3

4
5

(9
4
)

(2
)

0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

7
9
)

(7
0
7
)

(7
0
7
)

(7
0
7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

7
3

4
,7

3
2

4
,6

2
7

4
,6

3
8

(9
4
)

(2
)

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

5
0

2
,4

8
0

2
,4

5
1

2
,4

8
0

0
1

In
c
o
m

e
(4

7
1
)

(9
5
1
)

(9
5
1
)

(9
5
1
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

7
9

1
,5

2
9

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

2
9

0
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
4
7

8
4
7

8
4
7

8
4
7

0

In
c
o
m

e
(8

4
7
)

(8
4
7
)

(8
4
7
)

(8
4
7
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0

E
4
5
 M

il
e
 E

n
d

 P
a
rk

E
4
4
 A

rt
s
 &

 E
v
e
n

ts

E
4
2
 S

p
o

rt
s
 &

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
 

E
4
1
 I
d

e
a
 S

to
re

s

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
T

o
ta

l

E
4
0
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

E
2
5
 S

tr
e
e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g

E
3
6
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty

E
2
4
 P

a
rk

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
2
3
 C

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s

E
2
2
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h

E
2
1
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

2
1
 o

f 
2
8

Page 125



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
5
,2

9
9

4
,9

7
2

5
,5

2
4

2
2
5

4
1
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

(3
,7

2
9
)

(3
,7

2
9
)

(3
,7

2
9
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
1
5
7
0

1
2
4
3

1
7
9
5

2
2
5

1
4

4
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
,5

6
6

2
3
,2

6
3

2
2
,8

6
5

2
3
,3

3
6

7
3

0
2

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
6
5
)

(7
,6

2
5
)

(7
,6

2
5
)

(7
,6

4
8
)

(2
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
,2

0
1

1
5
,6

3
8

1
5
,2

4
0

1
5
,6

8
8

5
0

0
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
2

1
8
5

1
8
5

1
8
5

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
2

1
8
5

1
8
5

1
8
5

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

2
8

2
,5

2
4

2
,2

5
0

2
,5

2
4

0
1
2

In
c
o
m

e
(8

7
)

(2
1
8
)

(2
1
8
)

(2
1
8
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,7

4
1

2
,3

0
6

2
,0

3
2

2
,3

0
6

0
1
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

8
5

2
,9

2
5

2
,8

9
0

2
,9

2
5

0
1

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
2
)

(5
6
3
)

(5
6
3
)

(5
6
3
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

8
3

2
,3

6
2

2
,3

2
7

2
,3

6
2

0
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
7
1

9
4
6

9
4
6

9
4
6

0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

7
)

(1
5
3
)

(1
5
3
)

(1
5
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
9
4

7
9
3

7
9
3

7
9
3

0
(0

)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,3

1
9

5
,1

7
5

5
,1

4
7

5
,1

7
5

0
1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,9
5
7
)

(3
,7

1
7
)

(3
,7

1
7
)

(3
,7

1
7
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,3

6
2

1
,4

5
8

1
4
3
0

1
4
5
8

0
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,5

3
5

1
1
,7

5
5

1
1
,4

1
8

1
1
,7

5
5

0
3

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,6
2
3
)

(4
,6

5
1
)

(4
,6

5
1
)

(4
,6

5
1
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,9

1
2

7
,1

0
4

6
,7

6
7

7
,1

0
4

(0
)

(0
)

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

4
8

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
9
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
5
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 T

o
ta

l

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
8
9
9

8
9
1

8
9
9

1

In
c
o
m

e
0

(4
1
)

(8
9
1
)

(4
1
)

0
(9

5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
8
5
8

0
8
5
8

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 T
o

ta
l

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
6
,0

9
7

1
2
7
,3

7
5

1
2
6
,2

2
2

1
2
7
,4

4
8

7
4

0
1

In
c
o
m

e
(4

1
,1

8
7
)

(4
7
,9

8
1
)

(4
8
,6

2
2
)

(4
8
,0

5
5
)

(7
4
)

0
(1

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
4
,9

1
0

7
9
,3

9
3

7
7
,6

0
0

7
9
,3

9
3

(0
)

(0
)

2
T

O
T

A
L

 F
O

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

E
7
1
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f

ro
m

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

W
N

F

E
6
1
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 &
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

o
ta

l
V

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
te

s
t 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 L

A
P

 M
e
n
u
s
 "

Y
o
u
 D

e
c
id

e
" 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s

E
5
6
 D

ru
g

s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 T
e
a
m

E
5
5
 P

o
li

c
y
 &

 V
ic

ti
m

s
 

E
5
4
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
te

s
t 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 L

A
P

 M
e
n
u
s
 "

Y
o
u
 D

e
c
id

e
" 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 c

a
rr

y 
fo

rw
a
rd

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 

E
5
3
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

W
N

F

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

o
ta

l
L
if
e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f

ro
m

 C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 F

a
m

ili
e
s

E
5
1
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

C
ri

m
e
 R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 

E
4
7
 L

if
e
lo

n
g

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

S
a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

to
 m

e
e
t 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

2
2
 o

f 
2
8

Page 126



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1
0

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 (

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

2
0
 

3
,5

4
6
 

3
,5

9
0
 

3
,6

2
5
 

7
9
 

2
 

1
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
1
6
)

(9
5
8
)

(9
8
7
)

(1
,0

4
8
)

(9
0
)

9
 

6
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

0
4
 

2
,5

8
8
 

2
,6

0
3
 

2
,5

7
7
 

(1
1
)

(0
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

1
9
 

3
,7

8
9
 

3
,7

5
5
 

3
,7

4
1
 

(4
8
)

(1
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,6
3
1
)

(2
,5

0
8
)

(2
,4

7
3
)

(2
,5

0
6
)

2
 

(0
)

1
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
8
8
 

1
,2

8
1
 

1
,2

8
2
 

1
,2

3
5
 

(4
6
)

(4
)

(4
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

2
7
 

1
,4

5
7
 

1
,2

3
5
 

1
,2

4
1
 

(2
1
6
)

(1
5
)

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,2
2
7
)

(1
,4

5
7
)

(1
,2

3
5
)

(1
,2

4
1
)

2
1
6
 

(1
5
)

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
 

4
8
1
 

3
9
8
 

3
9
1
 

(9
0
)

(1
9
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
0
 

(4
8
1
)

(2
9
0
)

(3
9
1
)

9
0
 

(1
9
)

3
5
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

0
 

1
0
8
 

0
 

0
 

1
0
0
 

(1
0
0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,3

6
6
 

9
,2

7
3
 

8
,9

7
8
 

8
,9

9
8
 

(2
7
5
)

(3
)

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(5

,9
7
4
)

(5
,4

0
4
)

(4
,9

8
5
)

(5
,1

8
6
)

2
1
8
 

(4
)

4
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 2
,3

9
2

 3
,8

6
8

 3
,9

9
3

 3
,8

1
2

(5
6
)

(1
)

(5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

3
0
 

5
0
 

6
3
 

6
3
 

1
3
 

2
6
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,5
8
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
0
 

5
0
 

6
3
 

6
3
 

1
3
 

2
6
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

2
2
 

2
,5

5
1
 

2
,6

0
8
 

2
,6

1
6
 

6
5
 

3
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(3

8
8
)

(5
3
1
)

(5
3
1
)

(5
3
1
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

3
4
 

2
,0

2
0
 

2
,0

7
7
 

2
,0

8
5
 

6
5
 

3
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,4

5
2
 

2
,6

0
1
 

2
,6

7
1
 

2
,6

7
9
 

7
8
 

3
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,9
6
8
)

(5
3
1
)

(5
3
1
)

(5
3
1
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

8
4
 

2
,0

7
0
 

2
,1

4
0
 

2
,1

4
8
 

7
8
 

4
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

6
9
 

8
5
9
 

8
9
5
 

8
9
5
 

3
6
 

4
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(2

9
0
)

(4
5
1
)

(2
5
1
)

(2
5
1
)

2
0
0
 

(4
4
)

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,8

7
9
 

4
0
7
 

6
4
4
 

6
4
4
 

2
3
7
 

5
8
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

7
5
 

1
,9

5
6
 

1
,9

7
7
 

1
,9

4
8
 

(8
)

(0
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(8

0
4
)

(8
0
4
)

(8
6
8
)

(8
6
3
)

(5
9
)

7
 

(1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

7
1
 

1
,1

5
1
 

1
,1

0
9
 

1
,0

8
5
 

(6
6
)

(6
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
6
4
 

1
,4

6
4
 

1
,4

8
0
 

1
,4

9
5
 

3
1
 

2
 

1
 

In
c
o
m

e
(7

9
)

(1
0
4
)

(6
8
6
)

(3
7
6
)

(2
7
2
)

2
6
2
 

(4
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
8
5
 

1
,3

6
0
 

7
9
4
 

1
,1

1
9
 

(2
4
1
)

(1
8
)

4
1
 

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 A

m
b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

  
J
1
8
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s

  
J
1
6
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

  
J
0
6
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
is

io
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

G
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
6
5
K

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 C
L
G

 &
 i
s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
lr
e
a
d
y 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
.

  
J
1
4
  

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

  
J
0
8
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 F
u

n
d

in
g

J
1
2
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

  
J
0
4
 M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

  
K

9
9
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L

  
K

9
8
 L

o
c
a
l 

L
a
n

d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t

R
is

k
 -

 A
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
it
y 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 -

 t
h
is

 t
o
ta

ls
 £

2
9
5
K

. 
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 

s
a
v
in

g
, 

th
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
ri
s
k
 f

o
r 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 -

 A
s
 a

 t
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t,

 t
h
is

 v
o
te

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
re

a
k
 e

v
e
n
 i
n
 1

0
-1

1
, 

a
s
 a

n
y 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 w

ill
 a

c
c
ru

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 a

n
y 

d
e
fi
c
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

fr
o
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
.

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 -

 S
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 f
a
ll 

in
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

ts
, 

th
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y 
a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

R
is

k
 -

 L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 f

o
r 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

2
3
 o

f 
2
8

Page 127



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 (

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,9

8
2
 

2
,9

0
7
 

2
,8

5
6
 

2
,8

5
8
 

(4
9
)

(2
)

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
6
5
)

(1
,2

1
3
)

(1
,1

9
2
)

(1
,2

0
5
)

8
 

(1
)

1
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

1
7
 

1
,6

9
3
 

1
,6

6
4
 

1
,6

5
3
 

(4
0
)

(2
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
6
7
 

7
5
0
 

8
0
2
 

8
4
1
 

9
1
 

1
2
 

5
 

In
c
o
m

e
(4

4
9
)

(5
8
8
)

(5
1
0
)

(6
4
1
)

(5
3
)

9
 

2
6
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(8
2
)

1
6
3
 

2
9
2
 

2
0
0
 

3
7
 

2
3
 

(3
2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

1
8
 

4
,4

5
0
 

3
,1

4
2
 

3
,3

4
5
 

(1
,1

0
5
)

(2
5
)

6
 

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,3
1
5
)

(2
,2

7
7
)

(2
,3

4
0
)

(1
,1

9
2
)

1
,0

8
5
 

(4
8
)

(4
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
0
3
 

2
,1

7
3
 

8
0
2
 

2
,1

5
3
 

(2
0
)

(1
)

1
6
8
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

3
1
 

1
,7

3
1
 

2
,5

4
6
 

2
,5

4
6
 

8
1
5
 

4
7
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(8

5
5
)

(8
5
5
)

(1
,6

7
0
)

(1
,6

7
0
)

(8
1
5
)

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7
6
 

8
7
6
 

8
7
6
 

8
7
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

3
7
 

1
,3

4
4
 

1
,3

7
4
 

3
7
 

3
 

2
 

In
c
o
m

e
(5

5
0
)

(5
5
0
)

(5
5
0
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

7
8
7
 

7
9
4
 

8
2
4
 

3
7
 

5
 

4
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
2
,6

1
7
 

2
2
,6

1
7

2
2
,6

1
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
,2

3
4
)

(1
8
,2

3
3
)

(1
8
,2

3
3
)

1
 

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

4
,3

8
3
 

4
,3

8
4
 

4
,3

8
4
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
7
5
 

4
7
5

4
7
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(4

5
9
)

(4
5
9
)

(4
5
9
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

1
6
 

1
6
 

1
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
,0

2
4
 

5
0
,4

1
9
 

4
9
,7

8
3
 

5
0
,0

7
1
 

(3
4
8
)

(1
)

1
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,5

9
9
)

(3
1
,4

7
1
)

(3
2
,2

7
5
)

(3
1
,1

5
7
)

3
1
4
 

(1
)

(3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,4

2
5
 

1
8
,9

4
9
 

1
7
,5

0
8
 

1
8
,9

1
4
 

(3
4
)

(0
)

8
 

A
4
9
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
8
,9

3
3

3
3
,2

5
2

3
3
,1

8
4

(5
,7

4
9
)

(1
5
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

6
,6

8
4
)

(3
0
,6

5
7
)

(3
0
,6

5
6
)

6
,0

2
8

(1
6
)

(0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

4
9

2
,5

9
5

2
,5

2
8

2
7
9

1
2

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
,0

2
4
 

8
9
,3

5
2
 

8
3
,0

3
5
 

8
3
,2

5
5
 

(6
,0

9
7
)

(7
)

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,5

9
9
)

(6
8
,1

5
5
)

(6
2
,9

3
2
)

(6
1
,8

1
3
)

6
,3

4
2
 

(9
)

(2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,4

2
5

2
1
,1

9
7

2
0
,1

0
3

2
1
,4

4
2

2
4
5

1
7

  
J
2
4
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

T
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

a
s
s
u
m

e
s
 f

u
ll 

in
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
s
t 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 w
ill

 b
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
.

R
is

k
 -

 I
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

T
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
a
g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 u

s
u
a
l 
c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 o

f 
In

c
o
m

e
 &

 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

  
J
2
6
 L

e
tt

in
g

s

  
J
3
2
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
il

d
in

g
s

  
J
3
0
 B

S
F

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

  
J
2
0
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y

  
J
2
2
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

  
J
3
4
 D

e
p

o
ts

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 F

R
O

M
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

T
h
e
 £

5
,7

4
9
K

 G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

w
o
 m

a
in

 f
a
c
to

rs
 :

1
) 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 l
e
s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f

o
r.

  

In
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

h
e
a
d
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
c
tu

a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 h

a
s
 d

im
in

is
h
e
d
 

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
0
 C

L
G

 t
a
rg

e
t 

to
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
) 

A
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
lie

s
 a

n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

h
e
a
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 m
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

B
a
d
 D

e
b
ts

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
e
a
d
.

T
h
e
 G

ro
s
s
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 l
ik

e
w

is
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 f

e
w

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 t

h
a
n
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f

o
r.

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 

R
E

N
E

W
A

L

2
4
 o

f 
2
8

Page 128



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

0

2
%

 t
o

 5
%

 

A
m

b
e

r

>
5

%
 R

e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 &
 

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

1
1

9
5

5
9

5
5

9
5

5

In
c
o

m
e

(9
2

3
)

(9
7

3
)

(9
7

3
)

(9
7

3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
2

)
(1

8
)

(1
8

)
(1

8
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

8
5

5
8

5
5

8
5

5
8

5

In
c
o

m
e

(5
9

2
)

(5
9

2
)

(5
9

2
)

(5
9

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(7
)

(7
)

(7
)

(7
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,4
9

6
1

,5
4

0
1

,5
4

0
1

,5
4

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,5

1
5

)
(1

,5
6

5
)

(1
,5

6
5

)
(1

,5
6

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
9

)
(2

5
)

(1
8

)
(2

5
)

3
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

4
,5

9
3

3
4

,0
5

7
3

4
,0

5
7

3
4

,0
5

7

In
c
o

m
e

(3
1

,1
0

9
)

(3
1

,1
5

9
)

(3
1

,1
5

9
)

(3
1

,1
5

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,4

8
4

2
,8

9
8

2
,8

9
8

2
,8

9
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,2
1

8
1

,2
1

8
1

,2
1

8
1

,2
1

8

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,1

8
5

)
(1

,1
8

5
)

(1
,1

8
5

)
(1

,1
8

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5

0
5

5
0

5
5

0
5

5
0

5

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

8
)

(5
0

8
)

(5
0

8
)

(5
0

8
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
)

(3
)

(3
)

(3
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

,5
9

8
9

,5
8

9
9

,5
8

9
9

,5
8

9

In
c
o

m
e

(9
,7

3
7

)
(9

,6
7

4
)

(9
,6

7
4

)
(9

,6
7

4
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
3

9
)

(8
5

)
(8

5
)

(8
5

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

,3
5

4
7

,4
5

3
7

,4
5

3
7

,4
5

3

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,3

9
4

)
(3

,5
3

5
)

(3
,5

3
5

)
(3

,5
3

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,9

6
0

3
,9

1
8

3
,9

1
8

3
,9

1
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

8
7

,9
6

9
1

8
7

,9
6

9
1

8
7

,9
6

9
1

8
7

,9
6

9

In
c
o

m
e

(1
8

7
,4

7
4

)
(1

8
7

,4
7

4
)

(1
8

7
,4

7
4

)
(1

8
7

,4
7

4
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
9

5
4

9
5

4
9

5
4

9
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

,9
1

3
7

,9
4

5
7

,9
4

5
7

,9
4

5

In
c
o

m
e

(5
,9

3
3

)
(5

,9
3

2
)

(5
,9

3
2

)
(5

,9
3

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

8
0

2
,0

1
3

2
,0

1
3

2
,0

1
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

2
1

4
2

1
4

2
1

4
2

1

In
c
o

m
e

(4
2

5
)

(4
2

5
)

(4
2

5
)

(4
2

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(4
)

(4
)

(4
)

(4
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

4
9

,5
7

1
2

4
9

,1
5

7
2

4
9

,1
5

7
2

4
9

,1
5

7

In
c
o

m
e

(2
3

9
,7

6
5

)
(2

3
9

,8
9

2
)

(2
3

9
,8

9
2

)
(2

3
9

,8
9

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
,8

0
6

9
,2

6
5

9
,2

6
5

9
,2

6
5

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
t 
"t

im
e

 la
g

" 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 in

c
u

rr
e

d
  
a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 
s
u

b
s
id

y 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
.

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
t 
"t

im
e

 la
g

" 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 in

c
u

rr
e

d
  
a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fit

s
 

g
ra

n
t 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 I
C

T

R
6

0
  
R

e
p

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

s

R
5

8
  
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 A

d
m

in
T

im
e

 la
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fit

 e
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fit

s
 S

u
b

s
id

y 
 e

x
p

la
in

s
  

b
u

d
g

e
t 
p

o
s
iti

o
n

 v
e

rs
u

s
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 d
a

te
.

R
5

4
  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts

R
5

0
  
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

A
c

c
e

s
s

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
ts

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 in

 S
L

A
 in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
.

R
4

8
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
ts

 c
a

p
ita

l e
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 in

c
u

rr
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
h

a
rg

e
d

.

R
4

2
  
D

e
b

to
rs

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
U

D
IT

 &
 R

IS
K

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

R
4

0
  
R

is
k

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
3

6
  
C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 &
 N

N
D

R

R
4

4
  
C

a
s

h
ie

rs

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

R
3

4
  
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it

2
5

 o
f 
2

8

Page 129



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 &
 

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

6
5

1
,0

7
3

1
,0

7
3

1
,0

7
3

In
c
o

m
e

(7
5

2
)

(7
5

2
)

(7
5

2
)

(7
5

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1

3
3

2
1

3
2

1
3

2
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7

6
1

7
7

4
7

7
4

7
7

4

In
c
o

m
e

(8
0

3
)

(8
0

3
)

(8
0

3
)

(8
0

3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(4
2

)
(2

9
)

(2
9

)
(2

9
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,7
2

6
1

,8
4

7
1

,8
4

7
1

,8
4

7

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,5

5
5

)
(1

,5
5

5
)

(1
,5

5
5

)
(1

,5
5

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

1
2

9
2

1
9

5
2

9
2

5
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

,4
3

2
2

,4
2

4
2

,4
2

4
2

,4
2

4

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,2

6
1

)
(2

,2
6

1
)

(2
,2

6
1

)
(2

,2
6

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

1
1

6
3

1
6

3
1

6
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,5
7

5
1

,4
8

2
1

,4
8

2
1

,4
8

2

In
c
o

m
e

(1
2

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

5
0

1
,4

8
2

1
,4

8
2

1
,4

8
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

,0
0

7
3

,9
0

6
3

,9
0

6
3

,9
0

6

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,3

8
6

)
(2

,2
6

1
)

(2
,2

6
1

)
(2

,2
6

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

2
1

1
,6

4
5

1
,6

4
5

1
,6

4
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

8
6

1
8

6
1

8
6

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
t 
P

M
O

 C
o

s
ts

.

In
c
o

m
e

(1
8

6
)

(1
8

6
)

(1
8

6
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

8
6

1
8

6
1

8
6

In
c
o

m
e

(1
8

6
)

(1
8

6
)

(1
8

6
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,1
7

4
1

,5
4

1
1

,5
4

1
1

,5
4

1

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,3

3
7

)
(1

,2
5

3
)

(1
,2

5
3

)
(1

,2
5

3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
6

3
)

2
8

8
2

8
8

2
8

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,4
4

6
3

,4
5

9
3

,4
5

9
3

,4
5

9

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,1

1
4

)
(3

,1
2

7
)

(3
,1

2
7

)
(3

,1
2

7
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

2
3

3
2

3
3

2
3

3
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3

,7
8

0
3

,8
4

9
3

,8
4

9
3

,8
4

9

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,5

1
1

)
(2

,5
8

1
)

(2
,5

8
1

)
(2

,5
8

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

6
9

1
,2

6
8

1
,2

6
8

1
,2

6
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1

,3
3

0
1

,3
3

0
1

,3
3

0
1

,3
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
3

3
)

(4
3

3
)

(4
3

3
)

(4
3

3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
9

7
8

9
7

8
9

7
8

9
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9

,7
3

0
1

0
,1

7
9

1
0

,1
7

9
1

0
,1

7
9

In
c
o

m
e

(7
,3

9
5

)
(7

,3
9

4
)

(7
,3

9
4

)
(7

,3
9

4
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

3
5

2
,7

8
5

2
,7

8
5

2
,7

8
5

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

E
 &

 N
D

C

R
9

6
  
P

A
S

 S
c

h
e

m
e

s

R
9

2
  
H

R
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
c

y

R
9

4
  
H

R
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s

R
9

0
  
H

R
 S

tr
a

te
g

y

R
6

2
  
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

R
8

2
  
N

o
n

-D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 C

o
s

ts

R
3

2
  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a

n
c

e
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
t 
F

M
IP

 c
o

s
ts

.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

R
4

6
  
P

a
y

m
e

n
ts

R
3

8
  
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
t 
R

2
P

 c
o

s
ts

.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 H
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fle

c
t 
H

R
IP

 c
o

s
ts

.

2
6

 o
f 
2

8

Page 130



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 &
 

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

1
6

2
1

6
2

1
6

In
c
o

m
e

(2
2

)
(2

2
)

(2
2

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9

4
1

9
4

1
9

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

1
7

2
1

6
2

1
6

In
c
o

m
e

(2
2

)
(2

2
)

(2
2

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

9
5

1
9

4
1

9
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

6
6

,5
3

0
2

6
7

,0
3

2
2

6
7

,0
3

1
2

6
7

,0
3

1

In
c
o

m
e

(2
5

2
,6

1
6

)
(2

5
2

,8
7

5
)

(2
5

2
,8

7
5

)
(2

5
2

,8
7

5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3

,9
1

4
1

4
,1

5
7

1
4

,1
5

6
1

4
,1

5
6

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

2
,6

6
6

In
c
o

m
e

(1
8

,2
3

4
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

3
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4

7
6

In
c
o

m
e

(4
5

9
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2

8
9

,6
7

2

In
c
o

m
e

(2
7

1
,3

0
9

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

8
,3

6
3

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

D
E

P
O

T
S

 T
O

 D
&

R

A
D

M
IN

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 T

O
 D

&
R

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

 O
F

F
IC

E

R
8

0
  
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e

2
7

 o
f 
2

8

Page 131



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1
0

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 

&
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

9
,2

4
8

2
1

,4
5

4
2

1
,4

5
4

2
1

,4
5

4
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,5

0
0

)
(6

,3
3

6
)

(6
,3

3
6

)
(6

,3
3

6
)

0
0

0
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

7
,7

4
8

1
5

,1
1

8
1

5
,1

1
8

1
5

,1
1

8
0

0
0

B
u

d
g

e
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
ie

s
  

h
e

ld
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

ri
s
k
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
c
ie

s
, 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 g
ra

n
ts

 i
n

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

B
u

d
g

e
t 

v
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 

p
ro

fi
le

, 
w

it
h

 n
o

 b
o

tt
o

m
 l
in

e
 e

ff
e

c
t.

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

2
8

 o
f 

2
8

Page 132



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

  
2
0
1
0

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

  
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(F
ro

m
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

L
E

D
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

  
D

w
e
ll
in

g
 &

 N
o

n
 D

w
e
ll
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
In

c
o
m

e
(5

9
,4

2
7
)

(5
9
,0

8
2
)

(5
9
,3

8
6
)

(3
0
4
)

1
(2

7
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(5
9
,4

2
7
)

(5
9
,0

8
2
)

(5
9
,3

8
6
)

(3
0
4
)

1
(2

7
6
)

  
T

e
n

a
n

t 
&

 L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
,7

0
5
)

(1
7
,0

5
0
)

(1
6
,2

0
1
)

8
4
9

(5
)

6
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
6
,7

0
5
)

(1
7
,0

5
0
)

(1
6
,2

0
1
)

8
4
9

(5
)

6
5

IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
S

u
b

s
id

y
In

c
o
m

e
(1

3
,6

2
5
)

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

  
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e
 R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
0
)

(2
0
0
)

(2
2
0
)

(2
0
)

(2
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
0
0
)

(2
0
0
)

(2
2
0
)

(2
0
)

1
0

  
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
In

c
o
m

e
(5

2
0
)

(5
2
0
)

(5
2
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(5
2
0
)

(5
2
0
)

(5
2
0
)

  
T

O
T

A
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(8
9
,9

5
2
)

5
2
5

(1
)

(2
3
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(8
9
,9

5
2
)

5
2
5

(1
)

(2
3
1
)

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

L
E

D
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 B

U
D

G
E

T
S

  
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,7

0
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,7

0
5

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 R

e
p
a
ir

s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
n
 

li
n
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 V
a
ri

o
u
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 b

y
 T

H
H

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 o
n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

y
 t
h
e
 T

H
H

 S
e
n
io

r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

.

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
re

n
ts

 a
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

f 
L
a
th

a
m

 H
o
u
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
-l

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
v
o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
, 
fo

ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
v
a
ri

o
u
s
 l
e
a
s
e
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

. 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 i
ts

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 e

s
ta

te
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 a

 s
im

il
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ri

c
e
 (

s
e
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
R

e
n
ts

, 
R

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 T

a
x
e
s
 b

e
lo

w
).

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d

e
e
p
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

.

M
o
rt

g
a
g
e
 I
n
te

re
s
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

M
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 H
R

A
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 p
re

-s
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
t 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 f
lu

c
tu

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
ra

te
s
. 

1
 o

f 
2

Page 133



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

  
2
0
1
0

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

  
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(F
ro

m
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

  
S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 &

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,8

2
5

1
7
3

1
8
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,8

2
5

1
7
3

1
8
7

  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
R

e
n

t 
R

a
te

s
 &

 T
a
x
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,6

0
1

(3
1
0
)

(2
)

(1
5
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,6

0
1

(3
1
0
)

(2
)

(1
5
1
)

IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

  
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

a
d

 &
 D

o
u

b
tf

u
l 
D

e
b

ts
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
0

9
0
0

5
8
5

(3
1
5
)

(3
5
)

(3
1
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0
0

9
0
0

5
8
5

(3
1
5
)

(3
5
)

(3
1
5
)

  
C

a
p

it
a
l 
F

in
a
n

c
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
2
,6

0
5

3
2
,6

0
5

3
2
,6

0
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
2
,6

0
5

3
2
,6

0
5

3
2
,6

0
5

  
T

O
T

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4
,7

7
3

9
4
,7

7
3

9
4
,3

2
1

(4
5
2
)

(3
7
)

(3
7
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4
,7

7
3

9
4
,7

7
3

9
4
,3

2
1

(4
5
2
)

(3
7
)

(3
7
9
)

T
o

ta
l 
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,2

9
6

4
,2

9
6

4
,3

6
9

7
3

(3
7
)

(6
1
0
)

  
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

T
o

ta
l 
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

9
6

1
,2

9
6

1
,3

6
9

7
3

(3
7
)

(6
1
0
)

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 H

R
A

. 
T

o
 d

a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

£
3
0
0
k
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

In
c
o
m

e
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 C

o
s
ts

 p
a
rt

ia
ll
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 C
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 R

a
te

 o
f 
In

te
re

s
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
b
u
t 
m

u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 
S

u
b
s
id

y
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ri
c
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 E

s
ta

te
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
e
p
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  

T
h
e
s
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
o
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

in
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 (

s
e
e
 T

e
n
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 L

e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 -

 

a
b
o
v
e
).

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 a

 r
e
fu

n
d
 o

f 
v
a
ri

o
u
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
 w

a
te

r 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 c

re
d
it
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 W

a
te

r 
U

ti
li
ti
e
s
.

2
 o

f 
2

Page 134



APPENDIX 4

Efficiency Savings Summary 2010/11

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

SAV/AHWB/02 (08) Improved efficiency of procurement of Supplies & Services 150 113 113 150 0

SAV/AHWB/05 (08) Business Process Reengineering -34 -25 -25 -34 0

SAV/AHWB/01 Continuing Health Care charges 97 73 73 97 0

213 161 161 213 0

SAV/CS/01 (09) Staffing review 375 281 281 375 0

SAV/CS/02 (09) Unit Cost Analysis 228 171 171 228 0

SAV/CS/02 (08) Streamlining Support for Families in need 56 42 42 56 0 Identified savings in salaries being achieved

SAV/CS/03 (08) Children’s Social Care Commissioning 100 75 75 100 0
Budget remains volatile with high individual 

placement costs

SAV/CS/04 (08) Organisational Restructure YPL 40 30 30 40 0

SAV/CS/05 (08) Invest to Save - Attendance Welfare Service 78 59 59 78 0 Identified savings in salaries being achieved

SAV/CS/06 (08) Non-Statutory Support to Schools 25 19 19 25 0

SAV/CS/08 (08) Vendor Managed Service 30 22 22 30 0

SAV/CS/10 (08) Young People Outside School 40 30 0 0 -40 The service is in balance overall

SAV/CS/12 (08) Review of non & statutory provision 250 188 138 183 -67

G49,G50,G51,G52, G53, G57, G58 and G59 are not 

currently achieving their sav/cs/12 salary savings 

targets.

SAV/CS/13 (08) Early Years Advisory Team 50 38 38 50 0
Some of the salary costs of managers will be 

recharged to other cost centres at end of year.

SAV/CS/14 (08) Streamlining of Extended Provisions 70 52 52 70 0

SAV/CS/15 (08) Restructure of Quality and Audit Team 24 18 18 24 0

SAV/CS/16 (08) EYCL Efficiencies 197 148 148 197 0

1,563 1,173 1,093 1,456 -107

SAV/CLC/04 (08) Reduce Street Light Maintenance 30 23 23 30 0

SAV/CLC/15 (08) Trade Waste
200 0 0 200

0
Efficiency savings will be realised towards the end 

of the financial year

SAV/CLC/11 (08) Leisure Management Contract 202 0 0 202 0
Efficiency savings will be realised towards the end 

of the financial year

SAV/CLC/12 (08) Parking (Estate Parking/ Parking) 360 270 270 360 0
Compensatory savings will be made that deliver the 

efficiency savings

SAV/CLC/01 Concessionary Fares 620 620 620 620 0 Base budget saving

SAV/CLC/02 Directorate General Efficiency Savings 64 48 48 64 0

1,476 961 961 1,476 0

SAV/DR/01 (08) Horizontal Savings 12 9 9 12 0

SAV/DR/08 (08) Energy Services 100 0 0 100 0
Fee schedules and regimes currently being 

developed to ensure income maximisation

SAV/DR/02 (09) Technical support to Planning & Building Group 49 37 37 49 0

SAV/DR/03 (09) Review of housing related employment initiatives 50 50 50 50 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/DR/01 Requisition to Pay
29 22 22 22 -7

Delay in the redeployment of staff, however in year 

compensatory savings have been identified.

SAV/DR/02 Specific Site Redevelopment Planning 53 53 53 53 0

Budget removed as part of the 2010/2011 budget 

setting process for the Directorate and no 

expenditure incurred.

293 171 171 286 -7

SAV/CE/01 (08) Registration of Births, Marriages & Deaths/ Pensions contribution 20 15 15 20 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/02 (08) Directorate wide improvement programme 151 113 113 151 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/06 (08) Reduction in Communications Expenditure 81 61 61 81 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/DR/04 (08) / SAV/DR/03Corporate Match funding 60 45 45 60 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/01 Chief Executive’s Service Improvement Efficiency 39 30 30 39 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/02 Legal Services 14 10 10 14 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/03 Reduce Pulling Together print run 13 10 10 13 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/04 Challenge Fund 32 24 24 32 0 Planned savings already achieved

410 308 308 410 0

SAV/CE/05 (08) Procurement of agency staff  through vendor management 20 15 15 20 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/DR/06 (08) Administration of benefits 100 75 75 100 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/CE/02 (08) Directorate wide improvement programme 302 227 227 302 0 Planned savings already achieved

SAV/RES/09 Directorate wide Continuous Improvement Initiatives 143 107 107 143 0 Planned savings already achieved

565 424 424 565 0

TOTAL SAVINGS 4,520 3,198 3,118 4,406 -114

Comments

TOTAL - Resources

TOTAL - Children's Services

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

TOTAL - Chief Executive's

RESOURCES

Savings 

Target 

2010/11

TOTAL - Development & Renewal

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE

ADULTS HEALTH & WELLBEING

TOTAL - Adults Health & Wellbeing

TOTAL - Communities, Localities & Culture

CHILDREN, SCHOOLS AND FAMILIES

Forecast 

Savings 

as at Qtr 

3

Actual 

Savings 

as at Qtr 

3

Forecast 

Outturn 

Savings 

Variance

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

TRANSFORMATION SAVINGS SUMMARY 2010/11

Savings 

Target 

P9 Forecast 

Savings 
P9 Actuals 

Forecast 

Outturn 

Savings 

Variance Comments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ADULTS HEALTH & WELLBEING

AHWB/186 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice)              407 305             305             407             -              

AHWB/159
Corporate Transformation Programme. Savings from 

using Comensura for Homecare agency staff 400             300             300             400             -              

AHWB/146
Use of Care Funding Calculator to reduce external 

placement costs 400             300             300             400             -              

AHWB/147
Homecare Reablement Service-Reducing demand for 

long term services 

300             -              -              300             -              

The use of the reablement service is 

on the increase. An evaluation is 

being undertaken on the level of 

savings

AHWB/148

Reduce the cost of MH Residential placement costs by 

moving Clients from residential accommodation into 

Supported Living 100             75               75               100             -              

AHWB/153 Address Riverside House voids 200             150             150             200             -              

AHWB/161
Electronic Homecare Monitoring to align hours of 

domiciliary care paid for with actual hours delivered.

160             -              -              160             -              

Increase in number of clients due to 

demographic pressure is resulting in 

overspending in some areas

TOTAL - ADULTS HEALTH & WELLBEING 1,967          1,130          1,130          1,967          -              

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

CE/125
Review and create a flexible 

strategic/policy/performance core 145             145             145             145             -              Budget has been adjusted already

CE/187 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 83               62               62               83               -              Budget has been adjusted already

TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 228             207             207             228             -              

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE

CLC/100 Health & Safety Review - Service Integration                25 25               25               25               -              

CLC/188 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 536             402             402             536             -              

TOTAL - COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE 561             427             427             561             -              

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

CSF/189 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice)

1,728          1,728          1,728          1,728          -              

Mainly through Children's Centres' 

reorganisation and one-off measures

CSF/48
Cross-Reduce services’ comms budget by better 

planning and control 25               25               25               25               -              

CSF/55 Requisition to Payment (R2P) 145             145             145             145             -              

CSF/41
Building Development and Technical Services  Reduce 

budgets for central maintenance. 30               30               30               30               -              

TOTAL - CHILDREN'S SERVICES 1,928          1,928          1,928          1,928          -              

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL

D&R/190 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice)              295 295             295             295             -              

TOTAL - DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL 295             295             295             295             -              

RESOURCES

RES/119 Review of Directorate Admin Support                75 75               75               75               -              Budget has been adjusted already

RES/191 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 401             300             300             401             -              Budget has been adjusted already

TOTAL - RESOURCES 476             375             375             476             -              

TOTAL SAVINGS 5,455          4,362          4,362          5,455          -              

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6 – Movement in Capital Budget 

 £’000 

Capital Budget Quarter 2 (as reported at Cabinet on 
1st Dec 2010) 

198,311 

Communities Localities and Culture new projects 
approved: 

• LAP Participatory Budgeting schemes  

 

Re-profiling of CLC capital budgets between 2010/11 and 
2011/12 and various adjustments included in RCDAs 10-
26 and 10-39 

 

 
 

 
326 

 
 

-602 

Children, Schools and Families: 

•   New projects approved (Youth Capital Fund, 
Expansion, Modernisation, Schools Access 
Initiative and Primary Capital Programme) 

 

417 

Building Schools for the Future: 

•   New schemes adopted for ICT infrastructure 
(approved at Cabinet 8th October 2008) 

 

6,271 

Resources and Chief Executive’s: 

• Transfer of Facilities Management service to 
Development and Renewal 

• Correction of ICT budget for Telephony scheme to 
match available approved resources (prudential 
borrowing) 

 

-822 

 

175 

Development and Renewal (including Housing): 

• Transfer of Facilities Management service from 
Chief Executive’s 

• Withdrawal of grant funding from Homes and 
Communities Agency (HCA) for phase 2 of 
Building Britain’s Future scheme 

• Correction of Facilities Management budgets to 
match available approved resources 

 

822 

 
 

-830 

 
 

-60 

Capital Budget Q3 204,008 

 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7

CAPITAL QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING - DECEMBER 2010

SUMMARY Budget to Spend to Forecast Budget Variance

Date Date Outturn Spent

from

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-10 31-Mar-11 Budget

£m £m £m % £m

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Communities, Localities and Culture 14.045 5.497 12.307 39.1% -1.738

Children, Schools and Families 32.136 15.163 26.403 47.2% -5.733

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.735 0.214 0.605 29.1% -0.130

D&R 14.802 5.072 7.556 34.3% -7.246

HRA 47.247 24.769 42.731 52.4% -4.516

BSF 79.855 38.586 56.049 48.3% -23.806

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 188.820 89.301 145.651 47.3% -43.169

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Communities, Localities and Culture 1.544 0.141 1.294 9.1% -0.250

Children, Schools and Families 2.631 1.958 2.007 74.4% -0.624

Resources 4.769 1.405 3.418 29.5% -1.351

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.432 0.064 0.250 14.8% -0.182

D&R 4.712 0.420 1.100 8.9% -3.612

BSF 1.100 0.000 0.550 0.0% -0.550

LPP TOTAL 15.188 3.988 8.619 26.3% -6.569

GRAND TOTAL 204.008 93.289 154.270 45.7% -49.738

TOTALS BY DIRECTORATE:

Communities, Localities and Culture 15.589 5.638 13.601 36.2% -1.988

Children, Schools and Families 34.767 17.121 28.410 49.2% -6.357

Resources 4.769 1.405 3.418 29.5% -1.351

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 1.167 0.278 0.855 23.8% -0.312

D&R 19.514 5.492 8.656 28.1% -10.858

HRA 47.247 24.769 42.731 52.4% -4.516

BSF 80.955 38.586 56.599 47.7% -24.356
204.008 93.289 154.270 45.7% -49.738

Page 141



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e
n

d
 t

o
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a
te

D
a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-M

a
r-

1
1

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 D

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

T
fL

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 w

a
lk

in
g

5
.4

8
7

2
.3

6
6

4
.5

8
7

4
3
.1

%
-0

.9
0
0

M
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 3

1
/0

3
/1

1
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 m

a
y
 s

lip
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
o
m

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 s

lip
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
fL

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 c

la
im

 u
p
 t

ill
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
1
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 l
o
s
t.

P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

2
.5

8
1

0
.4

4
9

2
.5

8
1

1
7
.4

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 G

ra
n
t 

A
w

a
rd

in
g
 b

o
d
y
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 a

re
 n

o
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 s

it
e
, 

fu
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

O
ly

m
p
ic

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

0
.6

3
0

0
.4

0
4

0
.6

3
0

6
4
.2

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 s

it
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

1
.6

5
3

0
.5

1
3

1
.1

4
6

3
1
.0

%
-0

.5
0
7

A
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 g

o
n
e
 i
n
to

 d
is

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 w

a
it
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 

A
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 h

o
te

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 c

ro
s
s
ra

il 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 S

1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

S
1
0
6
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

L
B

T
H

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
s
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

O
P

T
E

M
S

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6

0
.1

1
5

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

5
5

0
.0

%
-0

.0
6
0

O
rd

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
, 

th
is

 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

T
h
e
 O

P
T

E
M

S
 S

1
0
6
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
xt

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 f
ro

m
 O

P
T

E
M

S
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 l
o
s
t.

S
tr

e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

0
.0

0
2

0
.0

0
3

0
.0

0
3

1
2
9
.4

%
0
.0

0
1

S
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

u
p
lif

t 
c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

P
a
rk

s

M
ill

w
a
ll 

P
a
rk

/I
s
la

n
d
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

0
.0

8
8

0
.0

8
1

0
.0

8
8

9
2
.1

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

P
o
p
la

r 
P

a
rk

0
.1

4
4

0
.0

5
6

0
.1

4
4

3
8
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

S
t 

J
o
h
n
s
 P

a
rk

0
.0

8
5

0
.0

6
9

0
.0

8
5

8
1
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

A
lle

n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

0
.0

2
7

0
.0

2
7

0
.0

2
7

1
0
0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

S
c
h
o
o
lh

o
u
s
e
 L

a
n
e
 M

u
lt
i 
U

s
e
 

B
a
ll 

G
a
m

e
s
 A

re
a

0
.0

3
2

0
.0

0
3

0
.0

1
3

9
.7

%
-0

.0
1
9

S
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

is
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

h
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d

B
ra

it
h
w

a
it
e
 P

a
rk

0
.0

1
7

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-0

.0
1
7

S
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

is
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

h
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d

C
h
ic

k
s
a
n
d
 G

h
a
t

0
.1

1
6

0
.0

1
7

0
.1

1
6

1
4
.5

%
0
.0

0
0

A
w

a
it
in

g
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 f
ro

m
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs

M
e
a
th

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
.0

5
9

0
.0

5
9

0
.0

5
9

1
0
0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

B
e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
.2

2
3

0
.1

0
5

0
.2

2
3

4
6
.9

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 a

s
 p

e
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

C
a
n
tr

e
ll 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e

0
.0

0
1

0
.0

0
1

0
.0

0
1

9
7
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

P
e
n
n
y
fi
e
ld

s
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e

0
.0

0
2

0
.0

0
2

0
.0

0
2

7
5
.3

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

B
e
lg

ra
v
e
 S

t 
O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

1
0
0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

S
te

p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

0
.0

0
6

0
.0

0
4

0
.0

0
6

6
0
.4

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

V
ic

to
ri
a
 P

a
rk

 M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 (

1
)

0
.8

6
3

0
.6

9
2

0
.8

6
3

8
0
.2

%
0
.0

0
0

C
o
tt

o
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
.0

4
6

0
.0

0
3

0
.0

4
6

6
.2

%
0
.0

0
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r

S
t 

G
e
o
rg

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

0
.0

0
8

0
.0

0
8

0
.0

0
8

1
0
0
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

A
lt
a
b
 A

li 
P

a
rk

0
.0

0
2

0
.0

0
2

0
.0

0
2

9
6
.2

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

G
ro

v
e
 H

a
ll 

P
a
rk

0
.0

0
3

0
.0

0
3

0
.0

0
3

1
0
3
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

Page 142



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e
n

d
 t

o
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a
te

D
a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-M

a
r-

1
1

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 D

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

M
id

d
le

to
n
 G

re
e
n

0
.0

0
4

0
.0

0
4

0
.0

0
4

9
2
.4

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

M
ilw

a
ll 

P
a
rk

 M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n

0
.0

2
6

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

2
6

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 m
a
jo

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

B
a
n
g
la

to
w

n
 A

rt
 T

ra
il 

&
 A

rc
h
e
s

0
.1

0
1

0
.0

9
8

0
.1

0
1

9
7
.5

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

B
ra

d
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
0
.2

4
5

0
.0

4
6

0
.1

0
5

1
8
.9

%
-0

.1
4
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

T
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d

K
o
b
i 
N

a
z
ru

l
0
.0

5
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-0

.0
5
4

S
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
 t

o
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

M
ile

 E
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 -

 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

0
.0

3
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

N
/A

-0
.0

3
4

Y
o
rk

 H
a
ll 

B
o
ile

r 
D

e
m

o
lit

io
n

0
.0

4
0

0
.0

1
8

0
.0

4
0

4
4
.2

%
0
.0

0
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r

P
o
p
la

r 
B

a
th

s
0
.0

4
7

0
.0

1
7

0
.0

4
7

3
5
.1

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 d

e
la

y
e
d

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

o
b
ile

 P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

0
.0

4
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

4
0

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
g
e
.

C
a
b
le

 S
tr

e
e
t 

M
u
ra

l
0
.0

6
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

6
0

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
g
e
.

O
th

e
r

C
C

T
V

0
.1

2
7

0
.0

8
9

0
.1

2
7

6
9
.7

%
0
.0

0
0

G
e
n
e
ra

to
rs

 @
 M

u
lb

e
rr

y
 P

la
c
e
 

&
 A

n
c
h
o
ra

g
e
 H

s
e

0
.0

1
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

1
4

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

G
e
n
e
ra

to
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
, 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a
n
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 

w
o
rk

s
0
.1

0
0

0
.0

3
4

0
.1

0
0

3
4
.4

%
0
.0

0
0

C
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e

5
8
5
-5

9
3
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
R

o
a
d
 

(P
a
rk

in
g
 P

o
u
n
d
)

0
.0

4
9

0
.0

3
5

0
.0

4
9

7
0
.7

%
0
.0

0
0

W
a
tn

e
y
 M

a
rk

e
t 

Id
e
a
s
 S

to
re

 (
1
)

0
.5

7
0

0
.2

4
4

0
.5

7
0

4
2
.8

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o
rk

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

L
A

P
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 B

u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

0
.3

3
4

0
.0

3
8

0
.3

2
6

1
1
.3

%
-0

.0
0
8

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 n

o
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 

s
it
e

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 T

O
T

A
L

1
4
.0

4
5

5
.4

9
7

1
2
.3

0
7

3
9
.1

%
-1

.7
3
8

L
O

C
A

L
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

V
ic

to
ri
a
 P

a
rk

 M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 (

2
)

0
.9

4
5

0
.0

0
0

0
.6

9
5

0
.0

%
-0

.2
5
0

E
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

 d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
0
.0

5
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

5
0

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

C
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e

M
a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 -
 L

P
P

0
.1

6
6

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

6
6

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

C
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e

C
u
lt
u
re

 -
 L

P
P

0
.2

0
3

0
.1

4
1

0
.2

0
3

6
9
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

C
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e

W
a
tn

e
y
 M

a
rk

e
t 

Id
e
a
s
 S

to
re

 (
2
)

0
.1

8
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

8
0

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

E
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

 d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

L
P

P
 T

O
T

A
L

1
.5

4
4

0
.1

4
1

1
.2

9
4

9
.1

%
-0

.2
5
0

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

1
5
.5

8
9

5
.6

3
9

1
3
.6

0
1

3
6
.2

%
-1

.9
8
8

Page 143



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e
n

d
 t

o
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a
te

D
a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-M

a
r-

1
1

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 D

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

M
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

2
.1

8
0

1
.3

7
6

1
.6

8
0

6
3
%

-0
.5

0
0

S
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 n
o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

  
S

lip
p
a
g
e
 o

n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
s
u
rv

e
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

.
F

u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

S
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

E
xt

e
n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

0
.3

1
1

0
.0

5
6

0
.1

9
5

1
8
%

-0
.1

1
6

P
ro

je
c
ts

 n
o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

F
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

S
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

0
.1

5
5

0
.1

2
6

0
.1

5
5

8
1
%

0
.0

0
0

B
a
s
ic

 N
e
e
d
/E

xp
a
n
s
io

n
8
.4

4
7

4
.2

8
6

6
.2

2
5

5
1
%

-2
.2

2
2

N
e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
N

e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty

S
u
re

 S
ta

rt
2
.6

1
7

0
.8

3
1

2
.6

1
7

3
2
%

0
.0

0
0

M
a
in

 s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 Q

4

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
1
.4

8
4

5
.2

2
9

9
.6

8
0

4
6
%

-1
.8

0
4

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

2
.5

6
7

0
.6

3
6

1
.1

1
3

2
5
%

-1
.4

5
4

P
ro

je
c
ts

 c
u
t 

in
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
P

ro
je

c
ts

 c
u
t 

in
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w

C
it
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
0
.1

7
5

0
.0

8
4

0
.2

5
5

4
8
%

0
.0

8
0

A
c
tu

a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 1

9
7
k
 -

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

- 

R
C

D
A

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 b

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 (

R
C

D
A

 -
 £

8
0
k
)

B
is

h
o
p
's

 S
q
u
a
re

0
.4

5
8

0
.0

3
2

0
.0

3
2

7
%

-0
.4

2
6

S
c
h
e
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 -
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
1

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 s

p
e
n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

O
s
m

a
n
i 
- 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(1
)

1
.0

9
6

1
.9

4
0

1
.9

4
0

1
7
7
%

0
.8

4
4

P
ro

je
c
t 

&
 s

p
e
n
d
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
. 

L
P

P
 1

0
/1

1
 u

ti
lis

e
d

P
ro

je
c
t 

w
o
rk

s
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
.

R
C

C
O

0
.3

6
8

0
.1

9
0

0
.2

7
4

5
2
%

-0
.0

9
4

F
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 &

 s
lip

p
a
g
e
 o

n
 o

n
e
 p

ro
je

c
t

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 a

s
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

S
p
e
n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

F
a
ir
 P

la
y
 P

a
th

fi
n
d
e
r

0
.0

0
7

0
.0

2
1

0
.0

0
7

3
1
5
%

0
.0

0
0

V
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t

Y
o
u
th

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

u
n
d

0
.2

3
4

0
.0

0
6

0
.2

0
2

3
%

-0
.0

3
2

P
ro

je
c
ts

 n
o
w

 o
n
 s

it
e

S
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 A

rt
s

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

1
0
0
%

0
.0

0
0

T
C

F
 K

it
c
h
e
n
 &

 D
in

in
g

0
.2

2
9

0
.0

1
7

0
.2

1
9

8
%

-0
.0

1
0

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 y
e
t 

to
 c

la
im

 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

s
p
e
n
d

S
o
m

e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

S
h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s

0
.3

2
0

0
.3

2
0

0
.3

2
0

1
0
0
%

0
.0

0
0

IC
T

1
.4

7
9

0
.0

0
0

1
.4

7
9

0
%

0
.0

0
0

P
a
s
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

P
a
s
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 T

O
T

A
L

3
2
.1

3
6

1
5
.1

6
3

2
6
.4

0
3

4
7
%

-5
.7

3
3

L
O

C
A

L
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

O
s
m

a
n
i 
- 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(2
)

1
.9

1
1

1
.9

1
1

1
.9

1
1

1
0
0
%

0
.0

0
0

S
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 (

L
P

P
 9

/1
0
 &

 1
0
/1

1
 u

ti
lis

e
d
)

A
c
c
e
le

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t

B
is

h
o
p
 C

h
a
llo

n
e
r 

- 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

0
.6

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
%

-0
.6

0
0

F
u
n
d
in

g
 &

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

M
a
r 

2
0
1
1

H
a
rr

y
 G

o
s
lin

g
0
.0

1
2

0
.0

1
2

0
.0

1
2

9
7
%

0
.0

0
0

T
o
b
y
 L

a
n
e

0
.0

1
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

1
4

0
%

0
.0

0
0

S
p
e
n
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

 B
M

X
 M

ile
 E

n
d
 )

0
.0

9
4

0
.0

3
5

0
.0

7
0

3
7
%

-0
.0

2
4

L
a
te

 s
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

n
e
a
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

B
a
la

n
c
e
 t

o
 c

/f
 t

o
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 o

n
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 

L
P

P
 T

O
T

A
L

2
.6

3
1

1
.9

5
8

2
.0

0
7

7
4
%

-0
.6

2
4

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

3
4
.7

6
7

1
7
.1

2
0

2
8
.4

1
0

4
9
%

-6
.3

5
7

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

Page 144



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
0

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 &
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e
n

d
 t

o
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a
te

D
a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-M

a
r-

1
1

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 D

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

L
O

C
A

L
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
:

IC
T

 -
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

 L
ic

e
n
c
e
s

1
.0

3
2

0
.2

9
5

1
.0

0
0

2
8
.6

%
-0

.0
3
2

S
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 I
C

T
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 C

o
d
e
s
 e

xc
lu

d
in

g
 T

e
c
h
 

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

IC
T

 c
a
p
it
a
l.

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 i
n
v
e
s
t 

to
 s

a
v
e

1
.3

6
2

1
.0

3
5

1
.1

1
2

7
6
.0

%
-0

.2
5
0

£
2
5
0
k
 c

a
rr

y
 o

v
e
r 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

d
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 p

h
a
s
e
d
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t

£
2
5
0
k
 c

a
rr

y
 o

v
e
r 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

d
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 p

h
a
s
e
d
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t

IC
T

0
.2

2
1

0
.0

7
5

0
.2

2
1

3
3
.9

%
0
.0

0
0

T
o
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 d
ra

w
n
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 3

1
/3

/1
1
.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

:

F
M

: 
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

2
.0

6
9

0
.0

0
0

1
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-1

.0
6
9

F
M

: 
A

n
c
h
o
ra

g
e
 D

ila
p
id

a
ti
o
n
s

0
.0

8
5

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

8
5

0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

W
ill

 b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

w
h
e
n
 A

n
c
h
o
ra

g
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 

v
a
c
a
te

d

W
ill

 b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

w
h
e
n
 A

n
c
h
o
ra

g
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 

v
a
c
a
te

d

T
O

T
A

L
 L

P
P

4
.7

6
9

1
.4

0
5

3
.4

1
8

2
9
.5

%
-1

.3
5
1

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

Page 145



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
0

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e
n

d
 t

o
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a
te

D
a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-M

a
r-

1
1

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 D

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

A
d
u
lt
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 I
T

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

0
.2

8
3

0
.1

0
2

0
.2

8
3

3
6
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 I
 P

ro
je

c
t.

  

E
xp

e
c
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.1

9
0

0
.0

6
2

0
.0

8
0

3
2
.6

%
-0

.1
1
0

S
p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 i
s
 8

0
K

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
, 

1
1
0
K

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

 U
rg

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

o
n
ly

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 a

ri
s
e
 f
ro

m
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
a
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
. 

 P
o
s
s
ib

le
 2

0
/3

0
K

 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 r

e
p
o
rt

s

S
a
fe

ty
 w

o
rk

s
0
.1

2
3

0
.0

4
9

0
.1

2
3

3
9
.8

%
0
.0

0
0

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

2
0
1
1
. 

 O
rd

e
rs

 y
e
t 

to
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d
.

L
IP

0
.1

1
9

0
.0

0
1

0
.1

1
9

0
.8

%
0
.0

0
0

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 I
 P

ro
je

c
t.

 

E
xp

e
c
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

a
re

 H
o
m

e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

0
.0

2
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-0

.0
2
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

p
le

te
. 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 

th
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 T

O
T

A
L

0
.7

3
5

0
.2

1
4

0
.6

0
5

2
9
.1

%
-0

.1
3
0

L
O

C
A

L
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

L
P

P
-f

u
n
d
e
d
)

0
.0

1
2

0
.0

1
2

0
.0

1
2

1
0
0
.0

%
0
.0

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

p
le

te
. 

 R
e
o
u
rc

e
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 G

ra
n
t

E
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

- 
S

y
s
te

m
/t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

0
.2

7
0

0
.0

5
2

0
.1

1
8

1
9
.3

%
-0

.1
5
2

T
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t 

o
f 
E

C
H

M
 p

ro
je

c
t 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
id

 f
o
r.

  
A

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

e
xp

e
c
t 

to
 n

e
e
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

E
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

- 
S

in
g
le

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

0
.1

5
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

2
0

0
.0

%
-0

.0
3
0

1
2
0
K

 e
xp

e
c
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

3
0
K

 t
o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
la

y
e
d
.

L
P

P
 T

O
T

A
L

0
.4

3
2

0
.0

6
4

0
.2

5
0

1
4
.8

%
-0

.1
8
2

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

1
.1

6
7

0
.2

7
8

0
.8

5
5

2
3
.8

%
-0

.3
1
2

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

Page 146



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
0

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

F
o

re
c

a
s

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a

te
D

a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e

n
t

fr
o

m

3
1

-D
e

c
-1

0
3

1
-D

e
c

-1
0

3
1

-M
a

r-
1

1
B

u
d

g
e

t
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 D
a

te
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£

m

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

M
ill

e
n

n
iu

m
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
.2

0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
.0

3
9

2
.7

%
-0

.1
6

1

B
is

h
o
p
s
 S

q
u

a
re

0
.9

3
0

0
.7

3
1

0
.8

4
6

7
8

.6
%

-0
.0

8
4

R
o
m

a
n

 R
o
a
d
 S

h
o
p
s
/ 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

B
e
th

n
a
l G

re
e
n

 T
e
rr

a
c
e

0
.3

2
0

0
.0

4
4

0
.1

3
0

1
3

.7
%

-0
.1

9
0

W
h

ite
c
h

a
p
e
l C

e
n

tr
e

1
.1

0
5

1
.1

1
4

1
.1

0
5

1
0

0
.8

%
0

.0
0

0

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

tie
s
 G

ra
n

t
1

.0
0

0
0

.5
7

1
1

.0
0

0
5

7
.1

%
0

.0
0

0

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2

0
1

2
4

.8
6

0
0

.9
9

7
2

.8
2

6
2

0
.5

%
-2

.0
3

4

T
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 in

iti
a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 

M
a
y
 2

0
0

9
, 
b
u

t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
d
d
iti

o
n

a
l r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 n
o
tif

ie
d
 t
o
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
t 
th

e
 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 m

e
e
tin

g
s
.

T
h

e
 s

p
e
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l y
e
a
r 

is
 

a
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n

 o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 p
ro

fi
le

d
, 

w
ith

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 in
to

 

2
0

1
1

-1
2

.

D
u

n
b
ri
d
g
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
H

e
a
lth

 

a
n

d
 W

e
ll-

B
e
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

1
.6

1
0

1
.6

1
0

1
.6

1
0

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
0

0

S
t 
A

n
d
re

w
's

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n

d
 

W
e
ll-

B
e
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

4
.7

7
7

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-4

.7
7

7

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 T

O
T

A
L

1
4

.8
0

2
5

.0
7

2
7

.5
5

6
3

4
.3

%
-7

.2
4

6

L
O

C
A

L
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 f
u

lly
 f

in
a
n

c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 S
e
c
tio

n
 1

0
6

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 c

a
p
ita

l u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 

a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 r

e
v
e
n

u
e
/c

a
p
ita

l s
p
lit

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
Is

le
 o

f 
D

o
g
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 F
o
u

n
d
a
tio

n
 s

p
e
n

d
.

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 f
u

lly
 f

in
a
n

c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 h
is

to
ri
c
 L

o
c
a
l A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 G

ro
w

th
 I
n

iti
a
tiv

e
 (

L
A

B
G

I)
 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 
E

xp
e
n

d
itu

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 in

c
u

rr
e
d
 la

te
r 

in
 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l y
e
a
r.

T
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 is

 m
a
in

ly
 f

u
n

d
e
d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 B
ig

 L
o
tt
e
ry

 a
n

d
 E

R
D

F
 g

ra
n

ts
. 
E

xp
e
n

d
itu

re
 is

 b
e
in

g
 in

c
u

rr
e
d
 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n

c
e
 w

ith
 g

ra
n

t 
c
o
n

d
iti

o
n

s
 a

n
d
 it

 is
 a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
fu

ll 
s
p
e
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 in

c
u

rr
e
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r-

e
n

d
.

D
e
p
e
n

d
a
n

t 
o
n

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
u

b
m

itt
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
tio

n
s
. 
R

S
L

's
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
a
s
e
d
 u

p
, 

s
p
e
n

d
 is

 c
o
m

m
itt

e
d
.

T
h

e
re

 is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tly
 n

o
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 t
o
 p

a
s
s
p
o
rt

 la
rg

e
 s

u
m

s
 t
o
 t
h

e
 N

H
S

. 
A

lth
o
u

g
h

 a
 r

e
s
o
lu

tio
n

 is
 b

e
in

g
 

s
o
u

g
h

t.
 I
n

  
th

e
 in

te
ri
m

 n
o
 e

xp
e
n

d
itu

re
 is

 a
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

is
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l y
e
a
r.

Page 147



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

F
o

re
c

a
s

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a

te
D

a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e

n
t

fr
o

m

3
1

-D
e

c
-1

0
3

1
-D

e
c

-1
0

3
1

-M
a

r-
1

1
B

u
d

g
e

t
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 D
a

te
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£

m

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u

s
in

g
1

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
%

-1
.0

0
0

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2

0
1

2
0

.9
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
%

-0
.9

0
0

D
is

c
re

tio
n

a
ry

 P
ri
v
a
te

 

S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ra
n

ts
0

.8
5

0
0

.2
1

7
0

.6
7

0
2

5
.5

%
-0

.1
8

0

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

W
o
rk

s
 C

o
n

tin
g
e
n

c
y

1
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-1

.0
0

0

In
s
ta

lla
tio

n
 o

f 
A

u
to

m
a
tic

 

E
n

e
rg

y
 M

e
te

rs
0

.2
0

0
0

.0
2

6
0

.1
7

5
1

3
.0

%
-0

.0
2

5

T
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

2
0

0
9

-1
0

 w
ith

 t
h

e
 u

n
u

til
is

e
d
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 in
to

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

. 
F

u
ll 

s
p
e
n

d
 is

 a
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
 in

 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l y
e
a
r.

F
u

ll 
s
p
e
n

d
 is

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
.

F
M

: 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

D
A

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
0

.7
5

5
0

.1
7

7
0

.2
5

5
2

3
.4

%
-0

.5
0

0

F
M

: 
S

o
u

th
e
rn

 G
ro

v
e
- 

R
o
o
f 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
0

.0
0

2
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
%

-0
.0

0
2

S
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te

F
M

: 
P

o
p
la

r 
P

u
b
lic

 

M
o
rt

u
a
ry

0
.0

0
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

%
-0

.0
0

4
S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te

L
P

P
 T

O
T

A
L

4
.7

1
2

0
.4

2
0

1
.1

0
0

8
.9

%
-3

.6
1

2

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

1
9

.5
1

4
5

.4
9

2
8

.6
5

6
2

8
.1

%
-1

0
.8

5
8

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 f
u

n
d
e
d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
c
a
p
ita

l r
e
c
e
ip

ts
 t
o
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 in

 

c
o
n

ju
n

c
tio

n
 w

ith
 R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l L
a
n

d
lo

rd
s
. 
N

o
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e
n

tly
 in

 p
la

c
e
 s

o
 n

o
 e

s
tim

a
te

d
 

e
xp

e
n

d
itu

re
 is

 a
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
.

E
xp

e
n

d
itu

re
 f

ig
u

re
s
 in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

ith
in

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 p
ro

je
c
t 
(a

b
o
v
e
)

F
e
w

e
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 la
n

d
lo

rd
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 u

p
 E

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 g

ra
n

t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

th
a
n

 in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 is
 

o
v
e
r 

£
4

0
0

k
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

itt
e
d
 t
o
 s

p
e
n

d
 t
h

is
 y

e
a
r.

T
h

is
 c

o
n

tin
g
e
n

c
y
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
0

9
-1

0
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 .
 N

o
 e

xp
e
n

d
itu

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 

in
c
u

rr
e
d
 t
o
 d

a
te

. 
T

h
e
 u

n
s
p
e
n

t 
e
le

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n

tin
g
e
n

c
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 u

til
is

e
d
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 in
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

.

Page 148



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
0

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

F
o

re
c

a
s

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a

te
D

a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e

n
t

fr
o

m

3
1

-D
e

c
-1

0
3

1
-D

e
c

-1
0

3
1

-M
a

r-
1

1
B

u
d

g
e

t
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 D
a

te
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£

m

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

R
e
g

io
n

a
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
t

4
.5

6
4

0
.4

4
1

0
.8

5
0

9
.7

%
-3

.7
1

4

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s

2
2

.0
0

7
1

1
.9

4
7

2
2

.0
0

7
5

4
.3

%
0

.0
0

0

O
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

1
.8

1
5

1
.7

1
3

1
.8

1
5

9
4

.4
%

0
.0

0
0

C
o
u

n
c
il 

H
o
u

s
e
b

u
ild

in
g

 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

2
.6

7
0

0
.3

0
4

2
.6

7
0

1
1

.4
%

0
.0

0
0

T
h

e
 O

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 a

 £
1

9
.4

 m
ill

io
n

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
o
v
e
r 

tw
o
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

. 

T
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
C

a
b

in
e
t 
re

p
o
rt

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

f 
£

9
.7

 m
ill

io
n

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

-

1
0

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
in

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

. 
A

s
 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
e
 w

it
h

 B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e
a
c
h

, 
th

is
 p

ro
fi
le

 w
a
s
 

fl
e
xi

b
le

, 
w

it
h

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 f
in

a
n

c
e
 t
h

e
 e

xp
e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

 e
a
rl

ie
r 

y
e
a
rs

 a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

T
h

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

te
re

s
t 
in

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
a
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 w
a
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 w

e
re

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
n

to
 2

0
0

9
-1

0
 w

it
h

in
 a

 c
o
rr

e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
£

1
.8

 m
ill

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e
 f
u

lly
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

.

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

F
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 £

7
.2

7
 m

ill
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
c
u

re
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 D

C
L

G
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 S

t 
C

le
m

e
n

t's
 H

o
s
p

it
a
l 
s
it
e
 a

n
d

 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
n

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

M
a
lm

e
s
b

u
ry

 a
n

d
 B

ir
c
h

fi
e
ld

 E
s
ta

te
s
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 l
e
t 
a
n

d
 

e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
-1

1
. 
In

it
ia

l 
p

ro
fi
le

d
 e

xp
e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
4

.5
6

4
 m

ill
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

fu
n

d
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
o
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 l
a
te

r 
y
e
a
rs

 a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

T
h

e
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 i
s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 

o
f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 o

w
n

 s
to

c
k
. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 m
o
n

it
o
rs

 t
h

is
 b

u
d

g
e
t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

p
e
n

d
 t
o
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

is
 a

p
p

ro
xi

m
a
te

ly
 i
n

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
p

ro
fi
le

 f
o
r 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
b

u
d

g
e
t 
a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 w

a
s
 £

2
4

.2
9

0
 m

ill
io

n
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 
in

 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
c
o
n

c
e
rn

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 a
re

 £
2

2
.0

0
7

 m
ill

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
. 
It
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a
ll 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
u

lly
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

In
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
, 
P

h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 
th

e
 B

u
ild

in
g

 B
ri

ta
in

's
 F

u
tu

re
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 w
it
h

 P
h

a
s
e
 2

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
 c

a
p

it
a
l 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 w
a
s
 a

d
o
p

te
d

 f
o
r 

P
h

a
s
e
 2

 i
n

 a
d

v
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

 

a
n

n
o
u

n
c
e
m

e
n

t,
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 o

v
e
rs

u
b

s
c
ri

b
e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 a
 m

u
c
h

 l
o
w

e
r 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

 t
h

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
p

ro
fi
le

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 

e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
.

Page 149



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

F
o

re
c

a
s

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a

te
D

a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e

n
t

fr
o

m

3
1

-D
e

c
-1

0
3

1
-D

e
c

-1
0

3
1

-M
a

r-
1

1
B

u
d

g
e

t
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 D
a

te
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£

m

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e
a
c
h

2
.2

0
0

0
.5

8
9

0
.8

5
0

2
6

.8
%

-1
.3

5
0

D
e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

(A
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

)
2

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
2

.0
0

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

0
0

T
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 f
in

a
n

c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 A

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h

a
t 
w

a
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

u
n

u
ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 c
a
rr

ie
d

 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
n

to
 2

0
1

0
-1

1
. 

F
u

ll 
s
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
.

O
c
e
a
n

 N
e
w

 D
e
a
l 
fo

r 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
1

0
.0

0
0

9
.3

9
5

1
0

.5
0

0
9

3
.9

%
0

.5
0

0

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 N

D
C

 c
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ra

n
t 
o
f 
£

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 o

f 
£

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-

1
1

. 
E

xp
e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 t
o
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 5

3
%

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
, 
a
n

d
 f
u

ll 

e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 m

e
e
t 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 g
ra

n
t 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
. 

F
u

ll 
s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
.

C
o
ta

ll 
S

tr
e
e
t 
/ 
B

a
rt

le
tt
 P

a
rk

0
.3

0
1

0
.3

4
9

0
.3

4
9

1
1

6
.1

%
0

.0
4

8

S
o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 E

n
e
rg

y
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
.6

9
0

0
.0

2
9

1
.6

9
0

1
.7

%
0

.0
0

0

H
R

A
 T

O
T

A
L

4
7

.2
4

7
2

4
.7

6
9

4
2

.7
3

1
5

2
.4

%
-4

.5
1

6

T
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 

w
e
re

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n

s
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 r
e
s
id

u
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 

b
e
in

g
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
-1

1
.

T
h

e
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e
n

c
y
 a

w
a
rd

e
d

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 £

2
,0

7
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 u
n

d
e
r 

th
e
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
  
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

c
a
v
it
y
 w

a
ll 

in
s
u

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 i
ts

 s
o
c
ia

l 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
. 
T

h
e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

fi
le

 w
a
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

C
A

, 
to

 a
llo

w
 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o
ri

ty
 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
£

1
.6

9
0

 m
ill

io
n

 t
o
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

. 
E

xp
e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

f 

th
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
m

u
s
t 
b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 g

ra
n

t 
e
n

ti
tl
e
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 

b
e
e
n

 e
n

te
re

d
 i
n

to
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

T
h

e
 B

la
c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e
a
c
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ts
 a

 £
1

3
 m

ill
io

n
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
o
v
e
r 

th
re

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

. 

L
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

re
 t
h

a
t 
e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

f 
£

2
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 £
9

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

 b
e
in

g
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 e

v
e
n

ly
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
fi
le

 i
s
 f
le

xi
b

le
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
it
h

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 a

d
a
p

t 
th

e
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 e

xp
e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

Page 150



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
0

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 F

U
T

U
R

E
 (

B
S

F
)

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
S

p
e
n

d
 t

o
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

D
a
te

D
a
te

O
u

tt
u

rn
S

p
e
n

t
fr

o
m

3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-D

e
c
-1

0
3
1
-M

a
r-

1
1

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 D

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

�
�
�
�
�
�

0
.1

7
9

0
.1

0
7

0
.1

7
9

5
9
.5

%
0
.0

0
0

S
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 s

e
tt

lin
g
 f
in

a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

�
��
�
	


��
�
��
	



1
6
.9

8
3

1
1
.3

5
8

1
3
.2

0
0

6
6
.9

%
-3

.7
8
3

O
ri
g
in

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 1

1
/1

2
 s

p
e
n
d

�
�
��
�
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

4
.2

6
0

4
.1

8
7

5
.0

0
0

9
8
.3

%
0
.7

4
0

In
c
lu

d
e
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

M
o
rp

e
th

8
.9

3
2

4
.6

2
9

8
.2

0
0

5
1
.8

%
-0

.7
3
2

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

S
o
m

e
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 w

o
rk

s

O
a
k
la

n
d
s

6
.6

0
0

4
.9

2
5

6
.6

0
0

7
4
.6

%
0
.0

0
0

S
ir
 J

o
h
n
 C

a
s
s

8
.3

0
5

5
.1

1
7

7
.5

0
0

6
1
.6

%
-0

.8
0
5

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

S
o
m

e
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 w

o
rk

s

Ia
n
 M

ik
a
rd

o
3
.9

0
0

1
.7

3
7

3
.5

0
0

4
4
.5

%
-0

.4
0
0

In
it
ia

l 
s
lip

p
a
g
e
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
.

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 w

o
rk

s

B
e
a
tr

ic
e
 T

a
te

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

N
/A

0
.0

0
0

B
o
w

d
e
n
 H

o
u
s
e

1
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.7

0
0

0
.0

%
-0

.3
0
0

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

ra
c
k

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

P
R

U
 H

a
rp

le
y

3
.0

0
0

0
.9

7
0

2
.2

0
0

3
2
.3

%
-0

.8
0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

S
w

a
n
le

a
4
.0

0
0

1
.6

7
9

3
.0

0
0

4
2
.0

%
-1

.0
0
0

O
n
 t

ra
c
k
 f
o
r 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
fi
le

In
it
ia

l 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
o
 h

ig
h

R
a
in

e
s

3
.0

0
0

2
.6

7
0

2
.6

7
0

8
9
.0

%
-0

.3
3
0

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

1
.5

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

0
0

0
.0

%
-1

.3
0
0

S
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f
o
r 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l/
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

d
a
te

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

n
o
t 

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h

L
a
n
g
d
o
n
 P

a
rk

1
.5

0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
.2

0
0

0
.3

%
-1

.3
0
0

S
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f
o
r 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l/
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

d
a
te

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

n
o
t 

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h

P
h
o
e
n
ix

1
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

0
0

0
.0

%
-0

.8
0
0

S
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f
o
r 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l/
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

d
a
te

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

n
o
t 

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h

S
te

p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n

1
.5

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

0
0

0
.0

%
-1

.3
0
0

S
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f
o
r 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l/
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

d
a
te

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

n
o
t 

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h

IC
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 O
a
k
la

n
d
s

1
.2

5
7

0
.0

2
0

0
.0

2
0

1
.6

%
-1

.2
3
7

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

IC
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 S
t 

P
a
u
l's

 W
a
y

3
.0

5
4

0
.0

0
9

1
.1

0
0

0
.3

%
-1

.9
5
4

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

IC
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 R
a
in

e
s
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

1
.5

1
7

0
.0

3
2

0
.0

5
2

2
.1

%
-1

.4
6
5

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

IC
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 W
e
s
s
e
x

0
.4

4
3

0
.0

2
5

0
.0

4
0

5
.6

%
-0

.4
0
3

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

IC
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
.1

7
2

0
.1

9
0

0
.2

2
8

6
.0

%
-2

.9
4
5

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

IC
T

 -
 B

e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n

1
.9

0
1

0
.5

5
0

0
.5

7
0

2
8
.9

%
-1

.3
3
1

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

IC
T

 -
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
.8

5
2

0
.3

7
7

0
.4

9
0

1
3
.2

%
-2

.3
6
2

B
u
d
g
e
t 

to
ta

l 
is

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
IC

T
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
A

M
 T

O
T

A
L

7
9
.8

5
5

3
8
.5

8
6

5
6
.0

4
9

4
8
.3

%
-2

3
.8

0
6

L
O

C
A

L
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

W
a
v
e
 5

 B
S

F
1
.1

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.5

5
0

0
.0

0
%

-0
.5

5
0

F
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 d

o
w

n
 a

t 
e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r

P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

L
P

P
 T

O
T

A
L

1
.1

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.5

5
0

0
.0

%
-0

.5
5
0

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

8
0
.9

5
5

3
8
.5

8
6

5
6
.5

9
9

4
7
.7

%
-2

4
.3

5
6

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

T
h

e
m

e
 1

: 
O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

2

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 L

P
7

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

 f
o

rm
e

r 
B

V
P

I 
a

n
d

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 R
e

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

S
te

v
e

 J
a

m
e

s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
llr

 A
 C

h
o

u
d

h
u

ry
5

0
.4

7
5

0
5

1
4

9
.3

6
5

0
5

0
5

0
M

E
T

!
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 L

P
7

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 e
th

n
ic

 

m
in

o
ri
ty

.

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

 f
o

rm
e

r 
B

V
P

I 
a

n
d

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 R
e

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

S
te

v
e

 J
a

m
e

s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
llr

 A
 C

h
o

u
d

h
u

ry
1

7
.1

2
5

1
7

1
6

.7
4

2
7

2
7

2
1

-2
2

.0
0

%
!

R
E

D

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

h
e

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 i
s
 5

0
.1

6
%

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
 s

h
o

w
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
, 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
o

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

, 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

u
rn

o
v
e

r 
a

t 
th

is
 l
e

v
e

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

O
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

1
4

8
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 ,

 3
2

 a
re

 B
M

E
. 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
4

0
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
2

7
%

 a
t 

L
P

0
7

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
T

h
is

 m
o

n
th

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

s
lig

h
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 ,

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
tu

rn
o

v
e

r 
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
  

(p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

) 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 c

a
re

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 153



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

4

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 L

P
7

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 i
n

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
.)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

 f
o

rm
e

r 
B

V
P

I 
a

n
d

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 R
e

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

 S
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
’ 
a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 s

u
c
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

 s
u

rv
e

y
, 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 D
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
5

).

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

S
te

v
e

 J
a

m
e

s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
llr

 A
 C

h
o

u
d

h
u

ry

2
.1

4
.7

1
.5

4
1

.4
8

5
.4

5
.4

2
-6

2
.9

0
%

!
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

5

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o

s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
.

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
th

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
te

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o

s
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 i
rr

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 s

e
lf
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
, 

c
e

rt
if
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 G
P

 o
r 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 d
iv

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

F
T

E
 s

ta
ff

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

S
te

v
e

 J
a

m
e

s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
llr

 A
 C

h
o

u
d

h
u

ry
8

.9
5

7
8

.5
4

8
.7

4
6

.5
7

.0
1

7
.7

3
-1

0
.3

0
%

!
R

E
D

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

O
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

1
4

8
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
, 

3
 h

a
v
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
. 

T
o

 r
e

a
c
h

 o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

t,
 t

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
8

 a
t 

L
P

0
7

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 r
e

ly
 i
n

 p
a

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
ig

o
u

r 
o

f 
th

e
 v

a
c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
/ 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

lly
, 

w
e

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 s

ta
ff

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
u

d
it
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 d
a

ta
 q

u
a

lit
y
 -

 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 m
o

re
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 s

ta
ff

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

1
. 

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
, 

o
n

ly
 7

5
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
a

v
e

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

h
a

s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 r

is
e

 o
f 

0
.1

2
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

F
T

E
. 

A
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

b
e

in
g

 i
n

 D
&

R
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

1
.1

4
 d

a
y
s
. 

T
h

e
 o

n
ly

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 h

a
d

 a
 d

e
c
re

s
e

 i
n

 d
a

y
s
 i
s
 C

E
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 h

a
d

 a
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.0

3
 d

a
y
s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 

fi
g

u
re

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 b
y
 C

A
M

P
, 

P
R

G
 a

n
d

 C
M

T
.

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

5

5
.56

6
.57

7
.58

8
.59

9
.51
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 154



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

6

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 -

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
 -

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 c

lo
s
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

d
a

y
s
/t

o
ta

l 
v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 c

lo
s
e

d
 x

 1
0

0
%

.)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
o

h
n

 W
ill

ia
m

s

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

's

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

7
6

.3
1

8
5

8
6

.7
6

8
7

.5
4

8
7

8
7

9
3

.0
1

6
.9

0
%

!
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

7

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 t
im

e
 -

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 -
 S

ta
g

e
 1

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
w

it
h

in
 2

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

8
2

8
5

9
2

9
1

8
6

8
6

9
5

9
.2

0
%

!
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

1
a

 V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
ro

m
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
(+

/-
) 

 M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
£

m
ill

io
n

 (
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
i.
e

. 
0

 e
q

u
a

ls
 n

o
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

, 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

fi
g

u
re

 e
q

u
a

ls
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
, 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 f
ig

u
re

 e
q

u
a

ls
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r 

(c
lo

s
e

r 
to

 z
e

ro
)

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
llr

 A
 C

h
o

u
d

h
u

ry
N

/A
0

-
0
.0
3
1

N
/A

0
0

1
.1

0
3

-1
0

.3
0

%
N

/A
R

E
D

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

M
E

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t

h
ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(c
. 

5
0

0
 /

 m
o

n
th

) 
- 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

s
a

w
 a

 d
ro

p
 i
n

 v
o

lu
m

e
, 

lik
e

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
Q

3
 w

a
s
 9

3
.9

5
%

 o
f 

M
E

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 w

it
h

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
. 

T
h

is
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
7

%
. 

A
 m

a
rk

e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 n

o
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 R

S
L

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 m
e

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
 O

c
t.

 a
n

d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

 a
n

d
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

fo
r 

th
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 155



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

9
a

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 v

o
lu

m
e

s
 (

c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
s
h

if
t)

 -
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

t 
L

in
e

s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 1
0

9
a

/b
/c

, 
s
h

o
w

in
g

 t
re

n
d

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

v
o

lu
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 

s
h

if
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

N
/A

N
/A

6
7

0
,0

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

5
3

,5
8

9
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

9
b

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 v

o
lu

m
e

s
 (

c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
s
h

if
t)

 -
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 1
0

9
a

/b
/c

, 
s
h

o
w

in
g

 t
re

n
d

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

v
o

lu
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 

s
h

if
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

N
/A

N
/A

2
3

8
,3

7
9

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
3

,5
2

4
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

9
c

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 v

o
lu

m
e

s
 (

c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
s
h

if
t)

 -
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

W
e

b
s
it
e

s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 1
0

9
a

/b
/c

, 
s
h

o
w

in
g

 t
re

n
d

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

v
o

lu
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 

s
h

if
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
3

7
,9

2
5

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

0
a

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 O

v
e

ra
ll 

S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

9
0

9
0

9
0

.7
0

.8
0

%
N

/A
G

R
E

E
N

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
V

o
lu

m
e

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

d
u

e
 t

o
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 h

o
lid

a
y
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 

M
o

n
th

l y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 £

1
.1

0
3

 m
ill

io
n

 (
th

is
 i
s
 a

t 
m

o
n

th
 8

 (
N

o
v
) 

a
s
 m

o
n

th
 9

 (
D

e
c
) 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
).

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 

s
lig

h
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

s
 w

it
h

in
 A

d
u

lt
s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 (

£
3

8
5

k
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t)

.

C
h

ild
re

n
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

to
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

3
3

0
k
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 
is

 f
o

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

3
9

8
k
, 

m
a

in
ly

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

 £
3

4
3

k
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

-2
.5

-1
.5

-0
.5

0
.5

1
.5

2
.5

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

1
0
0
0

5
1
0
0
0

1
0
1
0
0
0

1
5
1
0
0
0

2
0
1
0
0
0

2
5
1
0
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

H
o
t 
L
in

e
s
 (

L
)

O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p

 (
L
)

W
e
b
 S

it
e
s
 (

H
)

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 156



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

1

F
ir
s
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

re
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 t

o
 H

o
t 

L
in

e
s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
n

s
w

e
re

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 “
H

o
w

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

e
re

 y
o

u
 t

h
a

t 
y
o

u
r 

c
a

ll 
to

d
a

y
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 t

h
a

t 
y
o

u
 p

h
o

n
e

d
 u

s
 a

b
o

u
t?

”)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

9
0

9
0

9
0

9
0

9
1

9
1

8
9

.6
-1

.5
0

%
"

R
E

D

T
h

e
m

e
 2

: 
A

 G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

7
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

4
N

e
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(t

h
e

 s
u

m
 o

f 
n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
, 

m
in

u
s
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

s
, 

p
lu

s
 a

n
y
 g

a
in

s
 

o
r 

lo
s
s
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
s
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
2

8
3

9
2

9
9

9
2

3
9

8
1

5
4

4
2

9
9

9
N

/A
1

1
2

0
N

/A
"

N
/A

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
s
lig

h
t 

u
p

w
a

rd
 d

is
to

rt
io

n
 t

o
 f

ig
u

re
s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h

 w
e

b
 s

it
e

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 n

o
t 

a
b

le
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

D
ip

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

ip
 i
n

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 r

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
, 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 8
7

%
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
h

a
rp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 

re
p

a
ir
s
 c

h
a

s
e

 u
p

 c
a

lls
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
H

E
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
 A

R
E

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
A

L
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 O

N
L

Y
 A

N
D

 S
U

B
J
E

C
T

 T
O

 F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 U

P
D

A
T

E
S

 A
N

D
 A

U
D

IT

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

t 
3

7
.3

4
%

 o
f 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
2

,9
9

9
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
lim

a
te

 a
n

d
 b

a
d

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
o

th
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 u

p
o

n
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t,
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 n

e
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 w
e

ig
h

te
d

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

it
h

 m
a

n
y
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

. 

O
u

t 
tu

rn
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
n

 i
n

h
e

re
n

t 
ti
m

e
 l
a

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

’s
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
. 

S
te

p
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

is
, 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 d

a
ta

 f
o

rm
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
in

s
p

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

. 
In

te
rr

o
g

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
tu

rn
s
 f

ro
m

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

ri
n

g
 Q

3
 o

u
t 

tu
rn

 u
p

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

,7
2

2
 u

n
it
s

8
0

8
2

8
4

8
6

8
8

9
0

9
2

9
4

9
6

9
8

1
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

8
0

8
2

8
4

8
6

8
8

9
0

9
2

9
4

9
6

9
8

1
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

1
0

0
0

1
5

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
5

0
0

3
0

0
0

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 157



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

5
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(t

h
e

 s
u

m
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
re

n
t 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o

w
 c

o
s
t 

h
o

m
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 r
e

n
t)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n

1
0

6
4

1
2

8
7

1
9

3
1

8
5

3
1

2
8

7
N

/A
2

7
9

N
/A

"
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

3
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ily
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 (

g
ro

s
s
 f

ig
u

re
s
 o

n
ly

)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(a

 c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
h

o
u

s
in

g

a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

. 
 F

a
m

ily
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 3

 b
e

d
ro

o
m

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
3

9
3

4
0

5
6

1
9

3
1

6
4

0
5

N
/A

4
3

N
/A

"
N

/A

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
H

E
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
 A

R
E

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
A

L
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 O

N
L

Y
 A

N
D

 S
U

B
J
E

C
T

 T
O

 F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 U

P
D

A
T

E
S

 A
N

D
 A

U
D

IT

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o

t 
s
p

re
a

d
 e

v
e

n
ly

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 o

ft
e

n
 w

it
h

 m
a

n
y
 u

n
it
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
, 

p
ro

fi
lin

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
ro

m
 r

e
n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
L

A
A

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 o

f 
1

,2
8

7
 i
s
 p

ro
b

le
m

a
ti
c
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n

e
w

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fi
rs

t 
3

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 i
s
 2

7
9

 u
n

it
s
; 

th
is

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 2
2

%
 o

ff
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t;
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 
b

a
c
k
 b

y
 t

h
e

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
5

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 s

it
e

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 t

h
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

O
u

r 
p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 i
s
 n

o
w

 7
7

7
 u

n
it
s
. 

B
e

a
ri
n

g
 i
n

 m
in

d
 p

a
s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
o

u
r 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
-2

0
1

1
 i
s
 3

7
7

4
, 

th
is

 i
s
 2

.3
%

 l
o

w
e

r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 3
 y

e
a

r 
L

A
A

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
3

8
6

1
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
L

A
A

N
I 

1
5

5
 o

f 
1

2
8

7
 u

n
it
s
 w

a
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
 3

 y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t,

 

a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

s
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
, 

w
e

 w
e

re
 h

o
p

e
fu

l 
th

a
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
’ 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

b
u

ild
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

 a
s
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t,

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
lim

a
te

. 

O
u

r 
p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
(c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
k
n

o
w

n
) 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
s
 a

c
c
o

m
p

lis
h

e
d

 v
ia

 s
u

c
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 H
C

A
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 &
 R

e
p

a
ir
 g

ra
n

t.
 W

e
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

 t
h

is
 t

o
ta

l 
u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 H

C
A

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 t

o
 u

s
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 o

u
t 

tu
rn

 e
v
e

n
 c

lo
s
e

r 
to

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

W
e

 a
re

 p
ro

je
c
ti
n

g
 a

 l
a

rg
e

r 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
, 

a
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 o

n
 s

it
e

 o
r 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 o

n
 s

it
e

. 

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 o

u
t 

tu
rn

 f
o

r 
1

0
/1

1
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
rm

a
ll y

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 Q
3

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
tu

rn
; 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
 v

e
ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 S
p

ri
n

g

2
0

1
1

 v
e

ri
fy

in
g

 t
h

o
s
e

 u
n

it
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 h
ig

h
e

r 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

n
e

t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
a

c
k
 c

a
p

tu
re

d
. 

6
,3

5
7

 n
e

t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
u

n
it
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
o

 f
a

r 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 L
A

A
 p

e
ri
o

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 3

 y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
,9

9
7

 (
7

1
.6

4
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t)
. 

W
h

ile
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

tr
o

n
g

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
m

o
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

n
e

t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
u

n
it
s
, 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

h
in

d
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
o

w
n

tu
rn

 c
a

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

la
y
 o

f 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 

If
 a

 m
o

re
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
, 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

w
ill

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
a

r 
fu

tu
re

 'c
a

u
s
in

g
' p

e
a

k
s
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 t
a

rg
e

t.

**
*S

in
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 

1
0

, 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 t

o
 2

3
5

 Q
1

, 
3

1
 Q

2
, 

a
n

d
 8

1
4

 Q
3

.
0

5
0

0

1
0

0
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

0

2
0

0

4
0

0

6
0

0

8
0

0

1
0

0
0

1
2

0
0

1
4

0
0

1
6

0
0

1
8

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 158



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

4
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 t
o

 A
S

B

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
4

7
.6

6
0

6
7

5
9

6
5

6
5

7
2

1
0

.7
0

%
!

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

5
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 t
o

 r
e

-l
e

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 (

d
a

y
s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
D

a
y
s
 (

T
h

e
 t

im
e

 i
n

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
d

a
y
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 d

a
y
 a

ft
e

r 
te

n
a

n
c
y
 i
s
 t

e
rm

in
a

te
d

 u
p

to
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 t

e
n

a
n

c
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

rt
s
.)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
3

1
.5

4
2

8
2

7
.2

3
2

7
.4

5
2

6
2

6
2

3
.3

5
1

0
.2

0
%

!
G

R
E

E
N

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

T
H

E
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
 A

R
E

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
A

L
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 O

N
L

Y
 A

N
D

 S
U

B
J
E

C
T

 T
O

 F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 U

P
D

A
T

E
S

 A
N

D
 A

U
D

IT
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 i
s
 n

o
w

 2
3

4
 u

n
it
s
 (

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
4

0
5

),
 a

s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 i
n

to
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 3
 y

e
a

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
 s

e
t 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

1
2

4
6

 s
o

c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 f

a
m

ily
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 2

0
0

8
 -

 2
0

1
1

. 

(0
8

/0
9

 -
 3

9
3

, 
0

9
/1

0
 -

 6
1

9
, 

1
0

/1
1

 -
 2

3
4

);
 t

h
is

 i
s
 2

.5
5

%
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 3
 y

e
a

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

2
1

5
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
e

d
 u

n
it
s
 f

o
r 

1
0

/1
1

 w
h

ic
h

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 o

n
 t

o
p

 o
f 

th
is

 f
ig

u
re

; 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 T

e
a

m
 w

ill
 r

e
tr

ie
v
e

 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 H
C

A
's

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

P
le

a
s
e

 a
ls

o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 f
o

r 
N

I1
5

5
 a

b
o

v
e

.

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

P
a
g
e
 7

Page 159



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

6
S

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
£

 (
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

l 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
ri
o

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
, 

w
ri
te

 o
ff

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
1

5
.3

1
5

1
2

.6
1

6
.5

1
1

.5
1

1
.5

9
.4

4
1

7
.9

0
%

!
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

7
R

e
n

t 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
re

n
t 

d
u

e

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n

9
9

.6
6

1
0

0
.0

1
9

9
.9

7
9

9
.6

1
0

0
1

0
0

9
9

.3
2

-0
.7

0
%

"
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

2
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 o
n

e
 w

e
e

k
 s

a
m

p
le

, 
a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

v
is

it
s
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 t

o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

w
h

a
te

v
e

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

9
,2

8
4

.7
6

9
,3

6
1

.8
0

9
,3

9
6

.5
2

6
,7

5
3

.0
2

2
,0

9
2

,6
5

1
1

,5
6

9
,4

8
8

1
,5

3
4

,3
9

5
-2

.2
0

%
N

/A
R

E
D

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 M

o
n

th
ly

 t
a

rg
e

t 
n

o
t 

m
e

t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 w

e
a

k
e

n
e

d
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 n

o
rm

a
l 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 v
ia

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 

o
rd

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
t 

o
ff

ic
e

. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
, 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
is

 c
a

s
h

 w
a

s
 

re
c
o

v
e

re
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

w
e

e
k
 o

f 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 d
id

 r
u

n
 a

 '
p

a
y
 y

o
u

r 
re

n
t 

a
t 

C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
' c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
te

n
a

n
ts

 i
n

 a
rr

e
a

rs
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
 i
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
e

a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

fi
g

u
re

s
. 

O
u

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 n

o
w

 i
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 m
o

re
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 e
x
tr

a
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 c

a
lls

 a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
. 

O
n

e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
 l
a

te
 n

ig
h

t 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
s
 a

 m
o

n
th

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

. 

W
h

ile
 t

h
e

s
e

 e
ff

o
rt

s
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 g

e
t 

c
lo

s
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

it
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 w

e
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 

p
re

d
ic

t,
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

w
e

e
k
 4

1
 i
s
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 a

t 
9

9
.7

%
 s

o
 h

a
s
 m

o
v
e

d
 u

p
 0

.4
%

 w
h

ic
h

 i
f 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 w

o
u

ld
 m

e
a

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

9
5

9
6

9
7

9
8

9
9

1
0
0

1
0
1

1
0
2

1
0
3

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

3

P
a
g
e
 8

Page 160



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

6
P

e
o

p
le

 k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n

ts

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
%

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 k

ill
e

d
 o

r 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
y
e

a
r 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r 

(L
o

w
e

r)

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

-9
.1

3
.3

4
.5

N
/A

1
2

.7
 (

1
0

0
)

7
5

6
6

1
2

.0
0

%
N

/A
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

1
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

2
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 

fo
r 

re
u

s
e

, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
to

ta
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e

, 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
, 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 o

r 
a

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n
 d

iv
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

o
ta

l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
.)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

1
9

.2
6

2
2

6
2

6
.5

1
2

6
.3

5
3

2
3

0
.7

3
2

7
-1

2
.1

0
%

!
R

E
D

M
o
n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
S

h
a
n
k
s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

c
y
c
lin

g

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
O

u
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
lik

e
 m

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
, 
h
a
s
 p

la
te

a
u
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 I
t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

3
2
%

 f
o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 O
u
r 

d
ry

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

M
o

n
th

l y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

h
e

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 p

e
ri
o

d
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
a

 s
to

re
s
. 

  
It

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d

th
a

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 k

ill
e

d
 o

r 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
y
e

a
r 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 3
 y

e
a

r 
ro

lli
n

g
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
, 

u
p

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
y
e

a
r.

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

in
te

ri
m

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
, 

th
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

Is
) 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 a

re
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
A

n
a

ly
s
is

 U
n

it
 a

n
d

 a
re

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
y
e

a
r.

 A
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0

0
 K

S
Is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

J
a

n
 –

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 t
im

e
 l
a

g
 i
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t:
 T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 9
 f

e
w

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 k

ill
e

d
 o

r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 i
n

ju
re

d
 t

h
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 B
e

tw
e

e
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

K
S

I’
s
 w

a
s
 6

6
.

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

0

5
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
5

0
0

0
0

0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0

2
5

0
0

0
0

0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 9

Page 161



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
a

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
a

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

2

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 l
it
te

r

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

C
llr

 S
 A

li

1
1

1
0

1
1

1
1

8
8

5
.3

3
3

.7
5

%
!

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
b

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
b

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

3

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 d
e

tr
it
u

s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

C
llr

 S
 A

li

1
2

1
1

1
0

9
.5

1
0

1
0

8
2

0
%

!
G

R
E

E
N

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
c
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
c
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

4

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 g
ra

ff
it
i

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

C
llr

 S
 A

li

1
6

7
2

0
1

8
.5

6
6

1
2

-1
0

0
.0

0
%

!
R

E
D

M
o
n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
t 
o
f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
in

s
p
e
c
to

rs
 [
s
e
c
o
n
d
 o

f 
th

re
e
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
s
].
 T

h
e
 

m
a
tu

ri
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 V

e
o
lia

 a
n
d
 j
o
in

t 
ta

s
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 /
 C

S
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 a

 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
. 
It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
 t
a
k
e
s
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t
h
re

e
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
.

M
o
n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
t 
o
f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
in

s
p
e
c
to

rs
 [
s
e
c
o
n
d
 o

f 
th

re
e
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
s
].
 T

h
e
 

m
a
tu

ri
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 V

e
o
lia

 a
n
d
 j
o
in

t 
ta

s
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 /
 C

S
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 a

 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
. 
It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
 t
a
k
e
s
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t
h
re

e
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
.

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
J
u

ly
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
J
u

ly
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 1

0

Page 162



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
d

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
d

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

5

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 f
ly

-p
o

s
ti
n

g

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

C
llr

 S
 A

li

5
2

8
7

.5
2

2
4

-1
0

0
%

!
R

E
D

M
o
n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
:

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
t 
o
f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
in

s
p
e
c
to

rs
 w

h
o
 u

s
e
 a

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 s

p
a
n
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

v
e
r 

th
re

e
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
s
 [
e
a
c
h
 t
ra

n
c
h
 t
a
k
e
s
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
].
 A

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
w

o
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 

th
e
 s

c
o
re

s
 w

e
re

 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 h
ig

h
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l;
 i
n
d
u
s
ti
ri
a
l/
w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
in

g
 [
w

it
h
 a

 s
c
o
re

 o
f1

8
] 
a
n
d
 h

ig
h
 

o
b
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 [
w

it
h
 a

 s
c
o
re

 o
f 
1
3
].
 A

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
A

 d
ra

ft
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
/c

o
u
n
c
il 

p
le

d
g
e
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 s

e
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 f
o
r 

a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
; 
th

is
 w

ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
te

n
a
n
ts

 t
o
 d

o
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 s

o
c
ia

l/
c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

. 

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 f
o
rc

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 R

S
L
's

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 S
u
b
 G

ro
u
p
. 
S

m
a
rt

e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 V

e
o
lia

 o
n
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 t
h

e
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
re

m
o

v

te
a
m

 m
o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
v
e
rt

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
o
lic

e
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 t
h
o
s
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
o
in

g
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

o
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t.
 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 s
e

t 
o

f 
re

s
u

lt
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
in

s
p

e
c
to

rs
. 

W
h

ils
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 ,

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

r 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
[O

u
tt

u
rn

 o
f 

8
%

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
].

 T
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
te

a
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 o

u
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 V

e
o

lia
, 

in
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 f

ly
 

p
o

s
ti
n

g
. 

T
h

e
 i
s
s
u

in
g

 o
f 

fi
x
e

d
 p

e
n

a
lt
y
 n

o
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

te
 t

h
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
ly

 p
o

s
t 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

p
p

e
a

rs
 

to
 b

e
 d

ri
v
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 s

in
c
e

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 s

ti
ll 

re
m

a
in

 v
e

ry
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
ly

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u

ly
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 1

1

Page 163



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

T
h

e
m

e
 3

: 
A

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
3

0
8

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
1

7
1

6
 t

o
 1

8
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 (
N

E
E

T
)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

M
a

ry
 D

u
rk

in

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n
6

.7
6

.2
5

6
6

.2
5

.5
5

.7
5

.7
M

E
T

!
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

9

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
4

6
A

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

H
e

le
n

 T
a

y
lo

r

A
d

u
lt
s
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 

W
e

llb
e

in
g

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

3
.3

3
.1

 
3

.4
0

.3
3

.1
2

.5
5

0
.1

7
-9

3
.3

0
%

"
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

0
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

0
A

d
u

lt
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

H
e

le
n

 T
a

y
lo

r

A
d

u
lt
s
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 

W
e

llb
e

in
g

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

2
.4

3
.5

4
.8

6
3

.5
3

.5
5

.7
0

6
2

.9
0

%
"

G
R

E
E

N

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

In
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s
 5

.7
%

, 
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 w

a
s
 6

.2
%

 a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
5

.5
%

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

 I
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 w
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

tt
e

r 
m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 I

t 
is

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

 m
o

n
th

s
.

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.54

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 1

2

Page 164



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

1
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

1
O

v
e

ra
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 (

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a

le
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
6

0
.8

5
4

.9
6

0
.4

6
7

.8
5

5
.7

5
5

.7
6

0
.1

7
.9

0
%

"
G

R
E

E
N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

2
a

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

. 
B

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
 (

Q
2

 d
a

ta
) 

n
a

rr
o

w
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 r

a
te

 t
o

 a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

-5
.7

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

. 

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
.)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a

le
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
N

/A
-5

.7
-4

.9
N

/A
-5

.7
-5

.7
-5

1
2

.3
0

%
N

/A
G

R
E

E
N

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
a

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 D

C
L

G
's

 F
lo

o
r 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 I

n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 f
o

r 
d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 u

p
d

a
te

 w
a

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

, 
w

h
ic

h
 (

d
u

e
 t

o
 a

 t
im

e
la

g
 i
n

 d
a

ta
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

) 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 F

lo
o

r 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 I
n

te
ra

c
ti
v
e

 h
a

s
 s

in
c
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
la

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

la
c
e

s
 D

a
ta

b
a

s
e

. 
S

in
c
e

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

n
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
a

ta
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 e

it
h

e
r 

s
o

u
rc

e
. 

T
h

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 f

ig
u

re
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 N

o
m

is
 .

 A
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 N

o
m

is
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

T
H

 i
s
 6

1
.9

%
 

(J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
0

 d
a

ta
).

 I
f 

th
is

 w
e

re
 u

s
e

d
, 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

 1
.8

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 r
is

e
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 o

f 
T

H
.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
a

rg
e

t 
m

e
t,

 a
s
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 r

a
te

 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 -

 5
.7

 p
e

rc
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 g

a
p

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 -

5
.0

 

p
e

rc
e

n
t.

N
o

 u
p

d
a

te
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 P

la
c
e

s
 D

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
 F

lo
o

r 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 I
n

te
ra

c
ti
v
e

. 
T

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
 w

a
s
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

Q
4

 2
0

0
9

/2
0

1
0

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

-1
0 -9 -8 -7 -6 -5 -4 -3 -2 -1 0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

0
.0

0

1
.0

0

2
.0

0

3
.0

0

4
.0

0

5
.0

0

6
.0

0

7
.0

0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 1

3

Page 165



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

3

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

3
a

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

la
im

in
g

 o
u

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rs

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
. 

B
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
 (

Q
2

 d
a

ta
) 

e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 r

a
te

 t
o

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

3
.1

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 

g
a

p
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a

le
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l

C
llr

 R
 K

h
a

n
N

/A
3

.1
4

.4
N

/A
3

.1
3

.1
4

.3
3

8
.7

0
%

N
/A

G
R

E
E

N

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

5
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

7
8

 p
o

in
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

6
 i
n

 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
a

le
s
 i
n

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 E
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 L

it
e

ra
c
y

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 f
ro

m
 b

ir
th

 t
o

 e
n

d
 o

f 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 c
h

ild
 t

u
rn

s
 5

, 
a

t 

le
a

s
t 

6
 p

o
in

ts
 o

r 
m

o
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

3
 E

Y
F

S
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
) 

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n
4

0
4

5
.3

4
2

.9
4

2
.9

4
6

.0
0

4
6

4
6

M
E

T
!

G
R

E
E

N

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

3
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

7
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

le
v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n
7

4
7

9
7

4
7

4
8

0
.0

0
8

0
7

6
-5

.0
0

%
!

R
E

D

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:  
 4

6
%

 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

7
8

 p
o

in
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

6
 i
n

 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
a

le
s
 i
n

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 E
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 L

it
e

ra
c
y
.W

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

T
H

 h
a

v
e

 a
 4

.3
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 p

o
in

ts
 l
e

a
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 r

a
te

.

N
o

 u
p

d
a

te
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 P

la
c
e

s
 D

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
 F

lo
o

r 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 I
n

te
ra

c
ti
v
e

. 
T

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
 w

a
s
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

Q
4

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

.

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 1

4

Page 166



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

5

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

5
A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

4
1

.2
5

0
4

5
.8

4
5

.8
5

3
.0

0
5

3
5

1
.8

-2
.2

6
%

!
R

E
D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

6
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

6
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f

e
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 5

5
%

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 

b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

3
1

6
6

1
.0

0
1

0
M

E
T

!
G

R
E

E
N

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
: 
 7

6
%

 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

le
v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 f
o

r 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 (
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
).

 w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
n

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
m

e
t 

o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 

is
 a

n
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

e
 a

re
 3

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 1

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
t 

s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
. 

W
e

 a
im

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

o
u

g
h

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 a

n
d

 w
e

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 g

e
t 

c
lo

s
e

r 
to

 i
t 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

- 
b

u
t 

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 r

is
e

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 L

A
 h

a
s
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f 

s
e

tt
in

g
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
o

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
g

e
n

d
a

. 
 T

h
e

 k
e

y
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 d
ip

p
e

d
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

 W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
h

ig
h

e
r 

le
v
e

ls
 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
.

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
e

 a
re

 d
o

in
g

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

A
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 P

u
p

ils
’ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n

 K
S

2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 T
a

lk
 f

o
r 

W
ri
ti
n

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
n

e
e

d
.

- 
B

ro
a

d
e

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

C
o

g
n

it
iv

e
 A

c
c
le

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 (

C
A

M
E

) 
p

ro
je

c
t 

–
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
A

M
E

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 i
n

 

a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

- 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
1

:1
 T

u
it
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 i
n

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

p
e

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
is

te
n

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

.

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L

A
) 

w
it
h

 c
lu

s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r.

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o

f 
E

v
e

ry
 C

h
ild

 a
 W

ri
te

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
: 
  

W
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
5

1
.8

%
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 4

5
.6

%
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
m

e
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
5

3
%

.

T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

e
v
e

r 
re

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

G
C

S
E

's
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

. 
It

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
ra

te
s
 o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

n
d

 j
u

s
t 

fa
lli

n
g

 s
h

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 

b
y
 1

.6
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
 a

ls
o

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 w
e

a
k
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

  
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

S
IP

) 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
T

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
d

v
is

o
rs

 (
S

D
A

's
) 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

1
.

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5

Page 167



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

8
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

8
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f

e
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 3

0
%

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 

g
ra

d
e

s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
s

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

3
6

1
3

5
0

.0
0

0
0

M
E

T
#

G
R

E
E

N

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
8

7
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

1
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 r
a

te

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n
4

.8
4

.6
4

.4
4

.4
4

.2
4

.2
3

.2
-2

3
.8

!
R

E
D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

1
N

a
rr

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 

P
ro

fi
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
t

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
T

h
e

 %
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

ia
n

 s
c
o

re
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

c
a

lly
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

n
 

s
c
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 2

0
%

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

c
a

lly
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n
3

7
.3

3
1

.5
3

5
3

5
3

0
.9

0
3

0
.9

3
3

.1
-7

.1
1

%
!

R
E

D

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 r
a

te
 f

o
r 

H
a

lf
 T

e
rm

 1
-4

 i
s
 3

.2
%

. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 D

F
E

.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
: 

 N
o

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f

e
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 5

5
%

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2

 f
o

r 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 

y
e

a
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 (
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
).

 T
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

e
t.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
: 
N

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f

e
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 3

0
%

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 

in
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
e

t 
o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

-1012345

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

01234567

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6

Page 168



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
: 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 n
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 t

o
 3

3
.1

%
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
 3

5
.2

%
 g

a
p

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
m

e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 t
o

 3
0

.3
%

. 
T

h
e

 g
a

p
 i
s
 n

a
rr

o
p

w
e

r 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

rg
a

e
 o

f 
3

3
.9

%
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

te
a

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
.

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

tt
o

m
 2

0
%

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

s
t 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
.

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

tt
o

m
 2

0
%

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

b
it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

s
t.

 

T
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
s
 a

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

. 
T

h
e

 a
c
c
e

la
ra

ti
n

g
 g

a
p

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 b
o

y
s
 a

n
d

 g
ir
ls

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 t

e
a

m
 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

In
 

th
e

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

, 
a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 a

im
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

m
o

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 c

h
ild

re
n

 m
o

s
t 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
; 

w
e

 

e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 s

e
e

 a
c
c
e

la
ra

te
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 c

lo
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 i
f 

th
is

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
. 

A
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 f
o

c
u

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

a
rl
y

y
e

a
rs

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

th
o

s
 a

n
d

 a
m

b
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
E

a
rl

y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
, 

w
o

u
ld

 s
e

e
 m

o
re

 r
a

p
id

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 c

lo
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
; 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 d
a

te
 f

o
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 d
e

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
L

A
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
is

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7

Page 169



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

3
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

2
P

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

8
6

.5
9

2
8

9
.1

8
9

9
3

.0
0

9
3

8
8

-5
.4

0
%

"
R

E
D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

4
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

3
P

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 M
a

th
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

8
4

8
5

8
7

.2
8

7
8

8
.0

0
8

8
8

7
-1

.1
3

%
"

R
E

D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

9
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

5
L

o
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

H
e

le
n

 L
in

c
o

ln

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

5
0

5
3

5
0

5
0

5
3

5
3

3
7

.5
-2

9
.2

4
%

"
R

E
D

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:
T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 w

a
s
 8

8
%

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 m
e

t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

is
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 a

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 8
9

.1
%

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.

W
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

A
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 P

u
p

ils
’ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n

 K
S

2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
ri
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 T

a
lk

 f
o

r 
W

ri
ti
n

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 

T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

f 
in

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
1

:1
 T

u
it
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

.

W
e

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 r

o
lli

n
g

 o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 i
n

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

p
e

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
is

te
n

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

. 
  

O
u

r 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 a

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L

A
) 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r.
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:  
W

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
8

8
%

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
 f

in
a

l 
o

u
t 

tu
rn

 o
f 

8
7

%
, 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 a
s
 f

o
r 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
is

 4
 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

t 
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

T
e

a
c
h

e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
n

e
e

d
.

W
e

 a
re

 b
ro

a
d

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

C
o
g

n
it
iv

e
 A

c
c
le

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 (

C
A

M
E

) 
p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 a
re

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
1

:1
 t

u
it
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 i
n

 m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
.

W
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 a
s
 a

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L

A
) 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r.

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8

Page 170



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
0

0
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

6
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n

 m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

H
e

le
n

 L
in

c
o

ln

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

3
6

.4
5

3
3

5
.7

1
3

5
.7

1
5

3
5

3
2

5
-5

2
.8

3
%

"
R

E
D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
0

1
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

7
L

o
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

H
e

le
n

 L
in

c
o

ln

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

6
.7

2
3

1
3

.8
9

1
3

.8
9

2
0

2
0

1
4

.8
-2

6
%

!
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

1
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 A

 L
e

v
e

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
- 

A
 L

e
v
e

l 
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o

re
 p

e
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
t 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

6
3

9
.5

7
2

2
6

3
1

6
3

1
N

/A
N

/A
6

3
6

.6
N

/A
!

N
/A

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:

3
7

.5
%

 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 D
F

E
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
 2

0
1

1
 t

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 w
e

 a
re

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
o

u
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 D

F
E

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 

a
n

d
 c

h
e

c
k
e

d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

d
a

ta
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 

b
a

c
k
 t

o
 D

F
E

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
l 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:

2
5

.0
%

 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n

 M
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 2
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 

b
y
 t

h
e

 D
F

E
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
 2

0
1

1
 t

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 w
e

 a
re

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
o

u
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 D

F
E

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 

a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

d
a

ta
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 

b
a

c
k
 t

o
 D

F
E

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
l 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:

1
4

.8
%

 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
) 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
F

E
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
 2

0
1

1
 t

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 w
e

 a
re

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 

s
o

u
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 D

F
E

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

d
a

ta
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 

b
a

c
k
 t

o
 D

F
E

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
l 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

.

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9

Page 171



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

7

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
1

6
P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 p
o

v
e

rt
y

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

5
1

.4
4

9
.9

4
8

4
8

4
7

.4
4

7
.4

5
7

-2
0

.2
5

N
/A

R
E

D

T
h

e
m

e
 4

: 
A

 S
a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
4

1
3

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
6

5
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

o
f 

C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
a

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 o
r 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
ti
m

e

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

H
e

le
n

 L
in

c
o

ln

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

6
.8

7
8

.0
3

7
.8

9
-1

3
%

9
-1

3
%

9
.7

4
*

M
E

T
"

G
R

E
E

N

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
:

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

th
e

 A
-l
e

v
e

l 
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o

re
 (

A
P

S
) 

p
e

r 
le

a
rn

e
r 

w
a

s
 6

3
6

.6
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 w

a
s
 u

p
 b

y
 5

.6
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 p

o
in

ts
 s

c
o

re
 p

e
r 

le
a

rn
e

r 
fr

o
m

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
3

 a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t.

A
-L

e
v
e

l 
3

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 H

u
b

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 C

S
&

F
 D

M
T

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

is
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 a
re

 p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 s
u

c
c
e

e
d

, 
o

n
 r

ig
o

ro
u

s
 u

s
e

 o
f 

d
a

ta
 t

o
 t

ra
c
k
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 u

n
d

e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

.

T
h

e
 1

4
-1

9
 H

U
B

 t
e

a
m

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 A

-l
e

v
e

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

F
in

a
l 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t:
 U

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 o

u
r 

n
e

w
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

7
 i
s
 6

3
.6

%
. 

T
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

in
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

o
u

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

ta
x
 c

re
d

it
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 6

0
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 

o
f 

m
e

d
ia

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

.

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
s
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 5

7
%

, 
e

v
e

n
 t

h
o

u
g

h
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
 6

.6
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 p

o
in

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
7

. 
T

h
is

 e
q

u
a

te
s
 t

o
 3

,1
3

5
 c

h
ild

re
n

 l
if
te

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

p
o

v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

 o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
o

v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 a
re

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 N

e
e

d
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
A

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 w

it
h

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
in

g
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
t 

to
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

h
e

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
lig

h
t 

d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 p
ri
v
a

te
 f

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

w
a

s
 9

.7
4

%
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
a

n
d

w
id

th
 o

f 
9

-1
3

%
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
a

n
d

w
id

th
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 L
B

T
H

 

p
e

rf
ro

m
a

n
c
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
. 

  
B

a
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 g

o
o

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
s
 b

e
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 9

-1
3

%
. 

  
A

 v
e

ry
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
m

a
y
 

m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

a
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

b
m

it
ti
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 t
o

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

. 
C

o
n

v
e

rs
e

ly
, 

a
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
m

a
y
 s

u
g

g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
h

ild
’s

 w
e

lf
a

re
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
. 

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
e

a
c
h

 c
h

ild
’s

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

ill
 d

if
fe

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
 z

e
ro

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
. 

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

M
o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

T
a
rg

e
t 
- 

to
p
 b

a
n
d
w

id
th

T
a
rg

e
t 
- 

b
o
tt
o
m

 b
a
n
d
w

id
th

5
5

0

5
7

0

5
9

0

6
1

0

6
3

0

6
5

0

6
7

0

6
9

0

7
1

0

7
3

0

7
5

0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

4
0

4
2

4
4

4
6

4
8

5
0

5
2

5
4

5
6

5
8

6
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0

Page 172



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
3

5
C

a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 c
a

re
r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

 (
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
a

re
rs

 w
h

o
s
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 o

r 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 a

 y
e

a
r 

w
h

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
a

re
r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 y

e
a

r 

a
s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

A
d

u
lt
s
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 

W
e

llb
e

in
g

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

3
0

.1
2

5
.9

3
3

.9
2

2
.1

3
0

.9
0

2
3

.2
1

9
.7

0
-1

5
.0

8
%

"
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

5
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

o
s
t 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(N

o
. 

o
f 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 m

o
s
t 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri
m

e
s
/t

o
ta

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 x

 1
0

0
0

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

2
.3

5
2

.2
8

2
.1

4
1

.6
4

2
.0

9
7

2
1

.5
7

1
.4

9
5

.0
9

%
!

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

3
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

6
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(N

o
. 

o
f 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
/t

o
ta

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 x

 1
0

0
0

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

2
5

.5
1

2
5

.0
5

2
0

.2
9

1
5

.1
5

2
0

.0
9

1
5

.0
6

1
7

.1
7

-1
4

%
"

R
E

D

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

P
a
g
e
 2

1

Page 173



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

7
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
3

3
i

A
rs

o
n

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 -

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
e

lib
e

ra
te

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
.

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(P

ri
m

a
ry

 i
s
 c

a
s
u

a
lt
y
, 

re
s
c
u

e
 o

r 
e

s
c
a

p
e

) 

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

9
.9

9
1

1
.9

7
.3

5
.9

6
1

1
.5

8
.6

3
7

.2
1

1
6

.4
5

%
"

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
3

3
ii

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
e

lib
e

ra
te

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 f
ir
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

(A
rs

o
n

)

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 &

 d
id

 n
o

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

 c
a

s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 o

r 

re
s
c
u

e
s
)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

2
0

.9
9

3
5

.8
1

1
.4

3
9

.6
2

3
4

.7
2

6
.0

3
1

3
.0

2
4

9
.9

8
%

"
G

R
E

E
N

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

P
a
g
e
 2

2

Page 174



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
4

0
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

1
4

3
4

1
3

9
9

1
5

0
9

1
5

2
8

1
4

1
3

1
4

1
3

1
5

7
7

1
1

.6
!

G
R

E
E

N

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

8
R

a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

v
e

n
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 b
y
 a

d
u

lt
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

L
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 

C
u

lt
u

re

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

3
.7

8
-4

.9
8

2
.2

9
-0

.5
2

-9
.9

7
-9

.9
7

-0
.9

5
-9

0
.5

0
%

!
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

5
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

9
R

a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

v
e

n
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 b
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 a

g
e

d
 1

0
-1

7

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
(a

v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

-o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 p

e
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

)

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

M
a

ry
 D

u
rk

in

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

C
llr

 O
 R

a
h

m
a

n

1
.1

1
.1

3
1

.1
5

0
.6

5
1

.0
8

0
.5

4
0

.5
4

M
E

T
!

G
R

E
E

N

T
h

e
m

e
 5

: 
A

 H
e
a
lt

h
y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
e

t 
ta

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

re
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 

A
 r

a
te

 o
f 

0
.5

4
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
re

 o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

d
a

ta
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

. 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 7

 m
o

n
th

s
 t

im
e

 l
a

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 u

p
 t

o
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

0
. 

 W
h

ils
t 

w
e

 a
re

 o
ff

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 t

h
is

 l
a

te
s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 s

o
 f

a
r.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

T
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
, 

u
s
in

g
 c

ra
c
k
 a

n
d

/o
r 

o
p

ia
te

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t,
 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 u

s
in

g
 c

ra
c
k
 a

n
d

/o
r 

o
p

ia
te

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

2
0

0
7

/8
. 

  
F

o
r 

in
 y

e
a

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
, 

w
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t.

  
W

e
 w

ill
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 a

s
 p

e
r 

th
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

1
0
0
0

1
1
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
3
0
0

1
4
0
0

1
5
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

P
a
g
e
 2

3

Page 175



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 8
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r
 &

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

T
a
r
g

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

ta
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 D

e
c

1
0

/
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
e
c
 

0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic

L
ig

h
t

(
R

E
D

 /
 

G
R

E
E
N

)

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0
0
9

/1
0

O
u

ttu
rn

2
0
1

0
/1

1

T
a

rg
e

t

A
p

ril
M

a
y

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0

/1
1
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

1
0

/1
1
 M

o
n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

4

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
5

6
d

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 Y
e

a
r 

6
 w

it
h

 h
e

ig
h

t 
a

n
d

 w
e

ig
h

t 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 w

h
o

 a
re

 o
b

e
s
e

.

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
%

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
L

o
w

e
r

L
a

y
la

 R
ic

h
a

rd
s

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
2

4
.4

9
2

3
.6

2
5

.7
2

5
.7

2
3

.7
2

3
.7

2
5

.7
-8

.4
0

%
#

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
2

3
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
2

3
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

9

S
to

p
p

in
g

 s
m

o
k
in

g

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 i
n

: 
n

u
m

b
e

r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

: 
H

ig
h

e
r

A
lw

e
n

 W
ill

ia
m

s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t

M
a

y
o

r 
L

 R
a

h
m

a
n

1
2

5
3

1
0

4
3

1
4

8
9

N
/A

1
0

6
1

N
/A

7
0

5
.0

4
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

:

T
h

is
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 d

e
fi
n

e
s
 q

u
it
te

rs
 a

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 s
to

p
p

e
d

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

4
 w

e
e

k
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 i
s
 7

0
5

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

0
6

1
. 

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 1
,2

8
6

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

o
 f

a
r 

in
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 n

e
a

rl
y
 

d
o

u
b

le
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

q
u

it
te

rs
 i
n

 Q
2

 a
s
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 i
n

 Q
3

. 
If

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 g

ro
w

s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
lly

 i
n

 Q
4

 a
s
 i
t 

d
id

 h
a

s
 i
n

 Q
1

,2
 a

n
d

 3
, 

th
e

 

ta
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

A
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

te
s
ti
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 o
f 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

f 
th

e
 7

0
%

 (
a

p
p

ro
x
) 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
d

 s
a

id
 t

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 4

 w
e

e
k
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
, 

8
5

%
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
ir
 n

o
n

-s
m

o
k
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 c

a
rb

o
n

 m
o

n
o

x
id

e
 t

e
s
t.

T
h

e
 P

C
T

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
ra

ft
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

a
re

 b
e

in
g

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
. 

 T
h

e
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 D

ia
b

e
te

s
 a

n
d

 C
a

rd
io

 V
a

s
c
u

la
r 

D
is

e
a

s
e

 c
a

re
 

p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 c
h

ro
n

ic
, 

o
b

s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 p
u

lm
o

n
a

ry
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 

F
in

a
l 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t:
  

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
m

e
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
b

u
t 

h
a

lt
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
is

e
 o

f 
o

b
e

s
it
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 

o
f 

y
e

a
r 

6
 c

h
ild

re
n

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

.

L
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
t 

Y
e

a
r 

6
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
a

s
t 

4
 y

e
a

rs
 (

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 –
 2

3
%

, 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 –

 2
4

.5
%

, 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 –

 2
5

.7
%

 a
n

d
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 -
 2

5
.7

%
) 

w
e

 c
a

n
 s

e
e

 t
h

a
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 a
n

d
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 h

a
s
 p

la
te

a
u

e
d

 a
t 

2
5

.7
%

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 h

a
v
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 a

 1
.5

 a
n

d
 1

.2
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

O
th

l
t

h
i

d
h

d
h

d
j

i
t

ti
l

th
t

h
ld

h
t

i
t

th
l

f

1
0
0

3
0
0

5
0
0

7
0
0

9
0
0

1
1
0
0

1
3
0
0

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

P
a
g
e
 2

4

Page 176



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

B
e

tt
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 b
y
 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
e

 p
ru

n
in

g
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

lu
m

n
s
, 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 

la
n

te
rn

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

c
in

g
 b

u
lb

s
 e

tc

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 b

u
lk

 c
le

a
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 i
n

 W
e

a
v
e

rs
 W

a
rd

 w
a

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t.

P
a

rk
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 p
a

rk
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

n
e

e
d

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

W
o

rk
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 o
rd

e
rs

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 

in
 A

lle
n

 G
a

rd
e

n
s
 &

 t
h

e
 s

tu
d

y
 f
o

r 
M

u
s
e

u
m

 G
a

rd
e

n
s
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

3
0
%

A
ll 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 

Q
4
. 

T
h
e
 £

1
5
,0

0
0
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

p
e
n
t 

in
 f

u
ll 

a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
s
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
.

T
re

e
 a

n
d

 S
h

ru
b

 P
la

n
ti

n
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

tr
e

e
s
 i
n

 a
 L

A
P

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 n
o

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 
T

h
e

 4
0

 t
re

e
s
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
: 
H

a
rf

o
rd

 S
t 
- 

7
 t
re

e
s
; 
M

id
d

le
to

n
 S

t 
- 

7
 t
re

e
s
; 

S
w

a
n

fi
e

ld
 S

tr
e

e
t 
- 

2
0

 t
re

e
s
; 

Q
u

a
k
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 
- 

5
 t
re

e
s
;T

e
e

s
d

a
le

 S
tr

e
e
t 

-

1
 t

re
e

. 

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
2
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t.

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 F

o
o

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ie

t 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 b

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
fo

o
d

 

g
ro

w
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
S

t 
J

o
h

n
's

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
a

ily
 f

o
r 

2
5
+

 

p
u

p
ils

 o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t
im

e
 (

3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
r 

- 
F

io
n
a
 

S
in

g
le

to
n

 (
0

2
0

 8
7

0
9

 9
2

8
5

).
 £

1
2

,4
8

0
; 
R

a
c

h
e

l 
K

e
e

li
n

g
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 

S
c

h
o

o
l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
a

ily
 f

o
r 

1
6

 p
u

p
ils

 o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t

im
e
 

(3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
r 

- 
B

e
n

 H
a

s
s
a

n
 (

0
2

0
 8

9
8

0
 5

8
5
6
).

 

£
7

4
7

5
;
O

a
k

la
n

d
s

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 
p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

d
a

ily
 f
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

7
-9

 p
u

p
ils

 o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t
im

e
 (

3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 

H
e

a
d

te
a

c
h

e
r 

- 
J
a

n
is

 F
u

lle
r 

(0
2

0
 7

6
1

3
 1

0
1

4
).

 £
4

0
0

0
. 
R

a
c

h
e
l

K
e

e
li
n

g
 N

u
rs

e
ry

+
M

e
a

th
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

G
a

rd
e

n
 p

ro
je

c
t:

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 2

1
s
t 
J
a

n
. 

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
5
,0

0
0

£
1
4
,4

6
8

2
6
%

A
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f

ro
m

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 -

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 =

 

£
1
4
,4

6
7
.5

0
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

2
=

 

£
9
4
8
7
.5

0
. 

 I
n
 Y

e
a
r 

1
 -

  
N

B
: 

R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 

p
la

n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

£
2
1
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 -

 s
p
e

c
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 

to
 g

o
 t

o
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 '
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 c

o
o
k
in

g
 

a
n
d
 e

a
ti
n
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
' 
fo

r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

in
 L

A
P

s
 1

 a
n
d
 8

 (
s
e
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
) 

fo
r 

s
p
e
n
d
/d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 (

s
e
e
 L

A
P

8
 f

o
r 

d
e
ta

il)
.T

h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
It

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
/d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 h
a
p
p
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

a
n
d
, 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
, 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e

r.

L
e

a
rn

 T
o

 S
w

im

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

re
e

 l
e

a
rn

 

to
 s

w
im

 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-

a
d

u
lt
 s

w
im

m
e

rs
 a

t 
Y

o
rk

 H
a

ll 
le

is
u

re
 

c
e

n
tr

e

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

G
L

L
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
- 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
1

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 S
w

im
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

o
n

 a
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o

m
e

 f
ir
s
t 
s
e

rv
e

d
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
L

A
P

 1
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

B
o

o
k
in

g
s
 a

re
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

ft
e

r 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 
E

n
d

 L
if
e

 a
n
d
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 s
h

o
rt

ly
.

£
7
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

F
o
u
r

L
A

P
 1

Page 177



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
a

rl
y

 G
C

S
E

 i
n

 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 1

0
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

m
o

th
e

r 
to

n
g

u
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

C
la

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 r
u

n
 a

t 
B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

.T
h

e
 3

6
 

e
n

ro
lle

d
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
9
th

. 

O
n

c
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
, 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
 A

*-

C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
 e

x
a

m
s
 s

e
ri
e

s
. 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 n

e
x
t 
m

o
n

th
.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,5

6
7

4
4
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
.A

n
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 Q

4
. 

E
n

g
a

g
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
v

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 t
ra

in
 u

p
 t

o
 2

4
 N

E
E

T
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

9
 a

s
 

s
te

w
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

n
ts

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

P
re

p
a

ra
to

ry
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t
o

 r
e

c
ru

it
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 r

u
n

 t
h

re
e

 l
o

ts
 o

f 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 r

u
n

 o
v
e

r 
in

to
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

th
a

t 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

v
e

n
ts

.

£
1
4
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
n
y
 c

a
rr

y
-o

v
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
to

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

J
o

b
 F

a
ir

T
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 j
o

b
 f

a
ir
 

b
ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 w

it
h

 

jo
b

s
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 

s
e

a
rc

h
 o

f 
w

o
rk

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 J

o
b

s
 F

a
ir
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 1
1

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 a
t 
Y

o
rk

 H
a
ll.

  
It

 

w
a

s
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

v
e

n
t 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

w
h

o
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 o
p

e
n

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 s
p

o
k
e

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 S

e
n
io

r 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

fr
o

m
 J

o
b

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
. 
O

v
e

r 
5
0
0
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 7
0

%
 o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 L

A
P

s
 w

it
h

 2
1

%
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 9

%
 

fr
o

m
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
O

f 
th

e
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

rm
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 2

2
%

 

s
ta

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 J

o
b

s
 F

a
ir
 w

a
s
 E

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
w

it
h

 6
7
%

 

s
ta

ti
n

g
 i
t 
w

a
s
 G

o
o

d
 o

r 
V

e
ry

 G
o

o
d

 .
 3

4
 s

ta
ll 

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 a
n
d
 

a
ls

o
 g

a
v
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
v
e

n
t 
b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

a
s
t 
E

n
d

 L
if
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 E

a
s
t 
E

n
d
 

A
d

v
e

rt
is

e
r.

£
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,8

4
4

9
7
%

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

L
A

P
1
 a

n
d
 L

A
P

5
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 £

1
0
,0

0
0
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 J

o
b
s
 F

a
ir
 e

v
e
n
t.

 F
in

a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

V
e
n
u
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

£
1
,3

5
0
; 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 /
 P

ri
n
ti
n
g
 £

2
,4

5
4
.7

4
; 

C
a
te

ri
n
g
 £

3
,4

7
5
; 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

£
2
,4

0
8
.5

0
. 

T
h
is

 l
e

a
v
e
s
 £

3
1
1
.7

6
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
. 

S
p
lit

 b
e

tw
e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 L

A
P

s
 

th
is

 g
iv

e
s
 £

1
5
5
.8

8
. 

L
A

P
1
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 

fo
r 

£
6
0
 t

o
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 j
o
b
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

.

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 G
ra

d
u

a
te

 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 p

a
id

 1
6

 w
e

e
k
 

w
o

rk
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

4
th

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
s
e

c
u

re
d

. 
C

a
n

d
id

a
te

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

 L
B

T
H

 -
 P

u
p

il 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
 T

e
a

m
 o

n
 0

2
/1

2
/1

0
. 
 E

n
d

 o
f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

m
e

t.

£
1
1
,0

0
0

£
9
,5

0
0

8
6
%

O
n
 p

ro
fi
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

fu
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

Y
o

u
th

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 &
 S

E
N

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

L
B

T
H

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
tw

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 

in
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 o

r 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
’s

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
w

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
a

s
 a

 J
u

n
io

r 
Y

o
u

th
 

w
o

rk
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
 L

B
T

H
 A

d
m

in
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

5
,0

0
0

3
,7

5
0

7
5

%
P

ro
je

c
t 

is
 e

x
c
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 Q

4

E
x

te
n

d
e

d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
/S

tu
d

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

v
e

rs
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 

s
tu

d
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 a

 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

le
a

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

8
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 L

A
P

s
 (

 1
,2

 a
n

d
 8

) 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
tu

d
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
M

a
jo

ri
ty

 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
ra

is
in

g
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
t 

K
S

 3
 a

n
d

 4
 p

u
p

ils
. 
A

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 S

tu
d

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
e

a
m

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 8

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
th

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
tw

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 (

fi
lm

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
a

s
s
e

m
b
lin

g
) 

in
 

L
A

P
 2

 a
n

d
 8

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 S
p

ri
n

g
 t

e
rm

. 

T
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
tu

m
n
, 

S
p

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
te

rm
. 
M

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h
 L

A
P

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
te

rm
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 s

h
o

rt
ly

.

£
3
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1

Page 178



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e
r.

 I
n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

£
2
,5

0
0
 t

o
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
W

e
a

v
e

rs
 S

N
T

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
tr

a
 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 t
a

rg
e

tt
in

g
 t
h

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 e
s
ta

te
.T

h
e

 e
x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 h
a

v
e
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 3
1

s
to

p
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

n
e

 P
N

D
 f
o

r 
u

ri
n

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

C
A

D
 1

1
8

5
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 a
 R

o
b

b
e

ry
/B

a
g

 s
n

a
tc

h
 a

n
 a

rr
e

s
t 
fo

r 
c
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 a
 m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 n

u
m

b
e

r,
o

n
e

 a
rr

e
s
t 
fo

r 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

 

p
u

b
lic

 o
rd

e
r,

 t
w

o
 a

rr
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 

tw
o

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 d
ru

g
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 
B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 N

o
rt

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

lic
in

g
 D

u
rg

a
 P

u
ja

 e
v
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 e
x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 o

n
e
 

c
a

n
n

a
b

is
 w

a
rn

in
g

. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

W
e

a
v
e

rs
 S

N
T

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 
e

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 e
s
ta

te
. 
T

h
e

 e
x
tr

a
 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 f
o

r 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
 4

 p
u
b
lic

 

o
rd

e
r 

, 
d

ru
n

k
 a

n
d

 d
is

o
rd

e
rl
y
 a

n
d

 a
g

g
re

s
s
iv

e
 b

e
g

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

v
e
n
 s

to
p
 

a
n

d
 s

e
a

rc
h

. 
B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 N

o
rt

h
 h

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
e

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
w

o
 r

o
a

d
s
id

e
 b

re
a

th
 t
e

s
ts

 s
e

v
e

n
 s

to
p

 a
n

d
 s

e
a

rc
h

. 
In

 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r,

 W
e

a
v
e

rs
 S

N
T

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
o

c
a

lis
a
ti
o
n
 

a
g

e
n

d
a

 B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 E

s
ta

te
. 
 E

x
tr

a
 p

o
lic

e
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n
 t

w
o
 

a
rr

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
g

ra
ff

it
i 
in

 t
h

e
 s

ta
ir
w

e
lls

. 
 T

w
o

 M
e

rl
in

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 a

ls
o

 c
re

a
te

d
.

I

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
 s

o
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n
d
.

D
ru

g
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 s

p
e

n
d

)

T
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

D
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 1
5

9
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

s
 1

&
2

.P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d
 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 a
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 h
o

s
te

l 
in

 L
A

P
 1

.2
 J

o
in

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
o

lic
e

 a
t 
C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 H
e

a
th

 R
o

a
d

. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e

s
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 S

tr
e

e
t 
D

ri
n

k
e

rs
 w

e
re

 m
o

v
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
d

 h
o

m
e
le

s
s
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

.W
it
h

in
 L

A
P

 1
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

in
to

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 4
 I
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
e

re
 t

a
k
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 d

ru
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f
o

r 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
.T

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 1
 r

o
u
g
h
 

s
le

e
p

e
r 

in
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 6
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
e

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n
to

 

m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
m

 a
w

a
y
 f
o

rm
 s

tr
e

e
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 

lif
e

s
ty

le
s

£
8
5
,0

0
0

£
6
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 l
a

te
 s

ta
rt

 w
ill

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

o
 

fa
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 £

3
1
,8

5
5

Page 179



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
: 
2

4

N
e

w
 R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

O
c
t:
  
1

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 0

 c
lo

s
e

d

N
o

v
: 
4

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 1

1
 c

a
s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

D
e

c
: 
1

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 0

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

G
e

n
d

e
r 

6
 (

F
) 

1
8

 (
M

)

E
T

H
N

IC
IT

Y

W
h

it
e

: 
1

0

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
s
h

i:
 1

3

B
la

c
k
: 
3

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
 o

f 
Y

P
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l:
 1

8

L
O

W
 I
N

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

N
o

. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

: 
3

0
 

N
o

. 
o

f 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
: 
2

3
 

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

F
o
u
r

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
C

a
re

rs
: 

L
e

is
u

re
 

P
a

s
s

e
s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 a
 L

A
P

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 

th
e

ir
 c

a
ri
n

g
 r

o
le

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 l
e

is
u

re
 p

a
s
s
 i
s
 8

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
1

. 
A

ll 
fu

n
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 G
L

L
 a

n
d

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 u

p
ta

k
e

 o
f 
p

a
s
s
e

s
.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e
n
t.

Y
IP

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

(Y
IP

) 
a

im
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

1
3

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 f

ro
m

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 

J
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 5
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

in
 e

a
c
h

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t:
 5

0
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

: 
 3

0
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
. 
  
2

3
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

re
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 

in
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
g

e
tt
in

g
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

. 
Y

IP
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 g

e
tt
in

g
 a

  
h

ig
h
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
ro

m
  
L

A
P

1
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 b

u
t 
m

o
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
s
e
 

c
a

s
e

s
 f
a

ll 
in

 t
h

e
 L

A
P

2
 C

a
tc

h
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
a

. 

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
3
7
,5

0
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
in

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

T
H

E
O

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n

T
h

is
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 a
re

a

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 s
te

e
ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 w

e
re

 o
n

ly
 a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

 I
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
a

 t
w

o
 w

e
e

k
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 w
h

ic
h

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 A
S

B
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 E
s
ta

te
, 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
d

ru
g

 s
u

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 

to
ta

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 f
o

r 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

a
s
 £

2
,8

4
2

. 
 I

n
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

th
e

 L
A

P
 

s
te

e
ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 w

e
re

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 
d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
. 
 D

u
e

 t
o

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 M

e
rc

e
r 

a
n
d
 

th
e

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t
h

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 T

H
E

O
s
 h

a
d
 n

o
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
. 
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 J
a

n
 –

 M
a

rc
h

 w
it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 c
o
m

m
it
 

th
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 f

u
n

d
s
.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
,8

4
2

8
%

A
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
in

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

0

Page 180



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
a

rk
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 p
a

rk
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

n
e

e
d

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

W
o

rk
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 o
rd

e
rs

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 

in
 A

lle
n

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 

Q
4
.

D
a

y
 T

ri
p

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u

y
s
 o

n
e

 d
a

y
 t

ri
p

 p
e

r 

m
o

n
th

 u
s
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 2

 c
o

a
c
h

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 

p
e

r 
L

A
P

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

L
o

c
a

l 
lia

is
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 -

 T
o

y
n

b
e

e
 H

a
ll.

  
T

o
 d

a
te

, 
1
0
 

tr
ip

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
3
,2

2
5

3
2
%

T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 l
e
s
s
 

tr
ip

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

in
te

r 
s
o
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

d
a
y
s
 o

f 
S

u
m

m
e
r,

 

A
u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d
 S

p
ri
n

g
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 b
y
 Q

4
. 

 A
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e

r 
a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a

lm
in

g
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 

o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
ro

a
d

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

c
a

lm
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
p

ti
o

n
 (

T
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
e

t)
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ll 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 C
L

C
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 v
ia

 c
o

re
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

 o
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
in

v
e

s
te

m
e

n
t.
 W

h
ils

t 
th

is
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t
h

e
 P

B
 f
u

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 

b
e

 r
e

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
h

is
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ti
m

e
. 

 T
h

e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

s
ta

ll 
s
p

e
e

d
 h

u
m

p
s
 i
n

 B
ra

d
y
 S

tr
e

e
t,
 a

n
d
 a

s
 o

f 

1
2

th
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
 w

o
rk

 w
a

s
 n

e
a

rl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

£
1
8
,0

0
0

£
8
,3

0
0

4
6
%

A
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
in

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 A
lc

o
h

o
ls

 H
a

rm

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 L
A

P
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 h
a

rm
s
 o

f 

a
lc

o
h

o
l

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

B
ig

fo
o

t 
T

h
e

a
tr

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
h

o
s
e

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

T
h

e
 t
w

o
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 

re
c
e

iv
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 s
u

rv
e

y
/q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
y
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

u
p

ils
 m

a
y
 o

r 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 t
h

e
a

tr
e

 g
ro

u
p

 v
is

it
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 -

  
B

ig
fo

o
t 
s
p

e
n

d
 a

 d
a

y
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

 4
5

 m
in

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r 

9
 a

n
d
 

y
e

a
r 

6
 p

u
p

ils
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 1
-2

 h
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 

re
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
. 

T
h

e
 t
h

e
a

tr
e

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 w

ill
 c

o
lle

c
t 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
1

0
-1

5
 m

in
s
 t
o

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
 d

a
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

lf
 t
o

 t
ra

in
 t

h
e
 

p
e

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

to
rs

 a
n

d
 g

a
th

e
r 

th
e

ir
 m

id
 p

ro
je

c
t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
.p

re
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 

th
e

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
n

d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 b

y
 

B
ig

fo
o

t 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
lis

e
 a

n
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 o
r 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

o
 

th
e

 s
c
ri
p

t.
  
T

h
e

 P
e

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

to
rs

 w
ill

 t
h

e
n

 m
e

e
t 
a

g
a

in
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p
le

te
 a

 

fi
n

a
l 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t.

  
A

 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

T
B

C
 t

o
 c

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
7
,5

0
0

5
0
%

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 Y

e
a
r 

1
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 s
p
e
n
d
 a

 

to
ta

l 
o
f 

£
1
7
,5

0
0
. 

 P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 Q

4
.A

s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 -

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 w

it
h
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

ft
e
r 

S
A

T
s
 e

x
a
m

s
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 o

w
n

e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
 A

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
a

rl
y

 G
C

S
E

 i
n

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 1

0
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

m
o

th
e

r 
to

n
g

u
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

C
la

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 r
u

n
 a

t 
B

ra
d

y
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

.T
h

e
 4

4
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 

to
o

k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
9

th
. 
O

n
c
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
, 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 A

*-
C

 g
ra

d
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
n

ro
lle

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
 e

x
a

m
s
 s

e
ri
e

s
. 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d
 

n
e

x
t 
m

o
n

th
.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
2
,9

6
9

3
7
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
.A

n
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 Q

4
. 

L
A

P
 2

Page 181



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Y
o

u
th

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 &
 S

E
N

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

L
B

T
H

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
tw

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 

in
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 o

r 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
’s

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
w

o
 m

a
le

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
- 

o
n

e
 i
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

L
B

T
H

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
is

 o
n

 a
 V

a
le

ti
n

g
 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

£
5
,0

0
0

£
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

O
n
 p

ro
fi
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

fu
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 G
ra

d
u

a
te

 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 p

a
id

 1
6

 w
e

e
k
 

w
o

rk
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

6
th

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
s
e

c
u

re
d

 w
it
h

 T
H

 L
a

w
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 o

n
 1

5
/1

1
/1

0
. 
 2

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d
 f

o
r 

la
p

 2
 c

a
n

d
id

a
te

s
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
p

ro
fi
le

.

£
2
2
,0

0
0

£
1
6
,8

0
0

7
6
%

O
n
 p

ro
fi
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

fu
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

E
x

te
n

d
e

d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
/S

tu
d

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

v
e

rs
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 

s
tu

d
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 a

 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

le
a

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

8
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 L

A
P

s
 (

 1
,2

 a
n

d
 8

) 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
tu

d
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
M

a
jo

ri
ty

 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
ra

is
in

g
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
t 

K
S

 3
 a

n
d

 4
 p

u
p

ils
. 
A

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 S

tu
d

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
e

a
m

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 8

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
th

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
tw

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 (

fi
lm

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
a

s
s
e

m
b
lin

g
) 

in
 

L
A

P
 2

 a
n

d
 8

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 S
p

ri
n

g
 t

e
rm

. 

T
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
tu

m
n
, 

S
p

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
te

rm
. 
M

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h
 L

A
P

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
te

rm
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 s

h
o

rt
ly

.

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

5
0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e
r.

 I
n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

£
2
,5

0
0
 t

o
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

Page 182



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
O

c
to

b
e

r,
 S

p
it
a

fi
e

ld
s
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
g

la
to

w
n

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

d
 

o
n

 e
x
tr

a
 v

ic
e

 p
a

tr
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 i
n

 t
w

o
 a

rr
e

s
ts

, 
o

n
e

 f
o
r 

s
o

lic
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 w
a

n
te

d
 o

n
 w

a
rr

a
n

t 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
w

a
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

c
in

g
 

p
ro

s
it
u

te
 c

a
rd

s
 p

h
o

n
e

 b
o

x
e

s
 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 f
o

u
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 f

o
r 

u
ri
n

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t.
 B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 S

o
u

th
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
o

in
g
 e

x
tr

a
 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 o
f 
M

e
n

o
tt

i 
S

tr
e

e
t 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 p

ro
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

s
p

it
a

fi
e

ld
s
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
g

la
to

w
n

 h
a

v
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
 e

x
tr

a
 v

ic
e

 p
a

tr
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 

w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 f
o

r 
w

a
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
F

T
A

 a
t 
c
o

u
rt

 f
o

r 
lo

it
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 F
T

A
 d

ip
 ,

 

w
it
n

e
s
s
 i
n

ti
m

id
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

re
a

te
n

in
g

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

a
rr

e
s
t 

w
a

s
 f
o

r 
b

e
in

g
 i
n

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
a

 m
o

to
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
 w

h
ils

t 
u

n
fi
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 d

ri
n
k
 

o
f 

d
ru

g
s
. 
B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 S

o
u

th
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
o

in
g

 e
x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 7

 s
to

p
 a

n
d

 s
e

a
rc

h
 2

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 2
 a

rr
e

s
ts

 b
o

th
 w

a
s
 

a
rr

e
s
te

d
 f
o

r 
g

ra
ff
it
i 
( 

c
ri
m

in
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
) 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 s

ta
ir
w

e
lls

 o
f 

a
 b

lo
c
k
 

o
f 

fl
a

ts
. 
In

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r,

 S
p

it
a

lf
ie

ld
s
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
g

la
to

w
n

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 W
ilk

e
s
 S

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d

 P
e

d
le

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 
to

 c
o
m

b
a
t 

u
ri
n

a
ti
o

n
.

L
a

te
n

ig
h

t
p

a
tr

o
ls

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
a

n
d

P
N

D
fo

rm
s

h
a

 1
7

 P
ro

s
ti
tu

te
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

.

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 L

a
te

 N
ig

h
t 
/ 
E

a
rl
y
 M

o
rn

in
g

 p
a

tr
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
u

n
.

S
e

v
e

ra
l 
a

rr
e

s
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
s
ti
tu

te
 c

a
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d
.

F
ir
s
t 
C

a
s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 1
3

/1
2

/2
0

1
0

 a
n
d
 t

w
o
 

A
S

B
O

s
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 C

ra
c
k
 H

o
u

s
e

 c
lo

s
u

re
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 s
o

u
g

h
t.

 T
o
ta

l 

H
o

u
rs

 w
o

rk
e

d
 Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 =

 9
1

2
 h

o
u

rs
, 
T

o
ta

l 
S

to
p

 a
n

d
 S

e
a
rc

h
 =

 

3
7

6
,T

o
ta

l 
Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 A

rr
e

s
ts

 L
A

P
 2

 =
 4

5

D
ru

g
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 s

p
e

n
d

)

T
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

D
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 1
5

9
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

s
 1

&
2

.P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 

b
e

g
g

in
g

 a
t 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

A
P

 2
.2

 J
o

in
t 
P

o
lic

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 a
t 
F

ra
n

k
 D

o
b

s
o

n
 S

q
u

a
re

, 
A

lle
n

 G
a

rd
e

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

t 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e

s
 a

lo
n

g
 W

h
it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
.W

it
h

in
 L

A
P

 2
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 6

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

in
to

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 7
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n

to
 d

ru
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
1

0
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
e

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

to
 m

e
n

a
g

if
u

ll 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
m

 a
w

a
y
 f
o

rm
 s

tr
e

e
t 
b

a
s
e

d
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
s
 

£
8
5
,0

0
0

£
6
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 l
a

te
 s

ta
rt

 w
ill

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

o
 

fa
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 £

3
1
,8

5
5

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
: 
1

3

N
e

w
 R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

O
c
t:
  
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 1

 c
lo

s
e

d

N
o

v
: 
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 0

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

D
e

c
: 
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 1

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

G
e

n
d

e
r 

 6
 (

F
) 

 5
(M

)

E
th

n
ic

it
y

W
h

it
e

: 
2

A
s
ia

n
: 
9

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
 o

f 
Y

P
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l:
 5

L
O

W
 I
N

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

N
o

. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

: 
2

9
 

N
o

. 
o

f 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
: 
2

1
 

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

F
o
u
r

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

fo
r 

Q
2
 s

o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n
d
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

Page 183



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
a

rk
s

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

t

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 p
a

rk
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

n
e

e
d

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

W
o

rk
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 f
o

r 
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 S
te

p
n

e
y
 G

re
e
n
 P

a
rk

.

B
u

lb
 p

la
n

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

m
a
in

in
g
 

o
rd

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e

a
r.

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 Q

4

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 B
u

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

m
b

in
e

s
 t

h
e

 H
o

p
p

a
 

B
u

s
 w

it
h

 D
ia

l-
a

-R
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

 w
it
h

 a
 d

a
ily

 b
u

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 p

ic
k
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
p

 

a
n

d
 t

a
k
e

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 k
e

y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
0

. 
 M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 b

y
 L

in
k
A

g
e
 P

lu
s
 -

 

S
o

n
a

li 
G

a
rd

e
n

s
. 
 D

a
ily

 b
u

s
 v

is
it
in

g
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t.

£
6
0
,0

0
0

£
2
4
,5

8
3

4
1
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
  

d
u
e

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 a

 c
a
rr

y
-o

v
e
r.

 T
h
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 Q

4

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 F

o
o

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ie

t 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 b

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
fo

o
d

 

g
ro

w
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

S
te

p
n

e
y

 G
re

e
n

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 d

a
ily

 

fo
r 

1
5

 p
u

p
ils

 o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t
im

e
 (

3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
T

u
h

e
l 
U

d
d
in

 

(E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 O
o

S
H

L
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r)
 (

0
2

0
 8

7
0

9
 9

2
8

5
).

 £
1

7
,8

7
5

; 
S

ir

J
o

h
n

 C
a

s
s

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
a
ily

 f
o
r 

1
6

 p
u

p
ils

 o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t
im

e
 (

3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
r 

- 
H

a
y
d
e
n
 

E
v
a

n
s
 (

0
2

0
 7

7
9

0
 6

7
1

2
).

 £
1

7
,1

2
5

.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
6
,7

7
5

4
8
%

A
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f

ro
m

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 -

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 =

 

£
1
9
,6

3
9
.2

7
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

2
=

 

£
1
8
,2

2
5
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 o

w
n

e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
A

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

y
e
a
r 

2
 f

u
n
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
S

O
L

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

o
f 

fa
m

ily
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
p

a
re

n
ts

 w
it
h

 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
E

n
g

lis
h

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

1
7

1
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 s

p
e
n
t.

E
a

rl
y

 G
C

S
E

 i
n

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 1

0
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

m
o

th
e

r 
to

n
g

u
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

C
la

s
s
e

s
 a

t 
W

h
it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
Id

e
a

 S
to

re
 a

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 r

u
n

n
in

g
. 

9
2
 

E
G

C
S

E
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
9
th

. 

O
n

c
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
, 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
 A

*-

C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
 e

x
a

m
s
 s

e
ri
e

s
. 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 n

e
x
t 
m

o
n

th
.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
8
,8

5
8

5
4
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ru
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
1

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e
r.

 I
n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

£
2
,5

0
0
 t

o
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

L
A

P
 3

Page 184



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 W

h
it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
S

N
T

 c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
 A

S
B

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e
 

F
ie

ld
g

a
te

 s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 R
L

H
 a

re
a

.t
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 a
rr

e
s
ts

: 
tw

o
 

fo
r 

c
a

n
n

a
b

is
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 a

rr
e

s
t 

fo
r 

b
u

rg
la

ry
 w

it
h

 1
4

s
to

p
 a

n
d

 s
e

a
rc

h
e
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

re
e

 c
a

n
n

a
b

is
 w

a
rn

in
g

s
. 
S

te
p

n
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 e
x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 

lo
c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 s
e

t 
a

re
a

s
. 
In

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

 S
te

p
n

e
y
 S

N
T

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 e

x
tr

a
 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 A

u
tu

m
n

 n
ig

h
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 r

e
a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 

a
ro

u
n

d
 W

h
it
e

 H
o

rs
e

 L
a

n
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 e
s
ta

te
s
. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
to

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 t
e
n
s
io

n
s
 

a
t 

S
h

a
h

ja
h

a
l 
M

o
s
q

u
e

. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 a
ls

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

w
a

rd
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t
o

 F
ir
e

w
o

rk
s
 n

ig
h

t.
 W

h
it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

d
 

o
n

 A
S

B
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 f
ie

ld
g

a
te

 s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 R

L
H

 a
re

a
.t
h

is
 h

a
s
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 1
0

 c
ri
m

in
ts

 1
 c

a
n

n
a

b
is

 w
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 6
1

 s
to

p
 a

n
d

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
 P

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

f 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 a
n

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 R
o

y
a

l 
L

o
n
d
o
n
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l.
In

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r,

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 R

e
a

c
h

 p
a

tr
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 t
e

a
m

s
. 
 W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 P

e
rs

o
n

s
 U

n
it
, 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e
. 

 A
S

B
 

D
e

llo
w

fi
e

ld
 H

o
u

s
e

. 
 H

e
re

 1
8

 s
to

p
 a

n
d

 s
e

a
rc

h
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 c

a
n
n
a
b
is

 

w
a

rn
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 
u

ri
n

a
ti
o

n
 P

N
D

 i
s
s
u
e
d
.

R
o

y
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l 
h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 a

s
 a

 d
e

fa
u

lt
 p

a
tr

o
l 
fo

r 

W
h

it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
S

N
T

 t
e

a
m

. 
 B

u
rg

la
ry

 v
ic

ti
m

 v
is

it
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p
le

te
d
 

in
 C

a
v
e

ll 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 w
it
h

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 C
ri
m

e
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
.

C
ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

o
s
te

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n

 R
o

y
a

l 
L

o
n
d
o
n
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
a

re
a

s
.E

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 a
ls

o
 i
n

 O
'L

e
a

ry
 S

q
u

a
re

 t
o
 

ta
c
k
le

 A
S

B
 a

n
d

 d
ru

g
 d

e
a

lin
g

. 
 O

n
e

 a
rr

e
s
t 
B

re
a

c
h

 o
f 
A

S
B

O
 

E
m

m
a

n
u

e
l 
F

O
L

C
O

. 
 S

ta
ir
w

e
ll 

s
w

o
o

p
s
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 t
e

a
m

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
.T

o
ta

l 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 H

o
u

rs
 w

o
rk

e
d

 =
 8

3
7

 h
o

u
rs

;T
o

ta
l 
Y

o
u
 D

e
c
id

e
 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 S
e

a
rc

h
 =

 3
6

0
 s

to
p

s
; 
T

o
ta

l 
Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 A

rr
e

s
ts

 =
 2

7
 a

rr
e
s
ts

Z
e

ro
 T

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
  

s
o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n

d
.

Page 185



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

D
ru

g
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 s

p
e

n
d

)

T
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

D
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 1
2

2
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

s
 3

,4
&

6
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 j
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h

 L
B

T
H

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 U

K
 B

o
a

rd
e

rs
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 w

it
h

in
 L

A
P

 3
.6

 

J
o

in
t 
P

o
lic

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

h
it
e

c
h
a
p
e
l 

a
n

d
 S

y
d

n
e

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 
a

re
a

s
 T

h
is

 t
e

a
m

 a
ls

o
 w

o
rk

s
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a
s
is

 

w
it
h

 T
H

E
O

s
 p

a
tr

o
lli

n
g

 a
lo

n
g

 W
h

it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t.
W

it
h

in
 L

A
P

 3
 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 2
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n

to
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 2
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

in
to

 d
ru

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
5

 r
o

u
g

h
 s

le
e

p
e

rs
 w

e
re

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 1
 I
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
w

a
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

to
 a

 m
e

a
n

in
g
fu

l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y

g
ro

u
p

£
8
5
,0

0
0

£
6
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 l
a

te
 s

ta
rt

 w
ill

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

o
 

fa
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 £

3
1
,8

5
5

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
: 
1

9

N
e

w
 R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

O
c
t:
  
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 1

 c
lo

s
e

d

N
o

v
: 
 0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 2

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

D
e

c
: 
 0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 0

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

G
E

N
D

E
R

 9
 (

F
) 

1
0

(M
)

E
T

H
N

IC
IT

Y

W
h

it
e

: 
7

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
s
h

i:
 1

0

C
h

in
e

s
e

: 
1

B
la

c
k
: 
2

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
 o

f 
Y

P
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l:
 8

L
O

W
 I
N

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

N
o

. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

: 
7

 

N
o

. 
o

f 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
: 
6

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 Q

4

L
A

P
 4

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Page 186



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
a

rk
s

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

t

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 p
a

rk
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

n
e

e
d

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

W
o

rk
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
; 
w

o
rk

s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 i
n

 3
 p

a
rk

s
 o

f 
th

e
 4

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
4
,0

0
0

8
%

A
ll 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 Q

4

D
a

y
 T

ri
p

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u

y
s
 o

n
e

 d
a

y
 t

ri
p

 p
e

r 

m
o

n
th

 u
s
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 2

 c
o

a
c
h

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 

p
e

r 
L

A
P

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

L
o

c
a

l 
lia

is
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 -

 S
o

n
a

li 
G

a
rd

e
n

s
. 
 T

o
 d

a
te

, 

1
7

 t
ri
p

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,6

7
9

5
7
%

T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

le
s
s
 t

ri
p
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

in
te

r 
s
o
 t

h
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n

 b
e
tt

e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 l
o
n
g
e
r 

d
a
y
s
 o

f 

S
u
m

m
e
r,

 A
u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d
 S

p
ri
n
g
. 

T
h
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y
 

Q
4
. 

 A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 i
n
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0

1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a

lm
in

g
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 

o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
ro

a
d

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

c
a

lm
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 o

p
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

B
 

b
u

d
g

e
t.
  
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 e
n

a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

w
o

rk
s
 a

t 
W

a
p

p
in

g
 L

a
n

e
 (

to
ta

l 
c
o

s
t 
£

2
5

,0
0

0
) 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
s
e

 w
o

rk
s
 w

e
re

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

£
1
8
,0

0
0

£
1
8
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 m
e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 s

p
e
n
t.

B
e

tt
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 b
y
 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
e

 p
ru

n
in

g
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

lu
m

n
s
, 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 

la
n

te
rn

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

c
in

g
 b

u
lb

s
 e

tc

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

 w
it
h

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 b

u
lb

 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 l
a

n
te

rn
s
 i
n

 S
t 
K

a
th

a
ri
n

e
's

 a
n

d
 W

a
p

p
in

g
 W

a
rd

 p
lu

s
 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

w
a

y
s
 o

n
 G

la
m

is
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 G
a
rn

e
t 

S
tr

e
e

t.
 T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 s

p
e
n
t.

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 A
lc

o
h

o
l'
s

 H
a

rm

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 w
o

rk
e

r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
e

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
A

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 f
u

n
d

e
d

 o
n
 a

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 b

a
s
is

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

A
P

S
 6

 &
 4

. 
T

h
e

 o
ff
ic

e
r 

h
a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 D

ru
g

 &
 A

lc
o

h
o

l 
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 a

s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

ru
g

 O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r 
s
e

c
ti
o

n

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
8
,7

5
0

2
5
%

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

D
u
e
 

to
 l
a
te

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 Q

2
 o

n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
, 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
-o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 £

2
1
,8

7
5

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.T

h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

.

P
a

m
p

e
r 

D
a

y
s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 r
u

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

m
p

e
ri
n

g
 d

a
y
s
 a

t 
T

h
e

 A
tr

iu
m

, 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o

lle
g

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 

in
te

r-
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

h
e

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

's
 w

e
llb

e
in

g

O
V

E
R

D
U

E
D

e
s
p

it
e

 n
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 a

tt
e

m
p

ts
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

it
h

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
lle

g
e

 n
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

, 
in

 p
a

rt
, 
le

d
 t

o
 t
h

is
.

£
2
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

N
o
 m

o
n
e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e
n
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t.

  
A

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s

Page 187



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

Y
o

u
th

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 &
 S

E
N

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

L
B

T
H

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
tw

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 

in
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 o

r 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
’s

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
w

o
 m

a
le

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 V

a
le

ti
n
g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 L
B

T
H

 P
ro

je
c
t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 P

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

£
5
,0

0
0

£
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.
 I

n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

£
2
,5

0
0
 i
n
to

 Q
1
 o

f 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 S

h
a

d
w

e
ll 

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
 e

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 o
n

 A
S

B
 a

n
d
 

D
is

o
rd

e
r 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 S

h
a

d
w

e
ll 

a
re

a
 o

n
e

 a
rr

e
s
t,
c
h

a
rg

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a
n
d
 

w
it
n

e
s
s
 i
n

ti
m

id
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 5
 s

to
p

 a
n

d
 s

e
a

rc
h

e
s
.S

t 
K

a
th

e
ri
n

e
's

 h
a
v
e
 

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
  
A

S
B

 a
n

d
 D

is
o

rd
e

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 o

n
e

 a
rr

e
s
t 
fo

r 
w

a
n
te

d
 

o
n

 w
a

rr
a

n
t 
o

n
e

 a
rr

e
s
t 
fo

r 
p

o
s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
c
ra

c
k
 a

n
d

 h
e

ri
o

n
 t
w

o
 a

rr
e
s
ts

 

fo
r 

m
o

to
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
 i
n

te
rf

e
re

n
c
e

, 
tw

o
 a

rr
e

s
te

d
 f
o

r 
tr

y
in

g
 t

o
 h

o
t 

w
ir
e
 a

 

m
o

p
e

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 £
5

0
 c

a
s
h

 s
e

iz
e

d
, 
L

O
S

 m
o

p
e

d
 f
o

u
n

d
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o

v
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 c
a

n
n

a
b

is
 w

a
rn

in
g

. 
In

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

 S
t 
K

a
th

e
ri
n
e
's

 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
 A

S
B

 a
n

d
 d

is
o

rd
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
w

o
 

c
a

n
n

a
b

is
 w

a
rn

in
g

s
. 
 N

e
w

s
le

tt
e

rs
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t
e

a
m

s
. 
 S

t 
K

a
th

e
ri
n
e
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 r
e

 s
q

u
a

t 
P

e
n

n
in

g
to

n
 S

tr
e

e
t.

 T
h
is

 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
e

c
u

re
d

. 
R

e
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 D

o
c
k
 S

tr
e

e
t.
  
S

L
A

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 

w
e

a
p

o
n

 s
w

e
e

p
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 h

o
s
te

l 
n

o
w

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

, 
w

it
h

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 

fr
o

m
 S

N
T

 t
e

a
m

. 
E

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 K
e

n
n

e
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

. 

 D
ru

g
s
. 
 S

u
b

je
c
t 
c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 d
ru

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 h

is
 t
e

n
n

a
n

c
y
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
o

k
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 H

o
s
te

l.
  
P

a
tr

o
ls

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 A
S

B
 h

o
ts

p
o
t 

R
o
y
a
l 

M
in

t.
  
P

a
tr

o
ls

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 o
n

e
 a

rr
e

s
t 
fo

r 
u

n
la

w
fu

lly
 o

n
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 f
e

m
a

le
 t
a

k
e

n
 i
n

to
 p

o
lic

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
. 
 S

N
T

 t
e
a
m

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 S
t 
K

a
th

e
ri
n

e
s
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 D
ru

g
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
d

v
ic

e
. 
 S

ta
ir
w

e
ll 

s
w

e
e

p
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

e
a

b
o

d
y
 E

s
ta

te
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
re

e
 

a
rr

e
s
ts

. 
 T

w
o

 w
e

re
 a

rr
e

s
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
ru

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 w
a

s
 a

rr
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 

p
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
£

1
2

0
0

 c
a

s
h

. 
 E

n
q

u
ir
e

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 P
e

a
b

o
d
y
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 t
o

 r
e

v
o

k
e

 t
e

n
a

n
c
y
.T

o
ta

l 
Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 H

o
u

rs
 =

 9
4

7
h

rs
;T

o
ta

l 

Y
o

u
 D

e
c
id

e
 S

to
p

 a
n

d
 S

e
ra

c
h

 =
 2

9
6

 S
to

p
 a

n
d

 S
e

a
rc

h
;T

o
ta

l 
Y

o
u
 

D
e

c
id

e
 A

rr
e

s
ts

 =
 5

2
 a

rr
e

s
ts

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
  

s
o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n

d
.

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

Page 188



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

D
ru

g
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 s

p
e

n
d

)

T
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

D
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 1
2

2
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

s
 3

4
&

6
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
S

N
T

s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
e

a
m

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 D

o
c
k
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n

d
 R

o
y
a

l 
M

in
t 

a
re

a
s
.6

 J
o

in
t 
P

o
lic

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 

W
a

tn
e

y
 M

a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 D
o

c
k
 S

tr
e

e
t.

 T
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e
e
n
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

lo
n

g
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
R

o
a

d
.W

it
h

in
 L

A
P

 4
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 7

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

in
to

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 7
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n

to
 d

ru
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
5

 r
o

u
g

h
 s

le
e

p
e

rs
 w

e
re

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 1

 

b
e

g
g

a
r 

w
a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

(I
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 

P
C

T
 f
u

n
d

e
d

)

£
8
5
,0

0
0

£
6
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 l
a

te
 s

ta
rt

 w
ill

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

o
 

fa
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 £

3
1
,8

5
5

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
: 
1

3

N
E

W
 R

E
F

E
R

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 C
A

S
E

 C
L

O
S

E
D

O
c
t:
 0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 1

 c
lo

s
e

d

N
o

v
: 
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 0

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

D
e

c
: 
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 2

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

G
E

N
D

E
R

 7
 (

F
) 

9
(M

)

E
T

H
N

IC
IT

Y

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
s
h

i:
 1

2

B
la

c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n

: 
1

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
 o

f 
Y

P
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l:
 1

6

L
O

W
 I
N

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

N
o

. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

: 
1

4

N
o

. 
o

f 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
: 
1

0

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 Q

4

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
C

a
re

rs
: 

L
e

is
u

re
 

P
a

s
s

e
s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 a
 L

A
P

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 

th
e

ir
 c

a
ri
n

g
 r

o
le

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
a

p
p

ly
in

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

a
re

rs
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
a

 p
a

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 s
in

c
e

 A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

0
.C

a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
p

p
lie

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
e

is
u

re
 p

a
s
s
 

b
u

t 
o

n
ly

 7
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 L
A

P
 4

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
3

1
.A

ll 
fu

n
d

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 G
L

L
 a

n
d

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e

 u
p

ta
k
e

 o
f 
p

a
s
s
e

s
.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e
n
t.

Y
IP

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

(Y
IP

) 
a

im
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

1
3

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 f

ro
m

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 

J
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 5
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

in
 e

a
c
h

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t:
 5

0
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

: 
3

2
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

n
d

 6
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

o
f 

g
e

tt
in

g
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

.

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
3
7
,5

0
0

7
5
%

Page 189



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

L
A

P
 5

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 B
u

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

m
b

in
e

s
 t

h
e

 H
o

p
p

a
 

B
u

s
 w

it
h

 D
ia

l-
a

-R
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

 w
it
h

 a
 d

a
ily

 b
u

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 p

ic
k
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
p

 

a
n

d
 t

a
k
e

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 k
e

y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

0
. 
 M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 b

y
 L

in
k
A

g
e
 P

lu
s
 -

 

A
p

p
ia

n
 C

o
u

rt
. 
 D

a
ily

 b
u

s
 v

is
it
in

g
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t.

£
6
0
,0

0
0

£
2
4
,5

8
3

4
1
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
  

d
u
e

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 a

 c
a
rr

y
-o

v
e
r.

 T
h
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 Q

4

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a

lm
in

g
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 

o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
ro

a
d

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

c
a

lm
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n

s
ta

lli
n

g
 n

e
w

 h
u

m
p

s
 i
n

 C
o

b
o

rn
 R

o
a

d
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

  
L

a
rg

e
 w

e
re

 v
o

id
s
 f
o

u
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 r
e

p
a

ir
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t.

£
1
8
,0

0
0

£
3
4
,0

0
0

1
8
9
%

 T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 £

1
6
,0

0
0
 t

o
 

c
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e

n
d
. 

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
a

lm
, 

S
p

e
e

d
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

v
ic

e
s

S
ig

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
A

P
 w

it
h

 a
c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 

s
p

e
e

d
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
. 

E
a

c
h

 s
ig

n
 w

ill
 

b
e

 p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 3
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

n
u

a
lly

.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 r

o
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

p
e

e
d

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 s

ig
n

s
 a

re
 i
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 -

 i
n
 

T
re

d
e

g
a

r 
R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

 O
ld

 F
o

rd
 R

o
a

d
 n

e
a

r 
A

rm
a

g
h

 R
o

a
d

 h
a
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

£
3
,5

0
0

£
3
,5

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 s

p
e
n
t.

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 F

o
o

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ie

t 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 b

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
fo

o
d

 

g
ro

w
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

O
lg

a
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
a

ily
 f
o

r 
1

6
 p

u
p
ils

 

o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t
im

e
 (

3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
S

a
ra

h
 H

a
ll-

C
ra

g
s
 (

E
x
te

n
d
e
d
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r)

 (
0

2
0

 8
9

8
1

 5
1

5
3

).
 £

9
,8

0
0

; 
C

h
is

e
n

h
a

le
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 

S
c

h
o

o
l 
B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
: 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
a

ily
 f

o
r 

1
6

 p
u

p
ils

 o
v
e

r 
te

rm
 t

im
e
 

(3
9

 w
e

e
k
s
).

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
R

a
c
h

e
l 
W

h
it
e

 (
D

e
p

u
ty

 H
e

a
d

) 
(0

2
0

 8
9

8
0

 2
5
8
4
).

 

£
1

3
,8

0
0

;
O

ld
 F

o
rd

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
F

o
o

d
 C

o
-o

p
: 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a
 

“f
o

o
d

 c
o

-o
p

” 
w

it
h

in
 O

ld
 F

o
rd

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
s
e

lli
n

g
 f
ru

it
 a

n
d
 

v
e

g
e

ta
b

le
s
. 
C

o
n

ta
c
t:
 G

re
g

o
ry

 C
o

h
n

 0
2

0
 7

2
4

7
 1

0
5

6
. 
£

1
1

,4
0
0
.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
9
,6

3
9

5
6
%

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 -

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

fo
r 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 =

 £
1
9
,6

3
9
.2

7
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

fo
r 

Y
e
a
r 

2
=

 £
1
5
,3

6
0
.7

3
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 

a
n
d
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
A

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 

ro
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e

n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

O
n

e
 t

o
 O

n
e

 S
m

a
ll

 G
ro

u
p

 T
u

it
io

n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 a
 L

A
P

 w
it
h

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 m
o

re
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

tu
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 Y

r 

1
1

 p
u

p
ils

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

S
t 

P
W

T
S

 h
a

s
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
1

9
 Y

 1
1

 p
u

p
ils

 (
1

1
 b

o
y
s
 a

n
d

 8
 g

ir
ls

) 
d
o
in

g
 

m
a

th
s
 o

n
ly

 1
:1

 t
u

it
io

n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

s
 a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

o
n

 e
it
h

e
r 

W
e

d
s
 o

r 
T

h
u

rs
.

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 r

u
n
 o

n
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

b
a
s
is

 

a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
1
.

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 G
ra

d
u

a
te

 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 p

a
id

 1
6

 w
e

e
k
 

w
o

rk
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

s

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o

f 
4

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 
 

£
1
1
,0

0
0

£
1
1
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

F
u
n
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 

d
o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 f
in

a
n
c
e
.

Page 190



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

J
o

b
 F

a
ir

T
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 j
o

b
 f

a
ir
 

b
ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 w

it
h

 

jo
b

s
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 

s
e

a
rc

h
 o

f 
w

o
rk

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 J

o
b

s
 F

a
ir
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 1
1

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 a
t 
Y

o
rk

 H
a
ll.

  
It

 

w
a

s
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

v
e

n
t 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

w
h

o
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 o
p

e
n

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 s
p

o
k
e

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 S

e
n
io

r 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

fr
o

m
 J

o
b

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
. 
O

v
e

r 
5
0
0
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 7
0

%
 o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 L

A
P

s
 w

it
h

 2
1

%
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 9

%
 

fr
o

m
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
O

f 
th

e
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

rm
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 2

2
%

 

s
ta

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 J

o
b

s
 F

a
ir
 w

a
s
 E

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
w

it
h

 6
7
%

 

s
ta

ti
n

g
 i
t 
w

a
s
 G

o
o

d
 o

r 
V

e
ry

 G
o

o
d

 .
 3

4
 s

ta
ll 

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 a
n
d
 

a
ls

o
g

a
v
e

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
.

£
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,8

4
4

9
7
%

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

L
A

P
1
 a

n
d
 L

A
P

5
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 £

1
0
,0

0
0
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 J

o
b
s
 F

a
ir
 e

v
e
n
t.

 F
in

a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

V
e
n
u
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

£
1
,3

5
0
; 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 /
 P

ri
n
ti
n
g
 £

2
,4

5
4
.7

4
; 

C
a
te

ri
n
g
 £

3
,4

7
5
; 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

£
2
,4

0
8
.5

0
. 

T
h
is

 l
e

a
v
e
s
 £

3
1
1
.7

6
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
. 

S
p
lit

 b
e

tw
e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 L

A
P

s
 

th
is

 g
iv

e
s
 £

1
5
5
.8

8
. 

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.
 I

n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

£
2
,5

0
0
 f

u
n
d
s
 i
n
to

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

Page 191



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 S

N
T

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

t 
F

a
ir
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a
d
 

A
S

B
 l
ik

e
d

 t
o

 a
 S

h
is

h
a

 b
a

r.
 M

a
in

 p
ro

b
le

m
 c

a
u

s
e

r 
a

rr
e

s
te

d
 f
o
r 

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 

O
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 r

e
m

a
n

d
. 
A

S
B

O
`s

 a
n

d
 c

lo
s
u

re
 n

o
ti
c
e

 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rt
 i
n

 d
u

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

.D
ru

g
s
 w

a
rr

a
n

t 
a

t 
O

ld
 F

o
rd

 

R
o

a
d

 o
n

e
 m

a
le

 a
rr

e
s
te

d
 f
o

r 
p

o
s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

c
a

in
e

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

.E
x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 o
n

 L
e

 F
e

v
re

 E
s
ta

te
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 A
S

B
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 

E
a

s
ts

id
e

 Y
o

u
th

 c
lu

b
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
re

 d
is

p
e

rs
a
l.
 

C
a

n
n

a
b

is
 F

a
c
to

ry
 3

0
 p

la
n

ts
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
t 
a

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 i
n

 S
a

x
to

n
 

R
o

a
d

.E
x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 H
a

y
ly

n
 S

q
 r

e
 s

u
s
p

e
c
te

d
 r

a
c
ia

lly
 a

g
g

ra
v
a
te

d
 

C
ri
m

in
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
.E

x
tr

a
 P

a
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

ile
 E

n
d

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 R

o
b

b
e

ry
 a

n
d

 B
u

rg
la

ry
. 
S

in
c
e

 t
h

is
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 n
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
..
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

s
a

w
 e

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

lly
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

e
v
e

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

t 
d

a
y
s
 w

h
e

n
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

re
 y

o
u

th
s
 a

re
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s

A
S

B
 C

lo
s
u

re
 O

rd
e

r 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 g

o
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rt
s
. 
F

a
ir
fi
e
ld

 

R
o

a
d

 E
3

.

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 T

h
e

ft
 o

f 
P

e
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 T
h

e
ft
 f
ro

m
 M

o
to

r 
V

e
h

ic
le

 i
n

 a
 H

o
ts

p
o
t 

o
n

 W
ic

k
 L

a
n

e
. 

P
o

lic
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 F

ix
e

d
 P

o
in

ts
 a

t 
th

is
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

is
 t
re

n
d

.F
iv

e
 D

ru
g

s
 w

a
rr

a
n

ts
 o

n
 t
h

e
 L

a
p

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

n
d

 6
 a

rr
e

s
te

d
 f
o

r 
s
u

p
p

ly
in

g
 c

ra
c
k
 a

n
d

 H
e

ro
in

.C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

E
a

s
t 
S

id
e

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
.E

x
tr

a
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 o
u

ts
id

e
 B

o
w

 B
o

y
s
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
.O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 F

u
s
io

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 d

a
y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 1

7
th

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
a

rr
e

s
ts

 a
n

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 s

e
iz

e
d

.I
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r,

 S
N

T
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d
 a

 

D
ru

g
s
 w

a
rr

a
n

t 
fo

r 
1

5
 R

a
m

w
e

ll 
C

lo
s
e

 a
n

d
 C

lo
s
u

re
 o

rd
e

r.
H

ig
h
 V

is
 

P
a

tr
o

ls
 F

a
ir
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
 M

o
n

d
a

y
 -

 F
ri
d

a
y
 E

v
e

n
in

g
. 
P

re
m

is
e

s
 C

lo
s
u
re

 

o
rd

e
r 

n
o

w
 g

o
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

rt
s
.A

rr
e

s
te

d
 a

 m
a

le
 o

u
ts

id
e
 B

o
w

 

B
o

y
s
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

it
h

 a
 k

n
if
e

.E
x
tr

a
 P

a
tr

o
ls

 M
o

rv
ill

e
 S

tr
e

e
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

w
o
 

R
o

b
b

e
ri
e

s
 o

n
 N

e
w

 Y
e

a
rs

 E
v
e

.A
S

B
 M

o
rv

ill
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
F

iv
e

 I
n

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 A

B
C

`s
 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

.A
lc

o
h

o
l 
R

e
la

te
d

 A
S

B
 o

u
ts

id
e

 O
ff
 L

ic
e
n
c
e
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 H

o
u

s
e

 F
iv

e
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 D
ru

g
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 t
e

a
m

.E
x
tr

a
 

P
a

tr
o

ls
 H

a
y
ly

n
 S

q
, 
T

re
d

e
g

a
r 

S
q

 r
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 B

u
rg

la
ry

.

D
ru

g
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r

T
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

D
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 7
9

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

s
 5

&
7

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
S

N
T

s
 h

a
s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
t 
s
h

if
ts

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
R

o
m

a
n
 

R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
 H

o
u

s
e

 B
o

w
 R

o
a

d
.I
n

 t
o

ta
l 
9

 j
o

in
t 
s
h

if
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 

p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

in
 R

o
m

a
n

 R
o

a
d

 M
a

rk
e

t 
a

n
d

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

d
ri
n

k
e

rs
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

p
e

rs
e

d
. 
S

h
if
ts

 h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
E

le
c
tr

ic
 H

o
u

s
e

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h
 

c
o

n
g

re
g

a
ti
n

g
 o

u
ts

id
e

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

e
tt
in

g
 s

h
o

p
.A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
n

y
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
rr

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
a

u
ti
o

n
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
re

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

in
 

L
A

P
 5

£
4
2
,5

0
0

£
3
1
,8

7
5

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 Q

4

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
  

s
o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n

d
.

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

Page 192



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

T
o

ta
l 
n

o
. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
: 
2

3

N
E

W
 R

E
F

E
R

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 C
A

S
E

 C
L

O
S

E
D

O
c
t:
  
0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 2

 c
lo

s
e

d

N
o

v
: 
 0

n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 1

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

D
e

c
: 
 0

 n
e

w
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l,
 0

 c
a

s
e

 c
lo

s
e

d

G
E

N
D

E
R

 7
 (

F
) 

 1
8

 (
M

)

E
th

n
ic

it
y

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
s
h

i:
 4

B
la

c
k
: 
9

W
h

it
e

: 
1

0

L
O

W
 I
N

T
E

N
S

IV
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

N
o

. 
o

f 
c
/y

p
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

: 
4

1

N
o

. 
o

f 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
: 
2

1

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 Q

4

E
x

tr
a

 P
o

li
c

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 Y
o

u
 D

e
c

id
e

 f
o

r 
2

 y
e

a
rs

)

O
n

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
P

o
lic

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

S
N

T
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

P
C

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

N
T

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
lo

c
a

l 
h

ig
h

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 p

o
lic

in
g

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t
h

e
ir
 S

N
T

 c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 

£
8
0
,0

0
0

£
6
0
,0

0
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

th
e
 f

u
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 

n
o
t 

b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

u
n
ti
l 
Q

1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 

s
u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0
/1

1
 h

a
s
 s

o
 f

a
r 

b
e
e
n
 £

3
0
,0

0
0

L
A

P
 6

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

D
a

y
 T

ri
p

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u

y
s
 o

n
e

 d
a

y
 t

ri
p

 p
e

r 

m
o

n
th

 u
s
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 2

 c
o

a
c
h

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 

p
e

r 
L

A
P

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
L

o
c
a

l 
lia

is
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 -

 A
p

p
ia

n
 C

o
u

rt
. 
 T

o
 d

a
te

, 
6
 

tr
ip

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
d

 b
y
 c

o
a

c
h

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
o

u
ti
n
g
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 d
ir
e

c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 f
e

e
s
 e

tc
.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
3
,8

2
0

3
8
%

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 i
n
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0

1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 l
e
s
s
 t

ri
p
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

in
te

r 
s
o
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

w
e
a

th
e
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

d
a
y
s
 o

f 
S

u
m

m
e
r,

 A
u
tu

m
n
 

a
n
d
 S

p
ri
n
g
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y
 Q

4
.

Page 193



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

B
e

tt
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 b
y
 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
e

 p
ru

n
in

g
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

lu
m

n
s
, 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 

la
n

te
rn

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

c
in

g
 b

u
lb

s
 e

tc

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 s
p

e
n

d
 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
W

e
lli

n
g

to
n

 W
a

y
 A

1
1

 t
o

 T
id

w
o

rt
h

 /
 D

im
s
o
n
 

C
re

s
c
e

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

re
a

 o
f 
A

rc
h

ib
a

ld
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 -
 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
s
t 

£
1

5
,0

0
0

. 
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 i
n

 W
e

lli
n

g
to

n
 W

a
y
 a

n
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 A

rc
h

ib
a

ld
 P

a
rk

 h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
w

h
it
e

 l
ig

h
t 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
 w

e
re

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
.

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 A
lc

o
h

o
l'
s

 H
a

rm

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 w
o

rk
e

r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
e

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

A
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 f
u

n
d

e
d

 o
n
 a

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 b

a
s
is

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

A
P

S
 6

 &
 4

.P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
S

tr
o

u
d

ly
 W

a
lk

 a
n

d
 C

a
m

p
b
e
ll 

R
o

a
d

. 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 w

it
h

 S
t 
P

a
u

ls
 M

e
d

ic
a

l 
C

e
n

tr
e
 a

n
d
 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 I
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
tr

e
e

t 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
 n

e
a

r 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
e

m
e

te
ry

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 1

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 L
A

P
 a

n
d
 3

 

jo
in

t 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 w
it
h

 P
o

lic
e

.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
8
,7

5
0

2
5
%

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e

r 
a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 

(£
2
1
,8

7
1
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

.

P
a

m
p

e
r 

D
a

y
s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 r
u

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

m
p

e
ri
n

g
 d

a
y
s
 a

t 
T

h
e

 A
tr

iu
m

, 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o

lle
g

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 

in
te

r-
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

h
e

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

's
 w

e
llb

e
in

g

O
V

E
R

D
U

E
D

e
s
p

it
e

 n
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 a

tt
e

m
p

ts
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

it
h

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
lle

g
e

 n
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

, 
in

 p
a

rt
, 
le

d
 t

o
 t
h

is
.

£
1
,5

0
0

£
0

0
%

N
o
 m

o
n
e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e
n
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 h

a
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d
e
la

y
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 

ta
k
e
n
 b

a
c
k
 b

y
 A

d
u

lt
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 f

in
d
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
.

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

O
n

e
 t

o
 O

n
e

 S
m

a
ll

 G
ro

u
p

 T
u

it
io

n
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 a
 L

A
P

 w
it
h

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 m
o

re
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

tu
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 Y

r 

1
1

 p
u

p
ils

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 2

4
 Y

 1
1

 g
ir
ls

 d
o

in
g

 m
a

th
s
 1

 t
o

 1
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
s
e

 w
ill

 s
ta

rt
 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 a
ft
e

r 
te

a
c
h

e
rs

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

 p
u

p
ils

' 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
s
. 
 S

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l.
  

B
o
w

 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
3

0
 Y

 1
1

 p
u

p
ils

 d
o

in
g

 1
 t
o

 1
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
, 
1
6
 b

o
y
s
 

d
o

in
g

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 1
4

 d
o

in
g

 m
a

th
s
. 
 T

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
is

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h
e
 e

x
tr

a
 

6
 p

u
p

ils
 a

n
d

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
o

n
 T

h
u

rs
d

a
y
s
.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ru
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

llm
e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly

F
a

m
il

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 E

S
O

L

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 r

u
n

 f
re

e
 f

a
m

ily
 

le
a

n
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 

p
a

re
n

ts
, 

g
ra

n
d

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
ir
 c

h
ild

’s
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
t 

h
o

m
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

O
N

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
ill

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 

£
7
,5

0
0

£
3
,5

0
0

4
7
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

E
a

rl
y

 G
C

S
E

 i
n

 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 1

0
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

m
o

th
e

r 
to

n
g

u
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

C
la

s
s
e

s
 a

t 
B

u
rd

e
tt
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

re
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 s

m
o

o
th

ly
. 

9
6
 

E
G

C
S

E
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
9
th

. 

O
n

c
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
, 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
 A

*-

C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
 e

x
a

m
s
 s

e
ri
e

s
. 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 n

e
x
t 
m

o
n

th
.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
7
,8

7
7

5
1
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ru
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1

Page 194



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e
r.

 I
n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 (

£
2
,5

0
0
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 M

ile
 E

n
d

 E
a

s
t 
a

n
d

 B
ro

m
le

y
 B

y
  
B

o
w

 S
N

T
s
 c

o
n

d
u
c
te

d
 1

0
 

s
e

p
a

ra
te

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 A

S
B

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 

in
 t

h
e

 r
u

n
 u

p
 t
o

 H
a

llo
w

e
e

n
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 D

is
p

e
rs

a
l 
A

re
a

s
.T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e

e
n

 a
 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
s
e

v
e

n
 a

rr
e

s
ts

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s
 d

o
g

 a
c
t 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
, 
P

u
b

lic
 o

rd
e

r 
,a

n
d

 p
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
D

ru
g

s
 w

it
h

 i
n

te
n

t 
to

 

s
u

p
p

ly
.A

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
w

a
s
 a

rr
e

s
te

d
 i
n

 p
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
2

1
 w

ra
p

s
 o

f 

C
la

s
s
 A

 d
ru

g
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 E
N

N
E

R
D

A
L

E
 H

O
U

S
E

 E
3

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 b

e
in

g
 

w
o

rk
e

d
 o

n
 a

s
 a

 P
S

P
 r

e
 d

ru
g

 u
s
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ir
w

e
lls

 a
n

d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

P
o

lic
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 o

v
e

r 
7

0
 s

to
p

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 2

0
 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 D
is

p
e

rs
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
  

A
S

B
O

s
 w

ill
 f

o
llo

w
 w

it
h

 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

th
is

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 .
W

o
rk

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 B
ro

th
e

l 
o

n
 t
h

e
 L

e
o

p
o

ld
 E

s
ta

te
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

lu
b

s
 a

n
d

 V
ic

e
 U

n
it
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

rr
e

s
ts

 w
it
h

 o
n

g
o
in

g
 

w
o

rk
 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 t
h

e
 t
w

o
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 R

S
L
 

P
o

p
la

r 
H

a
rc

a
. 
D

u
ri
n

g
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r,

 M
ile

 E
n

d
 E

a
s
t 
a

n
d

 B
ro

m
le

y
 B

y
 

T
h

e
 D

is
p

e
rs

a
l 
Z

o
n

e
 i
n

 D
e

v
o

n
s
 R

o
a

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 P
o

lic
e

d
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b

je
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 i
n

te
ri
u

m
 A

S
B

O
 b

e
in

g
 

a
rr

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 
b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

rt
 f
o

r 
a

 b
re

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
.P

o
lic

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 D
ru

g
s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
 w

e
re

 

2
1

 w
a

rr
a

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
x
e

c
u

te
d

 a
n

d
 1

6
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 b
e

in
g

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

ly
in

g
 b

o
th

 C
la

s
s
 A

 a
n

d
 C

la
s
s
 B

 

d
ru

g
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 M

ile
 E

n
d

 E
a

s
t 
a

re
a

.P
o

lic
e

 a
re

 g
iv

in
g

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 

c
ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o

 a
tt
e

m
p

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a
s
 .

O
v
e
r 

tw
o

 d
a

y
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
u

ts
id

e
 M

ile
 E

n
d

 a
n

d
 B

o
w

 R
o

a
d

 T
u

b
e
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 g

iv
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 s
a
fe

 

g
u

a
rd

 t
h

e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
. 
In

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

M
ile

 E
n

d
 E

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 

B
ro

m
le

y
 b

y
 B

o
w

 S
N

T
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 p
a

tr
o

ls
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
o
u
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 g

iv
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ra

v
e

lle
rs

 c
ri
m

e
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

a
fe

 .
S

e
v
e
ra

l 

C
ri
m

e
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 s

ta
lls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 
u

p
 o

u
ts

id
e

 M
ile

 E
n

d
 a

n
d
 B

o
w

 

R
o

a
d

 t
u

b
e

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

re
 c

ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 l
it
e

ra
tu

re
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 g
iv

e
n

.P
o

lic
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
v
o

n
s
 R

o
a

d
 D

is
p

e
rs

a
l 
Z

o
n

e
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e

Y
IP

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

(Y
IP

) 
a

im
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

1
3

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 f

ro
m

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 

J
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 5
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

in
 e

a
c
h

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t:

 5
0

. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

: 
3
2
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
, 
1

4
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 5
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

fu
s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
3
7
,5

0
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
  

s
o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n

d
.

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

Page 195



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E
N

S
IV

E
!S

U
P

P
O

R
T

T
o

ta
l!
n

o
.!
o

f!
c/

y
p
!r

e
ce

iv
e
d
!i
n

te
n

si
v
e
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
:!
1

5

N
e
w
!R

e
fe

rr
a
l!
a
n

d
!c

a
se
!c

lo
se

d

O
ct

:!
!0
!n

e
w
!r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
!0

cl
o

se
d

N
o

v
:!
!0

n
e
w
!r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
!5
!c

a
se
!c

lo
se

d

D
e
c:
!!
0
!n

e
w
!r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
!1
!c

a
se
!c

lo
se

d

G
e
n

d
e
r!

4
!(

F
)!

1
0

(M
)

E
T
H

N
IC

IT
Y
!

W
h

it
e
:!
6

B
a
n

g
la

d
e
sh

i:
!6

B
la

ck
:!
3

LO
W
!I
N

T
E
N

S
IV

E
!S

U
P

P
O

R
T

N
o

.!
o

f!
c/

y
p
!r

e
g
is

te
re

d
:!
4

4

N
o

o
f

se
ss

io
n

s
d

e
li
v
e
re

d
:
2

2

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

C
C

T
V

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 C
C

T
V

 c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
; 

a
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
C

T
V

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
ro

o
m

.

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 L
A

P
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 w

e
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 l
o

c
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

C
C

T
V

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
u

n
d

s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f
ib

re
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 D

e
v
o

n
's

 R
o

a
d

 f
ro

m
 S

t 
P

a
u

ls
 W

a
y
 u

p
 

to
 B

o
w

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
a

n
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 R
h

o
d

e
s
w

e
ll 

R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
ro

o
m

 l
in

k
in

g
 i
n

 w
it
h

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
lo

n
g

 D
e
v
o
n
's

 

R
o

a
d

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
n

s
ta

lli
n

g
 C

C
T

V
 d

u
c
ts

. 
T

h
e

 Y
o

u
 D

e
c
id

e
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

ill
 

a
llo

w
 u

s
 t
o

 p
u

t 
tw

o
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 i
n

 a
lo

n
g

 D
e

v
o

n
's

 R
o

a
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n
 S

t 

P
a

u
l's

 W
a

y
 a

n
d

 B
o

w
 C

o
m

m
o

n
 L

a
n

e
. 
  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
p
s
 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

re
a

. 

£
3
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

w
o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

s
p
e
n
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
.

Page 196



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

L
A

P
 7

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a

lm
in

g
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 

o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
ro

a
d

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

c
a

lm
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 n

e
w

 s
p

e
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 f
e

a
tu

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
 o

f 

s
in

u
s
o

id
a

l 
ro

a
d

 h
u

m
p

s
/t
a

b
le

s
 o

n
 L

in
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

£
1
8
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,5

0
0

5
8
%

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
5
,0

0
0
. 

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t

h
is

 m
o
n
e
y
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
z
e
b
ra

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 h

a
lo

s
 

in
 t

h
e
 L

A
P

. 
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
 f

u
n
d
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 

tr
a
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 L

A
P

 5
.

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 A
lc

o
h

o
ls

 H
a

rm
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 

P
e

e
r 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 L
A

P
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 h
a

rm
s
 o

f 

a
lc

o
h

o
l

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

B
ig

fo
o

t 
T

h
e

a
tr

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
h

o
s
e

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 t
w

o
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 

re
c
e

iv
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 s
u

rv
e

y
/q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
y
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

u
p

ils
 m

a
y
 o

r 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 t
h

e
a

tr
e

 g
ro

u
p

 v
is

it
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 -

  
B

ig
fo

o
t 
s
p

e
n

d
 a

 d
a

y
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

 4
5

 m
in

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
9
 a

n
d
 

y
e

a
r 

6
 p

u
p

ils
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 1
-2

 h
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 

re
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
. 

T
h

e
 t
h

e
a

tr
e

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 w

ill
 c

o
lle

c
t 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
1

0
-1

5
 m

in
s
 t
o

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
 d

a
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

lf
 t
o

 t
ra

in
 t

h
e
 

p
e

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

to
rs

 a
n

d
 g

a
th

e
r 

th
e

ir
 m

id
 p

ro
je

c
t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
.p

re
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 

th
e

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
n

d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 

B
ig

fo
o

t 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
lis

e
 a

n
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 o
r 

a
d

d
e
d
 t

o
 

th
e

 s
c
ri
p

t.
  
T

h
e

 P
e

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

to
rs

 w
ill

 t
h

e
n

 m
e

e
t 
a

g
a

in
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p
le

te
 a

 

fi
n

a
l 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
A

 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

T
B

C
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 f
in

a
l 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
1
7
,5

0
0

5
0
%

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 Y

e
a
r 

1
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 s
p
e
n
d
 a

 

to
ta

l 
o
f 

£
1
7
,5

0
0
. 

 P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 Q

4
.A

s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 -

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 w

it
h
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

ft
e
r 

S
A

T
s
 e

x
a
m

s
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 o

w
n

e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
A

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 i
n
to

 Q
1
 o

f 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

F
o

o
tb

a
ll

 C
o

a
c

h
in

g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

e
n

 w
e

e
k
s
 

o
f 

fr
e

e
 s

p
o

rt
s
 c

o
a

c
h

in
g

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 

a
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 t
o

u
rn

a
m

e
n

t

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 1

0
 w

e
e

k
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

t 
L

im
e

h
o

u
s
e

 Y
o

u
th

 P
ro

je
c
t 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

C
it
y
 G

a
te

w
a

y
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 h
e

ld
 e

v
e

ry
 

T
u

e
s
d

a
y
 a

n
d

 S
u

n
d

a
y
. 
T

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

ts
 w

a
s
 3

1
4
 o

n
 a

 

T
u

e
s
d

a
y
 a

n
d

 7
4

 o
n

 a
 S

u
n

d
a

y
. 
T

w
o

 o
f 
th

e
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

tr
a

in
e

d
 a

s
 F

u
ts

a
l 
(A

 v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

m
a

ll 
s
id

e
d

 g
a

m
e

) 
R

e
fe

re
e
s
 a

n
d
 

n
o

w
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 r
u

n
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 L

e
a

g
u

e
. 
6

3
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 h

a
v
e
 j
o
in

e
d
 

te
a

m
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

u
ts

a
l 
L

e
a

g
u

e
. 

A
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 a
n
d
 

y
o

u
n

g
s
te

rs
 a

re
 k

e
e

n
 t
o

 h
o

s
t 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

o
n

e
 s

o
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
b
e
in

g
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 S

P
L

A
S

H
 a

t 
th

e
 W

o
rk

h
o

u
s
e

 i
n

 P
o

p
la

r 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

v
e

ra
g

in
g

 1
7

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
a

c
h

 s
e

s
s
io

n
. 

T
o
 

d
a

te
 2

7
1

 y
o

u
n

g
s
te

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
tt
e

n
d

e
d

 e
v
e

ry
 F

ri
d

a
y
 &

 S
u

n
d

a
y
 a

n
d
 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 2

 w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h
e
 f

e
s
ti
v
e
 

b
re

a
k
, 
S

P
L

A
S

H
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

. 
B

o
y
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 a

t 
9

8
%

 w
h

ils
t 
g

ir
ls

 m
a
d
e
 

u
p

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
2

%
. 
T

h
e

 t
o

u
rn

a
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 F
ri
d

a
y
 1

8
th

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

.

£
4
,5

0
0

£
4
,5

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

Page 197



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

O
n

e
 t

o
 O

n
e

 S
m

a
ll

 G
ro

u
p

 T
u

it
io

n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 a
 L

A
P

 w
it
h

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 m
o

re
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

tu
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 Y

r 

1
1

 p
u

p
ils

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

L
a

n
g

d
o

n
 P

a
rk

 h
a

v
e

 a
 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
2

4
 Y

 1
1

 p
u

p
ils

 d
o

in
g

 1
 t

o
 1

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
, 

1
2

 p
u

p
ils

 (
1

0
 g

ir
ls

 a
n

d
 2

 b
o

y
s
) 

d
o

in
g

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 1
3

 p
u

p
ils

 (
1
1
 g

ir
ls

 

a
n

d
 1

 b
o

y
) 

d
o

in
g

 m
a

th
s
.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ru
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

llm
e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly

F
a

m
il

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 E

S
O

L

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
ir
s
t 

s
te

p
 

E
S

O
L

 c
o

u
rs

e
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

c
a

re
rs

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

O
N

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
ill

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

£
7
,5

0
0

£
3
,5

0
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

E
a

rl
y

 G
C

S
E

 i
n

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 1

0
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

m
o

th
e

r 
to

n
g

u
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

C
la

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 C
h

ri
s
p

 S
tr

e
e

t 
Id

e
a

 S
to

re
 a

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 r

u
n

n
in

g
. 

9
4
 

E
G

C
S

E
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
9
th

. 

O
n

c
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
, 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
 A

*-

C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
 e

x
a

m
s
 s

e
ri
e

s
. 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 n

e
x
t 
m

o
n

th
.

3
5
,0

0
0

2
2
2
5
1

6
4
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ru
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 L
A

P
. 

It
 w

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

ill
 v

is
it
 

1
0

 u
s
e

rs
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

o
f 

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 3
0

 

jo
b

s
, 

3
0

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 8
 H

o
m

e
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 v
is

it
s
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
7

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 1

6
8

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.
 I

n
 t

o
ta

l 

fo
r 

Q
3

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

0
4

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

5
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

s
t 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

is
 p

a
id

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
n

 a
rr

e
a
rs

.

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 (

£
2
,5

0
0
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

 o
f 

L
in

k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 f
u

n
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
e

r

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 f
u

n
d

 a
 w

o
rk

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 v

is
it
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
m

 g
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 s
in

c
e

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

. 
S

h
e

 h
a

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

e
lp

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e
rs

 

a
n

d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 g

ro
u

p
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 l
e

a
rn

 n
e
w

 

s
k
ill

s
, 
re

d
u

c
e

 i
s
o

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

. 
S

in
c
e

 6
th

 S
e
p
t 

–
 

D
e

c
 2

0
1

0
, 
s
h

e
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 2

5
0

 v
is

it
s
 i
n

 l
a

p
, 
re

c
ru

it
e

d
 1

2
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

, 

m
a

d
e

 6
1

 o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 c
o

n
ta

c
ts

, 
a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 2

5
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
o

r 
IT

 c
la

s
s
e
s
, 

1
8

 f
o

r 
c
o

o
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
tt
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 1

8
 o

ld
e

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 

s
w

im
m

in
g

. 
 S

h
e

 a
ls

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 M

ile
 E

n
d

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l,
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
N

H
S

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 D

a
y
),

 F
o

o
d

 H
y
g

ie
n

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
T

o
y
n
b
e
e
 

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
5
,9

4
6

1
7
%

T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
ta

rt
 u

n
ti
l 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 

a
re

 o
n
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 (

£
1

7
,5

0
0
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 t
h

e
 S

N
T

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 Y

o
u
 

D
e

c
id

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
n

 a
n

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

o
p

la
r 

C
o

lle
g

e
 a

re
a

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e
t 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 y

o
u

th
 v

io
le

n
c
e

.F
u

n
d

in
g

 w
a

s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 o
b

ta
in

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e

 S
e

a
rc

h
 T

e
a

m
 -

 P
o

ls
a

 -
 t
o

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
a

 t
h

o
ro

u
g

h
 s

e
a

rc
h
 f

o
r 

w
e

a
p

o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

ic
in

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
lle

g
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 o
v
e

r 
7

5
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

w
e

a
p

o
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

n
iv

e
s
, 
b

a
to

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 a

 q
u

a
n

ti
ty

 o
f 
h

e
rb

a
l 

c
a

n
n

a
b

is
. 
D

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 a
n

d
 1

4
 

s
to

p
/s

e
a

rc
h

e
s
. 

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 l
im

it
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 
th

is
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

 i
n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 w
e

re
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 d

ru
g
 

d
e

a
lin

g
 i
n

 P
ix

le
y
 S

tr
e

e
t/
C

o
p

e
n

h
a

g
e

n
 P

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

ru
g

 d
e

a
lin

g
 i
n
 

D
o

d
d

 S
tr

e
e

t/
S

ta
in

s
b

y
 R

o
a

d
. 

O
n

e
 a

rr
e

s
t 
w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

n
d

 1
6

 s
to

p
 a

n
d
 

s
e

a
rc

h
. 
In

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

n
o

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 u

s
in

g
 Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 w

e
re

 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t.

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
  

s
o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n

d
.

Page 198



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

D
ru

g
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 W
o

rk
e

r 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 s

p
e

n
d

)

T
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

D
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
h

is
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 7
9

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

s
 5

&
7

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
S

N
T

s
 h

a
s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
t 
s
h

if
ts

 a
re

 n
o

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a
s
is

 a
t 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 L

A
P

 7
.W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 j
o

in
t 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 a
n

d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

th
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
P

o
la

r 
C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 P

o
p

la
r 

P
a

rk
.W

it
h

in
 L

A
P

 7
 t
h

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e

e
n

 7
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n

to
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 1
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
in

to
 d

ru
g
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
1

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

to
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 1
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

to
 a

 m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

.

£
8
5
,0

0
0

£
6
3
,7

5
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 l
a

te
 s

ta
rt

 w
ill

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

o
 

fa
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 £

3
1
,8

5
5

Y
o

u
th

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

l

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 4
0

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 8

-1
3

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
IN

T
E
N

S
IV

E
!S

U
P

P
O

R
T

T
o

ta
l!
n

o
.!
o

f!
c/

y
p
!r

e
ce

iv
e
d
!i
n

te
n

si
v
e
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
:!
2

2

N
e
w
!R

e
fe

rr
a
l!
a
n

d
!c

a
se
!c

lo
se

d

O
ct

:!
!1
!n

e
w
!r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
!0
!c

lo
se

d

N
o

v
:!
!3
!n

e
w
!r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
!5
!c

lo
se

d

D
e
c:
!!
2
!n

e
w
!r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
!1
!c

lo
se

d

G
e
n

d
e
r!

5
!(

F
)!

1
7

(M
)

E
T
H

N
IC

IT
Y
!

W
h

it
e
:!
9

B
a
n

g
la

d
e
sh

i:
!1

0

B
la

ck
:!
3

LO
W
!I
N

T
E
N

S
IV

E
!S

U
P

P
O

R
T

N
o

.!
o

f!
c/

y
p
!r

e
g
is

te
re

d
:!
S
e
ss

io
n
!h

a
v
e
!r

e
ce

n
tl

y
!c

o
m

m
e
n

ce
d
!f

ro
m
!P

o
p

la
r!

B
o

y
’s
!a

n
d
!G

ir
ls
!C

lu
b

N
o

o
f

se
ss

io
n

s
d

e
li
v
e
re

d
:
4

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
2
6
,2

5
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

Y
IP

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

(Y
IP

) 
a

im
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

1
3

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 f

ro
m

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 

J
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 5
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

in
 e

a
c
h

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t:
 5

0
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

: 
3

7
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
. 
T

h
is

 m
e

e
ts

 o
v
e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 y

e
a

r.
 

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
3
7
,5

0
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

Page 199



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

L
A

P
 8

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

B
e

tt
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 b
y
 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
e

 p
ru

n
in

g
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

lu
m

n
s
, 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 

la
n

te
rn

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

c
in

g
 b

u
lb

s
 e

tc

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 s
te

e
ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 G

e
o
rg

e
 

G
re

e
n

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
p

u
p

ils
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 A

S
B

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

n
 R

o
p

e
 W

a
lk

. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

u
p

ils
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
o

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 a

 

fe
a

s
ib

le
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
u

p
g

ra
d

in
g

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 a

lo
n

g
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
lin

k
 a

t 
th

e
 

n
o

rt
h

s
id

e
 o

f 
M

ill
w

a
ll 

P
a

rk
. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

b
y

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 F

o
o

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

d
ie

t 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 b

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
fo

o
d

 

g
ro

w
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s

O
V

E
R

D
U

E
D

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 L
A

P
8

 a
n

d
 s

e
tb

a
c
k
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
/i
n

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f
ro

m
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

th
e

 L
A

P
8

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
. 
R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e

 -
 s

p
e

c
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 t
o

 i
n

v
it
e

 b
id

s
 f
ro

m
 l
o

c
a

l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 (
a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
d

) 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 c

o
o

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
a

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
it
h

in
 L

A
P

 8
 

(a
n

d
 L

A
P

1
).

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 b

y
 m

id
 F

e
b

u
a

ry
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 g

o
-

a
h

e
a

d
 f
ro

m
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 B

u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

th
a

t 
s
p

e
n

d
/d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 (

£
3
5
,0

0
0
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fr

o
m

 C
M

T
/M

A
B

.T
h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

jo
in

tl
y
 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

.

P
a

m
p

e
r 

D
a

y
s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 r
u

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

m
p

e
ri
n

g
 d

a
y
s
 a

t 
T

h
e

 A
tr

iu
m

, 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o

lle
g

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 

in
te

r-
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

h
e

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

's
 w

e
llb

e
in

g

O
V

E
R

D
U

E
D

e
s
p

it
e

 n
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 a

tt
e

m
p

ts
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

it
h

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
lle

g
e

 n
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

, 
in

 p
a

rt
, 
le

d
 t

o
 t
h

is
.

£
2
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

N
o
 m

o
n
e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e
n
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 n

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

fu
n
d
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
.

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
a

rl
y

 G
C

S
E

 i
n

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 1

0
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 G

C
S

E
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

m
o

th
e

r 
to

n
g

u
e

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 a

t 
A

lp
h

a
 G

ro
v
e

 a
re

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 s
m

o
o

th
ly

.9
3

 E
G

C
S

E
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
c
k
 e

x
a

m
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
8

th
. 
O

n
c
e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
, 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 A

*-
C

 

g
ra

d
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
ro

lle
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
 e

x
a

m
s
 s

e
ri
e

s
. 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 n

e
x
t 
m

o
n

th
.

3
5
,0

0
0

1
9
7
6
2
.4

5
5
6
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ru
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 G
ra

d
u

a
te

 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 p

a
id

 1
6

 w
e

e
k
 

w
o

rk
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

s

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o

f 
4

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

£
1
1
,0

0
0

£
1
1
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

F
u
n
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 

d
o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 f
in

a
n
c
e
.

E
n

g
a

g
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
v

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 t
ra

in
 u

p
 t

o
 2

4
 N

E
E

T
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

9
 a

s
 

s
te

w
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

n
ts

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

P
re

p
a

ra
to

ry
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t
o

 r
e

c
ru

it
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 r

u
n

 t
h

re
e

 l
o

ts
 o

f 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

.T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 r

u
n

 o
v
e

r 
in

to
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

th
a

t 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

v
e

n
ts

.

£
7
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
n
y
 c

a
rr

y
-o

v
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
to

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

Page 200



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

E
x

te
n

d
e

d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
/S

tu
d

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

v
e

rs
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 

s
tu

d
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 a

 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

le
a

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

8
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 L

A
P

s
 (

 1
,2

 a
n

d
 8

) 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
tu

d
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

M
a
jo

ri
ty

 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
ra

is
in

g
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
t 

K
S

 3
 a

n
d

 4
 p

u
p

ils
. 
A

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 S

tu
d

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
e

a
m

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 8

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
th

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
tw

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 (

fi
lm

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
a

s
s
e

m
b

lin
g
) 

in
 

L
A

P
 2

 a
n

d
 8

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 S
p

ri
n

g
 t

e
rm

. 

T
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
tu

m
n
, 

S
p

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
te

rm
. 
M

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h
 L

A
P

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
te

rm
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 s

h
o

rt
ly

.

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

5
0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

 o
f 

L
in

k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 f
u

n
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
e

r

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 f
u

n
d

 a
 w

o
rk

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 v

is
it
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
m

 g
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
 L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 w
o

rk
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 s
in

c
e

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

. 
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 0

6
 S

e
p

t 
–

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

, 
h

e
 h

a
s
 

w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
. 
H

e
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 1

2
2
 

d
o

o
r-

to
-d

o
o

r 
v
is

it
s
, 
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 h
is

 w
o

rk
s
, 

s
e
t 

u
p
 

M
e

n
’s

 I
T

 c
la

s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 8

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
in

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
th

e
 R

o
b

in
 H

o
o
d
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

/E
a

ti
n

g
 L

u
n

c
h

e
o

n
 C

lu
b

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 2

2
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 1

 h
o

u
r 

c
o

o
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 1
 h

o
u

r 
c
h

a
ir
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
5
,9

4
6

1
7
%

T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
ta

rt
 u

n
ti
l 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 

a
re

 o
n
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 (

£
1

7
,5

0
0
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

Page 201



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 a

 f
o

u
r 

d
a

y
 A

S
B

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 s
ix

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 

m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 i
n

lu
d

in
g

 D
ru

g
s
 P

o
s
s
e

s
s
io

n
, 
R

e
c
a

l 
to

 P
ri
s
o
n
, 

fr
a

u
d

, 
b

re
a

c
h

 o
f 
A

S
B

O
, 
c
o

m
m

o
n

 a
s
s
a

u
lt
 a

n
d

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

a
s
s
a

u
lt
. 
T

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 p
a

id
 f
o

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 a
ro

u
n
d
 

G
le

n
g

a
rn

o
c
k
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 

o
f 

A
S

B
 o

n
 s

ta
ir
w

e
lls

. 
B

la
c
k
w

a
ll 

a
n

d
 M

ill
w

a
ll 

S
N

T
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 H

a
llo

w
e

e
n

 p
e

ri
o

d
 t
o

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

d
e

te
c
t 
A

S
B

 o
n

 t
h

e
 I
s
la

n
d

. 
R

e
s
u

lt
s
 s

o
 f
a

r 
h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
a
rr

e
s
ts

, 

c
ri
m

in
a

l 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 a
 c

a
n

n
a

b
is

 w
a

rn
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 

re
a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
o

 e
a

s
y
 t
o

 q
u

a
n

ti
fy

, 
b

u
t 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 s

o
 f
a

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
. 
In

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

8
 a

rr
e
s
ts

 m
a
d
e
 

fo
r 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

 s
p

ik
e

 i
n

 o
ff
e

n
c
e

s
 -

 6
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
e

n
 o

v
e

r 
tw

o
 

w
e

e
k
s
. 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 A

S
B

 p
a

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e

r 
H

a
llo

w
e
e
n
 

a
n

d
 B

o
n

fi
re

 N
ig

h
t 
a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
p

a
tr

o
ls

. 
In

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 

g
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
fi
v
e

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 d
ru

g
s
 s

e
a

rc
h

 w
a

rr
a
n
ts

 

th
is

 m
o

n
th

.I
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r,

T
w

o
 m

a
le

s
 a

rr
e

s
te

d
 f
o

r 
b

re
a

c
h

 o
f 
c
o
u
rt

 

o
rd

e
r.

A
u

to
c
ri
m

e
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 -
 6

0
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 s

e
e

n
 o

v
e

r 
a

 t
w

o
 w

e
e
k
 p

e
ri
o

d

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
,3

7
5

1
3
%

N
o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

Q
2
 a

n
d
 Q

3
  

s
o
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 Q

1
 s

p
e
n

d
.

p
u

b
lic

 o
rd

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 -

 b
o

th
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
.A

rr
e

s
t 
fo

r 
re

c
a

ll 
to

 p
ri
s
o
n
, 

T
O

M
V

, 
P

o
s
s
e

s
s
 K

n
if
e

, 
P

o
s
s
e

s
s
 C

a
n

n
a

b
is

, 
A

s
s
a

u
lt
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e
. 

C
h

a
rg

e
d

.A
rr

e
s
t 

fo
r 

c
a

n
n

a
b

is
 c

u
lt
iv

a
ti
o

n
 -

 b
a

ile
d

.

E
x

tr
a

 P
o

li
c

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(o
n

g
o

in
g

 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
)

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 o

n
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

P
o

lic
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
to

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
N

T
.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

P
C

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

N
T

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
lo

c
a

l 
h

ig
h

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 p

o
lic

in
g

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t
h

e
ir
 S

N
T

 c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 

£
8
0
,0

0
0

£
6
0
,0

0
0

7
5
%

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

th
e
 f

u
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 

n
o
t 

b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

u
n
ti
l 
Q

1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
s
 

s
u
c
h
 s

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0
/1

1
 h

a
s
 s

o
 f

a
r 

b
e
e
n
 £

3
0
,0

0
0

C
C

T
V

 c
a

m
e

ra

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 C
C

T
V

 c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
; 

a
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
C

T
V

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
ro

o
m

.

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
P

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 i
n

s
ta

ll 
ro

o
f 
to

p
 t
ra

n
s
m

it
te

r 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
n

e
c
t 
in

to
 t
w

o
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 

o
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 I
s
la

n
d

 H
o

m
e

s
 i
n

 C
a

s
ta

lia
 S

q
u

a
re

 a
n

d
 i
n

s
ta

ll 
o

n
e

 n
e
w

 

c
a

m
e

ra
 i
n

 S
t 
J
o

h
n

s
 P

a
rk

 E
1

4
. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 h

e
ld

 u
p

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

re
e

d
in

g
 s

e
a

s
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 b

ir
d
s
 

o
n

 t
o

p
 o

f 
K

e
ls

o
n

 H
o

u
s
e

.T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
o

n
 h

o
ld

 d
u

e
 t
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 I
s
la

n
d

 H
o

m
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

K
e
ls

o
n
 

T
o

w
e

r.
 T

h
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
 w

e
 w

e
re

 d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 a
t 
Is

la
n

d
 H

o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 

m
o

v
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 h
a

v
in

g
 t
o

 g
o

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

in
g

s
 a

g
a

in
.

£
3
0
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

Y
IP

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

(Y
IP

) 
a

im
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

1
3

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 f

ro
m

 e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 

J
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 5
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

in
 e

a
c
h

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
t:
 5

0
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

: 
 3

1
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
, 
2

1
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
.

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
3
7
,5

0
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

Y
o

u
th

 P
ro

je
c

ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Z
e

ro
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

 p
o

li
c

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 d
ru

g
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

P
 a

re
a

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

Page 202



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

N
o

n
e

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
W

o
m

e
n

’s
 L

if
e

g
u

a
rd

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

W
o

m
e

n
 w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
 a

 3
 m

o
n

th
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 

e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s
s
 p

a
rt

 t
im

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 p

o
s
tp

o
n

e
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 i
lln

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

c
ru

it
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 l
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

lly
 v

ia
b

le
. 
It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

re
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f
o

r 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
1

. 
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
1

0
 -

 1
6

 f
e

m
a

le
 l
if
e

g
u

a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

's
 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
.

£
8
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

Y
o

u
th

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 &
 S

E
N

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t 

(2
)

L
B

T
H

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
tw

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 

in
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 o

r 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
’s

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
.

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
W

o
rk

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
k
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 w

it
h

 G
L

L
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
b

o
th

 p
la

c
e

m
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

£
5
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t.

F
a

m
il

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 E

S
O

L

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
ir
s
t 

s
te

p
 

E
S

O
L

 c
o

u
rs

e
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

c
a

re
rs

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

O
N

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
ill

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

£
7
,5

0
0

£
3
,5

0
0

7
5
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

E
n

g
a

g
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
v

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 t
ra

in
 u

p
 t

o
 2

4
 N

E
E

T
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

9
 a

s
 

s
te

w
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

n
ts

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

P
re

p
a

ra
to

ry
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t
o

 r
e

c
ru

it
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 r

u
n

 t
h

re
e

 l
o

ts
 o

f 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

.T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 r

u
n

 o
v
e

r 
in

to
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

th
a

t 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

v
e

n
ts

.

£
7
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

A
n
y
 c

a
rr

y
-o

v
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
to

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

W
a

rr
io

r 
W

o
m

e
n

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
S

a
fe

ty
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 C

o
u

rs
e

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

s
a

fe
ty

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
w

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
's

 g
ro

u
p

s
 -

 a
 t
e

e
n
a
g
e
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 W
h

it
e

's
 r

o
w

 y
o

u
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

's
 h

o
s
te

l.
 I
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

3
1

 y
o

u
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 o
n

to
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

. 
E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

w
o

m
e

n
's

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
a

re
a

s
 (

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n

c
e

, 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
e

rt
iv

e
n

e
s
s
 b

u
ild

in
g

, 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
s
a

fe
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 u
n

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
, 

S
e
x
u
a
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 D

ru
g

s
 a

n
d

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
).

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 n
o
w

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

.

£
6
,0

0
0

£
6
,0

0
0

1
0
0
%

A
ll 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d

e

C
o

m
p

u
te

rs
 f

o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

s
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 

d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
. 

It
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
o

m
p

u
te

rs
 a

n
d

 s
o

ft
w

a
re

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
ra

in
e

d
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 i
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 u

s
e

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
.

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
e

 C
o

m
p

u
te

rs
 f
o

r 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 h
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

G
ra

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
a

id
 t
o

 s
o

m
e

 s
it
e

s
 t
o

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.

A
 t

ra
in

in
g

 d
a

y
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 w

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n

d
 F

a
m

ili
e

s

£
6
0
,0

0
0

£
9
,3

4
6

1
6
%

A
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 (

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 £

1
0
,0

0
0
 a

n
d
 £

2
3
,0

0
0
) 

in
to

 Q
1
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 u

n
ti
l 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1
 i
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

£
3
5

,0
0
0
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

m
o
n
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 a

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

o
 a

llo
c
a
te

 

to
 s

it
e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r,

 i
f 

th
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
'd

 

lik
e
 t

o
 r

o
ll 

o
v
e
r 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
2
3
,0

0
0
 a

n
d
 

re
tu

rn
 a

b
o
u
t 

£
1
5
,0

0
0
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
o
t.

Page 203



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

P
ro

je
c

t
R

A
G

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

t
R

A
G

/%
F

in
a
n

c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

T
H

E
O

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
th

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le

D
E

L
A

Y
E

D
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 d
u

e
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 M

a
y
o

rs
.F

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

9
th

 J
a

n
 –

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 w
e

e
k
ly

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n

e
 a

re
a
 

fo
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

S
B

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
n

d
a

y
 m

a
rk

e
t:
 T

H
E

O
s
 

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 p
a

tr
o

l 
e

v
e

ry
 S

u
n

d
a

y
 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
1

0
 w

e
e
k
s
 

fr
o

m
 0

8
0

0
-1

8
0

0
 h

rs
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 i
lle

g
a
l 

s
tr

e
e

t 
tr

a
d

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
s
.

£
2
5
,0

0
0

£
0

0
%

T
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t:

 £
1
6
,7

5
2
. 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 h

o
w

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
 t

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 £

8
,2

4
8
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 T

H
E

O
s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

h
if
t 

ro
ta

s
. 

 T
h
e
 

p
o
lic

e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
r 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
v
e
r.

A
ft

e
r 

S
c

h
o

o
l 

P
a

tr
o

ls
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
th

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 T

H
E

O
 a

ft
e

r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

a
tr

o
ls

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
T

o
w

e
r

H
a

m
le

ts
E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t

O
ff
ic

e
rs

w
e

re
ta

s
k
e

d
to

c
o
n
d
u
c
t

a
ft

e
r

s
c
h

o
o

ls
p

a
tr

o
ls

o
u

ts
id

e
a

ll
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

s
c
h

o
o

ls
to

p
a
tr

o
l

th
e

s
c
h

o
o

l
a

n
d

a
re

a
s

a
ro

u
n

d
th

e
s
e

s
c
h

o
o

ls
to

c
o

m
b

a
t

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

a
n

d
re

a
s
s
u

re
re

s
id

e
n

ts
a

n
d

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

.
O

ff
ic

e
rs

p
a

tr
o
lle

d
in

p
a

ir
s

fr
o

m
M

o
n

d
a

y
to

F
ri
d

a
y

b
e

tw
e

e
n

1
1

0
0

-1
4

0
0

h
rs

a
n
d

1
5
0
0
-

1
8

0
0

h
rs

a
n

d
w

o
rk

e
d

in
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
w

it
h

T
h

e
M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n

P
o
lic

e

S
a

fe
r

S
c
h

o
o

ls
O

ff
ic

e
rs

.
A

C
C

T
V

s
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

v
a

n
w

a
s

a
ls

o
u
s
e
d

to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

v
is

ib
le

d
e

te
rr

e
n

t
a

n
d

to
g

a
th

e
r

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

o
f

in
c
id

e
n
ts

o
f

a
n
ti
-

s
o

c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

A
d

e
ta

ile
d

re
p

o
rt

o
u

tl
in

in
g

th
e

re
s
u

lt
s

o
f

th
is

w
o
rk

is
a

v
a

ila
b

le
o

n
re

q
u

e
s
t.
It

is
in

te
n

d
e

d
to

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

to
c
o

n
d
u
c
t

th
e

p
a

tr
o

ls
fr

o
m

th
e

1
7

th
J
a

n
u

a
ry

to
th

e
3

1
s
t

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

.
O

ff
ic

e
rs

w
ill

b
e

d
e

p
lo

y
e

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
s
h

if
t

p
a

tt
e

rn
a

n
d

a
u

g
m

e
n
te

d
w

it
h

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

v
e

r 
o

n
 r

e
s
t 
d

a
y
s
. 

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
7
,0

0
0

3
5
%

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

F
o
u
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f

u
n
d
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
p
e
n
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4
.

N
o

 P
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
H

a
te

 Y
o

u
th

 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

T
e

n
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
ill

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

m
 

to
 f

u
lf
il 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
a

 Y
o

u
th

 H
a

te
 

C
ri
m

e
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

.

O
N

 T
A

R
G

E
T

T
h

e
c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

w
o

rk
e

d
e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

h
a

rd
o

v
e

r
Q

3
.

A
ll

1
7

y
o
u
n
g

p
e

o
p

le
a

re
fi
rs

t
a

id
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
.,

a
re

in
th

e
p

ro
c
e

s
s

o
f

c
o

m
p
le

ti
n
g

a
n

A
Q

A
in

D
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
-

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
to

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
,

P
re

ju
d
ic

e
a
n
d

D
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

h
a

v
e

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
C

h
ild

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
tr

a
in

in
g
.

T
h
e

p
e

e
r

w
o

rk
e

rs
d

e
liv

e
re

d
7

H
a

te
C

ri
m

e
A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s

T
ra

in
in

g
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

y
o

u
th

g
ro

u
p

s
a

c
ro

s
s

T
o

w
e

r
H

a
m

le
ts

.
T

h
e

m
a

jo
ri
ty

o
f

th
e

y
o
u
th

c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

h
a

v
e

a
ls

o
ta

k
e

n
p

a
rt

in
a

n
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
p

ro
je

c
t

w
it
h

T
iD

–

M
e

d
ia

b
o

x
,

w
h

ic
h

h
a

s
s
e

e
n

th
e

m
d

e
v
e

lo
p

a
m

a
g

a
z
in

e
e

n
ti
tl
e
d

J
’
G

e
t

M
e

!
w

h
ic

h
is

y
o

u
th

fo
c
u

s
e

d
a

n
d

a
b

o
u

t
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
is

s
u

e
s
.

A
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
is

m
a

g
a

z
in

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

8
y
o

u
th

c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
th

e
ir

O
C

N
L

e
v
e

l
1

in
M

a
g

a
z
in

e
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
.S

o
fa

r
th

e

m
a

g
a

z
in

e
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

tr
ia

lle
d

in
2

H
a

te
C

ri
m

e
A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s

s
e

s
s
io

n
a
n
d

b
o

th
o

f
th

e
g

ro
u

p
s

o
f

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

h
a

v
e

lik
e

d
th

e
m

a
g

a
z
in

e
.

T
h
e

c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

a
ls

o
to

o
k

p
a

rt
in

a
6

w
e

e
k

s
h

o
rt

p
ro

je
c
t

w
it
h

y
o
u
n
g

p
e

o
p

le
a

t
Is

la
n

d
H

o
u

s
e

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
a
g
e

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rg

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

h
e

s
io

n
.

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
7
,5

0
0

5
0
%

A
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4

3

Page 204



�

��
��

�����������
�
��������
�

	
����
�
	�
����

������

��
���
��
������
�
��������
�����
�
�

�����������
����
��������

�����
�
������

��������
���
�
��������������
����������
���
����������������
���� ��!������"
���!���
����
#����
��!� "������$� ����
��%� &���� "�����
#����
������
���
�

'('&)*�
�
)+��
���������������������
����,����
��������
��

�
�
�����

�����������
�

�
�
��� ��������
�

�-�-� '
��������������������
���+��
���������������������
����,����
��������������#����
��!�
����!�������.�/
�

������!������
�����

��
����������
�����0�
������������������������
������������
�$���1�!1���+�������������/����2�-����3�!!��������2�-�4��3�!!���-�

�
�
��� 	 ����!���� "��� 	�
�
� �������������
�33��������*5�
�

�-�� 6�����
���+��
���������������������
����,����
�����������������������������+��-�

�
�
#�� � ��!���$!��	 ����!���
�
7-�� #����
��!� ����!������� ��8������ �
��� ����!��� �������� ��� ���3������ ���

����
�!���33������ �������� ���� �����
��!� ��
������� ��9��� ������ #����
��!�
����!�������.-�

�
7-�� '
������!������������������������������
���,�����
���������
��!���������������������

�
�����3�����������!������
�������������
�����
������-�
�
�
%�� �&' ���'�( �!)'�!���
�
:-�� '
������
�!�����������$�����#����
��!�����!��������/
�

�
�1������������1����$�

����
�! ������������������
�!���33�����������������������
��!���
���������9���������
#����
��!�����!�������.-�

�
:-�� (���
������
�!�/���������1��������3��
������8����3����;��
����/��!���������������

����� ������� ���� ������ ��-� � (�� ��� ���� 
���������� �
��� �
���� ��� ��$� ��

� ������;�

Agenda Item 12.1

Page 205



�

��
��


�1���� ������� ��� �
�� ����� ��� ������� �
��� ��3����� ���� 9���� �����3��� ������
��
�������3�����������
����!����������
����$��
���
�!�����������������
����
����
�
��1��������������

�����
��/��
�#����
��!�����!������-�

�
�
*�� +��,-�!��	�
�

4-�� � ����!������ �.� ����� ���� �
�� �������� ���������� '
���
�!��� ���� ���
���
� �����
��!�
������
�����-�

�
�
.�� $�������&�� -�&�'�!��+/��
�

<-�� #����
��!� ����!������ �.� ����� ���� �
�� ���������� �
���
�!��� ���� �
�� ��!!�/���� �����
��!�
������
�������0�

=���3�����

������!�)���3�����

>��1������3�����������8����3���������������
���������������"��0�
�����)��

�
���
�!� ��

������!��1���������

"���!�3������������������!��3��

�

<-�� ������ #����
��!� ����!������ �.;� ��� �
�� ������
����� ��1�!1��� �� ��3� ���/���� 2�-����
3�!!���� ���� 2�-�4�� 3�!!���� ��� 
��� ��� ���
������� �$� �
�� ���������� ����
���� ������ �
��
�

�3�� ��� ��!�������� ���� 3���� �!��� ��� �
�� ���0�
�� ��� �� ������� ������� ��� �
�� ��+��
�1��!��!���������-�

<-7� � � �������+� �� ����� ���� �
�� �+��
����� ��� ���������� ����
����,� ���
�������;� ������ �
��
�����!����������:-�����1�;��
���
�1����9����!�
�����
���
�����1�������������

�
�
1�� �!�� �'��!$�'2 ��2� $�$�������&�!$$�� ��
�
?-�� '
��
�33���������
������
�������������
���
�1���������
����������������
�������������

�������+��
�
�
/�� �!����� �'� � )!�'� !$� '2 � �����'��'� �2� $�  3 ��'�( � 4& -�&�

� �(�� �5�
�

.-�-� '
�� ������� ����� ���� �
�� ����1����!� �+��
����� ��� ����
����,� ���
�������� ��� ��8������ �$�
#����
��!�����!��������

�

Page 206



�

��
��

.-�� '
�� !���!� �3�!�
������� ��� ��

� ��� �
�� ����1����!� ��
������� /��!�� 
�1�� �����
���1���������������� �
����
������3�9�������
���-�'
����/�!!� ��� ��
��������� �
��
@��
���������������������
����,��
�����A�3�����������$�����
��������

�
�

6�� !� �'!� ��2��& '���!���	 ��'�!���
�

	-�� '
�������������
��
������/��
��
��������
�������������
���,����
��������������"��������
�����������
����������
������'�/���B�3!�����3�!�
������-�'���
���+������
����
����
��������'�/���B�3!������������������������������3��
������1����!��
�����;� �
����
/��!��
�1���������������������
����
����������

��
����-�

�
�
�7�� ���'����+& ���'�!��$!����-�  � �� �(��!�� �'�
�
��-��� �'
�����������"��������!���
�����������C�������)�1����3���� �3�!�
������������������3�����

�
���������-�
�
�
���� ���,�����- � �'���)&���'�!���

�

��-�� �'
�� ���9�� ����
������ /��
� ��

� ��� �
�� ���������� ����
����,� ���
�������� ��� ���� ���� ���
�������+� �� /��!�� 
�1�� ����� ����������� ���� �1�!������ ��� ��� �������!� ����� ��� �
��
���
���;�/
�

�!��������
����
�������

�
���� ���� ���	�	��!�	 ��� 	��'�!����)&���'�!���
�
��-�� '
��������������3�������������������
�����(3�!�
������������������3��
���������-�
�
�
�#��  $$��� �����'�' � �'��

� �
�7-��� '
�� /��9�� ��������� ��� ��� �
�� ������� /�!!� ��� ���
����� ��� !���� /��
� �����!��
���

���
��
��;���9�����

�������������1�!��-��
�
�
�%�� �)) �	�� ��
�

�������+� �� D� )+��
���� ��� ���������� ����
����,� ���
�������� ������ #����
��!�
����!�������.�

�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 207



�

��
��

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE�
�
&��
��-�8�����������9��61�����������77	�4���
������5�
&�����
�:+
�;���<���)
����=�<��������>������
�
������
��>����������

� �
���������
�����������@��
9�������������A� 6�3��������!��
������3�������
�!�����

������������/
�����������������
����-�
�

��
���������������������
������
������ &�9����!!$;�#����
���������;�
��33�������;�&�
�!������������!�����
)+�-�4����

�
�
�

Page 208



�

�

�

�

�

���������	
�����
���������������������
��������
���������������
�����������������������
������������������
�

����������
����
����

������� ���
�����������
����
�������
���
�������

�������
����������
�
�����

�����
��

����������
����
����
�������������
 �
��������!�
��������

		"#� ����������	�

��
��
�����
���
��

�����
�������
���
��
�����
�$�
%&��������'���������
��
��������&��
��������������
�&���&�������(	))#$�
�

������
���������
*	)"���������
+��&����&��
���&��,��*-�����
����'��.�
���������$�

 �#������.�
�����
��
/�������
� �����$�011	�

�

Page 209



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 211

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	6.1 Cotall Street/ Bartlett Park (CAB 098/101)
	Cotall Street Appx 1 CAB 090311 IF0103111138am
	Cotall Street Appx 2 CAB 090311 IF0103111138am

	6.2 Commercial Activities in Parks (CAB 099/101)
	10.1 Children's and Adults' Services Reorganisation (CAB 100/101)
	10.2 Strategic Performance and Corporate Budget Monitoring to 31st  December 2010  (CAB 101/101)
	Appendix 1 - Budget and Target Adjustment 15 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 2 - 09 GF CMBM 28 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 3 - 09 HRA CMBM 15 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 4 - Efficiency Savings 15 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 5 - Transformation Savings 15 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 6 - Capital Budget Reconciliation 28 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 7 - Capital Programme 28 2 11 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 8 - Strategic Indicators Q3 IT0103111144am
	Appendix 9 - PB Monitoring - FINAL (2). IT0103111144am

	12.1 Exercise of Corporate Directors' Discretions (CAB 102/101)
	Director Discretions Appx 1 CAB 090311 LS2802111558pm

	14 EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

